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Overview

Morgan Advanced Materials is a business rich in history
and innovation. Founded in the UK in 1856, we

have grown into a global organisation with 70 sites in

18 countries. Our model to serve our customers where
they need us has led to a diversified product range
using our unparalleled expertise in ceramic and carbon
materials, which we exploit to solve difficult problems
for our customers across a diverse range of markets.

We are a purpose driven organisation. Our purpose

is to use advanced materials to make the world more
sustainable and to improve the quality of life. We deliver
on that purpose through the products that we make,
and the way that we make them.

We help our customers push the limits of their processes
and products to meet the demanding requirements they
face, from higher process temperatures to higher product
performance to increasing miniaturisation.

Sustainable solutions We play a role in helping the waorld become maore
sustainable. enabling energy transition through our

for a greener future products and by reducing our own environmental impact.
Our appreach to sustainability is embedded within cur

strategy. We see this as fundamental to our future growth
" and resilience, and to defivering exceptional value to our

stakeholders and building a company that our pecple can
d be proud of,

ﬁ i Read more on pages 32 to 39
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Morgan in numbers

Financial KPls
(statutory and adjusted performance KPIs)

I

We assess our
performance
across a wide e L e

. Revenue (¢ ny; Organic constant currency
range of metrics, revenue growth’ (%;
TO sU p po rt th e Performance 7 Performance .
On a reported basis, revenue increased by On an organic constant currency” basis
' £161.6 million, 17.0%, reflecting continued revenue grew by |1.2%, with growth across
G rou p S St rategy strong demand across afl global business units. all global business units. See the Review of
See the Review of operations on pages 48 operations on pages 48 to 49 for more detail.

and to monltor to 49 for more detail,
performance, Lz
the Board of sloy U503
Directors and

the Executive
Committee
use a humber
of financial key

20 2 22 20

performance )
indicators (KPls). Adjusted operating

Free cash flow before acquisitions,

profit margin’ 5. disposals and dividends ;1 :
Performance Performance

Margin improvement from increased Lower free cash flow” from a one-off pension
volumes, with pricing and efficiency contribution of £67.0m and increased investment
savings more than offsetting cost inflation. in working capital to secure cur supply chain and
See the Review of operations on capital expenditure to support ongoing growth.

pages 48 to 49 for more detail.

13.1 13.6

10.1

{46.9)

22 22

Thraughout twe Annual Repornt. ngadimg the Strategie Report, adpsted measures are used to describe the Group's financal
serformance These adjusted measures are not recognised under IFRS or ciner genera Iy accepted accounting principres
(GAAP) These measurss are shown because the Directors consider they provids wseful nformation to shareraloers,
neleding addmonal insight nta ongemg tracing and year-chi-year comparisons. These non-GAAP measures should be
wviewed as complementary to. not replacements for the comparable GAAF meas.res Thioughout this Report these
ron-GAAP measures are clearly identied by an astensk () where tiey appear intext, and by a footnote where they appea
n tables and charts Definuons and reconcliations of these non GAAFP measures to the relevat GAAP measures can be
fourd in the Group Financa! Review: on pages 5/ to 59,
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Our financial KPIs are a balanced set of metrics which help the Board and the
Fxecutive Committee assess performance and progress against our execution
priorities and business plans. These and other KPls are used to evaluate operating
performance and make financial, strategic and operating decisions.

Operating profit (1) Continuing EPS () Dividend per share ip)

Performance Performance Performance
QOperating profit improvement from increased Benefits ansing from ncreased volumes across all The Board has commitied to growing the
volumes, with pricing and efficiency savings more global business units, with pricing and efficiency dividend with earnings to around 2.5 times
than offsetting cost inflation, See the Review of savings more than offsetting cost inflation. dividend cover. For the year ended
operations on pages 48 to 49 for more detail. 31 December 2022, the Board is recommending
a dividend equivalent to 2.8 times
12.0
140.8 30.6
22
(1.8)
20 22 20 22
Return on invested capital (5., Adjusted EPS" /- Net debt’ to EBITDA'
N N RN R
Performance Performance Performance
Higher return on invested capital’, as we have Benefits arising from increased volumes Net debt” to EBITDA" (excluding lease liabilities)
ncreased investment in werking capital and across all global business units. with pricing was 0.8 times at the end of 2022. following
capilal expenditure to support improved and efliciency savings more than offsctling a one-off pension contribution of £67.0m.
adjusted operating profit’. cost inflation. increased working capital mvestment and
increased capital expenditure.
33.8
22.4
20.5 0.8 0.8
19.0
22 22 20 21 22

The continuing and discortinued EPS KFI has been
rernoved from the 2022 Arnual Repot because the
impact of dscontirued operations s reducing It has
been reniaced mt net debt” to EBITDA (excuding ease
1 aohtes) because this metr ¢is a key part of the financeal
framework which SLppPoTts our imvestment proposition
as set out in the Chief Executive Officer's review on
page 19
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Morgan in numbers continued

At Morgan Advanced Materials we are committed to a sustainable future. In March 2021,
we set stretching goals across a number of environmental, social and governance areas.

Key environmental, social and governance (ESG) measures

CO,e scope | and 2 emissions (metric tonnes)

Alignment to strategy
ng:

Why do we measure this KPI?

Our sustainability agenda includes actions to reduce greenhouse
gas (GHG) emissions and combat climate change. tn March 2021,
we announced a commitment to reduce absolute GHG emissions
(scope | and 2} by 50% (against 2045 levels) by 2030,

338,531 514,842
276,678
KEr 229887 o\ |4 Target
171,347
20 21 22 2030

Overall water withdrawal (million m?)

Alignment to strategy

n: :

Why do we measure this KPI?

gy 2030, we will reduce our total withdrawal of water by 30% (against our
2015 baseline}, and we are implementing water sustainability projects
globally to achieve this goal.

1.93 Target
I.63
22 2030

Lost-time accident (LTA) rate’

Alignment to strategy

Why do we measure this KPI?

We are working towards cur aspiration of zero harm to all our
employees, We are committed to conducting all our activities
in a manner that builds a caring safety culture and develops

a world-class safety system that supports this effert.

0.28
0.22
Target
.10
18 19 20 A 22 2030
T Alost-tme acadent (LTA) is defines as an acadert or work-related diness which
residtsin one e mare days of Inst tme Calewated as rotal cumbes of lost-time

accidents in the year mutished oy 100,000 howr s worked draded by total number
of hours worked.

Employee engagement rate

Alignment to strategy
o: s

Why do we measure this KPI?

We measure the engagement of cur people through an all-employee
engagement survey called "Your Voice'. As a result of the survey we build
a tailored engagernent plan to tackle the key issues across our sites,
businesses and the Group.

Target
75%
50%
MNew yearly 53%
survey ntroduced
MNo survey Mo survey
this year this year
18 20 22 2030
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Water withdrawal in stressed areas’

(%6 reduction from 2015 baseline)
Alignment to strategy

-

Why do we measure this KP1?

We recognise that in some instances our water demands are in areas
of increasing water stress, Approximately 21% of our manufacturing
operations are in these water stress areas,

Our goal is to maintain a 30% reduction despite year-on-year business
growth. By improving our water use in these areas, we will positively
impact the local communities in which we operate.

37%
32% 32% ]

33% 34% Target
; 30%

3

18 19 20 21 22 2030
* Water stressed areas include Span. haly, Turkey, Mexico Irdha, United Arab Ermirates,
Argantina, Austraha, and the state of Calfarnia, USA.
2071 and prior years have been restated to incluee the manufactinng site a-
Casalpusterfenga, italy.

Female representation in leadership’

Alignment to strategy
: :

Why do we measure this KPI?

A greater gender diversity just makes sense — 1t 1s good for Morgan
and good for employees. We are continuing to take action to achieve
a more balanced proportion of women in senior positions.

Target
40%
30% 29% Big positive difference
Delight the customer
Innovate to grow
No cata - not measured :
I8 19 ’ 20 21 22 2030 ’ Read more on pages 20 to 23

! Indudes Exenative w o CEO.CFO plus 2nd to dth tier.
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Business overview

We are the global manufacturer of advanced carbon and ceramic materials
for complex and technologically demanding applications.

The versatility and performance of ceramics and carbon materials enables us to support
a wide variety of applications in diverse end-markets. Our applications range from
ceramic cores for casting aero engine turbine blades to silicon carbide focus rings for
semiconductor etch, and from carbon brushes in onshore wind turbines to thermal
insulation solutions for hydrogen reformers.

In each of these applications, in each of these markets, we bring our deep materials
and engineering expertise to bear, helping our customers to reduce their energy
consumption, emissions and operating costs, with applications that frequently

require extensive qualifications.

Our core capabilities

Our strategy builds on our strengths and focuses the Group on scalable businesses in attractive markets.
We serve markets that are growing and where we have room to grow, and where our customers value
our differentiated products and services.

We have three core capabilities:

Materials science

We are an acknowledged leader in
materials science for our chosen
technology families. We have four
global materials Centres of Excellence
{Cot) which consolidate the Group's
R&D efforts,

Application engineering

We have built an understanding of

the application of our materials science
in our customers' products and
processes, in order to provide
maximum benefit through advanced
application engineering.

Customer focus

We build deep and trusted
relationships with our customers.
waorking to understand their business
and their markets, and their technical
challenges and product roadmaps.
We align our materials development
to solve cur customers’ problems,

& Morgan Advanced Materials ple Anruial Report 2022



Our five global business units

Thermal Ceramics

Qur thermal products are used in high-temperature
industrial processing of metals, petrochemicals,
cement, ceramics and glass, and by manufacturers
In automaotive, marine, aerospace, and domestic
applications in insulation and fire protection.

Molten Metal Systems

Our Molten Metal Systems business manufactures
an extensive range of high-performance crucibles
and foundry consumables for non-ferrous metal
meilting applications.

Electrical Carbon

QOur electrical carbon products include electrical
carbon brushes and collectors, brush helders. slip
rings and linear transfer systems, We engineer
high-performance graphite materials, components
and sub-assemblies to address our customers’
technical challenges.

Seals and Bearings

Qur seals and bearing products use advanced carben/
graphite, silicon carbide, alumina and zirconia materials,
which we engineer into lightweight, low-friction and
self-lubricating bearings and seals, predorminantly used
in pumps,

Technical Ceramics

Qur technical ceramics products are used in selected
segments of the electronics and semiconductor,
energy, healthcare, industrial, petrochemicals, security
and transport markets, typically in close collaborative
customer relationships.

7 Moergan Advanced Materials plc Annual Report 2022



Investment case

We are well positioned
in large and fast-growing
markets driven by global
mega trends

The demand for renewabie energy is growing
rapidly as the world seeks to decarbonise,
Ongoing urbanisation drives the need for clean
energy and transportation selutions. Our
growing and ageing population places more,
and more complex, demands on healthcare.
Digitisation brings huge benefits in efficiency
and increasingly in capability, and with that

we see ever increasing demand for more and
faster processing.

This all translates into a robust growth outlook
for our business. Revenues from our faster
growing segments, semiconductors, healthcare,
clean energy and clean transportaticn are
expected to grow between 7% and 12% per
year (through the cycle). Revenue from our
core business is expected to grow 29 to 4%

per year.
+4.,

EXPECTED CORE
BUSINESS GROWTH

G) Read more on pages 14 to 15
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We have leading
differentiated positions,
and this all starts with
our strategy

Our development of strategic capabilities
supports the positions we have in each of
our markets,

We have deep expertise in carbon and ceramic
materials. We spend around £30 million in
research and development each year to maintain
and strengthen our technical leadership.

We have 460 scientists and engineers across

the Group representing 20% of our white-collar
workforce. They work in four Centres

of Excellence, and within the businesses,
sustaining our current materiais portfolio,

and developing new materials and products.

Each business unit has a clear strategy and has
technology roadmaps that flow from this to inform
the prioritisation of development resources.

Cur application engineers are the bridge
between our materials expertise and the
specifics of our customers' markets and
applications. Qur application engineers work
with customers every day to take their technical
challenge and marry it up to a material, and then
a manufacturing process.

Through the execution of our strategy, we are
strengthening our market positions and steadily
building closer relationships with our customers.

£31.6

RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT EXPENSE

C—::} Read more on page 22




Our purpose, our strategy and our people differentiate us at Morgan Advanced
Materials. altogether driving superior value for cur stakeholders., We are experts
in materials science with a track record of delivering for our customers. drawing on

our 166 years of innovation.

We play a crucial
role in helping the
world become
more sustainable

We do this through the products we make,
and the way that we make them,

Qur products help our customers to be
more efficient — to use less energy in their
manufacturing process or in their product,
and to generate less CO,.

We are also working hard to decarbonise our
own operations — to produce our praducts more
efficiently and to reduce our own CO, emissions
and manage our water usage more sustainably.

We have a solid plan for the coming years

and are making excellent progress so far.

At this point our absolute CO, emissions are
around 40% down on our 2015 starting point.
Whilst our overall water usage has increased
during the year, we expect 10 see the process
and infrastructure improvements we have
completed during the year reflected in our
water usage for 2023.

(?} Read more on pages 32 to 33

Ty

REDUCTION IN
CO. EMISSIONS
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We are resilient,
delivering attractive
through-cycle returns

This resilience comes from the robustness of
our strategy and market positions, and from
the diversity in our portfolio.

We operate in a diverse set of markets,

Some are global, some are regional, but across
these markets we have early and later cycle,
and counter cyclical exposures.

We have a widely spread customer base. Our
largest customer accounts for only 2% of our
revenues. Our top ten eguate to around 1%
of revenues, meaning a significant loss of one

custemer has limited impact on the Group.

We largely make products where we sell them,
with tocalised supply chain, and this gives us
resilience against local shocks. You can see this
resilience in our financial performance over the
last seven years. We have grown profitability
every year except during the height of the
pandemic in 2020, and even during that global
shock, our revenues only declined 1196 and
we maintained operating margins above 109,

(E) Read more on pages 2to 3

3-6%

THROUGH-CYCLE GROWTH




Chair’s statement

——
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This is my final Annual Report

as your Chair before standing
down from the Board in June
2023, having served on the
Board since 2014. It has been

an encrmous privilege to be your
Chair and as | look back on the
last nine years it is gratifying to
reflect on the transformation in
business performance that our
colleagues have achieved. Over
that time, through innovation and
judicious investment, the Group
has repositioned into new growth
markets of clean energy, clean
transportation, healthcare and
semiconductors. At the same time,
margins have increased from low
single digits to very respectable
mid-teens with a trajectory of
further improvement.

Looking back at 2022

Our first imperative is the safety and
wellbeing of our people and | am
disappointed that during 2022 our safety
performance dipped. Supporting the
executive team. your Board has spent

a significant amount of time discussing
how safety performance and culture

can be improved. These discussions have
emphastsed a more holistic approach to
safety, and this now encempasses greater
focus on the wellbeing of our people.

My fellow non-executive Directors and

i will continue to support the executive
team to achieve a position of ‘zerc harm'.



| would like to say a huge thanks
to all our colleagues, customers,
suppliers and investors for

their continuing commitment
and support to Morgan.”

We delivered robust revenue growth in
20272 reflecting growing markets and
the benefits of our strategy. Despite the
well-documented supply chalienges and
disruptions. we successfully worked
with our customers and suppliers to
rmaintain operational service levels.
That is particularly pleasing given the
extent of supply chain deficiencies,
unprecedented inflation on input costs
and challenges in labour supply.

We have covered increased input costs

and other inflation impacts through

price increases and through continuous
improvement 1n our plants, Cur profitability
improvement has then flowed from higher
volumes, pricing and efficiency focus.

We have invested in supporting our
people through the ongoing cost-of-living
pressures, both through salary increases
and through a wide range of other support
measures, including access to a shopping
discount platform, site-based recognition
activities and family-friendly policies.

We are continuing to work to reduce the
Group's environmental impact. | am pleased
by the progress we have made this year

and the opportunities we have identifieg
for the future. Not only are we making our
manufacturing processes more efficient and
reducing cur CO e emissions, but more
importantly our products, which have
properties to withstand heat and endure
other extreme environments, assist our
customers in reducing their environmental
impact, either by lasting longer or improving
the efficient use of resources.

The Board in 2022

In January 2023, we were delighted to
appoint lan Marchant as an independent
non-executive Director and Chair
Designate, assuming the position of
Chair at the conclusicn of Morgan's

AGM on 29 June 2023, subject to
shareholder approval. lan is a highly
strategic and successful leader with more
than 35 years of wide-ranging experience
at major businesses. bringing a strong track
record of value creation and listed board
experience, In his capacity as the new
Chair, | am confident that lan will provide
the strong leadership required to oversee
the future success of Maorgan.

in May 2022, after six years with the
Company, Chief Financial Officer Peter
Turner stepped down from the Board.

On behalf of the entire Board. | would

like to thank Peter for his outstanding
contribution to the Company and wisk him
a long and happy retirement. Peter was
succeeded by Richard Armitage, who joined
Morgan from Victrex Group plc, where

he was Chief Financial Officer. Richard.
who has broad experience in financial
management. investor relations, capital
markets, M&A, and commercial
management, gained through roles in

a number of listed and privately owned
chemicals and consumer goods companies.
is already making a valuable contribution

to our Company and | would like to
formally welcome him to the Board.

H Morgan Advanced Materials plc Annual Report 2022

Looking forward to 2023

We experienced a cyber security incident in
January 2023. having detected unauthorised
activity on our network. Our immedate
priority was to respond quickly to

the incident to protect the Group's
Infrastructure and to minimise the impact
on operations. | am incredibly grateful for
the hard work and dedication shown by
cour teams In responding 1o this event.
Further details on the impact of the incident
can be found on page 19.

We are confident that continued focus on
the strengths of the business, underpinned
by cur resilient balance sheet and the
effiaency and productivity gains related

to our restructuring programme will
support the further successiul progress

of the Group in the years ahead.

Thani you

It has been a privilege to work with so many
talented colleagues at Morgan for the past
nine years, as we transformed the Group
into the global manufacturer of advanced
carbon and ceramic materials for complex
and technologically demanding apphcations.
| am particularly proud of the work we have
done in creating a diverse Board. As at

31 December 20227, the Board has 43%
fernale representation. one of whom 1s

the Senior Independent Director, and

one Director of Southeast Asian origin,

The Beoard has therefore met the FCA's
new board diversity targets since 2019,

| have every confidence that the Group,
under Pete's leadership, has the capabilities
1o continue to lead and grow in its markets
in the years ahead and | know that our new
Chair. lan Marchant, will provide the Board
with strong and effective direction. Finally,
I'would like to say a huge thanks to all

our colleagues, customers, suppliers and
investors for their continuing commitment
and support to Morgan,

Douglas Caster CBE FIET
Non-cxecutive Chair




Business model

B e ]

Our PUIrpose We utilise our distinct
. competencies
s to use advanced P

. Our strategy builds on cur strengths and
mate r|a|S to make focuses the Group on scalable businesses
the World more in attractive markets.
SUStalﬂab|e, and _to We have three core capabilites:
improve the quality
of life.

Materials Application Customer

This purpose guides our actions: science engineering focus

it underpins our work to reduce our
environmental impact, informs how
we treat our people. and ensures

. We serve markets that are growing and where
we fulfil our responsibility for goed
we have roem to grow, and where our customers

corporate governance. _ i »
value our differentiated products and services.

We play an important role in society,
using our deep materials science knowledge
and process capability to solve customer

The Group's products are preduced
within five global business units.

problems and deliver on our purpose.

A\
_ . We support the United Naticns
. » % Sustainzble Developrment Goals

 Weaimtobea COL net zero! business
by 2050

. Excludes incirect emissions generated 5y oor supply charr,
distrboucn network a~d emz-oves ravel

~ Technical Ceramics
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We service markets

ranging from industrial
to healthcare

Our thermal products

are used in high-temperature industrial
processing of metals, petrochemicals.
cement, ceramics and glass, and by
manufacturers of equipment for automotive.
rnarine, asrospace, and domestic applications
in insulation and fire protection.

Our electrical carbon products

are used in electrified rail, conventional ‘
and wind power generation, industrial
applhcations and in high performance :
semiconductor manufacturing applications.

Our seals and bearings products

are used in pumps fer industrial and
domestic use, or other sealing applications.
We use advanced carbon/graphite, silicon
carbide, alumina and zirconia materials to
engineer lightweight, low-friction bearings
and seals.

Our technical ceramics products

are used In selected segments of the
electronics and semiconductor, energy.
healthcare. industrial, petrochemicals,
security and transport markets. typically in
close collaborative custormer relationships.

t3  Morgan Advanced Materials plc Annua! Report 2022

Our products
deliver on our purpose

We manufacture advanced ceramic materials.
products and systems for thermal insulation in
high-temperature environments.

N

We engineer systems for the safety of people and equipment
in demanding applications. Our products help customers,
especially those operating energy-intensive processes, to
reduce energy consumption, emissions and opearating costs.

v

We manufacture an extensive range of high-performance,
energy-saving crucibles and foundry consumables for
non-ferrous metal melting applications.

» We produce a wide range of products which are used to
transfer electrical current between stationary and rotating
or linear moving parts in motor, generator, and current
collector applications.

s

We create high-performance self-lubricating bearing
and seal components, used predominantly in pumps.

We engineer high-performance functional and structural
ceramic materials, components and sub-assemblies to
address customer-specific technical challenges,

We contribute positively to the economy and support an improved society
for our people, customers, and investors, The economic value we generate
includes wages paid to our people, purchases from local and global suppliers.
taxes. and dividends - in addition to indirect benefits arising from expenditure
by our suppliers, customers and employees.

Our business contributes positively to seciety. We support the skills
development of our people, from apprentice level and operators, through to
sernor executives. Our global makeup reflects the communities we serve with
representatives from rmany backgrounds. and we strive 1o promeote inclusivity
and opportunity for all.

Gur operations look to benefit our environment through the products we design
and manufacture, products which make more efficient use of resources anc can
improve the quality of life.

(>} To find out how our people work with our communities visic our website at
morganadvancedmaterials. com/community

f-f To find out more about cur products and services visit
morganadvancedmaterials.com/whatwedo




Market context

We have a strategy based on building deep experlise in materials, markets and customer
needs, and that translates into leading, differentiated positions across our markets.

Morgan Advanced Materials is:

> A design partner for our customers, translating Growth markets
their needs into product solutions, distinguishing
ourselves through the application engineering We are specifically targeting four faster
that we provide growing markets: semiconductors,

healthcare, clean energy and

> Supporting our customers through investments .
clean transportation.

in application testing and using this to inform our
technology and product development and to
develop bespoke solutions for our customers

Revenue from faster growing markets iz 1+’

> Investing in manufacturing capacity to support Lot
customer demand in our core and in four faster : l |-70f
growing segments: semiconductors, healthcare, o 218
clean energy and clean transportation '

> Committed to operating sustainably and helping
our customers to improve the sustainability of
their products and processes

22

Core markets

Our core market portfolio is diversified
and differentiated. Our core markets
make up 80% of Group revenues.

Revenue from core markets .« 1

874 894

X0

oy

-
(2) Read more on Semiconductors
morganadvancedmaterials. com/Semiconductor

> N
Read more on Healtheare =8
morganadvancedmaterials.com/Healthcare

\

M

)

C‘?) Read more on Clean energy E

maorganelectricalmaterials.com/CleanEnergy

7"} Read more on Clean transportation

; . 19 20 22
morganthermalceramics.com/CleanTransportation
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These are market segments where demands

on materials are increasingly stringent, and cur

rmaterials expertise is increasingly relevant,

We have a smaller share and less mature position

in

these segments, however we generally have

higher levels of differentiation with newer products.
where we are developing options and scaling up.
We have dedicated market spedialists who face

into these industries and ensure we address the
needs of today, while developing new products

and approaches for the needs of tomorrow.

in

Faster growing

® Semiconductors
Healthcare

Clean energy +
clean transportation

Total

these core markets, we are leading, or are among the market

leaders. We have arcund a 20% share, with strong customer
loyalty, a respected brand and deep application expertise.

b

15

The Industrial sector is the largest component of our core
Itis composed of the diverse customers who incorporate our
carbon and ceramic materials and parts into their products and
manufacturing equipment. For example, we supply wear parts
for industrial pumps, components for metrology equipment,
thermal insulation for power generation and heat recovery,
and ceramic rollers for glass and tile manufacturing.

Petrochemicals - we offer to operators. installers and
technology licensors nsulation design and 2 range of insulation
products and fire protection sclutions.

Metals processing — this segment includes high-velume
metallurgy such as aluminium, iron and copper, as well as lower
volume metals such as zinc, titanium and gold. We provide
insulation sclutions as well as crucibles which hold liquid metals
and provide flow control to metallurgists and furnace OEMs.

Meorgan Advanced Materials plc Arnual Report 2027

Share of revenue

Core
8% @ Industral 31%
7% & Corwentional transportation  16%
5% & Metals 14%
Petrochernical and chermical  10%
20% Security and defence &%
Conventional energy 3%
Total 80%

> Defence and aerospace — we supply vartous parts and
subsysterns, In aerospace, we supply cores for precision
casting of engine parts and fire protection materials for
flight data recorders.

Automotive we produce components and
subsystems that we supply into internal combustion
engine cars at multiple layers of the value chain. They
include friction materials for brake pad suppliers, carbon
brushes for manufacturers of electnic metors and filters
for airbag manufacturers.

The common thread in all these markets is that we provide
challenging technical features which are critical to our
customers’ products and/or processes.




Our strategy, in brief

We have a strategic framework that connects our purpose with
our strategy, our distinctive competencies and our Morgan Code.

We have a strategy to make sure that we are the leaders in our field, with the
customer and materials insight to apply our capabilities quickly and effectively.

Our strategy builds on our strengths and focuses the Group on scalable businesses
in attractive markets, and on the development of three core capabilities.

Reliable problem

solving

Ethically, safely and
sustainably

/mpr Ove

Materials science
We are an acknowledged leader in materials
science for our chosen technology families,

Application engineering

We have built an understanding of the application
of our materials science in our customers' preducts
and processes. in order to provide maximum
benefit through advanced application engineenng.

Customer focus
Owr success comes from aligning everything
we do to focus on the customer

the quality of we

Our purpose

Qur purpose is 'to use advanced materials
to make the world more sustainable and
to improve the quality of life’. This purpose
guides our actions

. The Morgan Code
A set of principles, supported by Group policies,
which set cut how we conduct ourselves
in support of our people, our communities,
our business partners and our shareholders.
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Our purpose

To use advanced materials to make the world more
sustainable, and to improve the quality of life. This purpose
guides our actions: it underpins our work to reduce

our environmental impact, informs how we treat our
people, and ensures we fulfil our responsibility for good

We have three execution pricrities that
are helping us deliver our strategy:

corporate governance.

We deliver on our purpose through the products that
we make and the way that we make them.

>

We improve the quality of life by supporting medical
diagnostics with our power tubes in medical scanners.
Our feedthroughs are at the core of cochiear implants
and our seals are used in blood pumps. These products
transform peocple’s lives.

Cur products help keep people safe, We are proud to
design fire protection in everything from cars to tunnels,
and ships to oil platforms.

We design and manufacture our products to help
customers save energy.

Our carbon brushes are integra! te wind turbines and
power generators and enable electrified ral transport.
QOur ceramic roflers are used te make thin-film solar
panels, our insulation is used in solar towers and steam
turbines, and our ceramic cores are used to make more
efficient industrial gas turbines, These are all products
which promote a more sustainable and environmentally
secure future for our planet.
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|. Big positive difference

We govern our business the right way. look
after the environment, look after our people and
operate to high ethical standards. This priority
supports our purpose and our commitments

on inclusion, treating people fairly, reducing
waste, managing our water consumption.

and reducing emissions.

(f} Read more on pages 20 to 21|

2. Delight the customer

We are tailoring out products, services

and support offering to align with customer
needs more closely, This is achieved through
working in partnership with our customers
at all stages of development to understand
any technical challenges and by applying cur
materials expertise.

(ﬁ) Read more on page 22

3. Innovate to grow

We are supporting our customers in both

heavy industries and in green sectors to minimise
their environmental impact. Cur mnovations

are supporting the decarbonisation of industry.
For example. our thermal engineers are
innovating to design bespoke packages

that accommodate higher temperatures as
custormers convert their processes from the
combustion of natural gas te hydrogen,

\/%) Read more on page 23




Chief Executive Officer’s review

"Our people
showed great
commitment

In looking out
for each other
and delivering
for our customers
in this turbulent
environment
and | would like
to thank them
for their terrific

contribution
during 2022

| arn pleased with the progress we made as a Group in 2022, We saw
rapid growth in a number of our end-markets as global economies
recovered from the COVID-19 pandemic. We experienced a challenging
operating environment with rapidly increasing inflation, an energy price
shock in Europe driven by the Russian invasion of Ukraine, ongoing supply
chain and labour shortages in many geographies, and pandemic-relaled
absenteeism and disruption, in particular in China.

Sustainability

Our purpose is to use advanced materials
to make the world more sustainable and to
improve the quality of life. In 2021, we set
out five long-term goals for our business
together with intermediate goals for 2030,

I. Ascope | and 2 CO, net zero
business by 2050, with a 2030 goal of
a 50% reduction in scope | and 2 CO.
emissions. We have continued to migrate
to carbon-free electricity across the
Group with 49% of our power carbon-
free by the end of the year. We are
continuing to improve the efficency of
our gas fired kilns and have started to
evaluate electrically fired options for
some kiln types. During the year
we reduced our absohute scope
I and 2 CO, emissions by 8.2%.

2. Use water sustainably acress our
business, with 2030 goals of reducing
water use and water use in high-stress
areas by 30%. Our overall water usage
increased by |1.6% during the year
driven by volurne increases. changes in
mix to mare water-intensive products
and processes and some significant
water leaks. A number of process and
infrastructure improvements were
completed during the year and we
expect to see this reflected in our
water usage in 2023. Our water usage
in stressed areas decreased by 0.7%.
showing the impact of improvement
projects in our plants in high water
stress areas.

3. Zero harm to our employees, with
a 2030 goal of a lost-time accident
(LTA) rate of 0,10, Our LTA rate was
0.28 (2021: 0.22), a worsening of our
accident performance, in part reflecting

During the year we deployed our
thinkSAFE' training in all of our plants.
We increased the robustness of
plant-level activities including start of
shift briefings, safety tours, near miss
identification and reporting and 55
(Sort. Straighten. Shine. Standardise
and Sustain) and we put greater focus
on cross-group learnings through safety
shares and guarterly focus topics.
Safety is our top prionty and continues
to receive a high level of focus
throughout the organisation.

. A workforce reflective of the

communities in which we operate,

with a 2030 goal of 40% of our
leadership population being female.

Qur diversity position was unchanged
over the year with 29% females in our
ieadership population. We implemented
a number of changes during the year,
including the establishment of three
employee resource groups for women,
veterans and the LGBTO4 communities.
We have also introduced training for
hiring managers and we are standardising
and maodernising our parental leave
policies, starting in the UK.

A welcoming and inglusive environment

where employees can grow and thrive
with a 2030 goal of a top-quartite
engagement score. We completed our
engagement survey in December 2022
and our engagement score was 53%,

a 3 percentage point improvement over
the 50% score in 2021, We have a lot
of activity underway at a local level to
improve, and we have a long way

to go. but we are pleased to see an
improvement year on year,

In hght of Russia's invasion of Ukraine, we
took the decision to stop our trading activity
with Russia in February of 2022.

4 alarger number of new employees in
the business as we ramped volumes up.
We are not satisfied with this and we
are working hard to improve. We have
a broad programme of work underway
across the Group to improve our safety
position and performance.
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"We are making great progress against

our 2030 sustainability goals.”

Group results

We delivered robust arganic growth
reflecting the good market conditions

and the benefits of our strategy. Cur

focus on four faster growing markets
semiconductors, healthcare, clean

enetgy and dean ranspurtation) is showing
results with 11.7% crganic growth in those
markets during the year, These four
markets represent 19.6% of our revenues.
Operaling margins expanded with the drop
through on the volumes and the remaining
benefits of our 2020 restructuring
programme coming through. Free cash flow
was lower than the prior year reflecting
increased capital expenditure and higher
working capital primarily reflecting growth
of the business and increased inventory
holdings to mitigate supply chain risk.

Financial results

> Group revenue in 2022 was
£1112.1 million, 17.0% ahead of
the prior year at reported rates
and 11.2% higher on an organic
constant-currency basis

Statutory operating profit was
£140.8 million, profit before tax
was £131.6 million. earnings per
share was 31.0p

> Adjusted operating profit” was
£151.0 million representing adjusted
operating profit margin of 13.6%

Group adjusted earnings per share’
was 33.8p (2021: 27.2p)

Net capital expenditure was

£57.4 milion (2021: £28.1 millien).

with investment focused on health,
safety and environmental improvements,
investments In efficiency, select capacity
expansion and improvements to the
underlying infrastructure of the Group

> Free cash flow was £{46.9) million
{2021: £66.2 million)

> Net debt” excluding lease liabiities
was £148.5 million, with a net debt
excluding lease liabilities to EBITDA’
ratio of 0.8 times

Penston scheme

Over the last six years we have significantly
improved the health and performance of
the Group, improving growth rates and
profitability, and substantially reducing
habilities. Continuing these improvements.
we completed a payment of £67 million
into cur WK pension schemes at the end of

2022 to move those schemes to a fully
funded position en a long-term objective
basis. This eliminates the £17 million per
year we were due to pay to the scheme
over the next three years and gives us an
cxpectation of modest or zero payments
after 2025, and is an important step on the
way to an eventual buyout of the scheme.

Investment proposition and
medium-term targets

We held our first capital market event in
nearly 10 years in December of 2022
during which we laid out our investment
proposition and the medium-term targets
for the Group. There are four reasons to
invest in us:

I. We are well positioned in attractive,
high-growth markets

2. We have leading, differentiated
market positions

3. We provide sustainable solutions
1o support the energy transition

4. We are a resilient Group delivering
attractive through-cycle returns

In support of our Investment proposition,
we have set out a clear through-cycle
financial framework consisting of;

¢ Organic revenue growth of 396-6% pa

~ 12.5% 15% adjusted operating
profit margin’

» Return on invested capital of 1796-20%

> Leverage of | 2 umes with the
combinaticn of organic growth,
M&A and shareholder returns to
deliver enhanced EPS growth

This is a crechble set of goals, and an
attractive investment proposition for the
Group, consistent with the performance
we have delivered in recent years,
enhanced by M&A and/er shareholder
returns given our strong balance sheet and
the substantially de-risked pension position.

Cyber incident

In early January 2023 we experienced

a significant cyber attack on our business,
While the attack was detected relatively
quickly, and we were able to limit the
damage through rapid compartmentalisation
of the network, the attack resulted in the
encryption of 2 number of our applications
and data storage systems. and damage to
network devices.
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Following the incident, we have been
progressively restoring our networks and
systems including rebuilding cf certain
applications and file systems where they
were not recoverable. We have engaged

a number nf specialist organisations to help
us with the restoration and with wider
network security. We released a statement
to the stock market on 7 February laying
cut the expected financial consequences
of the incident including one-off costs of
around £15 million for the recavery of
systems and spedalist support, and a
10%-15% reduction in operating profit

in 2023, compared with analysts' consensus
at the start of the year, as a result of
inefficiencies in our plants from the

cyber disruption,

in addition to restoring our systermns

and infrastructure, we are also accelerating
our I'T modernisation programme to
improve our cyber defences and to
provide greater resilience in the event

of a subsequent attack.

We delayed the publication of our full year
results for 2022 to 28 April 2023 to allow
rescheduling of the audit process.

Outloolk

During the first quarter we continued to
experience good levels of demand in most
market segments. Looking at the whole of
20273, we are expecting slowdowns in the
large ingustrial economies as inflation and
the impact of central bank tightening hit
consumer and business activity. We expect
some improvements in China following the
end of COVID-19 restrictions and that may
support growth in South Korea and Japan,
and we expect good growth in India.

We expect to make further progress mn

our faster growing markets given the
strong underlying demand drivers and the
investrments we have been making there.

We expect inflation 1o reduce as we

go through the year. We will continue 1o
pass on inflation in higher pricing to our
customers and expect our pricing and
continuous improvement efforts to
more than offset inflation as they have
in prior years.

Pete Raby

Chicf Exccutive Officer




Strategy in action

Big positive
difference

In 2022, we have made a big positive
difference by serving our communities,
and by driving inclusion and diversity.

hVs

Our goal is to have a positive impact on the communities
we serve, from supporting job creation and skills advancement ; |
Proring Greater diversity
In 2022, we have: makes sense
each community's priorites and concerns, Qur pecple made for Qur b st neSS
a big positive difference. For example, our Stourport, UK, team '
a unique eco-friendly learning windmill, in collaboration with
pupils from the school. W.der_ CO unites
Singapore team carried out a park clean up in their local area,
demonstrating their support for ¢reating a cleaner and improved we Se rve ' Th at
Supported the next generation and STEM activities. For example,
1t _—
Lyon CESI engineers school, to complete internal audits on site. a blg pos‘tl\/e
Students had the opportunity to apply their audit knowledge to
» Undertaken a number of water conservation projects to reduce
water usage, especially in high water stress areas. Our Gujarat, India,
following a water audit to identify opportunities to reduce, reuse
and recycle water at the site. The treatment plant has led to an

to reducing energy and water consumption at our plants.
> Championed involvement at a local level, looking to understand
supported a local primary school with the design and build of
our people and the
> Committed time to sustainability activities. For example, cur
environment for everyone in the local community. . m a
Is how we make
our Samnt Marcellin, France, plant welcomed students from the
real life situations, with the support of our local team, d iffe ren Ce’.
team commissioned a new on-site waste water treatment plant
impressive |5 kl/day of water recycling capacity.
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Our Gujarat team are reducing, reusing and recycling water.

We want our leadership teams to be mere representative of the
communities that we serve.

In 2022, we:

> Launched our new licence to recruit programme, supporting our

hiring managers through diversity training, We implemented more
diverse hiring panels and created more inclusive language for our
Job adverts to have a broader appeal to diverse candidates.

Developed a new DE&| framework which helped us

launch three new employee resource groups (ERGs) supporting
women, veterans and our LGBTQ+ colleagues. These ERGs

in turn held virtual and in-person events marking important dates
on the diversity and inclusion calendar and opening direct lines
of communication to leaders on key topics.

> Started to develop @ modern and appealing inclusive employer
brand. with a reward and benefits programme to attract and
retain talented global leaders.
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TIEEL LA

Our strategy in action continued

Delight the
customer

We seek to build trusted partnerships
with our customers, as they have
come o expect that Morgan can

help solve their problems and grow
their businesses.

The more we understand about their business, their market

and their technical challenges, the more effective we can be
at providing them with a sclution.

This means we collaborate closely at the technical level 1o
ensure that our products pass any custormer’s stringent and
extensive performance tests. It also means we are often
specified as the supplier for spare parts and maintenance
during the lifespan of products.

During 2022, we have made great progress in supporting

our customers in utilising silicon carbide in power electrenics.

One of our customers in the silicon carbide space recently

turned to us for help. Given the sharp growth of the industry,

not all their suppiiers were ready to grow with them and our
customer faced the potential of a major supply shortage.

Our dedicated team was quick to establish a new product
and service offering, and within three months started to
supply that new preduct to our customer, We worked hand

in hand with the customer to clearly understand their product

requirements and rapidly prototype the product through
design testing cycles. and we delivered a precision
manufactured product to meet the immediate need.

We are now scaling the production platform to grow
with our customer.

Long-time and newer customers appreciate how Morgan
delivers great materials science. problem-solving and
operational capabilities to support their business.
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Our success comes
from aligning
everything we do,
across every role,

to focus on the
customer. This is how
we are becoming

a partner of choice.



Innovation is at the heart of
our business. Whether we are
Innovating in our faster growing
market segments, or supporting
the changing requirements
through our energy savings
solutions for more traditiona!
industries, our materials

innovations enable rapid change.
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Innovate
to grow

With more than 400 scientists and
engineers across the Group, our
people are busy developing new
materials and applications.

Qur deep expertise in carbon and ceramics is maintained
and strengthened through our ongoing process of research
and development, an area that we invest approximaiely
£30 million in each year.

Each business unit has a clear strategy and a technology
roadmap that supports our customers and fulfils our purpose
to make the world more sustainable, Today, our innovative
products and solutions are helping customers to reduce
their carbon emissions.

We manufacture precision ceramic cores that are used
1o cast turbine biades for aero engines and industrial gas
turbines. Our customers come to us for their most
demanding applications, for example when they need to
hold very fine features on small components. And these
demanding apphcations arise as the latest generation

of engines need to run hotter to be more efficient.

Our cores enable these new engine technolegies.

We produce some of the leading brush grades for wind
turbines, offering longer lifetimes than our competitors.
in addition to enabling wind technclogy, we also drive
lower maintenance activity, and costs, for wind farm
operators, further reducing the CO), footprint,

in the electrified rail market, we produce a range of collector
strips and carbon shoes to connect the train to the power
cable or rail. In the metro market in China, we have
developed a wide range of high-performance material
grades to perform in the varied climatic conditions across
China. Our preducts directly enable electrified rail.

and offer superior lifetimes.

Qur products are widely used in the semiconductor
manufacturing process. We are seeing rapid growth in
power electronics applications for electric vehicles and
grid power conditioning, and we are directly enabling
clean transportation and the renewable grid.

Through their life. our products typically save 10s or [00s
of times the CO, emitted in manufacture.




Stakeholders

Our stakeholders are key to the delivery of our strategy.

Below we set out the many ways we engage with stakeholders
and why their engagement matters.

Investors

Those who own shares
or wish to own shares in
Morgan Advanced Materials

Our capital markets
event brought to life our
investment proposition
and enabled investors to
hear directly from each
of our global business
unit presidents.

("_?j Find out more:
morganadvancedmacerials.com/
CapitalMarkets

Why our intvestors are
important to us

Qur investors provide capital for our
business. We value this commitment
and want to ensure investors have

a deep understanding of our business,
our strategy, the market environment
and our governance arrangements.

[tis important to us that we foster
an open and transparent relaticnship
to enable investors to make effective
investment decisions

How we engayge with investors

We engage with our investors directly
through both the formal presentation
of results and investor roadshows.

In 2022, we also held a capital markets
evenl 1o talk more in depth with our
investors about our four faster growing
market segments.

We also use these opportunities to talk
about the future and the longer-term
plans for our business.

When asked, we complete investor
questicnnaires which give a further
insight into key aspects of our
business performance.

We provide a dedicated section on our
website which cffers timely information
on how we are performing against our
stated E5G goals.
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We publish a yearly sustainability and
responsibiity report that detalls the
progress we are making against our
ESG targets, including full disclosure
of metrics and ratings linked to
environmental performance.

What matters to our investors!?

> Capital gain through share
price apprectation

© Capital return via dividends
Profitability and business growth potential
Quality of goverrance

- Responsibility and fairness

The protection of the environment
through the use of more sustainable
materials and the reduction of carbon
emissions, reduction in water use and
improved waste management

Demonstrating our ‘good governance’
approach throughout our
decsion-making

Demonstrating the positive contribution
we make 1o society through the
employment opportunities we provide,
through our interactions with the
communities where we have our sites
and through the support we provide
our people

To find out more about investing in
Mergan, please visit our website:
marganadvancedmaterials.com/Invest



Customers

Those who have purchased our
products or will do so in the future

Why our customers are
important to us

We aim 1o deliver great service so that our
customers fee! valued and choose us as
their ‘go-to' supplier. To do this effectively

we need to listen to and engage with them.

We develop refationships with our
customers kased on mutual trust and
constructive dialogue.

We have a diverse customer base

across the globe, which we serve directly,
and also through joint venture partnerships
and local suppliers,

We are seeing growing demand for
advanced materials as customers push
the boundaries of technology.

We have been working closely with

our customers to develop new solutions
for their next generation of preducts
and processes,

We are providing products that
are differentiated from those of
our competitors.

Haow we engage with customers

The relationship with our customers starts
from the moment they look to find out
about our products. We keep customers
updated on the progress of our innovation
and new product applications through
digital and physical channels.

Owr sales and service colleagues also keep
customers updated on the progress of
manufacturing: sometimes working
alongside the customer to fine-tune

the product and production process.

We also gather key feedback from
customers about the service we provide
and use this to help improve relationships
and secure future business,

What matters to our customers?
% Relable and consistent service
» Quality products

Praduct and process innovation

s

Ability to solve complex problems

v

Application engineering capabilities

. How we source our raw materials

e

Environmental impact of the products
we produce
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Suppliers

Those from whom we purchase
goods or services

Why our suppliers are
important to us

We believe in an open and collaborative
business approach and seek opportunities
for imnovauon, This collaborative approach
is particularly important to ensure a mere
sustainable supply chain

We aim to use all our rescurces as
efficiently as possible, minimising the
enviranmental and social impact on
ourselves, our suppliers, our customers
and the world around us.

How we engage with suppliers

We treat our suppliers as an extension of
our business and therefore expect them to
uphold the same high standards we set

for curselves. To achreve this, we are

in constant dialegue with our suppliers

to address any 1ssues and mantain
productive relationships.

We publish a Supplier Cede of Conduct
which we expect our suppliers to sign up
to and we have regular check paints to
ensure that this is adhered to.

What matters to our suppliers?
Hurnan rights
Environmental and chimate impact

~ Quality management

Cost-efficiency

-~ Ethical trading policies and
sustainable sourcing

Developing long term relationships



Stakeholders continued

Our people contribute
to the culture and

are the driving force
behind our success.

Employees

Anyone directly employed by Morgan Advanced Materials

Why aur employees are
important to us

Having people who bring a diverse range
of talents and perspectives, and who feel
engaged in their role, 1s of paramount
importance to our long-term success,

Our ermpioyees have been instrumental

in making Morgan Advanced Materials the
company it 1s today. They are key to driving
the brand forward and ensuring it remains
relevant in the future.

We work to attract, develop and retain
the right people and ensure they are in
the right roles.

How we engage with employees

The Beard is committed to fostering a safe,
ethical and inclusive workplace and spends
time engaging with a diverse cross-section
of employeses, as well as monitoring anc
assessing the Group's culture. These insights
help inform the Board's discussions on
health, safety and environmental matters.
in monitoring progress in refation to
embedding ethical conduct and
implementation of the Morgan Code.

and In strengthening the capabilities of

our leaders and teams.

At a local level, leadership teams use
feedback from surveys, focus groups, pilot
groups, manager one-to-one conversations
and employee communications to shape
engagement activities with employees,
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At a Group level we solict feedback through
our annual employee survey "Your Voice',
through social media channels both
internally and externally. and through
employee satisfaction platforms such

as Glassdoor.

Al all levels we engage on subjects
important to our people including mental
health at work, safety. the environment.
developing a diverse and inclusive culture,
and the important role of community
and charity.

In 2022. we intreduced three new
employee resource groups (PRISM,
Women@Morgan and Military@Morgan)
to give voice to those who may feel
underrepresented. These ERGs are

a key tool in understand the needs of

our people and help to shape thinking
and policy changes.

What matters to our employces?
Meaningful roles linked to our purpose
Flexible working
Focus on wellbeing

- Career development

Recognition and competitive
compensation

A safe, ethical and inclusive
working environment



Pensioners
and pension
trustees

Why our pensioners and pension
trustees are important to us

After more than 160 years in business,
we would not be as strong as we are
today without the combined efforts of all
those who went before, By keeping our
pension commitments, we honour the
hard work and dedication of both current
and past employees.

How we engage with our
pensioners and pension trustees

We engage with both current pensioners
and those yet to retire through regular
pension commumications in conjunction
with cur pension trustees.

New employees receive communications
about our pension schemes in a bid to
promote financial wellbeing.

What matters to our pensioners
and pension trustees!

The commitment of the Company to
ensure the pension scheme is fully funded
and any deficit reduction plan is maintained

Communities

Those who live or operate In areas where we work

for example, residents, businesses and charities

Why our cormmunities are
important to us

Qur people live and work within wider
communities and relationships with these
communities are key in supporting our
business for the future.,

Qur relationship with local communities
is mutually beneficial, offering us the ideal
piace to find the talent of tomarrow.
while enabling our people to get involved
in activities which directly benefit

these communities.

We seek to build trust by understanding
the issues core 1o our communities,
operating responsibly and addressing
concerns that are material to them.

We aim to create long-term relationships
with the communities where we operate.
that drive positive change and help build
a more sustainable future.

How we engage with communities

Qur aim is to have a positive impact

on the communities we serve, from
supporting job creation and skills
advancement, to reducing energy and
water consumption at our plants. All cur
efforts and engagements are governed by
the Morgan Code. our purpose and our
policies on the environment.

As our sites and operations are spread
across the globe, we have the opportunity
to work with many communities, We pride
ourselves on engaging at a local level and
look to understand each community's
priorities and concerns. We also support
our employees’ involvement in their local
community, from charity giving to local
funaraising, and from volunteering to health
and wellbeing inatives,

What matters to our
communities?

> Qur commitment to the
local ervironment

> Qur conduct as a socially
responsible organisation

.~ The positive iImpact we can have on the
community living and working around us

¥ Employment opportunities

We aim to have a positive
impact on the communities

we serve, from supporting job
creation and skills advancement
to reducing energy and water
consumption at our plants.
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Section 172(l) statement

We believe that considering our stakehclders in key business decisions is net only the right thing to do but s fundamental to our abibty
to drive value creation over the longer term and deliver on our purpose: to use advanced materials to make the world more sustainable,

and to Improve the quality of life.

[t1s not always possible to provide positive outcomes for all stakeholders and the Board sometimes has to make decisions based on
balancing the competing priorities of stakeholders. Our stakeholder engagement processes enable our Board to understand what matters
to stakeholders, and to consider carefully all the relevant facters and select the course of action that best leads to high standards of business
conducl and the success of Morgan i e long term. The prinaples underpinning 5,172 of the Companies Act 2006 are nol only
considered at Board level, they are part of our culture. They are embedded in all that we do as a company.

The differing interests of stakeholders are considered in the business decisions we make across the Company, at all levels, and are
reinforced by our Board setting the right tone from the top. All of the Board's significant decisions are subject to a s.172 evaluation to
identify the likely consequences of any decision in the long term and the impact of the decision on our stakeholders. Details of cur

key stakeholders, how we have engaged with them during the year and the outcomes of that engagement, are set out on pages 24 (o 27,
Engagemerit activities specifically carried out by the Board collectively and individually can be found on page 73.

in performing their duties during 2022, the Directors have had regard 1o the matters set out in s.172. You can read more on how the
Board had regard to each matter, during the year, as follows:

Key decisions in the year

Reducing the pensions burden

At the Capital Markets Day in December
2022, we announced that we had reached
agreement with the trustees of our UK
Defined Benefit Pension Schemes to make
an accelerated contribution of £67 million,
As part of their arrangement with the
Company, the trustees have agreed to
move to full hedging of inflation and interest
risk. This will benefit both the Schemes
and the Company by significantly reducing
the volatility of valuations in the future,
and represents a significant milestone
towards being able to secure member
benefits by means of annuities with
insurance companies.

The benefits to the Company will be:

> Immediate improvement to free cash
flow, with a reduction in cash pension
contributions of £17 million per annum
for at least the next three years, and
modest or zero contributions thereafter

> Reduced volatility, with the likelihood of
a material deficit arising at future triennial
revaluations substantially reduced

» Prudent approach to hedging, with
leverage on the scheme's LB portfolio
targeted below 2.0x.

How the Board reached its decision
When considering the proposals to
accelerate the contribution to the schemes,
the Board considered the Company's
obligations in relation to funding the
schemes and the benefits of de-risking

of the schemes, in light of the prevailing
macro-economic conditions.

The Board met with the Group Pensions
Director on two occasions to consider the
proposal, who in turn met with the trustees
of the pension schemes, to ensure that their
views were taken into consideration,

Stakeholder considerations
Pensioners and pension

trustees — Accelerating the contribution
benefits pensioners and deferred members
as it represents a significant milestone
towards being able to secure member
benefits by means of annuities with
insurance companies. In addition, the
Board considered the likely impact of
reducing the deficit and de-risking the
schemes, thereby enhancing the resilience
of the schemes to changing market
scenarios which would benefit pensioners
and deferred members in the longer term.
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Shareholders — The benefits to
shareholders incude the improvement
to free cash flow and the removal of
uncertainty and risk linked to pension
deficit. This step also enhances future
flexibility for capital allocation. enabling
optionality for future cash return

to shareholders.

Lenders/providers of debt — The impact
of funding the schemes on whether the
Company remained within the financial
covenants agreed with lenders,

Outcome and impact of the decision
The Group has had a collaborative
relaticnship with the pension trustees.
With the accelerated funding and prudent
approach to hedging. the deficit has fallen,
and the contributions have been reduced
by £17 million per annum for the next
three years in line with the Company's
propesal to achieve funding on a low
dependency basis.



Renewal of the revolving credit facility

We also announced in December 2022
that the Group has secured a new
five-year revolving credit facility (RCF)

of £230 million that replaces cur existing
RCF that was due to mature in 2023,

The RCF incorporates sustainability-linked
performance targets which align with

our ambitious sustainability plans.

How the Board reached its decision
When considering the proposal, the Board
censidered the benefits of securing the
facility early as a contingency in case of
worsening market conditions, and to
ensure continued access to funding.

Stakeholder considerations
Shareheolders — By securing the RCF early,
the Company was able to navigate the
deterioration in the general credit and
macro-economic background during 2022
and ensure the Group continues to meet
its going concern requirements,

Lenders/providers of debt — The need to
maintain mutually beneficial relationships
with existing lenders and establish similarly
beneficial relationships with new lenders.

Community and environment —

By incorporating sustainability-linked
performance targets which align with
our ambitious sustainability plans, we
further demonstrate our commitment
to our ESG goals.

Cutcome and impact of the decision
The renewal of, and increase in. the RCF
provides the Group with additional financial
flexibility for the future.

Approval of a progressive dividend policy

We also announced that we would enhance
regular returns via a progressive dividend
policy, by growing the regular dividend
through the cycle with adjusted earnings
cover of circa 2.5x, and provide additicnal
returns of surplus capital to shareholders

as appropriate.

How the Board reached its decision
When considering the proposals to resume
the payment of dividends for FY22 and
adopt a progressive dividend policy, the
Board considered cash generation, the
performance of the underlying business
and the fong-term impact of paying the
dividends on the liquidity and solvency
positions. The Board also considered

the impact of the dividend decisions on
expectations relating to the dividend policy.

Stakeholder considerations
Shareholders — Shareholders’ expectations
in relation to the payment of dividends.
both from a capital return perspective

and as a signal of future performance.

Lenders/providers of debt — The impact
of paying dividends on whether the business
remained within the financial covenants
agreed with lenders.

Employees - For colleagues who
participate in the Group's employee
share schemes, the payment of dividends
enabled returns for those colleagues.
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Outcome and impact of the decision
Following due consideration of all the
matters set out in 5.172, the Board
recommended a fuil-year dividend of 12.0p
per share, with payment of a final dividend
of 6.7p to shareholders in July 2023 and

an interim dividend of 5.3p in November
2022. This recommendation reflected the
Group's resilient performance for 2022
and the Board's confidence in the Group's
structural growth drivers inte the future
The Board concluded that it was in the
long-term interest of the Company to
proceed with the payment of the dividends.




Non-financial information statement

The infarmation which follows 1s
intended to explain our non-financiat
information. the relevant Group
policies, the due difigence processes
we follow to embed these policies and
their effectiveness.

Qur business model on pages 12 0 13
provides an insight into the key
resources and relationships that
support the generation and
preservation of value within Morgan.

Policies

Employees

Our Environmental, Health and Safety (EHS) Policy is
designed to promote a culture of zere harm for our
employses, contractors and visitors and eliminate and
control health risks proactively.

Dretail of our safety programme and salely perlonmaiice s
set out on pages 34, and our EHS Policy is highlighted on
page 37/.

The Group has an overarching policy designed to attract,
develop, recognise/reward, retain and engage talented
people and suppoert an inclusive, safe and ethical
workplace. The Group policy is supplemented by a wide
range of detailed people policies specific to the business
or jurisdiction.

Environmental
matters

Our EHS Policy sets out the Group's commitment to the
protection of the environment in the communities where
we operate. work and live. The Policy sets out our
intention to reduce energy and water use, reduce ocur
dependence on natural rescurces. protect biodiversity
and aim to maximise the positive impact of our products.
Additional iInfermation is set out on pages 32 to 33, and
page 36. The full policy is published on our website
morganadvancedmaterials.com/EnvironmentatPolicy.

Social matters

Our sites currently take ownership of local community
engagement. through a variety of initiatives, 1o support
our strategic priorities and benefit local communities,
for example educational outreach and wellbeing support.
We are working to consolidate and align local policies
and practices where appropriate. and to provide

a framework for community engagement that recognises
our glebal presence alongside local needs.

Human rights

Our Human Rights Policy establishes our commitment te
protect the human rights of everyone who works for the
Morgan Group and all those whao have dealings with us.
The Policy is supplemented by the Morgan Code,

Further information on our approach to human rights
is contained on pages 36 to 37 and published on our
website morganadvancedmaterials.com/HumanRights,

Anti-bribery
and anti-
corruption
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The Morgan Code; Bribery, Corruption & Facilitation
Payments Policy: Gifts & Entertainment Policy and
Donations & Sponsorships Policy make up Morgan's key
anti bribery and corrupticon policies. Together these
policies seek to prevent bribery and ensure that our
business 1s undertaken in an ethical manner and

in compliance with all applicable anti-bribery and
anti-corruption laws. More information on the policies
and processes to prevent bribery and corruption are
contained on pages 37 and 47 and publishec on

our websile morganadvancedmatenials.com/
EthicsCompliance.



Due diligence in
pursuance of policies

Qutcome of policies
and impacts of activities

Related principal risks

~ Audits under the EHS programme
Annual self certification process
2 “Speak Up’ hotline

~ Al other applicable regulatory reporting

A detaled description of the methods used 1o
suppart the Group's people policies is set out on
pages 36 to 37 and published on our website
merganadvancedmaterials com/ESGPaohaies.

Our KPLin relation to Lost-Time Accident
Frequency 1s set out on page 4

Our safely pertormance for 2022 is set out
on page 34.

Our workforce composition and infermation
on gender diversity is sel out on page 34.
and in cur 2022 Gender Pay Gap Report
morganadvancedmaterals com/
GenderPayGap.

See page 42 of the Risk Managermenl section:
environment, health and safety nisk.

The attraction, retention and engagement of
peaple is not considered a principal risk.

An emerging risk relates to potential difficulties
In recruiting to replace an ageing direct
workforce in some parts of the business,
particularly 1in remote focations.

N

Data gathering on greenhouse gas
(GHG)} emissions

Our submussion to the Carbon Disclosure
Project (COP)

Arnnual selt-certfication

QOur *Speak Up' hotline

N

e

Internal audit processes

We have engaged ERM CVS to conduct
third-party data assurance of the
envircnmental metrics for 2022

NSNS N

See pages 4 to 5 and pages 32 to 33 for
information en our GHG emissions, and
progress in 2022 0 respect of CO.e intensity,
total energy use, water use and withdrawal.
Additional details are available from our 2022
Full Year Sustainability and Respansibihity
Report morganadvancedmaterials.com/
SRReport.

Mimimising our envirenmental impact helps to
protect the environment and enables us to
attract talented employees and 16 win new
business from customers,

See page 42 of the Risk Managerment section:
emaronment, health and safety risk.

- Activities are reported internally. including on
our social media platforms

Cur business and our employees are more
deeply connected to our local communities

Although not a prinaipal nisk. social sk, and
specfically potennal difficulties in recruting

to replace an ageing direct workforce in some
parts of the business, particularly in remote
locations. is an emerging risk

L

Menitoring of compliance with the

Meargan Code

Due diligence processes associated with new
supphers and our supply cham

N

Publication of our Modern Slavery Statement
on our website

More information is contained on pages 36
and 37

Nao incidents of human rights abuse or
modern slavery were identified during 202 2.

See page 47 of the Risk Management section’
compliance risk.

-+ Detatted procedures in place designed to
prevent bribery and corruption, supported
by explanatory manuals and the ethics and
comphance programme of work

-

7 Regular tramning for relevant employees
15 undertaken

2 Any reports of breaches in compliance
are investigated and reported to the Audit
Committee, and appropriate action is laken

A descriplion of the control environment,
the internal audit function and the processes
for the review of Investigations by the Audit
Committee are set out mn the Report of the
Audit Committee on pages /9 lo 85,

During the year more than 97% of relevant
employees participated in the Group's ethicy

e-learring programme, which mcluded specific

traming modules on bribery and corruption.

There were |62 reports made to the Group’s

whistleblowing hotline during 2022, including
reports on cancerns relating to potential
unethical conduct. The reports varied in their
nature and materialty. with certain matters
requirng the support of external advisors
and giving rise to disuplinay action against
employees for breaches of Group policies
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See page 47 of the Risk Management section:
compliance 1isk,




Environmental, social and governance goals

Greenhouse gas emissions . In March 2021, we set stretcning targets
Morgan's greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. such as carbon

diexide (CO ), are mostly generated by the combustion of fossil om prove our environmental, social
fuels at various stages of our manufacturing processes. We track and governance (ESG) performan ce and

these using a reporting methodctogy based on the internationally h ) ‘nable busi
recognised Greenhouse Gas Protocol. This stipulates the source ecome a more sustainabie business.

for the global warming potential (GWP) rates that we use to We take these commitments Seriously
and have plans in place to deliver against
them in the coming years, making a step

convert non-carbon dioxide emissions into the standard measure
of carbon accounting. i.e. carbon dioxide equivalents (CO e).

Our sustamability strategy includes actions to reduce GHG

emissions and combat climate change. As public concern grows, Change n our performance.

more customers are asking about our GHG emissions as

part of the manufacturing process. The increasing demand for EnVi ronment

low-carbon products and processes, and the need to consider

the effects of climate change in general, have had an impact on ,

our long-term strategy. At Mor‘gan Advanced Materials we

The compesition of our carbon footprint is shown in the are committed to a sustainable future.
tabie below. Qur aim is to ensure that our products
Metric tonnes (MT) CO,e 2015 2020 2021 2022 and manufacturing processes are

Scope | 205570 116,552 122817 121,989 designed, built and managed in a way
2cope 2! 97126 160,126 - 107,070 89,113 that enhances their value to society
Total® 342,694 276,678 229887 211,104 d N N

Biogenic 368 0l 877 978 and our environment,

Total Energy Use (GWH) 1,222 994  1.067 1,058 The inforn

Intensity (MT CO_e/£m*) 391 304 242 190

Total scope | emissions were calcolated from the additon of enmissions from fuels.
refrige-ants and other process emissions Carbon emisyion actors are used to convert
energy used In ow operations to emissions of CO e Carbor grnssion factors for fuels
arc provioed oy the Imer~ational Fnergy Agency {IF4) Process emissons disclosec
(4.516 tannes, or arca 3 7% of seepe 1110 2022 rely or mistoncal caculations that could
not be evidenced for assirance purpnses We renntt oo einissanns with relerence 1o
the latest Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accoanting ard epor ing Stancard

& Carpon envssion faclors for grid cooaing Ly are ¢a culated accorcing to the location basea
method’ and market aased whe e recewved The lacation basec method reflects
the average ermissions mitensity of the grids ofvwhich enstgy consuription oczurs
{using mosly grid average emission factor datay In 2022 the value of scone 2 GHIG
Iocation-baced arly emissions s 161,235 tannes,

]

Total emiss ons include scope | and scope 2 ony Bioge e emissicns are tieated as
carson neLtral anc reportes separately.

4 For manufactaning, we have selected an intensity raho based or sales (or a constart
cur-ency? Lusis) This aligns with our longstanding reperting of manufacturing
performance Frussions fromm the corbostion of biogenic fuels (such as biormass and
c0*ee nusks) wrtur our oserations are reported separately from ather scope and 2
erussions, as “ecnmmended by the GHG Frotocol, ane w e excludec fiorm ous intersity
ratio caleulatio~ Tre data aise excluces seove 3 crissions ard erussiors from
Company-owned ane leased vehicle:
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N . R f:1 T}
Morgan’s aspirations 13 8

and 2030 goals 0

A CO, net zero
business by 2050.

s By 2030, a 50% reduction
in scope 1" and scope 2°
CQO, emissions,

2022 progress and performance

2022 Total GHG emissions ({CO,e) 15 211,104 tonnes;
which is an 8% decrease over 2021 levels and a 38%
decrease over 2015 values

2022 scope | GHG emissions (1CO. e) is
121,989 tonnes, which is a |% decrease
over 2021 values and a 41% decrease cver 2015 values

- 2022 scope 2 GHG emissions (tCO e)is
89,115 tonnes. which is a | /% decrease over
2021 values and a 35% decrease over 2015 values

Achieved a "B” management score for Climate Change
from CDP recognising we are taking co-ordinated action
on climate issues

What’s next

Embedding the decarborisation rcadmap to 2050 across
the business. Ensuring the right actions are being taken
to support our near-term and long-term goals

Awaiting validation and approval of our submitted
GHG reduction targets from the Science Based Targets
inttiative (SBTi), in line with our 2030 direct GHG
emission reduction cormitments

Continue to build our green energy {electricity consumption)
portfolic 1o 49% of total electricity in 2022

Continuing scope 3 GHG emussions screening and
inventory development work

Scope | ncludes "drect wimissions  which come dron soarces owned or
controliec b+ the Company, from the stationar y combust-on fuel sources at
vach site to generate heat o energy,

Total scope | emissions were caleu’ates trom the addmon of em ssiors from
fue . efngerarts and other proc

used Lo comvert energy used in our eperatiors to emissions of CO ¢ Carben
ermssion factons for fuels o e prowded by the Intenatio-al Energy Agency (IEA)
Frocess ernssions disdosed (4,516 1onnes, ar crea 3.7% of scone 1110 2022
rely on hustorikal ca culat ons that coul 1ot be evidenced for assurarae
PLIpOSEs WWe report our emisasns witt reference 1o the latest Greenhouse
Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting 27d Reporting Stancard
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Morgan’s aspirations
and 2030 goals

Use water sustainably
across our business,

> By 2030, a 309 reduction
in water use in high and
extremely high stress areas.

s> A 309 reduction in total
water usage.

2022 progress and performance

> For 2022, total water withdrawal is 1.93 million m?;
which is a 12% increase over 2021 levels and 17%
decrease over 2015, The negative trend towards waler
withdrawal 15 due to increase in production demand
and a few major water leak incidents across the business

In 2022, water intensity is measured at 1.74m?*/£000,
which is higher than 2021 (1.82 m/£000)

Total water withdrawal in high water-stressed areas* is
1% lower than 202/

Achieved a "B" management score for Water Security
from CDP recognising we are taking co-ordinated action
on water issues

What'’s next

7 Investing in CAPEX projects towards water savings
across our global sites. This water saving will involve
various methods from rainwater harvesting to
wastewater recycling

Commencing a programme of water reduction and
leak detection across our production sites to help
combat some of the issues identified in 2022

BGae 2 encoraasses indrect ermissions” {1he result of Company activities
occurring at so. rces owned or control ed by another company ) asson ated

srth the product on of purchased clectnaty. Scope 2 erussions physically
oocur at the facbly where clectiaty 1s generated Scope 2 reportec ncuces
rzrket Desed anvd locaton-puseo facters Vilue for scooe 2 GHG locaton-
based only ermssions s 161 235 toraes

Water stressed areas indliude countnies Spar, Italy Turkey Mexwco, India

The United Aab Frorates, Argeatina, Austraba and ~he state of Caidorn 2 USA




Environmental, social and governance goals continued

Social

Morgan’s aspirations

. d 2030
Our people contribute o the culture an roals

- . I .
and are the driving force behind Zero harm to employees

> By 2030, a 0.10 lost-time
accident rate

our success. In return we aim to be a ‘
caring organisation where everyone
feels valued and appreciated.

2022 progress and performance

In 2022, our lost-time accident rate was 0.28. This s an
improvement of 37% against our 2015 baseline of 0.45,
but a worsening of 27% compared with last year (0.22).
in part reflecting a larger number of new employees in the

business as valumes increased.
2nd to 4th tier)
Mave 57% Throughout the vear we focused on increasing the
LS o

(20214, 57%,) use of our Deon't Walk By (DWB) hazard identification/
Male 71% good practice reporting system, resulting in over 30,000
(2021: 295; 71%) submissions and a corrective action closure rate of 95%.

We spent time in 2022 building the caring culture across
our business:

f‘:g‘f:g’%oo ~ QOur "thinkSAFE" ambassadors delivered cur cultural
(2021 6, 60%) .
! improvement safety commitment workshops te more

Male 66% than 9,000 employees
(2021: 3.460: 63%)

Cur peositive employee behaviours and praclices were
also recognised over 2,000 times

Male 74% In Q2, Earth Day was celebrated across the organisation
(202152, 63%) with activities focused on protecting our planet

We launched a refresh of our 'take 5 for safety’ process
that helps our employees think through the risks before
(includes Executive undertaking a task
wilo CECY
2nd to 4th tier}
What's next
Fernale 43%
{2021 3.43%) In 2023, we are:

f;&‘z‘la“"iil;f’;;%‘ » Implementing ‘EHS 360", a stand-alone EHSS reporting system
to improve dynamic data and consolidate reporting platforms

> Making ergonomic improvermnents at several sites across
the organisation

~ Continuing cur monthly and quarterly ESG topics

:;ég?lﬂ;:ﬂ;_“%, » Continuing our 'thinkSAFE workshops and ambassador traning
For LIA rate celcalanon, *he total resoorce warking how s are denved fror tee addivon
of errployee workrg hours a~d agent/contract worker wagec hous We acknowledge

2 few Inntations 14 terms of the standard methodoiogy for totel resousce working hours
calculation/reporting however, we are currently n-process 1@ tnalise standad
calculstionftepor ing metkods'ogy and policy at the Motgar Group level

I This number hag
Female 26% Beem rourded
(2021.19: 3%} to the ncarest 10,
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Morgan’s aspirations
and 2030 goals

A work environment where
all employees are valued and
can do their best work.

» By 2030, we will have a top
quartile engagement score.

2022 progress and performance

In 2022, we launched three employee resource groups (ERG)
to serve as a visible sign of our commitment to a dverse and
inclusive workplace. The three ERGs are:

> Women@Maorgan
s Miltary@Morgan

> PRISM  Pride, Respect. Inclusion and Support at Maorgan,
supporting our LGBTQ+ community and their allies

We held a number of inclusive events and supported chapters
of our ERGs to get together on sites,

We also took steps to address the feedback received from
our previous global employee engagement survey, and
improved our score to 53% in 2022 (2021- 50%).

What’s next
In 2023, we are:
> Supporting our hiring managers through our new
licence to recruit programme. This initiative brings
inclusiveness and diversity training to hiring managers,
supports the implementatton of more diverse hiring
panels and supports the development of more inclusive
language in our job adverts

Developing a global Respect@wWork policy

» Introducing childcare and eldercare concierge services in
some of ocur biggest geographies 1o support those in our
workforce with caring commitments

Using both positive and negative feedback from our
Your Voice' survey, to tackle the issues that our people
have identified and that they care about the most
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Morgan’s aspirations
and 2030 goals

Our employee demographics
will be inclusive and reflective
of the communities in which
we operate,

> By 2030, 40% of our leadership
population will be female.

2022 progress and perfermance

In 2022, we refaunched our early careers programme.
with an increased focus on diversity; 45% of the cohort
were female,

Following the launch of Women@Morgan, our employee
resource group, we held virtual and in-person events
marking important dates such as World Menopause Day
and opening direct lines of communication to leadership.
A key area of development in supporting our women bas
been driving acceptance on open communication around
gender issues.

Our recent employee engagement survey told us that;

. Women are more engaged than men (57% v 52%)
at Morgan

Work life balance is better for women than men in
Morgan {69% v 62%;)

85% of women feel valued at Morgan. versus 81%
for men

What's next
In 2023, we are:

> Focusing on the recrutment of our direct labour force.
Our entry-level employees are the future leaders and
managers of tomorrow and getting the gender balance
right at this level will support greater diversity at the
mid and semor levels in the organisation by 2030

- Developing an appealing employer brand. in ordet
to articulate better our culture and in part the positive
experiences of women in Morgan. Through this
work we will also support the creation of more
female-friendly pelicies

Utilising more female-specific development programmes,
better supporting the diverse development needs of
women at all levels




Environmental, social and governance goals continued
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Morgan’s aspirations
ancd 2030 goals

Responsible procurement
and supply chain management.

2022 progress and performance

We publish a Supplier Code of Conduct which provides

a set of minimum conduct standards that we expect from
our suppliers globally. Our Supplier Code focuses on
treating people fairly. complying with health and safety rules,
protecting the environment, and adhering to important
ethics and compliance obligations.

In 2022, we distributed the Supplier Code to ensure awareness
of our conduct standards. We collected responses through

a self-assessment questionnaire to determine how cur

top tier suppliers implemenrt ESG-related targets, policies,

and practices within their operations.

What's next
We are:

» Continuing to review our population of third parties,
with emphasis on entities who may act on our behalf or
interact with government officials

~ Analysing ESG self-assessment responses to delermine
the status of our contracting parties’ ESG programmes
and offer guidance for further development

Continuing active participation in voluntary industry-wide
Product Stewardship Programmes (PSP} in both the

US and EU. with internal and external targets for airborne
fibre monitoring met in US and internal targets in

EU (with data driving targeted improvements)
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Policies

We are committed to a sustainable future,
To support our goals, we have policies
and practices in place to ensure we are
meeting our obligations.

(;__)) Read more at morganadvancedmaterials.

com/ESGPoalicies

Environment

Owr EHS Policy sets out the Group's
commitment to protect and enhance
the environment, to minimise the
environmental impacts of our activities

and to maximise the positive effects of our

products and services. Gur manufacturing
processes have environmental impacts
arising from the consumption of
resources, air emissions. waste generation
and water discharge. We seek to minimise
these impacts and to go beyond minimum
legal requirements, by focusing on
continuous improvement and establishing
certified environmental management
systerms at our operating facilities,
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The Policy and framework set minimum
standards and provide guidance on what
1s expected of our sites. Environmental
performance is managed at the local level,
with top-level oversight by the Group.
Guided by our Policy. designated EHS
personnel are responsible for comphance
with local laws and regulations and for
facilitating continuous improvement at

a site level,



Morgan’s aspirations
and 2030 poals

Transparency in our reporting.

2022 progress and performance

~

products and services

v

What's next

with their own reporting cbhgations

cther enviranmental factors

Safety

Our Health and Safety Policy provides all
our locations with minimum standards.
adwvice and guidance. Qur minimum
standard is based on current requirements
from the UK and US legislative codes

and associated best practice, If & local
in-country standard 1s higher than these.
the sites are required to achieve the local
standard. There are a number of key sub
policies. The compliance audit programme
is conducted against the health and safety
framework, systems and KPls, with a focus
on high-risik items. All our manufacturing
facilities are reviewed on a four-year
rolling cycle.

Our policies and frameworks set minimum standards and
provide guidance on what is expected of our sites. For example:

» Morgan Advanced Materials’ EHS Policy sets out the
Group's commitment to protect and enhance the
environment, t© minimise the environmental impacts of
our activities and to maximise the positive effects of our

Morgan Advanced Materials’ Conflict Mirerals Policy which
sets out the Group's commitment net to suppert the sourcing
of conflict minerals originating from countries which are
involved in or contribute to socal or environmental abuses.

In 2022, we also piloted ‘Life Cycle Assessment’ (LCA) across
two of our GBUs. We used the LCA results internally to
understand our products and their hotspots.

> We've shared our EcoVadis scorecard with circa
80 companies which demonstrates how we align and
support our customers with their ESG aspirations

In 2023, we aim to have Environmental Product
Declarations (EPDs) and Product Carbon Footprints
available for selectec products to support customers

As we do this. we will be able to use the data to help inform
our erwvironmental decisions. looking to reduce the impact
of our products on energy usage, water usage. waste and

A4

People

Cur employee policies are set locally to
comply with local law and are within the
overall Group framework. Individuals
who are aware of, or suspect, issues
contravening our Group policies or

the Maorgan Code, can report these
confidentially via a 'Speak Up" hotline.

As an international business, the Group
supports the UN's Universal Declaration
of Human Rsghts, and the Group's Human
Rights Policy applies to all our businesses
worldwide, The Policy 1s avallable on our
website and covers child labour, forced
labour, health and safety. freedom of
association. discrimination, discipline,
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Morgan’s aspirations
and 2030 goals

Ethical conduct.

2022 progress and performance

What's next

" We are focused on ensuring awareness of ethical
conduct expectations and increasing effectiveness of
controls across our business

The Maorgan Cade 1s a foundational cormnponent of our ethics
and compliance programme. The Morgan Code is a set of
principles. supported by Group policies, which set out how
we must conduct ourselves in support of our people, our
communities, our business partners and our shareholders

It applies to all employees and extends, as appropriate, to
Morgan's business partners including agents, joint venture
partners and other third party representatives,

In 2022, we held numercus engagements with our pecple
waorldwide including Morgan's first Ethics Week to provide
training on business ethics topics and consider potential
ethical dilemma scenarios. We remained committed to
providing required quarterly ethics training for over 3.000
in-scope emplovees. and enhanced our collection and
analysis of ethics and compliance programme data to
ensure senior leaders have visibility of how risk controls
are working in practice.

» Our ongoing focus is to continue employee
engagement on ethics and comphance

In addition. we are completing pericdic reviews of risks
and controls in areas of our operations that may give
rise to heightened bribery or antitrust risks

working hours and compensation.

The Group's Modern Slavery Act
Transparency Staterment, which is
pubiished annually on our website, detals
action taken to suppart the elimination of
maodern slavery and human trafficking.

We promote equal opportunities for all
employees and job applicants and do

not unlawfully discrirminate. We make
reascnable adjustments to accommodate
any employee who may have a disability
within the meaning of all global equalty
legislation, and where the Company is
aware of such disability.




Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD)

Qur full TCFD statement has been
published separately on our website,

We have chosen to publish this separately
from the Annual Report in order to provide
a more detailec analysis, in addition 1o
the mandatory disclosures. We see this
gocument as an important area of
governance. and therefore we are
publishing in the same way as our
policies, the Morgan Code and our

other obligations,

(—f} morganadvancedmaterials.com/TCFD

We have included a summary of the
TCFD Report ir this section.

Clirnate change is a complex challenge

to navigate, requiring the development of
new methodologies and strategies and
new ways of thinking about the risks and
cpportunities to our business. We have
built on cur previous statement and
improved in the following ways:

I. Our net zero roadmap

Within the disclosure, we have shared
cur net zero rcadmap which outlines
our strategy towards carbon neutrality
in 2050.

2. Scenario analysis

in 2022, Morgan undertook a physical
and a transtional scenario analysis pilot.
As alarge energy consumer, a potential
risk to Morgan is exposure to carbon
taxation. In response to the results from
the scenario analysis. we have developed
a kiln strategy and incorporated this into
our net zerc roadmap.

3. Further embedding of targets

Greenhouse gas emissions targets are now

part of our Long-Term Incentive Plan {(LTIP).

Climate change is one of the greatest
challenges facing society. We believe it is
important to all our stakeholders to report
our approach in a transparent and robust
way. The Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures has developed a
disclosure framework to help companies
improve and increase the understanding

aof their reporting of climate-related financial
information. We are pleased to be
reporting in line with the recommendations
for a second year and building on this
disclosure in years to come.

Listing Rule 9.8.6R Compliance
Statement

Morgan Advanced Materials is reporting
in fine with FCA Listing Rule 9.8.6R(8}
by including climate-refated financial
disclosures consistent with the TCFD
recommendations in this TCFD Report.
We consider our climate-related financial
disclosures to be consistent with eight of
the recommendations. however we

are adopting an explain stance for the
following three recommendations:

I, Strategy B - The impact and responses
to climate-related risks are disclosed,

but many are not yet fully quantified.
Further scenaric analysis through 2023
on the remaining risks and opportunities
will allow for more quantitative analysis

in future years.

2. Strategy C — Scenaric analysis has not
been completed on all listed risks and
opportunities. Analysis on remaining risks
and opportunities will be completed for
future reporting years.

3. Metrics and Targets 8 scope | & 2
data is disclosed but it was not possible to
complete a scope 3 inventory for the
reporting year. Results of an initial scope 3
screening exercise based on prior year data
are included. and the development of a
scope 3 inventory 1s planned during 2023,
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Streamlined Encrgy and
Carbon Report

This report summarises our energy usage.
associated emissions, energy efficiency
actions and energy performance under
the government policy Streamlined Energy
& Carbon Reporting (SECR). This is
implemented by the Companies (Directors’
Report) and Limited | rability Partnerships
(Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations
2018, Also, it summarises in the appendix,
the methodclogies utilised for all
calculations related to the elements
reported under energy & carbon.

Morgan Advanced Materials PLC are

a UK incorpeorated business and 1s also

a main-market listed company. Under SECR
legislation we are mandated to include
energy consumption. emissions, intensity
metrics and all energy efficiency
improvements implemented in our most
recent financial year, for our UK operations
An operational boundary has been applied
for the purposes of the reporting.

Since 2015 we have reduced our scope |
and 2 GHG emissions by 38%. Absolute
emissions are our key metric for monitoring
our annual efficiency savings. 92 projects
which tackled our energy and water
consumption were completed across

the Group as we work fowards our

2030 ESG goals.

Examples of energy efficiency projects
delivered in 2022 include:

~ Solar capaaty  we have increased our
solar capacity at three of our sites: Yixing,
China, South Africa and Aurangabad,
India. This increased capacity will move
these sites closer to becoming entirely
energy independent,

LED Installation  we continue to install
LED lights at our facilities. During 2022,
and additional nine sites had LED lighting
systemns installed. This has made our
lighting systems at these sites as energy
efficient as possible.

v



> Equipment Efficiency  during 2022.

we replaced equipment with more
efficent models. At out facility in Ranipet,
India, fuel oil furnaces were replaced with
electnie lurnaces, glimmating the nee

for fuel oil heating and moving to a more
efficient energy source. At our facilities in

Coudersport. USA and St Marys, USA,

the ovens have been changed to electric

models which are 30% more efficient.
Efficient compressed air systems have
also been installed at our facility in New
Bediord. USA, further reducing cur
energy consumption.

Fuel Efficiency  through the installation
of a heat recovery system at our facility
in Suzhou, China, our furnace fuel
consumption has reduced by 15%.
Cquiprnent Optimisation — during

2022 we have optimised the furnace
loading and firing pattern tc avoid
suboptimal use.

> We have also replaced existing heat

pumps with more epergy efficent
models. Compressed air systems have
been improved with leak detection
and upgrades.

. Energy Monitoring  improvements in

energy monitoring have been made at
our fadility in Fostoria, USA. This includes
the installation of sub-meter and energy
monitorng systermns thal will allow a more
accurate view at one of our largest sites,

CGur GHG emissions are reported on
an operational contrel basis. Our UK
operations comprise five manufacturing
sites and two non-manufacturing sites.

] o Units - 2022 2021 2020
Total scope | Energy Consumption' MWh 636,583 648,833 592,325
UK operations (total) MWh 37988 37,358 36277

Natural Gas MWh 37987 37,355 36,253

| PG MWh l 3 24
Global (excluding UK) MWh 598,595 611475 556,048
Total scope | GHG emissions' tCO.e 117,474 118,747 108,321
UK operations tCO.e 6,924 6.763 6.670
Global (excluding UK) tCQ.e 110,540 11,984 101,651
Total scope 2 Energy Consumption MWh 421,490 417,835 387,177
UK operaticns MWh 15.205 15,083 15.673
Global (excluding UK) MWh 406,285 402,752 371,504
Total scope 2 GHG emissions? tCO_e 89,115 107,070 160,126
UK operations tCOe - - 3.657
Global {excluding UK) tCO e BS.115 [07.070 156.46%
GHG intensity® tCO.e/MWh 0.195 0.212 0.274
UK operations tCO.e/MWh 0.130 0.129 0.199
Global {excluding UK) 1CO.e/MWh 0.199 0.216 0.278

i.  Excludes transport ana process enissions
2 Marke -based methed.

3. GHG intensity figure Jses the total Scope | and Scope ¢ market-basec GHG em ssion figures

Methodology

I'tis report [icl.dirg the Scope ane 2 consumotion and CO2e ermissions cata) have beer developed and caculated uang the GHG Frotocol

A Curporate Accounting and Repaung

Standare (Wor d Busiress Councl! for Sustainab e Deve oprrent and Wor d Resources Institute, 7004): Greenhouse Gas Protocol - Scope 7 Guidance (World Resources Institute, 20157,
Ervironmertal Reporting Guidelnes Including Stresmlned Energy und Carbon Report ng Guidance (HM Gaovernment, 2019) Global (Dxcluding UK) Scope | and 2 caleulations have
been deve oped using IEA 2022 eniussion lacto s along wath suppher-specfc enission facters Government Emissions Facton Daabase 2022 versior

pubhished KWh gross calonific value (CViand kgCOZe emisuians lactors relevant for reporting prrned 0 /0172022

s complete o toe reporusg perniod, 1 oerefure, no estimations were required
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Risk management

We have an established risk
management methodology
which seeks to identify,
prioritise and mitigate risks,
underpinned by a 'three
lines of defence’ model
comprising an internal
control framework, internal
monitoring and independent
assurance processes.

The Board considers that risk management
and internal control are fundamental to
achieving the Group aim of delivering
long-term sustainable growth in
shareholder value.

Principal and emerging risks are sdentified
both “top down' by the Beoard and the
Executive Committee and 'bottom up’
through the Group's global business

units (GBUs). The severity of each risk is
quantified by assessing its inherent impact
and mitigated probability, to ensure that
the residual risk exposure 1s understood
and prioriised for control throughout
the Group.

Sernwor executives are responsible for
the strategic management of the Group's
principal and emerging risks, including
related policy, guidelines and processes,
subject to Board oversight

During the year, a number of actions
were identified to continue to improve
internal contrels and the management
of risk, including:

/ increased focus on the Group's
"think SAFE" programme. focusing
on developing a caring safety culture.
together with work to strengthen
our safety systems

continued focus on Trade Complance
with the iImplementation of 'thinkTRADE

» continued focus on a robust internal
financial control environment

B

> continued focus on the Group's
‘Speak Up' process: including
strengthening the wisibility of the process

further emphasis on the ethics
agenda. including seif-certification of
policy compliance and the ethics and
comphance training platform providing
mandatory global quarterly traming

> driving forward the Group's
suslainabilily agenda.

Cyber incident

We informed the market on {0 January
2023 that we had detected unauthorised
activity on our network. Immediate steps
were taken to contain the incident, launch
response plans, engage our specialist
support services and embark on restoring
systems, A small number of systems have
proven irrecoverable. We are accelerating
the implementation of a new, cloud-based
ERP solution at the affected sites and
across the Group as a whole. We are also
expediting improvements to the Group's
overall IT infrastructure, procedures and
framework The Board continues to
monitor the impact of the incident and
receives regular updates on the progress
against the actions taken to mitigate the risk
of further incidents, We continue to run
regular training prograrmmes on cyber risk
and |T security.

Risk appetite

The Board reviewed its appetite for the
Group's principal risks and concluded that
its appetite for these risks was unchanged
from the previous year. The Group is willing
to take considered risks to develop new
technologies, applications, partnerships
and markets for its products and to meet
customer needs. The Group strives to
eliminate risks to product quality and health
and safety. as these underpin the success
of the Company’s products and the safety
of our people and contractors.

The appetite for risk in the areas of legal
and regulatory compliance continues to
be extrernely low, and the Group expects
Its businesses to comply with all laws and
regulations in the countries in which they
operate. The Group also has a low
appetite for financial risk. During the year,
the Board monitored the Group's current
risk exposare relative to the Board's
appetite for different risks. There were
na risks where the current risk exposure
exceeded the Board's risk appetite
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Emorging riches

As part of the ongoing nsk management
process, the Board and the GBUs identified
and assessed emerging risks. None of these
ernerging risks are currently deemed to be
significant and they are therefore not listed
amongst the Group's pringipal risks below,
They are 1dentified, assessed and monitorec
continuously to be able to respond
effectvely when they crystallise. The key
emerging risk areas identified were;

Regulatory risk: manufacturing regulations
- regulatory requirements for certain
hazardous materials. Tax regulations

with governments globally aiming to
reduce their national debts following
the COVID-I9 pandemic.

Ve

Social/Societal ~ potential recruitment
challenges to replace an ageing direct
workforce in some locations; longer-term
changes to end-rmarkets, redirecting
effort to new end-markets for example.
electric vehicles, domestic heating,
decentralised generation of energy.

 Business model: route to market —
potential perrmanent change in traditionat
selling models requiring an accelerated
shift to e-commerce. Change to
permanent remaote working with our
employees, customers and vendors.

These emerging risks are continually
monitored so that their potential impact
can be understood and mitigated to prevent
them from becoming more significant,
They are also considered as an integral part
of the strategic planning process, and they
form part of the focused risk review of

each GBU.

The following are the Group's principal risks
and uncertainties and they represent the
risks that the Board feels could have the
most significant impact on achieving the
Group's strategy of buillding a sustainable
business for the long term, and could
impact the delivery of strang returns to the
Group's shareholders. An indication of the
Board's assessment of the trend of each
principal risk - whether the potential
severity has increased, decreased or is
broadly unchanged over the past year -

is provided.



Operational risks

Technical
leadership

Severity:
Moderate

Trend:
Unchanged

Risk appetite:

Risk description, assessment and trend from 2021

The Group's strategic success depends on

rnaintaining and developing its technical leadership

in materials science over its competitors.

Unforeseen or unmitigated technology
obsolescence, the emergence of competing
technologies, the loss of control of proprietary
technology or the loss of intellectual property/
know-how would impact the Group's business

Mitigation

The Group has a dedicated technology team within

each GBU which monitors relevant technelogy and business
developments, using technotogy roadmaps Inked to

20 major technology families, to ensure it remains at the
leading edge of development. The Group also has four
Cernitres of Excellence. These Centres focus Morgan Advanced
Materials' expertise and research resources or further
develeping core technologies and identifying new
opportunities and applications.

Higher and its ability to delver on Its strategic goals.
. The GBU leadershup teams proactively monitor their
The advanced techno?qglcal nature c?fthe G_roup technology prioritiez and R&pD |nvestn):nents and have
requires people W'th. h|gh|y'd|fferemlated skill sets. implemented a stage-gate process to manage this effectively.
Any inability to recruit, retain and develop the Th ;
‘ ‘ ‘ . ese projects are also regularly reviewed by the CEO
right people would negatively impact the Group's and CFO
ability 1o achieve its strategic geals. '
Where Group products are designed for a specific customer.
they are developed in partnership with the customer,
The Group seeks to secure intellectual property protection,
where appropriate via a Trade Secret Standard, for its existing
and emerging portfolio of products and has an in-house
counsel dedicated to inteflectual property protection.
with the support of external advisors.
The GBU IP Strategies place emphasis on improving
trade secret management activities. Group policy includes
a Trade Secret Standard document
Operational As part of the Group’s strategy to improve the Changes to operaticnal processes are carefully considered
execution/ efficiency of its operations and organisation. by site and GBU managemeant before implementation.
organisational various changes have been made to operational Operational Improvements and savings are monitored against
change processes at individual sites. to the GBU set budget by the GBUs and the Executive Committee to ensure
. up and to the Group's structure. Further that changes deliver the savings promised without disruption
Severity: improvements and changes are planned for to business operations. New capital investments are approved
Moderate f ‘ . - .
uture years, Failure to manage these changes at appropriate levels of the Group and delivery of these is
Trend: adequately could result in interruption to overseen by GBU and Group management.
Unchanged operations ar customer service, or a failure

Risk appetite:
Moderate

to maximise the Group's opportunities

QOrganisational changes are assessed by the Chief Executive
Officer, the Executive Committee and in certain cases by
the Board before being implemented in line with local
employment regulations.

A number of global functionalisation initiatives were
implemented within the GBUs and IT in 2022 to align
and standardise data and processes. The benefits of these
projects will strengthen our business in 2023,

Change management capabilities throughout the business
were developed 10 address the current global changes
and challenges.

{:7) Further detail on our strategy can be found on pages 16 to 17

and 20 to 23
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Risk management continued

Operational risks

Portfolio
management

Severity:
Low

Trend:
Unchanged

Risk appetite:

Risk description, assessment and trend from 2021

The Group operates across a range of product
and technology families. These are subject to
long-term market trends which may lead to ether
obsolescence or opportunities 1o further expand
the Group. Failure to manage the Group's
portfolio of businesses proactively and in line

with this technology profile could lead to the value
of the Group’s businesses being ercded over time
or to a failure to exploit opportunities to acquire

Mitigation ‘
The Board performs regular reviews of the Group's portfalo.

During 2020. the Group launched a COVID-19-related
restructuring and etticiency programme. | his accelerated
existing plans to simplify the Group's portfolio and align
capacity with the anticipated demand across the business,
This programme was completed in 2021.

During 2022, opportunit-es to acquire businesses were
actively reviewed on a continuing basss.

Moderate businesses with the capability to add further value

to the Group.

Macro- The Group operates in a range of markets and The Group's broad market and geographic spread helps to

economic and geocgraphies around the world and could be mitigate the effects of political and economic changes.

olitical affected by political, economic, social er regulator .
pott Y politieal, econom 1 or regd 7 Annual Budgets and Strategic Plans, as well as monthly
environment  developments or instability, for example an T . ‘
. forecasts for Morgan's different businesses are used to monitor
. economic slowdown or issues stemming . . ; ;
Severity: ‘ . delivery against expectations and anticipate potential external
. from olil and natural resource price shocks. ‘ ‘ ‘

Significant risks to performance. These are subject to regular review by
the Executive Committee and the Board.

Trend:

Adverse In 2022, the macro-econamic and political environment has
declined further, driven by increased energy costs and inflation,
deglobalsation and the various global conflicts.

Further global 1ssues considered by the Board this year
included the continuing impact and uncertainty relating te
the trade negotiaticns between the US and China.

Environment, The Group operates a number of manufacturing Managing its operations safely is the Group’s number one

health and faclities around the world. A failure in the Group's priority. The Group has a comprehensive EHS programme

safety (EHS) EHS procedures could lead to environmental managed by the Group Environment, Health, Safety and

s ity: damage or to injury or death of employees or Sustaimability Director, with clear EHS standards and a

H?g‘:f” Y third parties, with a consequential impact on comprehensive programme of audits to assess compliance.

| . . .
at d d risk of regulat . R
PPEFAtions Encl Inereased ribe o reguiatory of The Greup Environment, Health, Safety and Sustainability

Trend: legal action being taken against the Group. .

- - ‘ Director, working with the Global EHS Leads. sets annual

Unchanged Any such action could result in both financial

Risk appetite:
Very low

damages and damage to reputation, Given the
long history of many of the operations of the
Group, there is also a risk that histonical operating
and environmenital standards may not have met
today's envircnmental regulations. In addition,
the Group may have obligations relating to prior
asset sales or closed facilities.

pricrities for EHS which are approved by the Executive
Committee. These form the basis for individual sites” own
EHS priorities and plans and complement the Group’s
thinkSAFE" behavioural safety programme.

EHS performance is monitored by the Group Executive
Committee and the Board. Our LTA rate was 0,28 (2021:
0.22}: 1t has been impacted by a larger number of new
employees in the business as we ramped up production
volumes, During 2022, our 'thinkSAFE’ behavioural
programme was fully deployed, with all employees taking
part. Safety continues to receive a high level of focus
throughout the crganisation.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group was managing projects
1o remediate legacy contamination at a humber of former
operational sites in conjunction with external specialists

and relevant authorities.

The Group's commitment te protecting and enhancing the
envircnment is set out on pages 32 to 33 and 36 to 37.

TCFD disclosures are set out on pages 38 to 39.

Details of the Group's provisions and contingenit liabilities can
be found in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements,
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Operational risks

Panden;lic

Risk description, assessment and trend from 2021

Mitigation

The overall risk severity has been increased In all manufacturing sites, ways of working to respond to the
Severity: based on assessing a potertially higher impact of pandemic were successfully adapted and matured further -
Hi ‘; Y a future pandemic. including social distancing. hygiene measures and additional
& . . . PPE - to keep our people safe. Flexible working from home
Communicable disease impacts ways of working, ‘ )
Trend: ; " was also established. and further strengthened for all roles
the supply ¢hain and the ability of employees to
Adverse - that could do so.
travel to work in affected areas.
‘ ‘ ‘ Th - F ‘ovided clear and timely co ication t
The Company's priority is to take all actions and © Group has provide rand imely communication o
. reinforce the iImportance of following safety measures in every
precautions necessary to ensure the safety and .
. part of the orgarusation.
wellbeing of our employees.
Clhimate Global climate change poses short-term and The Group actively mitigates the two transitional risks of
change longer-term challenges for our business. The carben priang and eliminating natural gas.

- cted changes are far-reaching and | ible. o . o .
Severity: expecte nee i & rreversibie The Greup evaluated climate scenario analysis via modelling
High by an external consultant in 2022,

Trend: This includes several longer-term risks like heat stress,

Unchanged water scarcity, sea level rise. and supply chain disruption.
Additionally, adverse/extreme weather changes are a potential
risk which is monitored by the GBUs and the respective sites.
Science Based Target initiative {SBT1) targets are under
development to align with a well below 2°C scenario
clirnate risk.

Product Products usec in applications for which they Many of the Group's products are designed to customer

quality, safety
and liability

Severity:
High

Trend:
Unchanged

Risk appetite:

were not intended or inadequate quality control/
aver-commitrment on customer specifications
could result In products not meeting customer
requirements. which coutd in turn lead to
significant habilities and reputational damage.

Some of our products are used in potentially
high-risk applications. for example in the
aerospace, automotive. electric vehicle,

specifications. Morgan Advanced Materials’ quality
management systems and training help ensure that all
our products meet or exceed customer requirements
and national/international standards,

The Group Legal Policy requires that contracts relating to
products used in potential high-risk apphcations are subject
to legal review to ensure that appropriate protections are in
place for product quality risks. Group-wide training on the

Low medical and power industries. policy requirements continues.
The Group insurance programme includes preduct liability
insurance and is reviewed annually by the Board.
IT, cyber Across the industry the frequency of cyber attacks Following the cyber incident experienced in January 2023
security is growing, influenced by increased connectivity. {referred to above on page |9). the Group's security and
and data an accelerated shift to cloud platforms and monitoring programme has been expedited. We continue
management remote working. to run training programmes on cyber risk and 1T security and
. have strengthened the 'thinkSECURE" internal brand as an
Severity: The global regulatery compilance landscape, _ o
L - . 7 SWAreness programme,
Significant including export regulations, continues to mature
and add complexity to how we process, store and We continue to moniter the regulatory and compliance
:552::6 share internal and external data on a global level landscape and emerging regulations, such as the US

Risk appetite:
Very low

within the Group. Falure adds significant risk to
the GBUs and the Company.

The effective management of the Group’s

IT infrastructure 1s iImpertant in enabling our
businesses to deliver customer requirements
reliably, Key business systern falure might
impact the ability of the business to deliver
on Its strategic goals.

Department of Defense's Cybersecurity Maturity Model
Certificate {CMMC), and the EU-GDPR and UK Data
Protection Act (OPA) 2018.

Data management is seen as an increased risk area, Steps

to address this are in place. including a Data Governance
Committee and a data classification project which 1s focused
on identifying. monitoring and protecting the use of data across
the Group.
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Risk management continued

Operational risks

Supply chain/
business
continuity

Severity:
High
Trend:
Favourable

Risk appetite:
Higher

Risk description, assessment and trend from 2021

The Group has potential single-point exposure
risks, which include:

© Single-point supplier - a significant inlerruplion
of a key internal or external supply could impact
business continuity.

Single-point site — a key site exposed to a strike,
a natural catastrophe or a serious incident.
such as fire, could impact business continuity.

v

One Group site. Hayward, is situated in the
California earthquake zone (US). Certain of
the Group's businesses are important for
intercompany supply purposes.

Mitigation

The Group has a diversified manufacturing, customer and
geographic base which provides a level of resillience against
single-point exposures. Were any site to be unavailable,
production in many cases could be switched to cther sites,
The Business Continuity Policy supports minimum standards
at the Group’s most impertant sites for intercornpany supply.

Management of these risks also invelves monitoring and
reviewing supply chains (internal and external}, dual/multple
sourcing of matenals or strategic stock, site security and safety
mechanisms, business continuity plans, and maintenance of
product quality and strong custorner relationships,

The overall risk severity has improved based on a reduced
probability resulting from the effects of the ongoing
GBU activities.

The Group insurance programme includes business
interruption cover and specfic cover in relation te the impact
of an earthquake in Califor ma, US: this Group-level insurance
is reviewed annually by the Board.

Treasury

Severity:
Moderate

Trend:
Unchanged

Risk appetite:
Low

The Group's global reach means that it is exposed
to uncertainties in the financial markets, the fiscal
Jurisdictions where it operates, and the banking
sector. These heighten the Group's funding,
foreign exchange, tax, interest rate, credit and
liquidity risks as well as the risk that a bank failure
could impact the Group's cash.

The Group's treasury function operates on a risk-averse basis.
Required controls over selection of banks, cash management
and other treasury practices and payments globally are
docurmented in Morgan's Treasury Policy and related
procedures. The Group treasury team manages the Group's
funding, liquidity, cash management. interest rate, foreign
exchange, counterparty credit and other treasury-related risks,
Treasury matters are regularly reviewed by the Board and
Audit Committee.

The refinance of the Group's revolving credit facilty (RCF)
was completed in November 2022. As at 3| December 2022,
£76 million of the Group's £230 million revolving credit facility
was drawn down.

Further detail on the Company’'s Treasury Policy is set out in
the Group Financial Review, which can be found on page 54.
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Financial risks

Pension
funding

Severity:
Low

Trend:

Favourable

Risk appetite:

Low

Risk description, assessment and trend from 2021

The Group sponsors several defined benefit
pension arrangements (the Schemes), whose
liabilities are subject to fluctuating interest rates,
investment values and inflation. This coupled with
the increased longevity of members and a tougher
regulatory funding regime will result in increased
funding burdens on the Group in the future.

The deficit in Morgan's global defined benefit
pension schemes calculated on the basis required
for IAS 19 accounting disclosures decreased

from £102.7 million as at 3| December 2021

to £15.6 million as at 31 December 2022.

The Group also participates in two multi-
employer defined benefit schemes in the LS,
both of which have significant funding deficits.

Mitigation

Morgan's primary means of mitigating pension funding risk

is proactive management of the pension scheme assets and
iabilities through an integrated pension strategy focusing on
funding, investment and banefit risk. This involves both internal
manage ment within the Group and also external management
through the Schemes™ trustees, corporate actuaries and
professional advisors.

In the UK both Schemes are closed to the future accrual of
benefits and, in consultation with the Company. the Trustees
have adopted a proactive approach to the management of risk.
Following the most recent Scheme valuations in March 2022,
the Company agreed to make a lump sum contribution of

£67 million to the Schemes, eguivalent to the total
contributions remaining due under the existing Recovery
Plans and sufficient to fully fund the Schemes on the basis of
the Trustees prudent 'Long Term Objective’”. In addition, the
Schemes' interest and inflation rate exposure is now [00%
hedged using only moderate levels of leverage. As a result,
overall levels of risk in the Schemes have been significantly
reduced and the security of member benefits greatly enhanced.
No further contributions will be required from the Company
at least until the next Scheme Valuations in March 2025.

Risk for both of the defined benefit Pension Plans in the LS
has been reduced. One completed a full legal termination

{in June 2018). For the other Scheme, a formal offer of a
present-value-equivalent, lump-sum cash paymert was made
to members, Following a $36 million additional contribution
{in December 2017) and a move to a significantly de-risked
investment portfolio, this Scheme is now almost fully funded
on an accounting basis.

A lability management strategy for both the US multi-employer
plans has been agreed and a proposal for withdrawal made to
the Trustees of the more severely underfunded arrangement.

No significant funding obligations exist in any other individual
country although German legacy defined benefit schemes are
unfunded, in accordance with local practice. The recent risk
review identified no significant liability increases were likely n
the foreseeable future.,
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Risk management continued

Financial risks

Tax

Severity:
Moderate

Trend:
Unchanged

Risk appetite:

Low

Risk description, assessment and trend from 2021

The Group operates in many jurisdictions around
the world and could be affected by changes in
lax laws and regulations within the complex
international tax environment.

The OECD's Base Erosion and Profit Shifting
(BEPS) framework is generating additional
obligations and filing requirements for the Group
as countries continue to implement the actions
in the framework. These could have an impact
on the tax paid by the Group.

Mitigation

The Group's tax function, working In conjunction with
external specialists as required. closely monitors fiscal
develepments and changes such as BEPS to ensure that the
Group's tax arrangements and practices continue to comply
with the regquirements of all relevant jurisdictions, whilst also
enabling efficient management of the tax liability. The Group’s
Head of Tax reports to the Audit Commitiee on key tax
issues and initiatives.

The Group has published its tax strategy on its website
in ine with UK corporate governance requirements:
morganadvancedmaterials.com/ESGPolicies
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Legal and compliance risks

Contract
management

Severity:
High

Trend:
Unchanged

Risk appetite:

Low

Risk description, assessment and trend from 2021

As a global advanced materials business,
supplying components inte critical applications,
the Group may be exposed to habilities arising
from the use of its products. Ineffective
contract risk management could result In
significant liabilities for the Group and could
damage customer relationships.

Mitigation
The Group has an in-house legal function supplemented by
specialist external lawyers.

The Group's legal policy requires in-house legal review of
high-value or high-liability contracts to ensure they contain
appropriate protections for the Group. The policy requires
Chief £ xecutive Officer approval before a business can enter
into a high value contract exceeding £2 million and unlimited
liability contracts or contracts where the liability cap exceeds
£5 million.

The Group has product liability insurance that would respond
to product liability claims (up to policy limits) to the extent this
is not limited contractualty.

Compliance

Severity:
High

Trend:
Lnchanged

Risk appetite:

Very low

The Group's global operations must comply with

a range of naticnal and international laws and
regulations including those related to bribery and
corruption, human rights, trade/export complance
ang competition/anti-trust activities.

A faiture to comply with any applicable laws/
regulations could result in civil or criminal liabilities
and/or individual or corporate fines and could also
result in debarment from government-related
contracts or rejection by financial market
counterparties and reputational damage.

The Group is committed to the highest standards of corporate
ang individual behaviour. To support this, in 2018 the Group
issued the Morgan Code. which has been continuously in force
since then. The Code defines the Group's approach to doing
business ethically and confirms Morgan’s commitments to

high standards of ethical behaviour. The Code is supported by
a range of docurnents and mechanisms: global Group policies,
standards and guidance; training materials; the provision

of an ethics ‘Speak Up' hotline for employees; and systems

to support effective screening of and due diligence on

third parties,

Mandatory ethics training for staff covers topics including
anti-bribery and anti-corruption, anti-trust, harassment and
bullying and trade controls. The Group's *Speak Up" methods
enable staff to report concerns anonymously.

The Group has a Global Ethics and Compliance Director
organising and leading the Group's activities and programmes.

The Group also has a Global Trade Compliance Director
whose role 1s dedicated to ensuring compliance with trade
controls. In 2022, the Company introduced the 'thinkTRADE
programme including global training on export control.

in addition to Group-level compliance specialists, the
businesses have established compliance officers. who are
responsible for supporting local training and monitoring.
Morgan also employs country-specific trade and

export compliance specialists in higher-risk businesses
and junsdictions.

Further details on ethics and compliance can be found on
page 30 to 3| and 37.

47 Morgan Advanced Materials plc Annual Report 2022




Review of operations

R U,

Global business
unit performance

The Group's results are
reported as five separate
global business units,
which have been
identified as the Group's
reportable operating
segments, as detailed on
page /. These have been
identified on the basis

of internal management
reporting information

that iIs regularly reviewed
by the Group's Board

of Directors {the Chief
Operating Decision
Maker) in order to allocate
resources and assess
performance.

The strategy for each of our global
business units aligns with the execution
priorities of the Group. We have put
increased emphasis on faster growing
rarkets. Qur core markets are critical,
providing a strong base with a diversified
portfolio. Qur four Centres of Excellence
drive technological differentiation,
support a strong pipeline of Innovation
and margin expansion. Our sustainable
salutions are enabling the energy
transition and our Group 1s resilient,

benefitting from diverse end-markets
and its global footprint

Thermal Ceramics

Thermal Ceramics manufactures advanced
ceramic materials, products and systems for
thermal insulaticn in high-temperature
environments. As at 31 December 2022,

it comprised 23 operating sites employing
approximately 2,430 people, with
rmanufacturing sites across the world.

It alsc has a network of sales offices
allowing immediate access to and facilitating
direct working with end-users.

We engineer systemns for the safety of people
and equipment in demanding applications.
Qur products help customers, especially
those operating energy-intensive processes,
to reduce energy consumption, emissions
and operating costs. Our products are used
in high-temperature industrial processing of
metals, petrochemicals, cement, ceramics
and glass, and by manufacturers of equipment
for aerospace. automotive, marine and
domestic applications. Our core strength is
our ability to address individual customer
problems, using cur materials and our
applications expertise to design, manufacture
and install optimum thermal solutions.

QOur product range includes high-
temperature insulating fibre products,
microporous products, firebricks,
manolithic products, heat shields,

fired refractory shapes and structural

block insulation products. Revenue for
Thermal Ceramics for the year was £421.4
million, representing an increase of 15.5%
compared with £364.7 million in 2021. This
has been driven by recovery in industrial,
metals, aerospace and automotive markets,
growing petrochemical project revenues
and growth in clean energy applications.
On an organic constant-currency” basis,
year-on-year revenue increased by 11.4%.

Thermal Ceramics operating profit was
£44.3 million {2021: £37.8 million), and
operating margin was 10.5% (2021 10.49),
with the slight margin improvements due to
increased volumes, with price offsetting
inflation. Details of the specific adjusting
iterns of £2.8 million (2021: £2.1 million)
are induded in note 6. Adjusted operating
profit” was £48.7 million {2021 £42.0 million)
with adjusted operating profit margin® of
I1.6% (2021: 11.5%).
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Molten Metal Systems

Molten Metal Systems manufactures an
extensive range of high-performance
crucibles and foundry consumables for
non-ferrous metal melting applications.
We provide melting solutions for foundries,
die-casters and melting facilities working
with zinc, precious metals, aluminium,
copper, brass, bronze and cther non-
ferrous metals. At 31 December 2022,

it comprised five operating sites employing
approximately 430 people with some
sales alse being made through a well-
established distributor network.

With its extensive applications experience
and process knowledge. Molten Metal
Systerns helps customers put together the
optimal system for their needs. The global
business unit works with customers in
non-ferrous castings, metal powder
production, refining and recycling of
prectous metals, and the preduction of
pure aluminium for electronics applications.

Owur product range includes crucibles and
foundry products.

Revenue for Molten Metals Systems for
the year was £57.8 million, an increase
of 21.2% compared with £47.7 million in
2021. Revenue growth is driven by strong
end-market demand, share wins in the
aluminium market and growth in copper
and precious metals. On an organic
constant-currency” basis, year-on-year
revenue increased by 15.8%.

Molten Metal Systems operating profit

was £7.5 milhon (2021: £6.0 million),

and operating profit margin was 13.0%
(2021: 12 .6%). Margin improvement is from
volume leverage and price and efficiency
actions more than offsetting inflanon. 2022
adjusted operating profit” was £7.8 million
(2021: £6.3 million) with adjusted operating
profit margin of 13.5% (2021: 13.29%).



Electrical Carbon

Electrical Carbon develops and
manufactures a wide range of products
which are used to transfer electrical current
between stationary and rotating or linear
moving parts in motor, generator, and
current-collector applications. The business
also makes graphite and felt products used
in the high temperature processing of
materials and in semiconductor processing.
Electrical Carbon's main markets are
semiconductors, rail, industrial drives,
power generation, iron and steel, mining
and wind-power.

As at 31 December 2022, Electrical

Carbon comprised |6 operating sites
employing approximately [,390 people,
with manufacturing sites across the world.
The global spread of its operating sites is
supplemented by a comprehensive network
of sales offices. The business's core strength
is its longstanding materials and applications
experience and its ability to engineer
appropriate, refiable solutions for

individual customer reguirements.

Qur product range includes electrical carbon
brushes and collectors, brush holders, slip
rings and linear transfer systems, felt and
graphite components.

Revenue for the Electrical Carbon global
business unit in 2022 was £188.7 million,
representing an increase of 14.4%
compared with £164.9 million in 2021,
driven by growth in semiconductor

and transportation market segments.

On an organic constant-currency” basis,
year-on-year revenue improved by 9.7%.

Eiectrical Carbon operating profit was
£39.1 million (2021: £25.6 million), and
operating profit margin was 20.7%
(2021: 15.59%). Margin improvement is
driven by operational efficiency savings
and the impact of pricing increases which
rmare than offset cost inflation and
investment. Adjusted operating profit’
was £39.7 millon (202 1: £32.8 million)
with an adjusted operating profit margin’
of 21.0% (2021 19.5%).

Seals and Bearings

Seals and Bearings makes high-performance
self-lubricating bearing and seal components,
used predominantly in pumps - industrial
and domestic  or other sealing applications.
We use advanced carbon/graphite, silicon
carbide, alumina and zircenia materials to
engineer lightweight, low-friction bearings
and seals. These materials help solve the
problems associated with use of lubricants in
extreme temperatures, corrosive or hygienic
environments and whete access is restricted,
and are engineered into products which
provide customer-specific solutions. As at

31 December 2022, Seals and Bearings
comprised || operating sites employing
approximately 1,370 people. with
manufacturing sites across the world.

The business's compoenents often help
to extend the operating life of customers’
equipment and make it more energy-
efficient. The main markets served are
specialist applications in the oil and gas,
automotive, industrial, water pump,
aerospace and home appliance sectors,

Our product range includes seals,
bearings and general pump compenents
(shafts, vanes, rotors and washers).

Revenue for the Seals and Bearings global
business unit in 2022 was £148.5 million,
representing an increase of 9.3% compared
with £135.9 million in 2021, with the
expected reduction in armour sales
maore than offset by growth in industrial,
petrochemical and aerospace markets.
On an orgamic constant-currency” basis,
year-on-year revenue increased by 2.8%.
Ceramic armour sales in 2022 were
£25.5 million (2021: £32.3 million).

Seals and Bearings operating profit was
£16.6 million {2021 £22.0 million),

with cperating profit margin of |1.2%
(2021: 16.2%). Detalls of the specific
adjusting items of £1.6 million (2021: £nil)
are included in note 6. The margin has
dechned due to manufacturing inefficencies
in the second half and a quality claim with
an armour customer. Adjusted operating
profit” was £19.0 million (2021: £22.9
million}. with an adjusted operating profit
rmargin of 12.8% (2021: 16.9%).
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Technical Ceramics

Technical Ceramics engineers high-
performance functional and structural
ceramic materials. components and
sub-assemblies to address customer-specific
technical challenges. The business employs
advanced matenals saence and applications
expertise to produce parts that enhance
reliability or improve the performance

of its customers’ products, Much of what
the global business unit makes is used in
dermanding, harsh or critical environments,
The global business unit works in selected
segments of the semiconductor, energy,
healthcare, industrial, petrochemicals,
security and transport markets, typically in
close collaborative customer relationships.
As at 31 December 2022, Technical
Ceramics comprised |7 operating sites
employing approximately 2,560 people,
with manufacturing sites across the world.

Qur product range includes structural
ceramic components, engineered coatings,
ceramic-to-metal assermblies including
brazed and metallised assemblies, ceramic
cores, braze alloys and ceramic tubes

and rollers.

Revenue for the Technical Ceramics
global business unit in 2022 was
£295.7 million, an increase of 24.6%
compared with £237.3 million in 2021,
driven by growth in semiconductor,
healthcare, industrial, defence and
aerospace market segments, with a
combination of market growth and share
wins. On an organic constant-currency”
basis, year-on-year revenue increased
by 15.8%.

Techrical Ceramics operating profit was
£39.2 million (2021 £18.9 million}, and
operating margin was 13.2% (2021: 11.6%).
Details of the speafic adjusting items

of £1.2 million (2021: £6.0 million) are
included in note 6. Margin improvement is
driven by volume leverage, pricing and
efficiency actions and the remaining benefits
from our 2020 restructuring programme.
Adjusted operating profit” was £41.7 million
(2021 £26 4 milion), with an adjusted
operating profit margin® of 14.1%

(2021: 11.1%).




Group financial

ar———

Group performance

Group revenue and operating profit
Group revenue was £1,112.1 million

{2021, £950.5 million), an increase of 17.0%
on a reported basis compared with 2021

Group adjusted operating profit’ was
£150.0 million (2021: £124.5 milion).
Adjusted operating profit margin’ was
13.6%. compared with 13.1% for 2021,

Operating profit was £140.8 million

{2021: £113.1 million) and profit before tax
was £131.6 million (2021: £104.3 million).
Specific adjusting iterms in 2022 was

anet pre tax charge of £5.5 million

(2021: £5 4 million), primarily relating to
the impairment of non-financial assets.
Further details are included under
Specific adjusting items below.

(™) Read more zbout our five glohal
business units on pages 48 to 49.

Specific adjusting items

from continuing operations

In the consolidated income staternent.

the Group presents specific adjusting items
separately. In the judgement of the
Direclors, ds 4 resull of the nature and
value of these iterns they should be
disclosed separately from the results of the
Group to allow the reader to cbtain an
understanding of the financial infermaticn
and the performance of the Group
excluding these iterns.

Details of speciic adjusting items arising
during the year and the comparative period
are given in note 6 to the consolidated
financial staternents. Speafic adjusting tems
in relation to discontinued operations are
disclosed in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In 2022, specific adjusting items were
£5.5 millon (2021: £5.4 miliion) and
comprised the following:

review

Adjusted
Revenue ~  operating profit’' Margin %'

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Continuing operations £m £m £m £rr_w % %
Thermal Ceramics 421.4 3647 48.7 420 H.6% [1.5%
Molten Metal Systems 57.8 47.7 7.8 63 13.5% [13.2%
Electrical Carbon 188.7 164.9 39.7 328 210% 199%
Seals and Bearings 148.5 1359 19.0 229 12.8% 169%
Technical Ceramics 295.7 2373 41.7 264 14.0%  |1.1%
Segment total L1121 5505 156.9 1304 14.1% 13.7%
Corporate costs (5.9 (5.9
Group adjusted
operating profit' 151.0 1245 13.6% 13.1%
Amortisation of intangible assets 4.7) (6.0}
Operating profit before
specific adjusting items 146.3 8.5 13.2% 12.5%
Specific adjusting items included
in operating profit* (5.5 (5.4
Operating profit 140.8 3.0 12.7% 119%
Net financing costs {9.2) (9.2}
Share of profit of associate
(net of income tax) - 0.4
Profit before taxation 121.6 143

I, Definions of these non-GAAP measures can be found in the plossary of terms on page 206, reconuliations of the

slatotory resalis to the adus ed measures can be found on pages 57 10 5%

2. The Group ~eported the results of its five glooal business srits as e dv sioes w131 Decerr ber 2021 Fooe | anuar
2022 onwards, div sional subtotals have been removed lrom our segmental “eporting’ we continue "o report the fae

separate glopal bus ness units,

3 Daetals of szealic agjusting erms ram contimuing eperato=s car be found in note £ 1o the cosobdated hnancal staremeants

2022 2021
£m £m
Specific adjusting items from continuing operations'
Impairment of non-financial assets (6.5 (12.4)
Restructuring credit 0.6 0.1
Net prefit on disposat of business 0.4 i
Business closure and exit costs - (0.2)
Total specific adjusting items before income tax (5.5) (5.4)
Income tax credit from speafic adjusting items i1 1.5
Total specific adjusting items after income tax 4.4) (3.9)

I Speafic adpusting tems refating to ciscontimued o.0erations are © sclosed in note 7 1o the comsohidated fingng ol statements.
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2022

Impairment of non-financial assets

Seals & Bearings, Asia

Animpairment charge of £0.6 million

has been recognised relating 1o assets
purchased to support a customer contract
which did not materizalise.

A further impairment charge of £1.0 million
has been recognised after reassessing the
value in use of property. plant and
equipment n a business in Asia which 1s
taking longer than anticipated tc generate
revenues. This represented a partial
impairment of the assets; the carrying value
of the assets following this impairment was
£5.2 million. The caiculation of the value in
use was performed as at December 2022,
Along-term growth rate of 1.0% was used
for years beyond the five-year forecast
period and in calculating the terminal
value. A pre-tax discount rate of 12.9%
was used to determine the value in use,

Thermal Ceramics, Europe
Animpairmerit charge of £1.2 milhon

has been recognised following a fire in
December which destroyed a warehouse
and inventory. The assets have
subsequently been written off.

Animpairment charge of £1.1 million has
been recognised after reassessing the value
in use of property, plant and equipment in
a business in France which is experiencing
limited growth and under-utilisation of key
assets. This represents a partial impairment
of the assets. The carrying value of the
assets following the impairment was

£0.3 million. The calculation of value in use
was performed as at December 2022

A long-term growth rate of 1.0% was used
for years beyond the five-year forecast
period and in calculating the terminal value.
A pre-tax discount rate of 13,7% was used
to determine the value in use.

Thermal Ceramics, South America
An impairment charge of £0.9 million

has been recognised in relation to assets
associated with a closed manufacturing Iine.

Technical Ceramics, Asia

An impairment charge of £1.7 million bas
been recognised after reassessing the value
i use of property. plant and equipment in
a business in Asia which 1s taking longer
than ant-cpated to generate revenues.
This represents a partial impairment of the
assets; the carrying value of the assels
following this imparrment was £3.2 mitlion.
The calculation of the value in use was
performed as at December 2022,

Along-terny growth rate of |.0% was used
for years beyond the five-year forecast
period and in calculatng the terminal value.
A pre-tax discount rate of 12.9% was used
to determine the value in use.

Review of non-financial assets
impaired in previous years

Impairment charges of £52.6 million for
non-financial assets which the business
continues to use have been recorded during
the current and previous years { Technical
Ceramics, Asia £7.7 mitlion, Technical
Ceramics, ceramic cores £28.8 million and
Thermal Ceramics £15.1 millicn, and Seals
and Bearings, Asia £1.0 million). These
impaired amounts could be reversed if the
related businesses were to outperform
significantly against their budget. A sensitivity
analysis was carried out using reasonably
possible changes to key assumptions in
assessing the value in use of these non-
financial assets. This did not resuit in a
material reversal of the impaired amounts.

Restructuring credit

A credit of £0.6 million has been recognised
in the current year representing a release
of restructuring provisions bocked in
previous years in relation to the Group's
restructuring programme. Whilst this
programme was completed in 2021,

we retam a restructuring provision of

£10.5 million for the Group's obligations at
the balance sheet date (2021: £11.8 million).
This provision includes remaining lease

exit costs and multi emplayer pension
obligations for two sites which were closed
in 2021, The cash coutflows relating to the
pension obligations may continue for up to
19 years, subject to any settlement being
reached in advance of that date. Cash
outflows in relation to the lease may
continue for the next four years. Reter

1o note 24 for further information.

Net profit on disposal of business

The Group disposed of its investment in
the joint venture Sukhoy Log, based in
Russia, during the year. This disposal
generated a net profit of £0.4 million.
Refer to note 2 for further information.
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2021

tmpairment of non-financial asscts

Technical Ceramics, Asia
Animpairment charge of £6.0 million

was recognised after reassessing the value
ir use of property, plant and equipment in
a business in Asia which was taking longer
than anticipated 1o generate revenues.
This represents a partial impairment of
the assets; the carrying vatue of the assets
following this impairment is £5.4 million,
The calculation of value in use was
performed as at December 2021,

A long-term growth rate of 1.0% was used
for years beyond the five-year forecast
period and in calculating the terminai
value. A pre-tax discount rate of [1.5%
was used to determine the value in use,

Electrical Carbon, Europe

and North America

Impairment charges of £4.8 million and
£1.0 million were recognised after assessing
the viability of two development assets in
Europe and North America, respectively.
The European asset was not deemed viable
as we were unable to commission it safely
and the American asset was not deemed

to be commercally viable

Thermal Ceramics, North America
An impairment charge of £0.6 million was
recognised relating to assets associated
with closed manufacturing lines within
Thermalt Ceramics.

Restructuring credit

Anet credit of £0.1 million was recognised
in the year ended 31 December 2021
representing £2.1 million of redundancy
and closure costs which related to the
Group’s restructuring programme, offset
by a £2.2 million release of restructuring
provisions booked during 2020 in relation
to this programme.

Net profit on disposal of business

The Group disposed of its 35%
shareholding in Jemmtec Limited and
the business assets associated with the
Latrobe business during the year ended
31 December 2021. These disposals
generated a profit of £7.2 millon and

a loss of £0.1 miillion, respectively. Refer
to note 2 to the consclidated financal
statements for further information.

Business closure and exit costs

A £0.2 million charge was recognised
relating to the liquidation of businesses
in Europe and Asia




Group financial review continued

Foreign currency impact

The principal exchange rates used in the translation of the results of overseas subsidiaries

were as follows:

2022 2021
GBF to! Closing rate Average rate Closing rate Average rate
US dollar 1.21 I.24 I35 1.30
Euro 1.13 1.17 1.19 16

The potential impact of changes in foreign
exchange rates is given In note 21 to

the consolidated financial statements on
page |66.

Retranslating the 2022 full-year results
at the March 2023 closing exchange
rates would lead to revenue of

£ 111.9 million and adjusted aperating
profit” of £142.2 million.

Inarease in 2022 revenue/adusted operating profit. if
GBP weakens by 10c against the US dollar in isolation

GBP weakens by |0c against the Fure in solation

For illustrative purposes. the table below
provides details of the impact on 2022
revenue and Group adjusted operating
profit’ if the actual reported results,
calculated using 2022 average exchange
rates were restated for GBP weakening by
10 cents against the US dollar in i1solation
and 10 cents against the Eurc in isolation:

Adjusted

operating

Revenue profit!
£m £m

169 2.2
21.8 3.5

I Definrions of these non GAAP reasures can be found in the glossary of terrs on page 206, recona ations of the
statstory res. |ts o the adjustec meast res can be found on pages 57 1 59

Amaot tisation of intangible assets

The Group amortisation charge was
£4.7 million {2021: £6.0 million}.

Finance costs

The net finance charge was £9.2 million
(20211 £3.7 milion) comprising net bank
interest and similar charges of £5.4 million
(2021 £5.3 milhon), net interest on

IAS |9 pension obligations of £1.4 million
(2021: £1.6 million). and the interest
expense on lease liabilities of £2.4 m:llion
(2021: £2.3 miillion) resulting from

IFRS 16 Leases.

The impacts of potential changes in interest
rates on profit or loss are stated in note 2|
to the consolidated financial statements on
page 166,

Looking forward to 2023, we anticipate that
the net finance charge will be around

£13-15 milhon. comprising: net bank interest
and similar charges of £10-12 million; net
interest on tAS 19 pension cblgations of
£0.5 mill:on; and net interest expense on
lease liabilities of £2 million.

Taxation

The Group tax charge from continuing
operations, excluding specific

adjusting items, was £37.1 million

{2021, £29.7 million). The effective

tax rate, excluding specfic adjusting items,
was 27.0% (2021: 27.1%). Note B to

the consolidated financal statements,

an page 153, provides additicnal
information on the Group's tax charge.

Looking forward to 2023, we anticipate
that the effective tax rate will be around
269%-28%.

On a statutory basis. the Group tax charge
was £36.0 million (2021: £28.2 million).
higher than the previous year due to the
higher taxable profits.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share from
continuing operations was 30,6 pence
(2021: 23.9 pence) and adjusted
earnings per share was 33.8 pence
(2021: 272 pence). Details of these
calculations can be found in note 10

ta the consolidated financial statements
on page 155.
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Final dividend

The Board 1s recommending a final
dividend, subject to shareholder approval,
of 6.7 pence per share on the Ordinary
share capital of the Group, payable on

3 july 2023 to Ordinary shareholders

an the register at the rlese nf hosinees

on 9 June 2023, The ex-dividend date s
8 June 2023.

Together with the interim dividend of

5.3 pence per share paid on 18 Novemnber
2022, this final dividend, if approved by
shareholders, brings the total distribution
for the year to 12.0 pence per share

{2021: 9.1 pence),

A total dividend of 12.0 pence per share
represents a dividend cover of adjusted
EPS of 2.8 times.

The Board has committed to grow the
Ordinary dividend as the economic
environmierit and the Group's earnings
improve, targeting a dividend cover of
around 2.5 times over the medium term
This level of cover ensures sufficient
resources are available to continue to
invest to support the Group's long-term
prospects, as well as to meet the needs of
other stakeholders of the Group, incuding
by making deficit contnbutions 1o the
Group's defined benefit pensien schemes.

Note 4| to the Company financial
statements, on page |99, provides
additional information on the Company's
distributable reserves.

Cash flow

Cash generated from continuing operations

was £59.1 million (2021: £1359 million).

Free cash flow before acquisitions.
disposals and dividends” was £(46.9) million
(2021 £66.2 million)

Net debt” at the year end was
£200.4 million (2021: £96.5 millien).
representing a net debt’ to EBITDA’
ratio of |1 times (2021: 0.6 times)

The Group has cash and cash equivalents
of £117.7 millicn and undrawn headroom
on its revolving credit facility of

£154.0 million.

Net debt excluding fease habilities

was £148.5 million (202}: £46.7 million),
representing a net debt’ to EBITDA' ratio
excluding lease liabilities of 0.8 times
(2021: 0.3 times).



Coramitments for property. plant and cquipment and computer software for which no
provision has been made are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements on

page 184,

2022 2021

£m £

Cash generated from continuing operations 59.1 13559
Net capital expenditure (57.4) (2813
Net interest on cash and borrowings (5.4) (5.3
Tax paid (31.8) (254
Lease payments and interests (11.4) (109}
Free cash flow before acquisitions, disposals
and dividends (46.9) 66.2
Dividends paid to external plc shareholders (31.6) (9.1
MNet cash flows from other investing and financing activities (10.3) (15.0}
Cash flows from sale of subsidianes and associates 0.4 5.0
Net cash flows from discontinued operations 1.1 53
Exchange movement and other non-cash movements (14.5) 1.9
Opening net debt' excluding lease liabilities (46.7) {101.0)
Closing net debt' excluding lease liabilities (148.5) (46.7)
Closing lease liabilities (51.9) (49.8)
Closing net debt' (200.4) (96.5)

| Defiritions of these non-GAAP measures can be found in the glossary of terms on page 206, recondbanons o' tne
statutory results 1o the acjusted megas.res can be found on pages 57 70 59

Capital structure

At the year end total equity was
£429.6 million (2021: £349.6 millicn)
with closing net debt” of £200.4 million
(2021: £36.5 million).

Non-current assets were £524.3 million
(2021: £481.9 million) and total assets were
£1,020.3 million (2021: £312.5 million).

Details of undiscounted contracted
maturities of financial liabilities and capital
management are set out in note 21 10
the consolidated financial statements on
page |66.

Capital structure is further discussed in
note 2| to the consolidated financial
staternents on page |66 under the
heading Capital management,

Pensions

The Group operates a number of
pension schemes throughout the world.
the majority of which are of a funded
defined benefit type. The largest of
these are located in the UK and the
USA, and the majority of the others in
continental Europe,

The charge incurred in relation to the
Group's defined benefit arrangements
is summarised in the table below.

2022 2021
£m £m

Operati-ng costs:
Current and past service cost (2.7) (3.2)
Administration expenses recognised outside the
pension liabilities {1.5) (.3
Curtailments and settlements 0.2 0.1
Total operating costs 4.0) 4.4)
Net interest on net defined benefit liability (1.4) (1.6}
Total (5.4) 6.0y
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Defined benefit pension plans

The Group pension deficit has decreased
by £87.1 million since last year enc to

£15.6 million on an tAS 19 {revised) basis,
largely driven by higher corporate bond
yields in the UK leading to a higher discount

rate and crmployer contrihitinng

© The UK Schemes’ deficit decreased by
£76.9 million to a surplus of £25.2 million
(2021 deficit: £51.7 milbon), {discount
rate 2022: 4.81%: discount rate
2021 1.92%).

The US Schemes’ deficit increased by
£1.5 miflion to £9.2 million (202 1:
£7.7 million), (discount rate 2022
4.99%,; discount rate 2021: 2.71%;,.

s

> The turopean Schemes’ deficit
decreased by £11.1 million to

£27.9 million (2021: £3%.0 million),
(discount rate 2022: 3.70%:; discount
rate 2021: 0.90%,).

> The Rest of World Schemes’ geficit
decreased by £0.6 million to £3.7 millicn
(2021: £4.3 million), (discount rate 2022:
5.30%: discount rate 2021: 2.90%;).

The most recent full actuanal valuations

of the UK Schemes were undertaken as at
31 March 2022 and resulted in combined
assessed deficits of £49.7 million on the
‘Technical Provisions’ basts. The Company
subsequently agreed with the Trustees to
make a lump sum contribution to the
Schemes of £67.0 million on 29 December
2022 in lieu of the rermaining contributions
that would otherwise have been due
under the existing recovery plans from the
31 March 2019 valuations. The surm paid
also represented the value of the deficit on
the more prudent 'L ong Term Objective’
basis on the date of that agreement,

25 Octaber 2022, As a result, no further
contributions to the Schemes are expected
to be required pending the results of the
next full valuations as at 31 March 2025,

Post balance sheet event

In January 2023 we detected unauthorised
activity on our network. immediate steps
were taken to contain the incadent. launch
response plans. engage our specialist
support services and embark on restoring
systerns. All manufacturing sites are
operational. although some continue to use
manual processes as work continues to
restore their systems. This has been treated
as a non-adjusting post balance sheet event
and there bas been no Impact on the




Group financial review continued

financial resulls repor led for the year ended
3| December 2022. A small number of
systerns have proven irrecoverable; we are
accelerating the implementation of a new,
cloud-based solution at the affected sites.

We expect to incur around £15 mithon

of systems recovery and spedialisl support
costs, including I'T asset impairment
charges of £0.7 million. These costs

wili be presented separately as specific
adjusting tems in the consclidated income
statement for the year ending 31 December
2023. At the date of signing, and following
consultation with our advisors, we also
have a non-adjusting post balance

sheet contingent hability relating to
potential enforcement action or civil
claims pending the completion of out
investigation into what data was accessed
and regulatory engagement.

Treasury policies

The {ollowing pelicies were in place
across the Group throughout the year.
The manager of each global business
unit is required to confirm complhance
as part of the year-end process.

Financial Risk Management

and Treasury Policy

Group Treasury works within a framework
of policies and procedures approved by

the Audit Committee. It acts as a service to
Morgan Advanced Materials’ businesses. not
as a profit centre and manages and controls
risk in the treasury environment threugh
the establishment of such procedures.

Group Treasury seeks to ahgn treasury
goals. objectives and philosephy to those
of the Group. ftis responsible for alf

of the Group’s funding, iguidity, cash
management. interest rate risk, foreign
exchange risk and other treasury business,
As part of the policies and procedures.
there is strict control over the use of
financial instruments to hedge foreign
currencies and interest rates, Speculative
trading in derivatives and other financial
instruments 1s not permitted.

Foreign exchange risks

Currency transaction exposures exist as
a result of the global nature of the Group.
The Group has a policy in place to hedge
all material firm commitments and a large
proportion of highly probable forecast
foreign currency exposures in respect of
sales and purchases over the following

12 months and achieves this through the
use of the forward foreign exchange
markets. A significant proportion of the

forward exchange contracts have maturitics
of less than one year after the balance
sheet date. The Group continues its
practice of ot hedging income statement
translation exposure.

There are exchange control restrictions
which attect the ability of a small number
of the Group's subsidiaries to transfer funds
to the Group. The Group does not believe
such restrictions have had or will have any
material adverse impact on the Group as

a whole or on the ability of the Group to
meet its cash flow requirements.

Currency translation risks are controlled
centrally. To defend against the impact of
a permanent reduction in the value of its
overseas net assets through currency
depreciation, the Group seeks to match
the currency of financial liabilittes with

the currency in which the net assets are
denominated. This is achieved by raising
funds in different currencies and through
the use of hedging instruments such as
swaps and 15 implermented only to the
extent that the Group's gearing covenant
under the terms of its loan decuments,

as well as its facility headrcom, are likely
to remain comfortably within limits, In ths
way. the currencies of the Group's financial
liabilities become more aligned 1o the
currencies of the trading cash flows which
service them.

Interest rate risk

The Group seeks to reduce the volatility
In its interest charge caused by rate
fluctuations. The proportions of fixed and
floating rate debt are determined having
regard to a number of facters, including
prevailing market conditions, interest rate
cycle, the Group's interest cover and
leverage position, and any perceived
correlation between business performance
and rates.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to
the Group If a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet 1ts
contractual obligations. The Group is
exposed to credit risk on financial
instruments such as hquid assets,
derivative assets and trade receivables.

Cash balances held by companies
representing over 65% of the Group's
revenue are managed centrally through

a number of pooling arrangements. Credit
risk s managed by investing in ligund assets
and acquiring derivatives 'n a diversified
way from high-credit- quality financial
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institutions. Counterparties are assessed
through the use of rating agencies, systemic
risk considerations, and regular review of
the financial press. Credit risk is further
discussed in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements on page 166,

Capital investment

The Group has well-established formal
procedures for the approval of investment
in new businesses and for capital
expenditure. to ensure appropriate

senicr management review and sign-off.

Borrowing facilities and liquidity

All of the Group's borrowing facilities are
arranged by Group Treasury with Morgan
Advanced Materials plc as the principal
obligor. In a few cases operating subsidiaries
have external borrowings but these are
supervised and controlled centrally.
Group Treasury seeks to obtain certainty
of access to funding in the amounts.
diversity of maturities and diversity of
counterparties as required to support

the Group's medium-term financing
requirements and to minimise the Impact
of poor credit market conditions.

The Group's debt and 1ts maturty profile
are detailed in notes 20 and 2| to the
consolidated financal staterments on
pages 165 and 166.

Tax risks

The Group follows a tax policy to fulfil
local and international tax requirements,
maintaining accurate and timely tax
compliance whilst seeking to maximise
long-term shareholder value. The Group
adopts an open and transparent approach
to relationships with tax authorities and
continues to monitor and adopt new
reporting requirements, for example those
arising from the implementation of the
QECD Base Erosion and Profit Shifting
proposals within tax legislation across
various jurisdictions,

The tax strategy is aligned to the Group's
business strategy and ensures that tax affairs
have strong commeraial substance. Tax risks
are set out in the Risk Management section
on page 40.



Directors’ statements

Going concern statement

The Group's business activities, together
with the factors likely to affect its future
development, performance and position
are set out in the Strategic Repert on pages
2 to 59 The financial position of the Group,
its cash flows. hquidity pesition and
borrowing facilities, are described earlier in
the Financial Review on pages 50 to 54.

In addition, note 21 to the consclidated
financial staterments includes the Group's
policies and processes for managing financial
risk, details of its financial instruments and
hedging activities and details of its exposures
to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group meets its day-to-day working
capital requirements through local banking
arrangements underpinned by the Group's
£230.0 million unsecured multi-currency
revolving credit facility. which matures in
November 2027, As at 31 December 2022,
the Group had both significant avallable
liquidity and headroom on its covenants.
Total cornmitted borrowing facilities were
£418.3 million. The amount drawn under
these facilities was £264.3 million, which
together with net cash and cash equivalents
of £116.2 million, gave a total headroom

of £270.3 million. The multi-currency
revolving credit facility was £76.0 million
drawn. £34.5 million of senior notes are
due to mature in October 2023,

The principal borrowing facilities are subject
to covenants that are measured semi-
annually in June and December, being

net debt to EBITDA of a maximum of

3 times and interest cover of a minimum of
4 times. based on measures defined in the
facilities agreements which are adjusted
from the equivalent IFRS amounts.

The Group has carefully modelled its cash
flow outlook. taking account of reasonably
passible changes in trading performance,
exchange rates and plausible downside
scenaras, including the impact of the cyber
security incident on 2023 cashflows, This
review indicated that there was sufficient
headroom and hquidity for the business to
continue for the 18-month period based
on the facilities available as discussed in note
21 1o the financial stateme~ts. The Group
was also expected to be in compliance with
the required covenants discussed above,

The Board has also reviewed the Group's
reverse stress testing performed to
demonstrate how much headroom is
available on covenant levels in respect

of changes in net debt, EBITDA, and
underlymy revenue, Basad an this
assessment, a combined reduction in
EBITDA of 40% and an increase in net
debt of 45% would stll allow the Group
to operate within its financial covenants.
The Directors do not consider either of
these scenarios to be plausible given the
diversity of the Group's end-markets and
its broad manufacturing base.

The Board and Executive Committee
have regular reporting and review
processes in place in order to closely
monitor the ongoing operational and
financial performance of the Group.

As part of the ongoing risk management
process, principal and emerging risks are
identified and reviewed on a regular basis.
In addition, the Directors have assessed the
risk of climate change and do not consider
that it will impact the Group's ability to
operate as a going concern for the period
under consideration,

The Board fully recognises the challenges
that lie ahead but. after making enquiries,
and in the absence of any material
uncertainties, the Directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company
and the Group have adequate rescurces
to continue 1IN operational existence for
a peried of 18 months from the date of
signing this Annual Report and Accounts.
Accordingly. they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the
Arnual Report and Accounts.
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Viability statemoent

In accordance with provision 31 of the
UK Corporate Governance Code, the
Directors have assessed the prospects of
the Company over a period significantly
longer than |2 manths. The viability
assessment period remained at five vears
to 31 December 2027 in line with
impairment review testing and the strategic
planning process. The Directors consider
this an apprepriate period over which to
provide the viabiity statement based on
management's reasonable expectaticns
of the position and performance of the
Company and the dynamics in the markets
in which it operates. Taking into account
the Group's current position and the
potential impact of the principal risks
documented on pages 40 to 47 of

the Annual Report, the Directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company
will be able to continue in operation and
meet its liabilities as they fall due over

the period to 31 December 2027,

To allow the Directors to make this
assessment, a business base case has
been built up, initially using a detailed.
bottom-up approach, and then applying
what the Directors consider to be an
appropriate set of assumptions in respect
of growth. margins, working capitat flows,
capital expenditure, dividends, refinancing
of barrowing facilities and all other matters
that could have a significant impact on the
financial performance and liquidity of the
Group. The resuiting base case provides
the Directors with EBITDA. net debt.

and finance charge headroom relative

to current bank covenants.

The Directors’ assessment also included

a review of the finandial impact on revenue,
EBITDA, net debt, and the adequacy of the
financial headroom, relative o a severe

but plausible combination of principal risks
crystalising that could threater the viability
of the Company. The Directors also
considered the likely effectiveness of the
potential mitigabons that management
reasonably believes would be available

to the Company over this periad.




Directors’ statements continued

While the review has considered all the principal risks identified by the Group, the following were focused on for enhanced stress testing:

Scenarios modelled

IT and cyber security

We considered Lhe combination of J fdilure of a key busmess systerm
following the cyber security attack and ineffective implementation
of core systems impacting the Group’s abllity to deliver its strategic
goals. The sensitivity analysis performed considered the impact of

a loss of access to the Group's man ERP system as well as additional
accelerated investment in systems following the cyber incident
which occurred in January 2023.

Impacts medelled

Reduction in revenue reflecting 2 weeks'
loss of a main ERP system along with
one-oft exceptional costs required to
reinstate the system to the latest cyber
security standards. Additional accelerated
costs of rolling out new systemn in each
year of the assessment.

Link to principal risks
and uncertainties

IT, cyber secunty

and data management
risks

Compliance breach

We considered the impact of the breach of natienal and
international laws and regulations including those related tc bribery
and cerruption, human rights, trade/export compliance and
competition/anti-trust activities, The impact of a regulatory fine

or a penalty has been considered.

Combined 8% reduction in revenue
due to reputational impacts. Increase in
costs and net debt from regulatory fines
and legal fees.

Compliance risk

As part of the ongoing risk management process, principal and emerging risks are identified and reviewed on a regular basis. There are
a number of mitigating actions the Group takes to manage and reduce risk, further details of which can be found in the Risk Management

section on pages 40 to 47.

The Group has significant financal resources including committed and uncommitted banking and debt facilities, as outlined in the going
concern statement. In assessing the Group's viability, the Directors have assumed availability of debt capital markets and that the existing

banking and debt facilities will remain in place or mature as intended.

Whilst this review does not consider all of the possible risks that the Group could face. the Directors consider that the appreact adopted,
and the work performed 1s reasonable in the arcumistances of the inherent uncertainty involved and that it allows the Board to confirm
that it has a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over

the period to 31 December 2027.
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Definitions and reconciliations of
non-GAAP measures to GAAP measures

Reference is made to the following non- GAAP measures throughout this document. These measures are shown because the Directors
consider they provide useful information to shareholders, including additional insight into ongoing trading and year-on-year comparisons.
These non-GAAP measures should be viewed as complementary to. not replacements for, the comparable GAAP measures. As defined
in the basis of preparation section on page |44, these measures are calculated on a continuing basis,

Adjusted aperating profit

Adjusted operating profit is stated before specific adjusting items and amortisation of intangible assets. Specific adjusting items are excluded
on the basts that they distort trading performance. Amaortisation is excluded. consistent with previous vears.

Molten
Thermal Metal Electrical Seals and Technical Segment Corporate
Ceramics Systemns Carbon Bearings  Cerarmics total costs' Group
2022 £m £m £ £m £m £m £m £m
Operating profit 443 7.5 39.1 6.6 39.2 146.7 (5.9 140.8
Add back specific adjusting items
included in operating profit 2.8 - 01 l.6 1.2 5.5 - 5.5
Add back amortisation of intangible assets l.6 0.3 0.7 0.8 1.3 4.7 - 4.7
Adjusted operating profit 48.7 7.8 39.7 19.0 41.7 156.9 {5.9) 151.0
Adjusted operating profit margin I1.6% 13.5% 21.0% 12.8% 14.1% 13.6%
I, Corporate costs conaist of cent ol head oft ce costs
Molten
Thermal Metal Electrical Seals and Technical  Segment  Corporate
Ceramics Systems Carbon Bearings Ceramics total costs Group
2021 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Operating profit 378 6.0 25.6 22.0 18.9 110.3 28 113.1
Add back specific adjusting iterns
included in operating profit 21 (0.3) 6.3 : 6.0 14.1 (87) 5.4
Add back amortisation of intangible assets 2.1 0.6 09 0.9 1.5 6.0 . 6.0
Adjusted operating profit 42.0 6.3 32.8 229 264 130.4 {5.9) 124.5
Adjusted operating profit margin I1.5% 13.2% 19.9% 16.9% 1% 13.1%
| Corsorate costs consist of central head oftice costs
Organic growth
Organic growth is the growth of the business excluding the impacts of acquisitions and divestments, and foreign currency impacts.
This measure is used as 1t allows revenue and adjusted operating profit to be compared on a like-for-like basis.
Commentary on the underlying business performance is included as part of the Review of operations on pages 48 to 49.
Year-on-year movements in segment revenue
Mokten
Thermal Metal Electrical Scals and Technical  Segment
Ceramics Systems Carbon Bearings Ceramics total
m £m £m £m £m £m
2021} revenue 3647 477 164.9 1359 2373 950.5
tmpact of foreign currency moveraents 137 2.2 7.1 8.4 18.2 49.6
Impact of acquisitions. disposals and business exits - 0.2 Q.13 0.1
Organic constant-currency change 43.0 79 6.7 4.0 403 1.9
Organic constant-currency change % il.4% 15.8% 9.7% 2.8% 15.8% 11.2%
2022 revenue 421.4 57.8 188.7 148.5 295.7 L112.1
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Definitions and reconciliations of non-GAAP measures to GAAP measures continued

Year-on-year movements in segment and Group adjusted opcrating profit

Malten
Thermal Metal Electrical Seals arid Technical  Segment Corporale
Ceramics Systems Carbon Bearings  Ceramics total costs' Group
£m £m £m £ £m fm im £m

2021 adjusted operating profit 42.0 6.3 32.8 229 264 130.4 {5.9) 124.5
Ipacl of foreign carrency mioveneits {1y 0l 1.7 1.0 1.2 37 6.9
Impact of acquisitions. disposals and
business exits 0.1 0.2 0.3 - 0.3
Organic constant-currency change 7.8 |.4 6.9 {5.2) 14,1 25.0 (5.7} 19.3
Organic constant-currency change % 19.3% 219% 21.0% (21.5%}) 51.1% 14.7%
2022 adjusted operating profit 48.7 7.8 39.7 19.0 41.7 156.9 (5.9) 151.0

Group EBITDA’

Group EBITDA’ 1s defined as operating profit before specific
adjusting items, depreciation and amortisation of intangible assets.
The Group uses this measure as 1t i1s a key metric in covenants over
debt facilities. these covenants use EBITDA" on a pre-IFRS 16 basis.

A recendliation of operating profit to Group EBITDA is as follows:

2022 2021

o £m £m
Operating

profit/(loss) 140.8 3.1

Add back: specific adjusting iterms included
In operating profit 5.5 54

Add back: depreciation  property, plant

and equipment 30.3 30.1
Add back: depreciation — right-of-use assets 7.8 79
Add back: amortisation of intangible assets 4.7 6.0
Group EBITDA’ 189.1 162.5
Group EBITDA' excluding IFRS 16

Leases impact 177.7 I51.6
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Freec cash flow before acquisitions, disposals

and dividends

Free cash flow before acquisitions, disposals and dividends s
defined as cash generated from continuing operations less net
capital expenditure, net interest (interest paid on borrowings,
overdrafts and lease liabilities. net of interest received), tax paid
and lease payments.

The Group discloses this measure of free cash flow as this provides
readers of the consolidated financial statements with a measure

of the cash flows from the business before corporate-level cash
flows (acquisitions. disposals and dividends).

A reconciliation of cash generated from continuing operations
to free cash flow before acquisitions, dispesals and dividends is
as follows:

2022 2021
£m £m

Cash generated from

continuing operations 59.1 1359
Net capital expenditure (57.4) (28.13
Net interest on cash and borrowings (5.4) (5.3)
Tax paid (31.8) (25.4)
Lease payments and interests (11.4) {10.9}
Free cash flow before acquisitions,

disposals and dividends (46.9) 66.2

Net cash and cash equivalents

Net cash and cash equivalents is defined as cash and cash
equivalents less bank overdrafts. The Group discloses this measure
as it provides an indication of the net short-term liquidity available
to the Group.

2022 2021

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalenté | |:l7 1273
Bank overdrafts (1.5) (0.5)
Net cash and cash equivalents 116.2 126.8




Mct debt

Net debt is defined as borrowings, bank overdrafts and lease
liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents. The Group also discloses
this metric excluding lease liabilities as this is the measure used in
the covenants over the Group's debt facilities.

2022 2021
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 17.7 127.3
Non-current borrowings (230.1) (174.0)
Neon-current lease liabilities 41.4) (40.0y
Current borrowings and bémk overdrafts (36.1) -
Current lease liabilities (10.5) (9.8)
Closing net debt (200.4) (96.5)
Closing net debt excluding
lease liabilities (148.5) 46.7)

Return on invested capital

Return on invested capital (ROIC) 1s defined as the 12-month
Group adjusted operating profit {(operating profit excluding specific
adjusting iterms and amortisation of intangible assets) divided by the
[2-month average adjusted net assets {third-party working capital.
plant and equipment, land and buildings, right-of-use assets.
intangible assets and other balance sheet items). This measure
excludes long-term employee benefits, deferred tax assets and
liabilities, current tax payable. provisions, cash and cash equivalents,
borrowings, overdrafts and lease Liabilities.

2022 2021
£m £m
Operating profit 140.8 3.1
Add back: specific adjusting items 5.5 54
Add back: amortisation of intangible assets 4.7 6.0
Group adjusted operating profit 151.0 124.5
[2-month average adjusted net assets:
Third-party working capital 183.8 135.0
Plant and equipment 166.5 152.2
Land and buildings 101.0 98.9
Right-of-use assets 33.1 330
Intangible assets 188.7 183.8
Other assets (net) 1.5 33
12-month average adjusted
net assets 674.6 606.2
ROIC 22.4% 20.5%
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Adjusted carnings per share

Adjusted earnings per share 1s defimed as operating profit adjusted
to exclude specific adjusting items and amortisation of intangible
assets, plus share of profit of assodiate less net financing costs,
income tax expense and non-controlling interests. divided by the
weighted average number of Ordinary shares during the period.
This measure of earnings 1s shown because the Directors consider
it provides an indication of adjusted performance. which 1s less
impacted by adjusting items and therefore reflects the underlying
performance trends in the business.

Whilst amortisation of intangible assets is a recurring charge it 15
excluded from these measures on the basis that it primarily arises
on externally acquired intangible assets and therefore does not
reflect consistently the benefit that all of Morgan’s businesses realise
from their intangible assets, which may not be recognised separately.

A recondciliation from IFRS profit to the profit used to calculate
adjusted earnings per share’ is included in note 10 to the
consolidated financial staternents on page 155,

Constant-currency revenue and

adjusted operating profit

Censtant-currency revenue and adjusted operating profit are
derived by translating the prior year results at current year average
exchange rates. These measures are used as they allow revenue to
be compared excluding the impact of foreign exchange rates.
Pages |71 to 173 provides further information on the principal
foreign currency exchange rates used in the translation of the
Group's results to constant-currency at average exchange rates.

This Strategic Report, as set out on pages 2 to 59, has been
approved by the Board,

On behalf of the Board

Winifred Chime
Company Secretary

27 April 2023




Governance

The guiding principle of
the board Is to do the
right thing with respect
to all our stakeholders
and the environment.

Douglas Caster CBE FIET
Non-executive Chair
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Chair’s letter to shareholders

Dear shareholder

Gn behalf of the Board,
[ am pleased to introduce our

Governance Report for the year
ended 31 December 2022,

This report sets out our approach
to effective corporate governance
and cutlines key areas of focus

of the Board and the activities
undertaken during the year as we
continue to drive long-term value
creation for all cur stakeholders.

Board's focus during the year

Qur strong trading performance this year
has been underpinned by good governance
practice, which has given the business the
resilience to prosper even in challenging
times. It would be easy to assume that

this resilience was just inherent within

the business, but that s not the case.

It comes from good governance, clear
accountabilities and reporting lines,

careful planning and relentless execution.

The resilience of our business was tested
in January 2023 after we were called on
to manage the consequences of a cyber
security incident. having detected
unauthorised activity on our network.
Immediate steps were taken to contain the
incident, launch incident response plans,
engage specalist support services and
embark on restoring systems. The Board
oversaw the work to contain the incident
and recover the systenms. with meetings
regularly held throughout this period.

| would like to thank the team on behalf
of the Board for ther resilience and the
considerable efforts and dedication they
demonstrated throughout this period.

Chair succession

After serving on the Board for nine years
and as Chair since January 2019, Maorgan
announced 10 January 2023 that | would
retire from the Board at the conclusion of
the Annual General Meeting on 29 June
2023, Cur Nominatien Committee, led

by cur Senior Independent Director,
Laurence Mulliez, oversaw the succession
and appointment process which led to

the appeintment of lan Marchant as
non-executive Director and Chair designate
on | February 2023. lan’s strong track
record of value creation and listed board
experience at major businesses across
various sectors over the last 35 years

stand him in an excellent position to
succeed me and to lead the Morgan Board.
A comprehensive induction programme
was provided to lan which gave him an
opportunity to meet members of the
Executive Commiittee, senior management
and a number of cther Morgan colleagues
and to gain rapid insight and understanding
of Morgan, its business and culture. further
information on the Chalir selection process
and induction can be found on page 89.

It has been a privilege to work with so
many talented colleagues at Morgan as we
repositioned the Group into the leading
global manufacturer of advanced carbon
and ceramic materials [ have every
confidence that the Group has the
capabilities to continue to lead and grow
in its markets in the years ahead. | wish
lann and the Morgan Beard every success.

Board evaluation

We carried out an internal review of our
performance this year, following the
externally faciltated review in 2021,

Both reviews were faciltated by Clare
Chalmers Limited. I'm pleased to confirm
that the Board concluded that it. its
Committees and the individual Directors
had continued to operate effectively and
fully discharged their responsibilities during
2022 The results of this review are set
out on page 74.
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Stakeholder engagement

Cur stakeholder relationships are also vital
in building resilience and safeguarding value,
and the Board will continue to focus on
these relationships. Our strong relationships
with our colleagues and our customers
helped to contain the impact of the cyber
incident and the move towards recovery.
Butin addition to fostering good
stakeholder relationships, resilience

also comes from good business as usual
governance safeguards. During the year,
the Board continued to priontise health

and safety, risk and ethics.

The non-executive Directors participated
directly in employee listening sessions and
carried out a full programme of activities
during the year. The insights from these
sessions add an important perspective

to Beard discussions and decisions. This
ensures employee voices are heard and
considered as the Beard makes decisions
that influence the future of Morgan. Further
detail on the listening sessions are included
on pages /2 to /3.

UK Corporate Governance Code
and statement of compliance

Morgan applied all the principles and
complied with all the relevant provisions
of the 2018 UK Corporate Governance
Code (the Code) during FY22, with the
exception of proviston 38 (alignment of
executive Director pension contribution
rates with those available to the workforce).
Richard Armitage was appointed in May
2022 with a pension benefit which was
aligned to the workforce. Pete Raby's
pension benefit was fully aligned with the
wider workforce from | January 2023,
Details on how we have applied the
principles set out In the Code and how
governance operates at Morgan have
been summarised on pages 75 to 78.

Douglas Caster CBEFIET
Non-executive Chair




Board of Directors

Douglas Caster CBE FIET
Non-executive Chair

Appointed: Non-executive
Director in February 2014. Non-
executive Chair and Nomination
Committee Chair in January 2019,

Skills and contribution:
Douglas is an experienced

chair with leadership and
governance experience and a
strong track record of managing
and drving growth within
electronics businesses.

Career and experience:
Douglas began his career as

an electronics design engineer
with the Racal Electronics Group
in 1975, before moving to
Schlurnberger in 1986 and then
to Dowty as Enginecring Directon
of Sonar & Communication
Systems in 1988, In 1992, he
became Managing Director of that
business and. after participating

in the management buyout

that formed Ultra Electronics.
joined the Board in October
1993, In April 2000. he became
Managing Director of Ultra's
Information & Power Systems
division. In Apiil 2004, he was
appeointed Chief Operating Officer
and became Chief Executive In
April 2005, He was appointed
Deputy Chaw in April 2010

and was Charr of Ultra from

April 200 until 28 January 2019
Douglas was non-executive
Charr of Metalysis Limited from
January 2815 untl June 2019

Douglas was Morgan Advanced
Materials plc's Senior Independent
Cuector from January 2015

until December 2017, He was
appointed Chair 1n January

2019, and witl retire from that
role, and step down from the
Beard after the Company's

AGM on 29 June 2023,

Additional appointments:
MNene

Commiittees

Q=

lan Marchant

Chair Designate &
independent
Non-executive Rirector

Appointed: February 2023
lan will succeed Douglas Caster
as the Company's Char after
the Company's 2023 AGM

Skills and contribution:

lar is a highly strategic and
successful leader with more
than 35 years of wide-ranging
experience al major businesses,
bringing a strong track record of
value creation and listed board
experience. He brings significant
expertise In governance,
finance, regulation, renewable
energy and climate change
mitigation to Morgan’s Board.

Career and experience:

lan setved as Chief Executive of
SSE plc from October 2002 to
june 2013 prior to this he was
the Finance Director of SSF and
Southern Electric plc. He 1s a
seasoned non-executive director
and chair, having served as Chair
of John Wood Group plc and

on the Board of Aggreko plc

Additional appointments:
Chair of Thames Water Utilities
Ltd (He will step down as
Chair and Director in July
2023) and Logan Energy Ltd.

Committees

MR

Pete Raby
Chief Executive Officer

Appointed: August 2015

Skills and contribution:
Pete has a strong technical
background and extensive
experience In planning and
executing business strategy
across global technelogy and
manufacturing operations.

As CEQ. he leads the Executive
Commutice and is responsible
for Morgan's overall ESG
performance, central to

our strategic objectives and
business model. The Group's
Environment, Health, Safety
and Sustainability (EHSS)
team reports directly to Pete.
enabling him to keep the Board
apprised on the establishment
of goals, management of risks
and oppor tunities, reperting
and related governance
procedures in that area.

Career and experience:

Pete joined Morgan Advanced
Materials in August 2015 as
Chief Executive Officer. Before
Joining Morgan, Pete was
President of the Communications
and Connectivity sector of
Cobham plc. Pete demonstrated
strong leadership across a range
of senior strategy, technology
and operational positions at
Cobham over a ning-year perod
Prior to Cobham. Pele was a
partner at McKinsey & Comparny
in London, specialising in strategy
and operations in the aerospace
deferice and powcr and gas
sectors He has a PhD insatellite
navigation and an MEng from
the Departrment of Electronic
and Electhnical Engineering at

the University of Leeds,

Additional appeintments:
Non-executive Director,
Hilt & Smith ple

Richard Armitage
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed: May 2022

Skills and contribution:
Richard has broad experience
including financial management,
investor relations, capital
markets, M&A. and commercial
management, gained through
roles in a number of listed and
privately owned chemicals and
consumer goods companics.

Career and experience:
Richard joined Morgan Advanced
Materials in May 2022 as Chief
Financial Officer. Before this.
Richard was Chief Financial
Oificer at Victrex Group plc
between 2018 ang 2022,
During this time. he was
responsible for Finance,

I.T.. Legal and Corporate
Development, as well as

the development of the
Group's Chinese businesses
Prior to Victrex, Richara was
CFO al Samworth Brothers
from 2014 to 2018, CFO of
McBride plc from 2009 to
2014, and before that held
senior finance positions

at Courtaulds ple, 1Cl plc,
and Premier Foods plc.

Additional appeintments:
Senior independent Director
and Chair of the Audrt
Committee at NWF Group phc.
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Committees
@ Committee Chan
A Audit

‘N Nomination

o Remuneration

Jane Aikman
Independent
Non-executive Director

Appointed: Non executive
Director and Audit Committee
Chair iri July 2017,

Skills and contribution:
Jane brings to the Board
sighificant financial experience
and knowledge of growing
manulacturing, technelogy
and marketing busmesses
gained in a varicty of semor
executive posttions Jane brings
a valuable perspective from
her current executive role

in the marketing sector.

Career and experience:

Jane has been Chief Financial
Officer of Inside Ideas Group
Limited since july 2020 Up

until May 2019, Jane was Chief
Financial Cfficer of Argiva

Group Limited. a communications
infrastructure company. Prior to
this, she was the Chief Financial
Officer of KCOM Group ple.

a listed communicalions services
and IT solutiors provider She
was Chiel Financial Officer

and Chief Operating Officer of
Phoenix IT Group ple untif its
acquisition by Daisy Group in
2015, Jare has alse held Chief
Financial Officer positons at Infinis
plc, Wilsan Bowden plc and
Pressac plc, and a senior finance
positron at Asia Pulp and Paper in
Southeast Asia. Jane was a non-
executive Director of Halma plc
from 2007 and chaired its Audst
Committee from 2009 untii her
departare in July 2016 Janc
holds a civil engineering degree
and qualified as a Chartered
Accountant with Frnst & Young.

Additional appointments:
Group Director and Group
Chief Financia! Officer of
Insioe ideas Group Limited.

Committees

0 Nk

Helon Bunch
Independent
Non-executive Director

Appointed: Non-executive
Direclor in February 20i16.
Remuneration Committee
Chair on January 2019.

Skills and contribution:
Helen has sigrificant
experience of driving business
perforrnance, forging long-
term relationships and building
businesses in new markelts. with
a background encompassing
corporate governance and
customer relations. Helen is

a member of the Executive
Committee at Wates Group,

a construction sector pioneer
in creating social value, with
strong ESG credentials.

Career and experience:

Af the start of her career, Helen
spent |7 years working in global
businesses serving a wide variety
of Industries from automotive

to household products, including
Il years with |Cland the
remainder with a successor
company, Lucite International
Ltd In 2006, Helen joined
Wates Group as Group Strategy
Director, and became Managing
Director of Wates Retall Limited
In January 2011, From 2015 to
July 2020 Helen was Managing
Director of Wates Smartspace
Limitad the enlarged property
services business. following a
merger with another Wates
company and the acgquisilion

of a fycities management
business. In July 2020, Helen
became Executive Managing
Director of Wates Residential

Additienal appeintments:
Executive Managing Director
of Wates Residential

Committees

2N

Laurence Mullicz
Senior Independent Director

Appointed: Non-executive
Director in May 2016.
Senior Independent Director
in December 2017.

Skills and contribution:
lLaurence has significant
experience in growing. simpliying
and unifying complex international
and industral manufacturing
businesses and brings valuable
knowledge of the energy
{including renewables). steel

and infrastructure industries,

and nsight into seme of

Morgan's key markets.

Career and experience:
Laurence jomed Banque
MNationale de Paris in |988.
followed by M&M Mars Inc. ip
1992 and then Amoco Chemical
Inc. 1n 1993, which was acquired
by BP plc in 1998, She spent a
further |l years at BP in a variety
of roles including Chief Executive
of Castrel Industrial Lubricants
and Services. Laurence was
Chief Executive of independent
power producer Eoxis UK
Limited from 2010 to 2013,

Additional appointments:
Charr of Voltala S.A. and
Globeleq Ltd. Member of
the supervisory board and
Charr of the Audt Commitiee
of Siemens Energy AG.

Committees

A N

Clement Woon
Independent
Non-executive Director

Appointed: May 2019,

Skills and contribution:
Clemenrt has broad managenal
experience in globally operating
technology and consurner-related
industries. He has a strong track
record of renewing traditional
industries and revitalising growth
through strategic interventions,
and in-depth experiencc and
knowledge of markets within
the Asia Pacific region.

Career and experience:
From August 2016 te March
2020, Clement was Group CEQ
of Saurer Intelligent Technology
Co. Ltd. a €1 billion textile
machinery and components
business hsted on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Clement
continued to serve on the board
of Saurer as non-executive
director until August 2024 Prior
to this, from Apnl 2014 1o July
2016, Clemenl was Advisor and
Co-CEO of Jinsheng Industry

Co Ltd. an industral company

in China with diverse interests
including biotech, automotive
and textiles. Previously Clement
held various senior positions at
companies based in Switzerland
and Singapore including Division
CEQ of Leica Geosystems AG
President and CEO of SATS Ld.
and CEO Textile Division of

OC Oerlikor AG. Clement has an
MBA in Technology Management
from Nanyang Technological
University, Singapore. an MScin
Industnal Engineering and a BEng
in Electrical Engineering fiom the
Naticnal University of Singapore.

Additional appointments:
Non-executive Director

of Elementis plc.
Committees

2N R
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Governance at a glance

Board composition

Board balance of roles Gender Ethnic origin Non-executive Director
tenure
@ Char {indepenrdert @ remale 3 @ White British 6 @03 vears 1
on appointment} § @ Male 5 @ White European | @ -6 years 2
@ Executive Directors 2 @ Southeast Asian 1 @ 7-9 years 3
@ Senor Independent
Director I
. Independent non-executive
Dhrectors 4

Desired/required skills, experience, attributes

Douglas lan  Laurence Helen Jane  Clement Pete Richard
Leadership and business operations . . s & & e & .
Strategy development [ ] L [ ] [ [ ) [ ] [ ] L]
Commercial L * . e . ] . ®
Accounting and finance ] [ [ .
Audit, risk management and assurance e . [ ] [ ] [ [ e .
Remuneration/Pecple L 2 L ® L . ] .
Corporate governance [ ] e [ « [ [ & .
Engineering and industrial sector . ® . ] . L] L]
Technology/Innovation/R&D L - - . ]
International business L ] L . . L ] L]
M&A/Portfolio management * * L] [ . . . ]
Safety/Environmental/Sustamability . ] . [ . [
Significant change/Large transformation [ L . [ - [
Director attendance at meetings of the Board and its Committees

Audit Nemination Remuneration

Director S o Board Committee Committee Committee
Douglas Caster 8/8 4/4' 3/3 4/4
lan Marchant? 0/0 /0 0/0 0/0
Pete Raby 8/8 474! 3/3! 4/4!
Richard Armitage’ 5/5 3/3
Peter Turner 3/3 171!
Jane Aikman 8/8 4/4 3/3 474
Helen Bunch 8/8 4/4 3/3 4/4
Laurence Mullez 8/8 4/4 3/3 4/4
Clement Woon 8/8 4/4 3/3 4/4

I Attended bv nvitation.
2. lan Ma-chant jonea the Boara or | February 2023,
3 Richard Armitage 1o ned the Hoard on 30 May 2022 Peter Tormer retred F-ore the Boa~d on 30 May 2022.
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Key Board activity Standing agenda items

Set out below are highlights of the matters the Board considered Im addition to the matters shown on the 2022 timeline, at each

in 2022. Not all of the matters the Board considered are listed, meeting the Board received strategic, operational and financial
therefore this should not be considered an exhaustive st of activities.  updates from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Cfficer. The Board also received updates from the Enwvironmental,
February Health, Safety & Sustainability (EHSS) Director and Group

> Strategic priorities overview Company Secretary.
> Approval of capital expenditure
2 Approval of 2021 annual results and dvidend palicy Chief Al every Board meeting, (he Chiefl Executive presented

» 2021 'Your Voice' survey results

! ) Executive a paper covering topics such as:
; 2021 Board performance evaluation  actions

A0

X . :
7 Update from the independent trustee of UK Pension Scheme Officer’s o salety
report > business, markets and custormers
> acquisitions and divestments
7 Investor feedback on 2021 results 2 nvestor meetings
7 information systems and lechnology
> key project and GBU updates
» Approval of trading update > people.
~ . .
4 Approval of capital expenditure The Chief Executive's report incorporates matters
{ Bro“?” Updat?S relating to strategy and matters discussed at Executive
» Inclusion & Diversity update Committee meetings.
> Review feedback from shareholders pre AGM - — - -
and review proxy voting results Chief At every Board meeting, the Chiet Financial Officer
> IT update ) Financial presented on topics such as:
Officer’s > Group and GBU financial performance
m report ~ investor engagernent and feedback
> Group strategy review 7 capital allocation
? Global business unit (GBU) strategy reviews > refinancing
~ Modern Slavery & supplier engagerment S bensions
> Corporate Governarice Code compliance P o )
7 Key risks update Further information about the refinancing and funding
> Insurance renewal of the pensian schemes can be found in the 5.172
statement on pages 28 to 29.
July EHSS At every Board meeting. the EHSS Director presented
> Group Strategy update update ?n topics such as:
", GBU strategy reviews » Group safety performance
> Approval of 2022 mterim results and dvidend policy s progress on salety initialives
Z ZOZI. Board performance evaluation update > performance on environmental and sustainability
¢ Pension update matters and initiatives.
7 Treasury update n
Company At every Board meeting. the Company Secretary
September Secretary’s presented a paper on topics such as:
. ] report > governance and regulalony matters
7/ Moenitoring and assessment of culture o
» Group Portfolio Strategy update -+ igation update
> Talent. leadership. capability and succession update > share egister analysis,
5 e
4 Approval of caprtal expenditure Non- At every Board meeting, the non-executive Directors
- Elhics update executive met without management present.
~ Investor feedback on 2022 interimi results Di R
> Capttal allocation irec 0!‘?
> RCT refinancing only session
2 Funding for UK pension schemes
> Approval of tracing update
o Defence strategy review
21T update
« ERP Froject update

December

> 2022 Board petformance evaluation results
* Group risk review
© Approval of capital expenditure
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Strategic oversight by the Board

Setting strategy Strategic execution prioritics
The Board reviews and agrees the
strategy for the Group on an annual
basis and reviews aspects of strategy
at Board meetings during the year.
The Board considers a wide range of
matters when setting Group strategy
including, but not limited to:

Big positive

S

difference

- market overview

> trends, including megatrends and
those affecting customer behaviour

> competitor environment

> investor sentiment and Progressing Protect the environment
shareholder returns 2030 goals > 50% reduction in scope | and scope 2 CO.e emissions'
> global business unt strategies > 30% reduction in water use in high and extremely high stress areas

> 30% reduction in total water usage

R

environmental. social and

governance (ESG} and
sustainability matters > 0.1C lost-time accident rate

Provide a safe, fair and inclusive waorkplace

> 40% of our leadership population will be fermale

~ finance .
> Top quartile engagernent score

people and talent.

N

Whiat did the Monitored strategic progress against 2030 business goals, ensuring clear and

How governance contributes Board consider <ontinued linkage 1o sustainable outcomes, meeting the stralegic objective to
to the delivery of strategy and approve?  Create value for shareholders. stakeholders and society.
Details of how oppertunitics and risks to > Reports from the EHSS Director on the progress of our journey towards

zero harm, training being deployed to all employees focusing on our
safety culture, investment in safety improvements and progress against
our commitments to reduce waste. manage cur water consumption,
and reduce our emissions

the future success of the business have
been considered and addressed can be
found in the Strategic Report on pages
40 to 47. Details of the sustainability

of the Company’s business model <an ~ Succession ptans for the Executive Committee members and

be found In the Strategic Report on senior managerment

pages 12 o 13, Details of Morgan's > The results of the 2021 employee engagement survey, “Your Voice'

governance framework which underpins > The new five-year revolving credit facility which incorporates

the defivery of strategy can be found sustainability-linked performance targets which align with our ambitious

on page 75. An overview of Morgan's sustainabilily plans

strategy can be found n the Strategic

Report on pages 16 to 17 and 20 10 23. What were > Full stakeholder benefit. The ability of Morgan's 2030 geals to delver
the material value for shareholders, stakeholders and society by driving towards net

The Board monitors progress againsi the

strategic execution priorities underpinning stakeholder ere at pace. and in a socially just way

delivery of the Group stiategy: considerations! > Embedded in culture. Ernployees and GBUs continue to embrace the
. 2030 goals as a long-term vision and symbol of Morgan's commitment
- Big postive difference to delivering socral value through business operations

 Delight the customer ~ Clear tracking of progress. Shareholders engaged constructively on
> Innovate to grow Morgan's 2030 goals, citing the importance of quantifiable criteria and

meaningful linkage including when considering remuneration metrics

I, Reduction targels shown ar e compared with a 2015 baseline.
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2

Delight the

customer

Investment in
product and

Shape our product and service offerings
further based on customer needs, with the
overall objective of making our business

3

service X
offerings more customer-centric,
What did the Opportunities to better align our product

Board consider
and approve?

and service offerings to meet the needs of
our customers,

> Update on a voice of customer exercise to
understand customer views from across the
Group. Once complete, the results will be
shared with the Board and will provide an
additional route for the Board to understand
customer views

> Capital investments to tailor our product,
service and support offerings more closely
to customer needs, based on customer
feedback gathered during 2022 which
enabled us to understand our customer
segments in more detail

Sustainable
solutions
1o support
the energy
transition

Develop a diversified portfolio of sustainable
solutions including:

> Aerospace: Leading material for high

efficency engines
> Clean energy; Increasing lifeume and
performance of solar, wind and energy storage
> Clean transportation: Superior materials for
longer lifetimes

Healthcare: Best-in-class materials and
mintaturisation technology

AV

Semiconductors: Higher performance materals
for the most demanding process steps
Industrial: Higher cfficiency solutions for
industrial customers

NS

What were
the material
stakeholder
considerations!

» Addressing customer needs. The outputs
and performance levels to deliver on stated
customer priorities, including customer
service, mantaining focus on safety, quality,
delivery, inventory and productivity

"The more we understand

our customers, their businesses,
markets and technical challenges,
the more effective we can be at

providing them with a solution.”
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What did the
Board consider
and approve’

Opportunities to support the growth of Morgan's
portfolio of sustainable solutions and to maintain a
sustained pipeline of development apportunities
> Capital investments in our core markets to

provide our custemers with products and
solutions that make therm more sustainable

N

Capital investments to increase our exposure
to our four faster growing markets that reflect
global trends: semiconductors. healthcare,
clean energy. clean transportation

What were
the material
stakeholder
considerations?

> Strategic proposition. To ensure an acceptable
investment case, the apportunities and risks
of each nvestment are assessed across a
range of criteria, including: fit with strategy.
geographic and market economics, policy
and societal context, revenue certanty and
future return profile

N

Risk and portfolio diversification.
Dversification across geographies ang
technologies creates optionality, mitigates
development risk, and exploits existing
in-house capabilities.




Measuring and living our culture

Culture at Morgan is underpinned by our purpose ‘to use advanced materials to make
the world more sustainable, and to improve the quality of life’.

Morgan's core values help define the behaviours of ocur people and underpin cur purpose.

Qur culture

Cur purpose
To use advanced materials
to make the world more
sustainable, and to improve
the guality of life.

d materials to Make "
Ly,
e

Reliable problem
solving

Ethically, safely and
sustainably

l N
’TPproVe the qua'lit‘]' of wie

Qur Icadership behaviours

© We are ambitious about the future Whilst ensuring that we are:

. We build strong teams . Always working safely

. We are relentless in driving Abways working ethically
performance

Treating our peocple fairly

> Protecting our business

Our long-term sustainability

This purpose guides our actions; it underpins our work to reduce our environmental impact, informs how we treat our people,

and ensures we fulfil our responsibility for good corporate governance.
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How the Board measures
and assesses culture

The Board is responsible tor menitoring and
assessing our culture. The Chair ensures
that the Board is operating appropriately
and sets the Board's culture which in turn
forms the culture of the Company. The
Chief Executive, supported by members of
the Executive Committee, 15 responsible

for ensuring the nght culture and behavicurs
are embedded throughout the business and
its operations and in all our dealings with
our stakeholders.

The Board measures the culture of

the Group using internal and external
metrics which also enable it to identify
further actions to ensure our culture
remains appropriate. The Board considers
the following:

> Safety - an area of paramount
importance to our people, customers
and partners, especially given the
continuing impact of the COVID- 19
pandemic. We continue to adapt business
operations to ensure that our people,
customers and partners can perform
their roles safely and effectively. We
closely monitor the develeping s:ituation
and challenges to ensure we provide the
appropriate reguirements and support.
The Board receives an update in person
from the Director of Environment,
Health, Safety and Sustainability at
most Board meetings which contains
safety statistics, both leading and lagging
indicators, progress on safety initiatives
and against the plan of worlk for the year,
and detalls of serious incidents and root
cause analysis. Safety performance is
also part of presentations to the Board
by the Presidents of the GBUs. proposals
for capital expenditure, key risks and
other ad hoc presentations to the Board.
This enables the Board to gauge 'tone
at the top’.

* Employee retention our employees
are our greatest asset and it s important
that we do everything we can 1o retain
them. We conduct an annual employee
engagement survey — Your Voice'.

[ ke survey was conducted in November
2021 and 2022 to provide feedback to
senior management to identify whether
further actions were required. The
feedback was reviewed by the Executive
Committee with the findings reported

to the Board.

(—3':) Further information on the actions taken
as a result of the 2021 “Your Veice' survey
during 2022 can be found on pages 70
to 71

> Whistleblowing — Morgan has an
independent ‘Speak Up’ service through
EQS to enable employees, customers,
suppliers and third parties to repert any
concerns or wrongdoing anonymously
without any fear of retaliation. The
whistleblowing service and related
internal precedures are structured to
ensure that all reports are reviewed
and investigated independently from
the area of the business to which they
relate, thereby minimising the risk of
conflicts arising. All reports are copied
to and reviewed by the Global Ethics
and Compliance function. This heips to
ensure transparency and enables any
trends to be identified and addressed.
Comprehensive information on
the whistieblowing reports made is
provided to the Audit Committee at
each meeting and to the Ethics and
Compliance Steering Cormmittee, which
comprises the members of the Executive
Cormmittee, Ethics and Complance
Director. Head of Internal Audit and
Group Company Secretary. The updates
to the Audit Coemmittee include details
of incident reports received in the period
between meetings as well as details of
cngoing investigations, Trends identified
from these reports were escalated to,
and considered by. the Board where
they were considered to be inconsistent
with the desired culture. The summary
of reports to the 'Speak Up” hotline
presented to the Audit Committee
provided an insight mto the frequency
and type of issues being raised by
employees and whether safety was
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a particular concern.

- Workforce engagement — the non-
executive Directors heard first-hand
from employees during the employee
listening sessions held during 2022,

The non-executive Directors asked open
questions and listened to the feedback
from employees. Coupled with the
Board site visits and presentations to

the Board by those below the Executive
Committee, this helps the Board to
gauge the mood of the organisation.

(j Further information on workforce
engagement can be found on pages 72
to 73

; Alignment of remuneration and
culture — our purpose has never been
more meaningful than in the present
context, as the world continues to
navigate the long-lasting impacts of
the pandemic. Our incentive schemes
are designed Lo drive behaviours
consistent with the Company's purpose,
values and strategy. We believe that
our Rermuneration Policy and its
implementation are value-based, and
will create sustainable momentum for
the business, cur people, our customers
and our shareholders in the years
to come. whilst also supporting the
sustainable delivery of Morgan's clear
and differentiated strategy.

f\'-;_j} Further information on the remuneration
policy can be on pages 94 to 102




Measuring and living our culture continued

Culture in action

Your Voice

“Your Voice’ survey

Morgan's annual employee engagement survey, 'Your Yoice', provides employees with the opportunity to give feedback on what is
working well and what we could be doing differently to make Morgan a great place to work. The resuits of the survey provide feedback
that can be acted upon by management to improve the experience of working at Morgan and provide the Board with a Group-wide
snapshot of how employees rate Morgan's wullure end employee engagement. A timeline with details of how this information reaches
and is considered by the Board can be found below and on page 71.

Novembear 2021

February 2022

The 2021 "Your Voice' engagement
survey was launched. The survey
was open to all employees, and was

translated into the languages of countries

where Morgan employees are based.

The survey was conducted entirely
digitally and achieved a 77%
participation rate.

Survey results were presented to the
Board at its February 2022 meeting
and key Morgan-wide actions for
improvement were identified, Action
planning occurred at three levels
Morgan-wide, by global business
units and at individual site level.
Further detail on focus areas can

be found on page 71.

The results of "Your Voice' were
comprehensively commurnicated
across the business. Maximum use of
infographics was made. Employees
received communications on Group-
wide results, business unit results and
results for the location where they

worked. Next steps and plans to address

the matters raised from the 2021
Your Voie” survey were established.
Initiatsves taken in response to the
survey, detatls of which can be found
below. were communicated to
colleagues throughout the year.

Qur communication approach was
“You Said" "We Did'.
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“Your Voice' showed that employees recognise the prierity that Morgan gives to health and safety, that our strategy and purpose were clear
and that we work hard to exceed the expectations of cur customers with innovative products and selutions. The majority of employees
felt that they have a good work-life balance.

Our people said What we did

> We conducted a comprehensive review of our direct labour wage and benefits and
Reward where adjustments were required versus the local market, these were made

> We introduced a pitot Morgan Employee Discount Scheme. which will be extended

Getting reward and recognition X
Company-wide, to help employees’ money go further

right across all our sites

N

A wide range of site based recognition activities have taken place and family days
ntroduced following the pause that was implemented during the pandemic

s

We launched an emergency childcare programme/childcare concierge service
in the LS

> We are developing a modern employer brand to ensure we can attract as diverse
Pu rpose a candidate pool as possible to reflect the communities in which we operate

We have intreduced our licence to recruit programme, which all hiring managers
are required to complete. This is to ensure we improve our recruiting processes
and have inclusive hiring

Ensuring we have the right
pecple in the right place
at the right time

to deliver our purpose ; We have strengthened our talent acquisrtion team so that it can operate in the
Americas and EMEA

» We have introduced a standardised approach to talent reviews

We launched three employee rescurce groups. as part of our drive to foster
a diverse, mclusive workplace

7

We launched a bi-weekly all employee newsletter

Leadership

We hold regular leadership calls, promote two-way communication via Yammer
and have introduced regular Leadership Forums with members of the executive

Greater visible leadership ‘
team and the wider workforce

and two-way communication

Cross business groups have been established to work on key business priorities
Collaboration

Our leadership development cohorts are deliberately constructed to ensure

. . i rOss- k it interaction
Working together more at our sites. maximurm ¢ross-business unit interactio

within GBUs and across GBUs
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Listening to employees

—————vr———

The Board is at the forefront of the journey
to Morgan making a ‘Big positive difference’
and is keen to understand the views of all
employees and the impact its decisions have
on them. For this reason, the Board took

the decision that all non-executive Directors
should have the opportunity 1o engage

with the workforce, rather than limit this
important role to a designated non-executive
Director. Furthermore, gven the global
nature of the business, having all of the
non-executive Directors participate increases
the Board's reach. The non-executive
Directors participated directly in employee
engagement initiatives and carried cut a full
programme of activities during the vear,

The insights from these engagements add
an impoertant perspective to Board

discussions and dedcisions. This ensures
employee voices are heard and considered
as the Board makes deasions that intluerce
the future of Morgan. The cutputs from the
discussions are fed back to the leadership
team for further discussion with the Chief
Executive Officer and Group HR Director
and reported back to the next Board
meeting, to create a greater awareness of
the views of employees amongst the whole
Board. Follow-up discussions were held
with site managers to convey key themes,
foster a positive culture and, where there
were specific matters raised, to ensure
those matters were considered and
appropriately addressed.

While each event varies in structure,
generally the non-executive Directors

have a tour or receive an overview of

the site followed by an informal session
with the site teams without managers
present. No specific topics for discussion
are provided in advance, though site teams
are advised that the Directors would like
to hear from them about their experience
of working at Morgan, whether they have
any challenges, concerns or ideas for
improvement, and the things that they
consider Morgan does well, Coupled with
meetings with employees in ther place of
work during Board visits to Morgan facilities
and during other Morgan events, the Board
is satisfied that this provides a range of
effective methods with which to engage
with employees, despite not being cne of
the methods set out in the Code.

Actions taken in response to feedback received from employee listening sessions

Positive feedback
Training and career progression

Several colleagues praised the access to
training and development opportunities

at Morgan.

Leadership development courses

were described as enabling collaboration
across GBUs, functions and countries.
They were diverse and inclusive.

with positive acknowledgement of the
encouragement and support for the
courses from managers.

The Percipic learning platform helped
colleagues access Morgan's full Learning
& Developrment offering.

Improvement areas
There was a request for reinforcement
of the tearning frem the leadership

development courses with a refresher

to prevent faliback to old habits.

Some colleagues raised a lack of clarity
on what training is available to them and
how to access this.

Actions taken

The feedback from colleagues attending
these courses has been used to develop
the courses further, Opportunities to
incorporate the learnings from the
courses when back in the business are
explored with attendees. Attendees are
also encouraged to maintain the networks
that they develop through the courses.

Percipic and the courses available through
the platform are regularly advertised
through the Morgan Group
Communications e-newsletter.

Recruitment and retention
Colleagues recognised the benefits of
working in Morgan including the flexible
working hours, job security, training and
importance placed on safety in the
organisation but considered that there
was more work to do to strengthen
employer brand awareness.

Some colleagues noted the ageing
demographic of the workforce and the
need to recruit younger colleagues to
ensure the transfer of skills.

We are developing a modern employer
brand to ensure we can attract as diverse
a candidate pool as possible. More
information on this and other action we
have taken to strengthen our recruitment
and retention can be found on page 71,

We conducted a comprehensive review
of our direct fabour wage and benefits
and, where adjustments were required
versus the local market, these were
rnade. A number of other benefits were
also introduced and more information
about this can be found on page 71.

Collaboration across the GBUs
Different sites were working together
to establish best practice across the
board. This was further enabled by the
leadership development courses which
encouraged collaboration.

There was however not always a
systernatic approach to working together
to improve processes and procedures.

Various actions have been taken to
encourage collaboration and share
learnings between the GBUs including the
two-day meeting of the EHSS Group and
GBU leadership teams with a key focus to
make a Big positive difference in 2023.
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Engagement with employeces and other stakeholiders

Non-executive Directors and
employee listening activities

Quarterly
Virtuzl All Hands
were held by the

Chief Executive and
Claef Financial Office
throughout the year,
with colleagues
invited to om

Guest speaker
at the Internal
Audit Conference

Virtual engagement
session with colleagues
on lgnite Leadership
Development
Programme

{two sessions}

Virtual engagement
sessicn in Pachua,
Mexico (Thermal)

Virtual engagement
sessien in Certech,
Wilkes-Barre
{Thermal Ceramics}

Virtual engagement
session in Swansea, UK
(Electrical Carbon)

Board visit and site tour
in Kempten, Germany
(Thermal Ceramics)

European Employee
Forum event in
Windsor, UK

Guest speaker at
Thermal Ceramics
Global and Regional
Leadership Conference

Site tour in Swansea,
UK (Electrical Carbon)}

Aug

Sep

fH—8
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Engagemoent with other stakehelders

Feb  Apr

Engagement meetings were held with a significant proportion of majar
sharehalders on remuneration policy matters.

The Board met with the independent trustee of the UK pension scheme
at its meeting in February.

Fellowing publication of the FY2I results, one-to-one meetings were held
with institutional investors and potential investors. The Board reviewed
the feedback from investors and potential investors to gauge investor
sentiment and establish whether their expectations have been met,

Meetings were held with banks to present FY2{ results.

The 2022 Annual General Meeting was held in Windsor. Shareholders put
questions to the Board in person. Shareholders not attending were able
to submit their questions ahead of the meeting. The Board encouraged
shareholders 1o appoint the Chair of the AGM as their proxy and provide
voting instructions in advance of the meeting in accordance with the
instructions set out in the Notice of AGM. At the meeting, all resolutions
were passed, with more than 89% of the votes cast in favour.

Following publication of the HY22 resuits, meetings were held with
institutional shareholders and potential investors. The Board reviewed
the feedback from investors to gauge investor senument and establish
whether their expectations have been met,

Meetings were held with banks 1o present HY22 results.

Scp - Nov

Meetings were held with banks to discuss revolving credit facilicy
refinancing.

Cer - Dee

Meetings were held with pension trustees to discuss the de-risking of
UK pension schemes.

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and members of
the Executive Committees held a Capital Markets Event to provide
more detail on the key areas of differentiation that we believe will drive
autperformance in the years ahead, benefitting all our stakeholders.
The Chairman intreduced the event and met with investors.

Meetings were held with banks to present HY22 results.

sy
a M

Ad hoc meetings
worre he'd wath bckars
and insttenanal
kst s throughoat
e year iocluding
atterdance ativestrient
corferences




Assessing Board performance

Aninternal review of the Board's
performance was undertaken in 2022,
following the cxternally-facilitated review
in 2021, Both reviews were faclitated by
Clare Chalmers Limited, which has no
cther relationship with the Company or

the individual Directors and is independent.

The evaluation of the Beard and its
Committees was undertaken via the
completion of tailored questionnaires
prepared by Clare Chalmers Limited. in
consultation with the Chair and Company
Secretary and taking intc account the
recommendations from the 2021 Board
performance review. The views of
Directors were consolidated into formal
reports which were discussed by the
Chair with individual Directors and then
in a plenary session by the Board and the
relevant Committess. A questionnaire
was also sent to the Group Company
Secretary to obtain her perspectives on
the effectiveness of the Board and its
Committees. The Chair held cne-to-one
meetings with individual Directors to
evaluate their performance. Led by

the Sentor Independent Olirector,

the non-executive Directors met
without the Chair present to appraise
the Chair's performance.

The Board concluded that it, its
Committees and the individual Directors
had continued to operate effectively

and fully discharged their responsibilities
during 2022.

Recommendations from the

202| Board performance review
Incorperation of discussions on different
aspects of Group strategy during the year.

Highlighted strengths

-

hvs

S

> Input of management to the Board,

Recommended ateas for
development and actions
noting management is open, balanced going forward
and transparent, and that there Is an -
inclusive and preductive process of
taking away Board inputs for further
deliberation, and bringing them back
to close the loop

Meore in-person meetings, including
Board dinners, would be arranged
for 2023

> Further discussions of risk and risk
appetite would take place in 2023,

There was alse positive feedback for

the non-executive Directors in terms

of sharing their broader perspectives “

and experiences, to identify weak signals,

which may present challenges in future,

at an early stage

environment

Meare information would be provided
to the Board on the Group's customer
and supplier base, trends and priorities

» More structured individual feedback
would be provided to Directors, These
meetings took place in December 2022

The highest scoring was around
employee listening sessicns which

were considered to be really valuable
since all non-executive Directors
participate directly. and all have first-hand
information -- improvement opportunitias
are fed back to the executives who then
focus on the resolutions

The Committees all received high scores
across all questions including the feedback
on the Nominatiocn Committee which
noted the successful transition of the
Chief tinanaal Officer and upcoming
Chair succession. The feedback on the
Audit and Remuneration Committees
noted the support they receive from
management and its advisers, with the
only suggestions of enhancements being
around getting stakeholder views and
demonstrating this

Actions taken during 2022

Several dedicated strategy discussions were held in 2022 and were well received by the
Directors. The 2022 evaluation concluded that the review of strategy and focus on strategic
pricrities, with more time allecated for strategic discussions, helped the Board to digest the key
themes, with valuable discussions around development, growth markets. and portfolio strategy

A review of the way risk is presented
to the Board to encourage focus on the
key risks and risk appetite.

The presentation of the key risks was reviewed during the year with a view to eliminating risks
which do not fundamentally conslitute a risk to life nor the value of the Group and ensoring
alignment of risks with Group strategy.

Adjustments to be made to the scheduling
of certain Committee meetings so that
more time is allowed for discussion.

The Audit Committee meetings were held on a scparate day to the Board meetings

in 2022, allowing more time for discussions. The 2022 evaluation concluded that agenda
planning and the changes to the scheduling of the Board and Cemmittee meetings had
improved energy levels and focus

Forrmat of presentations to the Beard
would be reviewed to encourage
discussion on the key points.

Format of presentations and papers was reviewed and updated. The 2022 evaluation
concluded that the papers and presentations to the Board had resulted inimproved
Board discussions.

More regular reporting on people matters
by the Group HR Director would be
provided to the Board.

The Group HR Director reparted to the Board on three aspects of the Group's people
strategy during 2022,
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UK Corporate Governance Code 2018
compliance statement

The Corporate Governance Report, which includes the prinapal Committee Reports
and Directors’ Report, explains how the Board has applied the principles and complied
with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 (the Code), which is

available at www.frc.org.uk.

The Board has applied the principles and
complied with the provisions of the Code

throughout the year ended 31 December

2022 except for provision 38 which

requires pension contribution rates for
executive Directors to be aligned with
those available to the wider workforce.

Application of Code Principles

As stated in the 2021 Annual Report

and the 2022 Remuneration Policy,
newly appointed executive Directors’
pension contributions are now ahigned to
the wider workforce from appointment.

incumbent executive Directors were

on hugher pension contribution rates

until 31 December 2022, after which

they were aligned to UK workiorce rates,
ensuring compliance with the Code going
forward. Further information can be found
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
pages 90 to |16,

The table below sets out how the Board has applied the Code Principles during 2022,

Board leadership and company purpose

£ The role of
the Board

The Board is responsible for Margan's system of corporate governance. As such, Directors are committed to
developing and maintaining high standards of governance that reflect evolving good practice.

The Board provides strategic and entrepreneurial leadership within a framework of strong governance. effective
controls and an cpen and transparent culture. This enables opportunities and risks to be assessed and managed
appropriately. The Board also sets our strategic aims and risk appetite, makes sure that we have the financial and
human resources in place to meet our objectives, and monitors our compliance and performance against targets
Lastly, the Board ensures that we engage effectively wath all our stakeholders and consider their views in setting

our strategic priorities. Morgan’s section 172 statement detailing how the Board has engaged with the Group's
stakeholders and approached decisions made during the year can be found in the Strategic Report on pages 28 to 29.

Governance framework
_ Board :

Audit Committee

Helps the Board to monitor
decisions and processes designed
to ensure the integrity of financial
reporting. the independence

and effectiveness of the external
auditor, ana robust systems

of imternal control and

risk management,

6) See page 79

Executive Committee

~

. Drives Group and glebal business
unit strategic implementation

S

Detlivers operational. financial
and non-financial performance

~ Reviews health. safety and
environmenital performance.
drives improvement and
embeds the safety culture

NS

Approves Group policies and
reviews their implementation
and effectiveness

> Leads on assessment and
control of nsk

Oversees prioitisation and
allecation of resources

Nomination Committee

Helps the Board determine

its composition. and that of its
Commuttees. They are regularly
reviewed and refreshed, so they
are able to operate effectively
and have the right mixture of
skills, experience and background.

(%) See page 86

Disclosure Committee

> Assists and inform the Board
concerring the identification
of inside information

Recocmmends how and when
the Company should disclose
such information

> Ensures any such informatior
1s managed and disclosed

in accordance with all
applicable legal and
regulatory requirements

Remuneration Committee

Helps the Boatd ensure that
remuneration policy and
practices reward employees and
executives fairly and resporisibiy,
with a clear link to corporate
and indwidual performance.

(*:\’ See page 90

General Purpose Committee

> Approves opening of/changes

to bank accours
N
s Approves arrangements
with financial institutions

~ Approves guarantees
and indemnities

- Approves substantive
intra-Group loans

~ Approves intra Group dividends
and capital restructuring

Approves awards under the
Company's share schermes
{after Remuneration Comm ttee
approval) and any Employee
Benefit Trust-related loans
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UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 compliance statement continued

bttt i

Board leadership and company purpose continued

#.. The role of the There is a farmal sehedule nf matters reserved for the Roard that sets out the structure under which the Board
Board continued manages Its responsibifities providing guidance on how it discharges its authority and manages the Board's activities.
The schedule of matters reserved is reviewed and approved by the Board on an annual basis. Our governance
framework means we have a robust decision-making process and a clear framework within which decisions can be
made and strategy can be delivered. Our delegated authority framework ensures that decaisions are taken by the
right people at the right level with accountabiiity up to the Board, and enables an appropriate level of debate,
challenge and support in the deciston-making process.

The Board met eight times in 2022 and all Directors continue te act in what they consider to be in the best interests
of the Company, consistent with their statutory duties. Further details of 2022 Beard meelings, including information
on the Board's assessment of strategic and eperational matters, are set out on pages 65, attendance information on
page 64, and skills, expenence and biographical information ¢n pages 62 to 64.

A description of Morgan's business mode! is set out on pages 12 to 13. An assessment of the principat risks facing the
Group is included on pages 40 10 47

Potential conflicts of interest are reviewed annually and powers of authorisation are exercised in accordance with
the Companies Act and the Company's Articles of Association. During the year, if any Director has unresolved
concerns aboul the operation of the Board or the managerment of the Company, these would be recorded in
the minutes of the meeting.

B The Company’s Qur purpose is to use advanced materials to make the world more sustainable, and to improve the guality of life.
purpose, values The Board believes that a healthy culture, which drives the right behaviours, protects and generates value and helps
and strategy employees engage with the Morgan Code, will lead to the successful delivery of our strategy. it is responsible for

defining our values and setting clear standards from the top. Our Chair leads the way by ensuring the Beard operates
correctly and with a clear culture of its own which can be promaoted to our wider operaticns and dealings with alt
stakeholders. Qur Chief Executive Officer, with the help of the Executive Committee. Is responsible for the culture
within our wider operations. The Board receives regular reports that allow it to assess our culture to ensure it
continues to support our strategy and purpose. For more information, see page 65.

C. Resources and The Board annually approves the Group's annual budget ensuring that sufficient rescurces are available to
controls achieve objectives,
The Board retains ulimate responsibility for risk management and internal controls, with detailed oversight carried
out by the Audit Committee.

The Board sets the Group's risk appetite. This sets out the principal risks facng the Group and the nature and
extent of risk the Board is willing for the Group to take in order to achieve the Group's strategic objectives.
For more information, see pages 40 10 47,

[. Shareholders and The Board acknowledges the importance of forming and retaning sound relationships with all stakeholder groups.
stakeholders Accordingly, the Board reviewed and discussed the Group's key stakeholders along with the engagement mechanisms
in place to ensure that they support effective, two-way communication. These are kept under periodic review to
ensure ongoing effectiveness.

The Board engaged actively throughout 2022 with shareholders and other stakeholders. A full programme of formal
and informal events. institutional investor meetings and presentations is held throughout the year. This programme
of shareholder engagement aims to ensure that the perfoermance. strategies and objectives of the Group are

clearly communicated to the investment community and provides a forum for institutional shareholders 1o address
any issues. Morgan engages proactively with the investment community and sell-side and buy-side analysts and
accommodates requests for meetings and calls with senior management from existing and potential institutional
irvestors. The programme is led by the executive Directors. The Chair of the Remuneration Committee also held
a series of investor consultation meetings in connection with votes relating to the Directors’ Remuneration Policy

at the Company's 2022 Annual General Meeting. The Board is regularly kept informed of investor feedback,
stockbroker updates and detailed analyst reports. For more informaticn, see pages 65 and 73.

The Board receves regular management information and considers the impact of decisions on relevant stakeholders,

as described further in the section 172 statement on pages 28 10 29. Across the Group, there 1s an active programme
of engagement with our key stakeholders induding our colleagues. For more information, see page 73.

E. Workforce policies The Board has overarching responsibility for the Group's workforce policies and practices and delegates day-to-day
and practices responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer and Group HR Director to ensure that they are consistent with the
Company's values and support its long-term success.

Empioyees are able to report malters of concern confidentially through our 'Speak Up” hotline. The Audit Comrmitiee
routinely reviews reports generated from the disclosures and ensures that arrangements are in place for investigation
and follow-up achion as appropriate.
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Division of responsibilities

t Role of the Chair

Douglas Caster leads the Board in an open and transparent manner, encouraging debate and challenge. He plays
a pivotal role in fostering the effectiveness of the Board and the individual Directors both in and outside the
boardroom. He was considered to be independent upon his appointment as Chair,

The Chair waorks with the Group Company Secretary to ensure that sufficent time is available to discuss agenda
items for each Board meeting and to ensure that papers are of a high standard and circulated in a imely mannes,

G. Balance of
the Board

The Board comprises the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chair and five independent non-executive
Directors. For mere information. see page 64.

The roles of the Chair and Chief Executive are separate. with distinct accountabilities set out in their role prefiles. The
Chief Executive Officer is respensible for the day-to-day leadership and management of the business, in ine with the
strategic framework, risk appetite and annual and long-term objectives approved by the Board. The Chief Executive
Officer cascades his authority through a delegated authority framework which is approved by the Beard annually.

The Board undertakes an annual review of the independence of each non-executive Director and in 2022 continued
to consider each non-executive Director to be independent.

H. Non~executive
Directors

The non-executive Directors provide an independent view on the running of our business, governance and
boardroom best practice. They oversee and constructively challenge management in its implementation of strategy
within the Group's system of governance and the risk appetite set by the Board.

Prior to his or her appointment as a Director, the Board considers whether each non-executive Director has
sufficient time 1o devote to their role at Mergan. This is reassessed by the Nomination Commitiee annually and

in fight of any changes to a non-executive Director’s external commitments during the year. The Committee is
satisfied that their other duties and time commitments do not conflict with those as Directors. The Board considered
Clement Woon's other external commitments, and was comfortable that he had sufficient time to devote to his role
at Morgan, before agreeing his appointment as a non-executive Director of Elementis plc.

Laurence Mulllez was appointed as Senicr independent Directer in December 2017, She s available to liase with
shareholders who have concerns that they feel have not been addressed through the normal channels of the Chair, Chiet
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. She also leads the annual performance review of the Chair (see page 74).
and as necessary, provides advice and judgement to the Chair, and serves as an intermediary for other Directors.

After each Board meeting, the non-executive Directors and the Chair meet without executive Directors being present.

i. The Company
Secretary

Winifred Chime joined Morgan as Group Company Secrelary in July 2022. She is responsible to the Chair for ensuring
that all Board and Board Cornmittee meetings are property conducted. that the Directors receive appropriate information
prior to meetings to enable them to make an effective contribution, and that governance requirements are considered and
implemented. The appointment and removal of the Group Company Secretary is a matter for the Board.

Composition, succession and evaluation

| Board
appointments

The Nomination Committee and, where appropriale, the [ull Board, regularty review the composition of the Board
and the status of succession to both senior executive management and Board-level positions. Directors have regular
contact with and access to succession candidates for senicr executive management positions.

During 2022, the Board apponted the Chief Financial Officer, Richard Armitage, and Chair designate and
independent non-executive Director, lan Marchant. The Company engaged the independent executive search
agency Korn Ferry to assist with the search for lan. For information on the Nomination Committee, including
appointments and Directors' induction. see pages 86 to 8%,

All Directors retire at each AGM and may offer themselves for re-election by shareholders. Accordingly. all the Directors
will retire at the AGM in June 2023, The Notice of AGM will give detalls of those Directors seeking election or re-election.

K. Skills, experience
and knowledge of
the Board

The Nomination Committee regularly reviews the balance, compasition and structure of the Board. including reviewing
the skills of each non-executive Director against a skills matrix. This identifies the key skills, knowledge and experience
relevant to the markets in which Morgan operates and for the effective operation of the Board and leadership of the
Group. The Directors’ skills matrix was revised and enhanced during the year. For more information. see page 64.

The Nomination Committee keeps the length of service of each Board member under review, and recommends the
reappointment of the non-executive Directors and any extensions to their term. It ensures that Board recruitment
is commenced in a timely manner to regularly refresh the membership of the Board.

The Chair and Group Company Secretary ensdre that new Directors receive a full induction and that all Directors
continually update their skills and have the requisite knowledge and familiarity with the Group to fulfil their role

The ndividual traiming and development needs of each Director are considered by the Chair on an annual basis.
The Board receives detalled technical updates on corporate governance and other regulatory changes. presentations
from external specialists or internal managers, training via online platforms, and site visits to ensure its skills.
knowledge and experience are kept up to date,
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UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 compliance statement continued

Composition, succession and evaluation continued

L Annual evaluation

The Roard undertakes either an internal or external annual Board effectiveness evaluation, The fast external
evaluation was carrned outin 2021, 5o in 2022 an internal evaluation of the Board and its Committees was conducten.
Performance evaluations of Directors. including the Chair, are also carred out on an annuak basis. A summary of

the 2027 evaluation is set out on page 74.

Audit, risk and internal control

M. Audit functions

The Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive Directors and the Board delegates a number of
responsibilities to the Audit Committee, including oversight of the Group's financial reporting processes and internal
control. and the work undertaken by the external and internal auditors. The Committes also supports the Board's
consideration of the Company's wiability statement and its ability to operate as a going concern. The Audit Committee
Charr provides regular updates to the Board on key matters discussed by the Committee. For more information,

see page 79

M. Fair, balanced and
understandable
assessment

The Strategic Report, located on pages 2 Lo 5%, sets aut the performance of the Company, the busincss medel,
strategy, and the risks and uncertainties relating to the Company's future prospects. When taken as a whole, the
DCirectors consider the Annual Report is fair, balanced and understandable and provides information necessary

for shareholders to assess the Company's performance, business model and strategy. The process which supports
the Board's confirmation that the presentation of results is fair, balanced and understandable is set out in the Audit
Committee Report an page 80.

. Risk management

The Board determines the nature and extent of the principal risks the organisation is willing to take to achieve its
stralegic objectives. A robust assessment of the principal and emerging risks facing the Group was carried out during
the year, including those risks that would threaten the Group’s business model, future performance, sclvency or
liquidity and reputation (see pages 41 to 47 for further details of the prinaipal risks}).

The Board and Audit Committee monitor the Group's risk management and internal controls systems and conduct an
annual review of therr effectiveness. Throughout the year, the Board has directly, and through delegated authority to
the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee. overscen and reviewed all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls. See pages 41 tc 47 and 83 to 84,

Remuneration

F Remuneration
policies and
practices

The Company aims to reward employees fairty and its Rermuneration Policy is designed to promote the fong-
term success of the Company whilst aligring the interests of both the Directors and shareholders. An updated
remuneration policy was approved by shareholders at the 2022 Annual General Meeting. The Directors’
Remuneration Policy 1s set out on pages 94 to 102,

. Policy on
executive
remuneration

The Remuneration Committee. on behalf of the Board, sets the remuneration of the Chair, the executive
Directors and Executive Committee members. It also reviews the remuneration of certain senior management,

In setting remuneration, the Remuneration Committee seeks to ensure it is aligned with the Group’s remuneration
principles which are applicable to all colleagues. See pages 115 for more information on the work of the
Remuneration Committee.

R. Remuneration
outcomes

When determining remuneration outcomes, the Remuneration Cornmittee takes account of wider circumstances
relevant to that decision, including Group and individual performance, The Remuneration Committee has the
discretion to amend the final vesting level of incentives if it does not believe that it reflects underlying performance.
The Remuneration Committee may also apply malus and clawback in certain circumstances. Ne Director is involved
In delermining their own remuneration outcome,
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Report of the Audit Committee

Committee members

el e to

Dear sharcholder

| am pleased to present the Audit
Committee's report for 2022,
This report provides insight into
key areas considered by the Audit
Committee during the year in
discharging its responsibilities in
relation to financial reporting,

risk management, internal control,
the internal audit function, and
interaction with Delcitte LLP
{(the Group's external auditor).

During 2022, whilst the Committee's
primary focus centred on the accuracy

of the Groug's financial reporting. we have
applied additional focus to assess the

risk management and internal control
framework, together with the additional
work carried out to support the long-term
viability statement, Regardless of the
challenging macro-economic envirchment,
Morgan’s business model remains resilient,
but like other companies operating during
these challenging times, we continue to
support and closely monitor the financial
results of the Group.

In early January 2023, we were called

on to manage the consequences of

a cyber security incident, having detected
unauthorised activity on our network.
Immediate steps were taken to contain
the incident. launch incident response
plans. engage specialist support services
and embark on restoring systems. The
Cemmittee oversaw the work to contain
the incident and recover the systems, was
in regular communication with management
throughout this period and met with the
third-party advisers supporting the
restoration of our networks and systems.
Details of the incident can be found on
page 19 and further information on the
matters considered by the Committee can
be found on page 82.

The Committee continues to monitor
the external £SG reporting and. more
specifically, climate-refated reporting, in
order to assess the appropriateness of the
climate -related disclosures and evaluate if
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the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures ( | CFD) recommendations have
been addressed appropriately.

We advised the Board that the 2022
Annual Report and Accounts s fair,
balanced and understandable and

provides the necessary information for our
shareholders to assess the Group's position,
performance. business model and strategy.
The process of review is described in
greater detail on page 80.

Deloitte completed their third full audit of
the Group. During the year, the Committee
reviewed and agreed the independence

and effectiveness of the audit process,

in establishing positive relationships and
providing a good level of service to

the Group, whilst seeking continual
improvements in the audit of Maorgan.

We monitored the reports raised through
the ethics hotline and ensured that
executive management has responded

to these quickly and appropriately,

The Committee reviewed the key themes
and trends in the number, type and source
of these reports to gain an understanding
of how effectively the Morgan Cede of
Conduct is embedded. This information
has been used by the Board as part of its
assessment of Morgan’s culture.

Throughout the year, the Committee

also ensured that separate meetings with
Deloitte, the Head of Internal Audit and

the Director of Ethics and Compliance took
place without management present ir order
to provide an open forum for any (ssues to
be raised,

The Committee’s performance was
reviewed as part of the internal evaluation
aimed at identifying areas for improvement.
[ am pleased to report that the Committee
15 continuing to work well and is fully
discharging its responsibilities, whilst
contributing effectively to the Group's
overall governance framework.

Jane Aikman
Committec Chan



Report of the Audit Committee continued

Key activities in 2022

Fisrancial reporting ¥ Reviewed and discussed reports fram the Chief Finanaal Officer o the finanoal statements. congidered
management's significant accounting judgments and the policies being applied, and assessed the findings of
the statutory audit in respect of the integnity of the financial reporting of full- and hall-yea 1esults.

> Reviewed the 2022 Annual Report and Accounts and provided a recommendation Lo the Board that.
as a whole, they complied with the UK Corporate Governance Code prinaple to be ‘fair, balanced and
understandable and provide the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's posibon,
performance, business model and strategy’.

Internal controls and > Rewviewed the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control systems, and integration of the

risk management components of the 1isk framework into Board and Committee reporting, ptior to making a recommendation
to the Board. The Committee also reviewed reports from the Presidents and Finance Directors of each of
the global business units on their key risks. how these risks are managed and an assessment of the control
environment, or an annual basis.

> Monitored fraud reporting and incidents of whistleblowing, including a review of the adequacy of the Group's
whistleblowing processes and procedures, prior to reporting 1o the Board on this activity.

> Oversight of the Group's ethics and compliance programme and monitoring progress m comphance with the
Morgan Code across the Group.

» Oversight and monitoring of the Group’s key laxation ssues and lax strategy.

internal Audit > Considered Internal Audit reports presented to the Committee and satisfied itself that management had
resolved or was i the process of resclving any cutstanding 1ssues o1 actions.

/ Reviewed and approved the Internal Audit plan and approach for 2023,
» Rewiewed the quality and effectiveness of Internal Audit function,

External Audit > Qversaw the 2022 statutory audit, including the key audit risks and level of materiality appled by Deloitte,
audit reports from Deloitte on the financdial statements and the areas of particular focus for the 2022 audit.

* Assessed the effectiveness of Deloitte and made a recommendation to the Board on the reappointment of
Deloitte as the external auditor.
~ Agreed the statutory audit fee for the 2022 audrt.

Reviewed and approved the non-audit services, and related fees. provided by Deloitte for 2022
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Financial reporting

Fair, balanced and The following precess was followed by the Committee in making its assessment

understandable reporting > considered the questions which need to be answered in order to evaluate whether

. the Armrnual Report und Accounts meets the far, balanced ard undarstandabla tart
At the request of the Board, the Committee ) alhepart

has considered whether, in its opinion,

S

reviewed the methodology used to construct the narrative sections of the Annual Report

this Annual Report and Accounts, > reviewed the disclosurce judgements made by the authors of cach section and considered
taken as a whole, is ‘fair. balanced and the overall balance and consistency of the Annua! Report

understandable’ ( FBU") and whether it > received confirmation from external 2dvisors that all regulatory requirements are satisfied
provides the 'information necessary for 7 receved confirmation of verification of content from the authors of each section
shareholders to assess the Comparny's > recewved confirmation from the Chiel Financial Officer that the narrative reports and

position, performance, business mode! consolidated financial statements are consistent
and strategy’,

o

made a recommendation to the Board to assist it in determiming whether it 15 able to
make the statement that the Annual Report and Accounts taken as a whole is fair, balanced
and understandabie.

The Board approved the Commuittee's recommendation that the FBU statement could

be made, which can be found in the Directors' Respensibility Statermnment on page 120 of this
Annuazl Report.

Significant issues
The significant areas of judgement considered by the Committee in relation to the 2022 consolidated finanaial statements, anc how these
were addressed. were as follows:

Specific adjusting items

In the consolidated income statement, the Group presents specific adjusting items separately. In the judgemnent of the Directors, as a result of
the nature and value of these items they should be disclosed separately from the underlying results of the Group. The Group believes that these
Alternative Perfarmance Measures, which are not considered 1o be a substitute for, or superior to, IFRS measures. provide stakeholders with
additional helpful Information on the performance of the business,

Details of specific adiusting items arising during the year and the comparative penod are given in note 6 to the consolidated finandial statements
Specific adjusting ilems in relation to discontinued operations are disclosed in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

How the Committee addressed these issues

The Committee reviewed the key assumptions underpinning the accounting for specific adjusting items for the half- and fuil-year results,
including receving presentations from Deloitte LLP on this matter.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions made for:

> legal and other provisions: given the nature of the contracts undertaken by the Group. there is an inherent risk of claims being made against one

or mare of the Group's businesses in relation to performance on specific contracts

> environmental provisions: due to the nature of its operations, the Group holds environmental provisions for its environmental obligations.
Judgement is required to determine whether a contingent liability has crystallised into a provision

> dosures and restructuring provisions' judgements made in relation to provisions made in relation to the Group's restructuring activities.

These claims can include risks for which the Group has external insurance coverage.

How the Committee addressed these issues

These are addressed by the Committee and the Board discussing with varicus members of senior management the key judgements made. supported,
where appropriate, by relevant external advice.

Deloitte LLP also regularly present then view on all material provisions and contingent liabilities. Ervironmenital provisions are disclosed in note 24
to the consolidated financial statements.

Pensions and other post-retirement employee benefits

The Group operates a number of defined benefit arrangements as well as defined contribution plans. The defined benefit plans primarity related to
the UK, US and Europe and predominantly provide pensions based on service and career-average pay.

Accounting assumptions, given in hote 22 to the consolidated financial statements, are used to calculate the year-end net pension liability in
accordance with the relevant accounting standard. |1AS |9 {revised) Employee Benefits. Relatively small changes in the assumptions underlying the
actuarial valuations of penston schemes can have a significant impact on the net pension liability included in the balance sheet.

How the Committee addressed these issues

The Commiltee reviewed Lhe key assumptions underpinning the accounting for these defined benefit arrangemenits for the half- and full-year results,
including recewving presentations from Beloitte LLP on this matter.
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Report of the Audit Committee continued

Financial reporting -

L4

Significant issues and judgements
Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding goodwill)

The Group monitors the performance of individual assets and cash-generating units at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is

any indication of impalrment. An impairment loss is recogmsed in the income statement where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amounit.

The Impairmert charge for the year of £6.5 million relates to the impairment of assets In Seals and Bearings (Asia), Thermal Ceramics (Furope and
South America) and Technical Ceramics {Asia). Additional disclosure is included in note 6 to the consolidated financial staterments,

How the Committee addressed these issues

The Committee reviewed the key assumptions that underpin the value-in-use calculations, including receiving the views of Deloitte LLP on
these matters.

Matters identified following the FRC review of the 2021 Annual Report

The FRC reviewed the 2021 Annual Report and drew to the Company’s attention changes which could be made to the 2022 Annual Repert. where
the information 1s matenal and of relevance. The FRC did not enter into substantive correspondence with the Company. The FRC asks that comparies
make clear the inherent limitations of their review, and that their review is based on Margan’s Annual Report and does not benefit from detailed
knowledge of our business or an understanding of the underlying transactions entered into during the period

How the Committee addressed these issues

These matters were addressed as part of the year-end process. The Committee reviewed how these matters were addressed in the Annual Report.

Impact of the cyber incident

In early January 2023, the Group detected unauthorised activity on its network and 1s continuing to manage the consequences of this cyber security
incident. Details of the incident can be found on page 9.

How the Committee addressed these issues
The Committes considered the following including documentation to support key conclusions on the impact of the incident:

Engagement with in-house | T team and external advisors 1o assess the cause. timing and impact of the cyber incident

Management assessment of whether there is any known or suspected fraud associated with the incident

Engagement with in-house legal and legal advisors regarding possible regulatory or customer-related exposures

Update on fraud risk and control environment risk

Update on business risk factors

Management assessment of going concern and long-term viability, including updated view on future trading performance

Steps taker to ensure integrity and completeness of the accounting records, in order to be satisfied that the financial statements give a rue and
fa value of the assets. habilives, financial position and profit of the Group

Clear and transparent disclosure of the non-adjusting post balance sheet event in the Annual Report

Assessment of fair, balanced and understandable nature of the Annual Report in light of the cyber incident.

VAN FAVAVAVaYS

NS

82 Morgan Advanced Materials ple Annual Report 2022



Internat control and rislk management

The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities
relating to the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
cnvironment and risk management systems. The Group's system
of internal control has been in place for the year under review
and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report,

The Committee, on behalf of the Board, undertakes an annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group's system of internal
control and did so again for the year under review. This system
is consistent with the FRC's guidance on internalt control
requirements contamed within the Code, The review conducted
in April 2023 comprised:

> areview of the relevant Principles and Provisions in the Code
> areview of the Company's governance structures

> areview of the sources of assurance and the Company's
three tines of defence model, including policies, annual
self-certfication process, reports from specialist functions
such as the Ethics and Compliance, Tax, Treasury and Legal
functions, and internal audit reports

+ areview of all material controls, including financial, cperational
and compliance controls, and risk management systems, includmg
the improvements achieved in 2022 and identification of further
areas for improvemenit

Ve

the Committee and Board receive regufar risk management
reports and together they ensure that there are adequate internal
controls in place and that these are functioning effectively

> the Committee also evaluated whether the cyber incident
in January 2023 impacted its conclusions on the control
environment for the 2022 year end. Having reviewed the internal
controls assessment, the results of the ongoing investigation and
subsequent responses to the incident, the Committee assessed
that the controls in place during 2022 were adequate and that
the incident did not impact the 2022 financial records.

The Directers consider that the Group's systermn of internal financial
controf provides reasonable, but not absolute, assurance in the
following areas: that the assets of the Group are safeguarded; that
transactions are authorised and recerded in a correct and timely
rmanner; and that such controls would prevent or detect. within

a timely period, material errors or irregularities. The system is
designed to mitigate and manage risk, rather than eliminate it, and
to address key business and financial risks, The majority of nternal
financial controls are manual: this 15 driven by a diverse IT landscape
and the Group's geographical breadth; as such. there is a heavy
reliance on central review controls. The Directors are satisfied that
an appropriate amount of time and consideration 1s dedicated to
the review and challenge of results, judgements and estimates

- both by the global business units and the Group leadership team,
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The main features of the Group's system of internal control and for
assessing the potential risks to which the Group is exposed are
summarisced as follows:

Control environment

The Group's control environment is underpinned by the Morgan
Code and its associated policies and guidelines. The Group pelicies
cover: financial procedures: environmental, health and safety
practice; ethics and compliance {for example, anti-bribery and
anti-corruption, anti-trust and anti-competitive behaviour and trade
complance); and other areas such as IT and HR. There is a Limits
of Authority Policy, which describes the matters reserved for the
Board and the delegations granted to the Chief Executive Officer
and other executives. The Group operates various programmes
to improve the control envircnment and management of risk.
These include the Group's ethics and compliance programme and
the Group internal audit function, which present updates to the
Committee at each meeting. In addition, the Committee receives
reports from the Presidents and Firnance Directors of each of

the global business units on their key risks. how these risks

are managed and an assessment of the control environment,

on an annual basis.

Part of the ethics and compliance programme 1s the provision of
an externally managed, independent whistleblower ('Speak Up')
haotline which is made available to workers to raise concerns.

Any reports made to the hotline are investigated by senior
management, with reparts made to the Committee at each
meeting, The Committee oversees the progress and outcome

of any investigations arising from reports made to the hotline or
directly to managerment, where there is a concern regarding ethical
conduct. The reports investigated have varied in their nature and
materiality, with certain matters requiring the support of external
advisors and giving rise to disciplinary action against employees for
breaches of Group policies.

The global business unit Presidents and other senior operational
and functional management make an annual statement of
compliance to the Board confirming that, for each of the
businesses for which they are responsible, the consclidated
financial statements are farrly presented in all material respects.
appropnate systems of internal controls have been developed
and maintained, and the businesses comply with Group policies
and procedures or have escalated known exceptions to an
appropriate level of management.




Report of the Audit Committee continued

internal control and risk management -

Financial reporting

Risk management systems and internal controls are in place

in relation to the Groug's finandlal reporting processes and Lhie
process for preparing consolidated accounts. These include
policies and procedures which require the maintenance of records
which accurately and fairly reflect transactions and disposals of
assets, provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to allow the preparation of consolidated financial
staternents in accardance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS), and the review and reconcilation of reported
data. Representatives of the businesses are required to certify

that ther reported information gives a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the business and its results for the period.

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring these

systems and controls.

Performance monitoring

The Board and the Executive Committee hold regular, scheduled
meetings. at which they monitor performance and consider

a comparison of forecast and actual results, including cash flows

and comparisons against budget and the prior year. Global business
unit management teams also meet regularly to review performance.
Executive Committee members also visit sites on a regular basis.

Risk management

The Board undertakes a formal assessment of the Group's principal
and ernerzing risks at least twice a vear. The identficanon,
assessment and reporting of risks is a continuous process carried
out in conjunction with operational management. Apprepriate steps
are taken to mitigate and manage all material risks including those
relating to the Group's business model, solvency and liquidity. The
Board, either directly or through the Committee. receives updates
on risks, internal controls and future actions from both global
business units and Group perspectives. The Executive Committee
collectively reviews risk management and internal controls for all
principal Group risks. The Group's risk management system, which
is described in more detail in the Risk Management section of the
Strategic Report on pages 40 to 47, supports the Directors’
statements on going concern and viability on pages 55 to 56.

Risk factors

The Group's businesses are affected by a number of factors,
many of which are influenced by macro-economic trends beyond
Morgan's control; nevertheless, as described above and in the
Strategic Report, the identification and mitigation of such risks are
regularly reviewed by the Executive Committee and the Board,
These risk factors are further discussed in the Risk Management
section on pages 40 to 47.

Internal audit

Internal audit

The Group's internal audit function provides objective assurance

of the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems. It also may recommend improvements. While the
Head of Internat Audit reports administratively to the Chief Financial
Officer, appointment to, or removal from, this role requires the
consent of the Audit Committee Chair. The Head of Internal Audit
is accountable to the Chair of the Audit Committee, attends alt
regular Committee meetings and meets separately with Committee
members without executive management at every meeting,

Each year's internal audit plan is approved by the Audit Committee.
The plan is focused on higher-risk areas and any specific areas or
processes chosen by the Coemmittee. [t is also aligned with any

risks identified by the external auditor and Ethics and Compliance
team. The Committee is given regular updates on progress,
inciuding any material findings, and can refine the plans as needed.
The Committee ensures that there are adequate resources in place
for the function to carry out the plan. The Committee receives
reports showing the ratings and key findings from each audit. The
Committee challenges management over the key findings, discusses
key themes identified by the intermal audits and guides management
in identifying areas of focus to continuously improve controls.
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Actions arising frem internal audit reviews are agreed with
management and the Committee monitors progress on any
outstanding actions.

In 2022, the Commitiee reviewed the effectiveness of the function
by way of surveys completed by Committee members and key
management personnel. This is the approach taken in those years
that the review is not externally facilitated. The fast externally
facilitated review was in 2018, and an external review is planned
for 2023, We are satisfied that the quality, expernence and expertise
of the internal audit function are appropriate for the business and
that the function was objective and performed its role effectively.
We also monitored management's response to internal audits
during the year. We are satisfied that improvements are being
implemented promptly in response to the findings. and believe
that management supports the effective working of the function.



External auditor

External auditor, including independence

and Non-Audit Services Policy

The external auditor, [eloitte LLF, has processes in place to
safeguard its independence and objectivity, including specific
safeguards where 1tis providing permissible non-audit services,
and has confirmed in writing to the Cemmittee that, in its opinion.
it is independent, In addition, the Company has a policy on the
provision of non-audit services by the external auditor which

was revised in 2019 and is in line with the FRC's revised Ethical
Standard 2019 which took effect on 15 March 2020:

> certain nen-audit services may not be provided. The external
auditor may not review their own work, make any management
decisions, create a mutuality of interest, and/or put themselves
in the position of advocate

> any permissible non-audit work proposed to be placed with
the external auditor with a total fee between £50.000 and
£200.000 must be approved in advance by the Chair of the
Audit Committee, Projects in excess of £200,000, must be
approved in advance by the Audit Committee, with any such

proposal being submitted in writing to the Chief Financial Officer.

who would in turn seek approval from the Audit Committee.
All permissible non-audit work, regardless of value. must be
approved by the Group Financial Controller. Work which
includes multiple phases is treated as a single project for
approval purposes

- the prior approval of the Audit Committee 1s required for any
non-audit work which, when added to the fees pad for other
non-audit work, would total more than 60% (previously 80%)
of the audit fee

> the value of non-audit fees must not under any circumstances
exceed /0% of the average Group statutory audit fee incurred
in the tast three consecutive financial years.

To safeguard the objectivity and ndependence of the external
auditor, the Company ensures that any non-audit services to
be provided by the auditor are given prior approval by the
Audit Committee where required under the policy.

In the opinion of the Committee, the auditor's objectivity ang
independence were safeguarded despite the provision of a limited
number of non-audit services by Deleitte LLP during 2022,

In 2022, the proportion of the auditor’s fees for non-audit work
relative 1o the audit fee was 0.0% (or £41,000), (2021: 0.0%).
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Auditor effectiveness

The Committee discussed the quality of the audit during the year
and censidered the performance of the external auditor as a
separate agenda item at the meeting in Aprit 2023 The Committee
conducted a full review following the 2022 year end to gather
feedback and look for continuous improvement opportunities.

The Committee considered afl aspects of the auditor’s
performance. based on a review of the effectiveness of the external
audit process, which was conducted through a questionnaire

taking into consideration relevant professicnal and regulatory
requirements. The questionnaire was completed by each GBU
finance director and nine Group functional teams. In addition to the
questicnnaire, the following external auditor areas were reviewed:

> independence confirmation

> audit methodology, use of component auditors and audit scope
and coverage

* assessment of materiality and areas of audit focus. consideration
of appropriate audit procedures, professional scepticism,
appropriate management challenge. clarity and candour
in reporting

. the FRC's AQR findings for Deloitte for the 2021-22 cycle
of reviews and Deloitte's proposed actions to address these
findings as a firm.

The Committee concluded that the external audit process in
respect of the finandcial staterments for the year ended 3| December
2022 was effective. The Committee confirmed Deloitte’s
independence before recommending its reappcintment for
approval by shareholders at the Annual Genera!l Meeting (AGM)

on 29 June 2023,

External audit rotation

Deloitte LLP was appointed by shareholders as the Group's
statutory auditor in 2020 following a formal tender process.

For 2022, Deloitte continued to provide external audit services to
the Group. Jane Makrakis was the lead partner for Deloitte on
the audit. The Audit Committee considers annually the need to
tender the audit for audit quality or independence reasons. There
are no contractual obligations in place that restrict the Group's
choice of statutory auditor. The external audit contract will be put
out to tender at east every 10 years. The Committee considers
that it would be appropriate to conduct an external audit tender
by ne later than 2030. The Company has complied with the
provisions of the Competition and Markets Authority's Order

on statutory audit services.




Report of the Nomination Committee

Committee members

Dear sharehelder

On hehalf of the Nomination
Committee, | present our report
for 2022. The Committee met
three times during 2022 and
members' attendance is set out
in the table on page 64,

The Committee performs a vital role in
reviewing the composition and balance of
skilis and experience on the Board, enabling
it to lead the process for appointments

to the Board, keep under review the
leadership needs of the Group, and ensure
plans are in place for orderly succession to
Board and senior management positions.
During 2022, led by Laurence Mulliez

as Senicr Independent Directer. the
Committee was primarily concerned with
identifying my successor as Chair of the
Board. The Committee also oversaw the
appointment of Richard Armitage as Chief
Financial Officer. reviewed Board succession
and assessed whether the objectives of

the Board's Diversity and Inclusion Policy,
including how it supports Morgan's strategy,
had been implemented and what progress
has been achieved. During the year, the
Beard reviewed succession planning and
talent strategy for the Executive Committee
and 1ts direct reports, with a particular lens
on our aim to foster diversity within the
leadership population and increase the
female leadership population to 40%

by 2030,

The Committee remains conscious that
to execute on Morgan's strategic priorities
of Big positive difference, Delight the
customer and Innovate to grow. building
our talent pool with individuals whose
skilf sets and thinking can drive Morgan's
strategy and shape our culture is critical
to the Group's long-term success.

The Committee's performance was
reviewed as part of the internal evaluation
aimed at identifying areas for improvement.
I'am pleased to report that the Commuttee
15 continuing ta work well and is fully
discharging its responsibilities, whilst
contributing effectively to the Group's
overall governance framework.

Douglas Caster CBE FIET
Committes Chair

86 Morgan Advanced Materials ple Arnual Report 2022

Key responsibilities

The Nomination Committee supports the
Board in ensuring that the Board and its
Committees are appropriately staffed

and operate effectively. The Committee
identifies qualified individuals to join the
Board, recommends any changes to the
Board and Committee composition and
MONILOrs an annual process 1o assess
Board effectiveness.

This involves:
> overseeing and facilitating annual reviews
of the Chair, the Board. its Committees
and individual Directors. including

externally faclitated reviews

evaluating and overseeing the balance
of skills, knowledge and experience
on the Board and its Committees

> monitoring the independence
of Directors

overseeing Board succession plans

and leading the process to identify
suitable candidates to fill vacancies,
nominating such candidates for approval
by the Board and ensuring that
appointments are made on merit

and against objective criteria

- overseeing the induction of
new Directors

o

overseeing succession plans for
the executive Directors and
senior management.

The terms of reference of the Committee
are available on the Company's website,
morganadvancedmaterials.com.



Key activities in 2022

Board and > Monitored the global search carried out by Korn Ferry for a Char designate and independent non executive Dhrector
Commiittee led by the Senior Independent Director
CDI'npOSitiOn < Interviewed and considered potential Board candidates

Reviewed the independence of all Directors, making recommendations 1o the Board

> Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and its Committees. ensuring that they remain appropriate
> Reviewed and updated the Board's Diversity and Inclusion Policy. and assessed progress against its objectives
Succession > Reviewed and endorsed succession plans for the Board and its Committees
planning > Reviewed updated succession plans for the Chief Executive Officer
> Continued to provide input to the succession plans for the Executive Committee (excluding the Chief Executive Officer)
and the Group's diversity and inclusion programme
> Reviewed and endorsed updates to the Board's skills matrix
Board > Oversaw the mplementation of recommendations arising from the 2021 external evalualion of the Board and

effectiveness Comrrittees’ performance
reviews Carried out the 2022 internal evaluation of the Board and Committees’ performance

N

Corporate
governance

Momitored the fulfilment of the new requirements. principles and expectations of the Code

Reviewed Directors’ declaratons on potential conflicts of interest

Reviewed requests by Directors to undertake additional appointments

Considered whether each Director continued to be able to allocate sufficent time to discharge their responsibilities effectively
Considered the annual election or re-etection of Directors at the 2023 Annual General Meeting (AGM)

Reviewed the Committee's terms of reference

NSNS NSNS

Diversity and inclusion applied to the Company's financial year under review. Accordingly,
there was 43% female representation on the Board, one of whom
is the Senior Independent Director, and the Board currently has
one Director of Southeast Asian origin. Both the Audit Committee
Chair and the Remuneration Committee Chair are female.
Morgan’s intention is to at least maintain that level of diversity, in

The Board's Diversity and inclusion Pelicy reflects the Board's
beliel n the benefits of diversity and that more diverse companies
attract and maintain the best talent and achieve stronger

overall performance.

The Board considers a broad definition of diversity when setting order that the Board's composition can more closely reflect the
pelicies and appeinting Directors, including gender. disability, Group's workforce and saciety more generally. It is however
nationality. educational and professional experience, personality acknowledged that in periods of Board change. there may be times
type, culture and perspective. when this balance is not maintained. The percentage of women

on the Group's Executive Cormmitiee is 309%. At 31 December
2022, 29% (2021: 27% and 2020: 25%;) of senior management.
defined in accordance with the Code as the members of the
Executve Committee including the Company Secretary and their
direct reports, were female, The Committee takes diversity into
account in broader discussions on succession planning and talent
development and supports management in its wider commitment
to promoting diversity, The Company submitted data to both the
FTSE Women Leaders Review and the Parker Review during 2022.

Statement on compliance against regulatory

targets on gender and ethnicity

The Committee has worked hard to ensure that the Beard is
suitably diverse according to these criteria. The Board reviews its
effectiveness in meeting diversity goals each year as part of the
annual Board evaluation process. The Board confirms that as at

31 December 2022 (being the reference date selected by the
Board for the purposes of this disclosure). the Company complied
with the regulatory targets set outin LR 5.8.6 R(%)a) as if they

Board and Executive Committee diversity as at 31 December 2022

MNumber of Nurmber in Fercentage

Number of Percentage ol senior positions executive Iin executive

Board members the Board on the Board management management

Men 4 57 3 7 70
Women 3 43 I 3 30
White British or other White (incl minority-White groups) 6 30 4 9 S0

Mixed Multiple Ethnic Groups - - - -

AsianfAsian British | 1o - [0
Black/African/Cariobean/Black British - - - - -
Other ethnic group. ncluding Arab - -
Not specified/Prefer not to say — - - - —

This Gisclosure 15 based ¢~ dats collected from tr2 individuals on o nng Mo gan
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Report of the Nomination Committee continued

Diversity policy

The Board has agreed objectives for achieving gender, ethnic

and cullurdl diversity on the Board and its Commiittees which

have informed the appointments made during the year. With the
refreshment of the Board into future years. the policy will inform
and steer the Commuttee in 1dentifying candidates and set the tone
for the wider Group's diversity aspirations. in particular in the
context of developing its leadership population,

To promote diversity and inclusion the Boara will:

» consider all aspects of diversity when reviewing the compasition
and effectiveness of the Board and its Commiittees

> only engage with executive search firms which are accredited
under the Enhanced Code of Conduct for Executive Search
Firms, or which have a proven track record in sourcing diverse
candidates. when seeking to make new appointments

o

ensure that candidate lists include individuals from a broad and
dverse range of backgrounds and that all candidates with the
requisite skills and capability are considered, mncluding those with
less traditional track records than the corporate mainstream

> agree new Board appoimtments based on merit against the
objective criteria set, taking account of the unique benefits each
candidate can bring

> review senior executive succession planning annually and monitor
the development of a diverse pipeline of future senior leaders,
reflecting the composition of Morgan's workforce

set the tone and provide visible suppert for the Group's diversity
and inclusion objectives, including the fostering of an inclusive
culture which allows individuals to bring their whole selves to
work, role-modelling and promoting inclusive leadership

~ review and challenge the goals anc progress of executive
management in improving indusion and diversity.

Succession

An integral part of the work of the Nomination Committee is

te establish and maintan a stable leadership framework and to
proactively manage changes and their impacts on the future
leadership needs of the Company, both in terms of executive and
non-executive leadership. Ensuring the correct leaders are in place
enables the organisation to compete effectively in the marketplace
and therefore to meet its various obligations to its stakeholders.
The Committee has managed succession programmes for both
the Board and senior management which have ensured that the
necessary skills, expertise and experience are present in the
leadership of the organisation.
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Board succession

The Committee regularly reviews the skills and expertise that are
present on the Board and compares these to the expertse that

it believes is required given the strategy, business priorities and
culture of the organisation. The Board's succession plan 1s reviewed
formally at least once per year and addresses Board size,
Committee structure and composition, skills on the Board, Board
and Committee members' tenure, independence of Directors,
diversity (including gender), Board roles, Board pelicies and
indiwdual succession plans for all Board and Committee positions.

During 2022, the Committee discussed succession planning at each
of its meetings. The Committee considered both the Board skills
matrix and the Board's Diversity and Inclusion Policy in the context
of succession planning as tools to help identify potential compaosition
needs for the future, and to ensure that plans are proactive and
not just reactive in nature. There were no non-executive Director
retirements or appointments in 2022, We continue to manage a
phased succession programme for non-executive Directors and
are pleased with the balance of length of tenure, as well as of
diversity. background and perspective of our current non-executive
Directors. The process for the Chair's succession is set out in the
case study on page 89.

Senior management succession

The Committee received regular updates regarding senior
management succession planning. These updates included the
planning and processes involved with the appointment of a new
Chief Information Officer and President for Thermal Products.

The Committee 1s responsible for succession planning for the
Executive Committee which allows for ongoing monitonng of the
impact of the diversity and inclusion strategy on appointments that
are made and their progress within the Company, including at the
level of those who report to the Executive Committee, to develop
a pipeline of female and diverse talent that will serve to widen the
poal of candidates for Board and leadership positions in the future.
The Nomination Committee will continue to work with the Chief
Executive Officer and Group HR Director on senior management
succession and development in 2023,



Chair succession

On 18 January 2023, the Board announced that it had selected lan Marchant to succeed Douglas Caster as Morgan's Chair. lan jeined the
Board with effect from | February 2023 and will be appointed to the role of Chair at the conclusion of Morgan's AGM on 29 June 2023,
subject to shareholder approval. Douglas will step down from the Board at the same time, having served on the Board for nine years.

lan is a highly strategic and successful leader with more than 35 years of wide-ranging experience at major businesses, bringing a strong
track record of value creation and listed board experience. Further information on lan's skilis and contribution can be found on page 62.
The Board is delighted to have appointed such an outstanding individual and is confident lan will lead the Morgan Board with distinction.

Appointment

In preparedness for the ninth anniversary of Douglas's appointment to the Board in February 2023, the Nomination Committes,
under the leadership of the Senior Independent Director, commenced the search for his successor in 2022, At no point was the
incumbent Chairman involved in the process of selecting his successor.

The executive search agency, Korn Ferry, was engaged to conduct the external search. Korn Ferry has no other relationship with

the Company or the individual Directors and 1s independent. A candidate specification was prepared and agreed with the Committee
This included proven experience of leading a business of significant scale and complexity, knowledge and experience of the
engineering and industrial sector, international experience, a commitment to the highest ESG standards, and a proven ability to lead
a board and act as a mentor 1o the executive team. The Committee requested a diverse long list of candidates, in respect of gender,
ethnicity and background. be produced.

The executive search agency. Korn Ferry, identified potential candidates to create a longiist and presented this to the Committee
for consideration.

The Board agreed the most suitable potential candidates from the long list which included diverse candidates and instructed the
executive search agency to approach them for interview and assessment.

The shortlisted candidates were invited for initial assessment and interview, initially by the executive search agency and then by
the full Board.

The successful candidate was recommended for appointment to the Board.

The Group Company Secretary has arranged a comprehensive induction programme for lan. It includes meetings with each Board
member, the members of the Executive Committee and the semor leadership team. The overall programme 1s designed to ensure
that lan gains a thorough understanding of our:

. purpose. stratcgy and values

. culture and people, including visits to cur major sites, with opportunities 1o meet with the local management teams and workforce
. business and operations, through a series of tailored teach-ins, training programmes and site visits

- ESG agenda and what we are targeting to buitd our impeccable credentials

. investors. including a detailed engagement plan with institutional and retail investors

. key advisors. including brokers, auditors and carporate advisers

. governance and regulatory framework and our capital and financing structure.

~ b R —
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Remuneration report

Committee members

Staterment to shareholders
from the Chair of the
Remuneration Committec

As a business, Morgan Advanced Materials
in common with most industry players

is facing high inflatior. that is affecting the
cost of raw materials. energy and freight,
and has experienced some raw materials
and labour shortages. Despite this Morgan
has delivered 11.29 organic revenue’
growth for the 2022 financial year, while
investing further in the wider business to
support sustainable long-term growth,

During 2022, we have continued to focus
on our reporting requirements within the
UK Corporate Governance Code. Within
this context, the Committee conducted

a review of the implementation of the
current Remuneraticn Policy {approved
by 96.4% of shareholders at the 2022
AGM} to ensure it remains fit for purpose.
This review concluded that the current
framework continues to support Group
strategy and culture, as well as providing
strong alignment of executive Director
and shareholder interests.

2022 Committee activity

During the year, the Committee

met four times. its activities included
determination of currert incentive
outcomes, remuneration packages for the
Company's Chair and executive Drectors
{(including the new Chief Finanaal Officer,
and his retiring predecessor), and a review
of the implementation of the Group's
Remuneration Policy. Further details
regarding the activities of the Committee
can be found in the Remuneration
governance section at the end of this
Report on page |15,
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2022 remuneration cutcomes

in reviewmng performance in 2022,

the Committee determined that payouts
of 27.6% of the 2022 annual bonus
opportunity for the Chief Executive Officer
(CEQ) and new Chief Financial Officer
(CFO), and 29.6% for the former CFO
were appropriate (the incoming and
outgoing CFOs will receve pro-rated bonus
payments based on proportion of the

year respectively worked). The 2020

LTiP award will partially vest, resulting in

a 6799 achievement of the maximum.
These outcomes are consistent with the
Group's performance, details of which

are summarised later in this Repert. The
Committee considered it appropriate not
to adjust performance targets during the
year, and concluded that no discretion
needs to be applied for 2022 remuneration
outcomes, which were considered to
appropriately reflect the underlying
performance of the Group. However. the
Committee will review the value at vesting
of the 2020 LTIP award (which 1s due te
vest in October 2023) to ensure that any
gain reflects the underlying performance
of the Group rather than a windfall due

to a wider stock market rebound since the
time of gramt, However, at present the
Committee considers the risk of a windfall
gain unlikely, in part given the decision to
delay making 2020 LTIP awards until later in
2020 and foliowing a partial recovery in the
share price from the initial market downturn
at the time of the pandemic’s onset.



Implementation of Policy in 2023

In keeping with our usual approach, salary
increases have been determined by the
Committee In the context of the continued
performance of the Group in 2022, labour
market conditions. and the average salary
Increases awarded to the wicer workforce,
The process for reviewing executive
Director salaries takes into account
individual and Group performance.
demonstration of the defined leadership
behaviours and salary position relative to
the relevant market, which is consistent
with the approach taken for the entire
professional population. However, the
Committee also factored into its decision-
making this year the prevailing inflationary
environment and its asyrmmetric cost-of-
living impact on different organisational
levels of the Group, and determined to
award salary increases of 4% for both the
CEC and CFO {compared to the average
increase for the wider UK workforce of
4.5%). The Committee alsc approved

a 3% increase to the Chairman's fee
{which Mr Caster has voluntarily waived).
and the Chairman and executive Direclors
approved a similar 3% increase to the
non-executive Directors' base fee for 2023,

The Committee also reviewed the
structure of the annual bonus and LTIP
plans to ensure that the framework remains
appropriately aligned with our strategic
aims and culture, motivates and rewards
management for delvering sustainable
performance, and supports retention.

For the 2073 annual bonus, the cash
generation metric will be replaced with

a single measure of year-end wotking
capital in order to drive the recovery of our
working capital position following the recent
cyber security incident. No other changes
are proposed to the performance linkage
of the annual bonus for 2023 as measures
remain aligned to Morgan’s key cbjectives,
including ESG (environmental, social and
governance) measures being covered in the
executive Directors’ personal objectives
and therefore reflected in the personal
performance element of the bonus. For the
LTIP, it is proposed to mamtain FSG targets
at 5% to 159 carbon reduction over the
three-year performance period, reflecting
our stated longer-term ambition to reduce
carbon emissions by 50% by 2030 (from

a 2015 baseline). The EPS performance
range for the 2023 LTIP will be set at
4%-11% per annum over the three-year
performance period, which is in line with
the performance ranges set pre. pandemic
(these having been temporarily increased
during the pandemic to take into account
the reduced base level resulting from the
impact of the pandemic). The Committee
considers this to be appropriately
challenging in the context of the Group's
strategic plan, external market factors and
broker forecasts. No changes are proposed
to the TSR benchmarks and relative TSR
performance range {median-upper quartite).
It is proposed to maintain the ROIC range
for that element of the executive Drectors’
2023 LTIP at 1756-20%. to reflect our latest
expectations for performance over the
three-year performance period. For the
annual bonus. the EBITA performance
range has been set at -1.6% to 13.0% of
target. and the year-end working capital
performance range is set at =6.0%

of target. These reflect the continued
economic volatility externally, and potential
residual impact of the recent cyber incident,
and the potential wnpact on performance
outcomes. Annual bonus targets are
considered to be commeraially sensitive

at this time but will ordinarily be disclosed
in next year's Remuneration Report.
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This Report is consistent with the current
reporting regulations for executive
remuneraticn and, as in prior years.
includes a Remuneration at a glance section
summansing the key elements of executive
Director remuneration. { hope we have
been successful in continuing to achieve the
clarity and transparency that will be of help
to our shareholders.

Helen Bunch
Committee Chair




Remuneration at a glance

v ——

Components of remuncration

@ Salary

@ Arnual borus  + LTIP

Key features of how our executive remuneration policy will be implemented in 2023

Fixed components

+ @ Pension and Benefits = @ Fixed total

+
— @ Vanable total

Total remuneration

Base salary
Pete Raby (CEO)

Richard Armitage
(CFC)

£620,000
£442,000

Policy

Executive Directors’ salaries are generally reviewed
each January. with reference to individual and Group
performance, experience and salary levels at companies
of similar sector, size and complexity.

Pension and other benefits

Pension
Pete Raby (CEO)

Richard Armitage
(CFG)

8% of salary

8% of salary

Benefits (estimated values)

Pete Raby (CEQ) £13,847
Richard Armitage £12.960
(CFO)

Policy

Policy change approved at the 2022 AGM aligns pension
contributions (@and/or cash in lieu thereot) for executive
Directors with the level of contributions available to

the UK workforce from 3| December 2022 onwards.
Other benefits can include company car/car allowance.
health insurance and, where appropriate. relocation
allowances and other expenses.

Implementation

For 2023, executive Director pension contributions
are now fully aligned with those of the wider workforce
(89 based on UK population). Richard Armitage’s
pension allowance was set at this level on appointment,
and for Pete Raby was reduced to this level in line

with our stated commitment to alignment from

3| December 2022.

Variable components, annhual bonuses

Maximum opportunities
for 2023
{no change)

Pete Raby (CEQ)
Richard Armitage

150% of salary
150% of salary

Performance measures
weighting

Cperating profit’ 40%

Year-end working  40%

Policy

Maximum award oppertunity: 150% of base salary
Performance measures are set by the Committee at the
start of the year and are weighted to reflect a balance
of financial and strategic objectives. 67/% of any annual
bonus paid is delvered in cash with the remainder

(CFO) capital deferred into shares and released after a further peried
Strategic personal  20% of three vears. 50% of the bonus opportunity is paid
cbjectives for on-target performance.

LTIP

Maximum opportunities Performance measures Policy

for 2023 weighting Maximum award oppertunity: 200% of base salary.

Pete Raby (CEQ) 200% of salary TSR vs. FTSE 15% The award levels and performance conditions on which
All-Share vesting depend are reviewed prior to the start of each

Richard Armitage
(CFO)

150% of salary

Industrials Index

TSR vs. peer group  15%

EPS growth 27.5%
Group ROIC 27.5%
ESG (carbon 15%
reduction}

award cycle to ensure they remain appropriate. Vested
shares are subject to a post-vesting holding period of
two years. The vesting of awards is usually subject to
continued ermployment and to the Group's perfermarce
over a three-year performance period. 25% of an
award vests for achievement of the threshold level

of performance.
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Pay at risk

Pete Raby (CEO) Richard Armitage {(CFO)
Fixed 24% Fixed 27%
@ Annual borus 33% @ Annual bonus 36.5%
LTIP 43% LTIP 36.5%
Variable 76% Variable 73%

Pay scenarios

Pete Raby (CEQ)

Stretch with 50%

. 53% : . £3,473k
share price increase
Stretch 43% - £2,853k
Target 21% £1,458k
Below threshold £683k

0 T e 2,000 3,000 4.000

Richard Armitage (CFO)

Streteh with 50%

T 46% £2,148k
share price increase
Stretch 36.5% £1,816k
Target 179  £988k
Below threshoid £490Kk

0 500 ©1000 1500 2,000 2500

@ varizble @ Fixed total (base salary, pension and benefits) @ Annual bonus LTiP
Shareholding requirements S S : e
Pete Raby (CEQ) 200% of salary Richard Armitage (CFO) 200% of salary
{current shareholding 270.1%) (current shareholding 29.5%)
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Remuneration report continued

This Report covers the period | January 2027 to 3t December 2022 and provides details of how the Remuneration Commitiee has
operated and implemented the Remuneration Policy. approved by shareholders at the 2022 AGM. during the year under review.
The proposed implementation of this Policy for the 2023 financial year 1s summarised on pages 91 to 93,

I. Policy report

Key principles of the Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Committee aims to ensure that all executive remuneration packages offered by Morgan Advanced Materials are
competitive and designed to promote the long-term success of the Cormpany by ensuring that Morgan is able to attract. retain and
motivate executive Directors and senior executives of the right calibre to create value for sharehelders

The Commuttee ensures that a significant proportion of the total remuneration opportunity is performance-related, with an appropriate
balance between short-term and long-term performance, and is based on the achievement of measurable targets that are relevant to,
and support, the business strategy through the execution of the Policy.

The Remuneration Committee will keep the Remuneration Policy under periodic review to ensure it remains aligned with the Group's
strategy, reinforces the Group's culture, and is in line with the principles set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code in relation to
directors’ remuneration. This indudes ensuring that performance-related elements are transparent. stretching and rigorously applied.
as well as reflecting the views and guidance of institutional investors and their representative bodies.

Summary of Morgan Advanced Materials ple’s Remuneration Policy

This section of the Report sets out the current Remuneration Policy for executive Directors and non-executive Directors. This Policy
remains unchanged from that which was approved by shareholders at the Company’s AGM on 5 May 2022, and which is effective for

a period of up to three years from that date. The only updates o the Policy report published in the 202t Annual Report are: (i) page
numbers: (ii} the section on performance measure selection (which has been updated to relate to 2023 incentive cydles): and (il the pay
scenario charts {which have been updated to reflect the implementation of Policy for the 2023 financial year).

The Committee has developed the Remuneration Policy to be consistent with the six factors outlined in Provision 40 of the Code.
as set out below:

Clarity: Qur Policy is clear, and disclosures on our decision-making (in relation to policy and its implementation) are transparent.
The Committee also engages regularly with shareholders and employees to facilitate a greater understanding on a range of subjects,
including remuneration.

Simplicity: The Policy and the Committee’s approach to implementation is simple and well understood. The performance measures
used in the incentive plans are well aligned te the Group's strategy.

Risk: The Committee has ensured that remuneration arrangements do not encourage or reward excessive nsk taking by setting targets
to be stretching and achievable, with discretion to adjust formulaic bonus and LTIP outcomes.

Predictability: The range of outcomes under our Policy are quantifiable, clearly linked to defined performance outcomes, and capped.

Proportionality: The link of the performance measures to strategy and the setting of targets ensures outcomes are propertionate to
performance. and importantly do not reward poor performance.

Culture: The Policy is consistent with the Group's culture, driving behaviours that promote the long-term and sustainable success of
the Group for the benefit of all stakeholders.
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Purpose and link
to strategy

Fixed pay

Operation

Opportunity

Performance metrics

Base salary

Provides the fixed
element of the
remuneration package,
Set at competitive levels
against the market.

Pension

Provides post-retirernent
benefits for participants
in a cost-effioent manner,

Benefits

Designed to be
competitive 1n the
market in which the
individual is employed.

Base salaries are generally
reviewed each January, with
reference to an individual's
performance {and that of

the Group as a whole),

their experience, and the range
of salary increases applying
across the Group.

The Committee also considers
salary levels at companies

of similar sector, size

and complexity when
determining increases.

LCefined contribution
scheme fand/or a cash
allowance in lieu thereof).

Can include cormpany car/car
allowance, health insurance and,
where appropriate. relocation
allowzances and other expenses.

Qur policy is to pay salaries that are
broadly market-aligned, with increases
appled in line with the outcome of
the annual review. Salaries in respect
of the year under review (and for the
following year) are disclosed in the
Anrnual Report on Remuneration.

Salary increases for executive Directors
will normally be within the range of
increases for the general employee
population over the period of this
Policy. Where increases are awarded

in excess of those for the wider
employee population, for example in
instances of sustained strong individual
performance. if there is a material
change in the responsibility, size or
complexity of the role, or if an individual
was intentionally appointed on a
below-market salary, the Committee
will provide the rationale in the relevant
year's Annual Report on Remuneration.

For current executive Directors from
31 December 2022 onwards, and for
new executive Direciors on
appointment, contributions {or cash

in lieu thereof) will be aligned with the
leve! of contribution available to the
UK workforce at that time.

Benefits values vary by role and
are reviewed periodically relative
to the market.

Itis not anticipated that the cost of
benefits provided will change materially
year on year over the period for which
this Palicy will apply.

The Committee retains the discretion
to approve a higher cost in exceptional
circumstances (e g relocation expenses.
expatriate allowances etc.) or in
cireumstances where factors outside the
Group's control have changed materially

{e.g. market increases in insurance costs),

Benefits in respect of the year under
review are disclosed in the Annual
Report on Remuneration.

An executive Director’s
performance {and that of the
Group as a whole) and also
their demonstration of the
defined leadership behaviours.
are taken into account when
making decisions in relation

to base salary.

MNot applicable.

Not applicable.
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Remuneration report continued

Purpose and link
to strategy

Variable pay

Operation

Opportunity

Performance metrics

Annual bonus

Provides a direct link
between annual

performance and reward,

Incentivises the
achievement of key
specific goals over the
short term that are also
aligned to the long-term
business strategy.

Deferred bonus supports
retention and provides
additional alignment

with the interests

of shareholders.

Performance measures are set
by the Committee at the start
of the year and are weighted
to reflect o balance of fimancial
and strategic objectives.

At the end of the year, the
Remuneration Committee
determines the extent to which
these have been achieved.

To the extent that the
performance criteria have been
met. up to 67% of the resulting
annual bonus 1s paid in cash.
The remaining balance 15
deferred into shares and
released after a further period
of three years, subject to
continued employment only.

Cash and deferred share
bonruses awarded for
performance will be subject to
malus and clawback until the
end of the deferral pericd.
Further details of our Malus
and Clawback Policy are set
out at the end of this table.

Dividends may accrue over the
deferral period on deferred
shares that vest. Any dividends
that accrue will be paid in shares
at the end of the vesting period.

96 Morgan Advanced Materials ple Annual Report 7022

Up o 150% of salary,

The payout for threshold
performance may vary year on
year but will not exceed 25% of
the maximurm opportunity.

Bonuses for the executive
Directors may be based on

a combination of financial

and non financial measures.
The weighting of nen-financial
performance will be capped
at 30% of the maximum
opportunity.

The Committee retains
discretion to adjust the bonus
outcome if it considers that
the payout is inconsistent with
the Company’s underlying
performance when taking
into account any factors it
considers relevant.

Further detalls are set out in the
Arnnual Report on Remuneration
on pages 102 to 116,



Purpose and link
to strategy Operation
Long-Term Incentive
Plan (LTIP)

Aligns the interests of
executives and
shareholders with
sustaned long-term
value creation.

Incentivises participants to
manage the business for
the long term and deliver

the Company's strategy. of two years

The Remuneration Committee
has the authority each year to
grant an award under the LTIP.

The award levels and
performance conditions on
which vesting depends are
reviewed prior to the start

of each award cyde to ensure
they remain appropriate.
Vested shares are subject

to a post-vesting holding pericd

Opportunity

Awards are subject to malus
and/or clawback for a period of
five years from the date of grant.
Further details of our Malus and
Clawback Policy are set out at
the end of this table.

Dividends may accrue on vested
shares during the holding period.

Sharesave

Avoluntary scheme

open to all UK employees
which aligns the interests
of participants with those
of shareholders through
any growth in the value
of shares,

An HMRC-approved scheme
where employees may save

up to a monthly savings limit
out of tneir own pay towards
options granted at up to a 20%
discount. Opticns may not be
exercised for three years.

individual has enrolled.

Under the Policy. the LTIP provides
for a conditional award of shares up
to an annual limit of 200% of salary.

25% of an award vests for achievement
of the threshold level of performance

Up to the savings limit as determined
by HMRC from time to time, across
all Sharesave schemes in which an

Performance metrics

The vesting of awards is usually
subject to continued employment
and the Group's performance
over a three-year performance
period. Subject to shareholder
approval. this will be based on a
combination of TSR, FPS, ROICT
and ESG measures.

The Committee has discretion to
extend the performance pericd
and adjust the measures, their
welghting, and performance
targets prior 1o the start of each
cycle, 1o ensure they continue to
align with the Group's strategy.

The Committee also retains
discretion to adjust the vesting
outcome If it considers that the
level of vesting is inconsistent
with the Company's underly:ng
performance when taking

intc account any factors it
considers relevant.

Further details of the measures
attached to the LTIP awarded in
the year under review {and the
coming year) are set out in the
Annual Report on Remuneration
on pages 102 to |16,

MNone.

Malus and Clawback Policy

Malus and clawback will apply to the annual
bonus and LTIP {as set out above} in cases
of error in determining performance,
corporate fallure. misconduct or material
misstaternent in the published results of
the Group or where, as a result of an
appropriate review of accountability,

a participant has been deemed to have
caused in full or in part a material loss for
the Group as a result of reckless, negligent
or wilful actions or Inappropriate values

or behaviour, including (but not limited to)
significant breaches of EHS codes, fraud,
or other events which may cause serious
reputational damage. Cash bonuses will be
subject to clawback, with deferred shares

subject to malus over the deferral perod.
LTIP awards are subject to malus and
clawback over the vesting period 10 the
fifth anniversary of grant.

Payments under existing awards

The Company will honour any commitment
entered into, and Directors will be ehgible
to receive payment from any award
granted, pricr to the approval and
implementation of the Remuneration
Policy detailed in this Report (i.e. before

5 May 2022), even if these commitments
and/or awards fall outside the above

Palicy. The Company will alse honour any
comnutment entered into at a time prior to
an individual becoming a Director if, in the
opinion of the Committee. the payment
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was not in consideration of the individual
becoming a Director of the Company.
Details of these awards will be disclosed
i the Annual Report on Remuneration.

Difference in policy between
executive Directors and

other employees

The Remuneration Policy for other
employees is based on princip'es broadly
consistent with these described in this
Report for the executive Directors’
remuneration. Annual salary reviews
across the Group take into account
individual and business performance,
demonstration of the defined leadership
behaviours. experience, local pay and
market conditions. and salary levels for
similar roles in comparable companies.




Remuneration report continued

All executives are ehgible to participate in
an annual borius scheme. Opportunities
and performance measures vary by
organisational level, geographical region and
an individual's role. Other senior executives
participate in the LTIP on similar terms to
the executive Directors, although award
sizes and performance measures may

vary according to each individual. and by
organisational fevel. Below this leve!,
executives are eligible to participate in

the LTIP and other share-based incentives
by annual invitation.

Use of discretion

To ensure fairness and align executive
Director remuneration with underlying
individual and Group performance, the
Committee may exercise its discretion

to adjust. upwards or downwards, the
outcomne of any short- or long-term
incentive plan payment (within the imits

of the relevant Plan Rules) for corporate or
exceptional events including, but not limited
to: corporate transactions. changes in the
Group's accounting policies, minor or
administrative matters. internal promaotions,
external recruitment. and terminations.
Any adjustments in light of corporate events
will be made on a neutral basis, meaning
that they will not be to the benefit or
detriment of participants.

Any use of discretion by the Commuttee
during the financial year under review will
be detailed in the relevant Annual Report
on Remuneration,

Performance measure selection
The Committee considers carefully the
selection of performance measures at the
start of each performance cycle, taking
into consideration the macro-economic
environment as well as specific Group
strategic objectives.

Annual bonus measures are selected to
closely reinforce the Group's short-term
KPls. Because these can change from year
to year {in line with the Remuneration
Policy}, information on the rationale for
the selection of bonus measures for each
year will be detailed in the relevant year's
Annual Report on Remuneration.

LTIP performance meazsures are reviewed
periodically to ensure they continue to
align with the Company’s strategy,

as well as provide an appropriate balance
between growth and returns, internal and
external performance, and absclute and
relative performance.

For 2023 awards. the TSR element of the
LTIP award will continue to comprise two
parts. One half of the TSR element will
vest subject to the Group's performance
relative 1o a TSR benchmark cormprising
the 83 constituents of the FTSE All-Share
Industrials Index. This benchmark is robust
to merger and acguisition activity and
comprises campanies that are subject to
the same market influences as Morgan
Advancee Materials plc. The remaining
half of the TSR element will vest subject

to Morgan's performance relative to

a TSR benchmark comprising {5 listed
international carbon, cerarmics and other
materizls companies. This benchmark was
selected to complement the FTSE All-Share
Industrials Index with a group of companies
that better reflect Morgan's business, the
markets in which Morgan operates and
the geographical footprint of the Group
For each part of the TSR award, the
vesting performance range is calibrated to
be stretching and in line with commeon
market practice for FTSE TSR-based
long-term incentives.

EPS targets are set taking account of
multiple relevant reference points, including
internal forecasts, external expectations

for future EPS performance at both Morgan
Advanced Materials plc and 1its dosest
sector peers, and typical EPS performance
ranges at other FTSE 350 companies.

LTIP EPS performance ranges are set to
represent dermanding and challenging
performance targets over the three-year
performance pericd.

ROIC targets are set using a similar
approach to the EFS targets, after
consideration of external reference points
and reflecting the returns required to meet
and exceed the Group's internal strategic
plan. For the 2023 LTIP ¢yde, ROIC will
continue to be calculated as follows:

Group headline operating profit
(pre-specific adjusting itemis}
12-month average {third-party working
capital — total fixed assets + total
intangible fixed assets)

The ESG measure is based on the
percentage reductior in CO_ emissions,
with targets aligned to Morgan's overall
strategic goals.
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Share ownership guidelines

In order to encourage alignment with
shareholders, executive Directors are
required to build and maintain an individual
shareholding in the Company equivalent to
at least 200% of base salary, The required
level of shareholding is expected to be
achieved within five years of an executive
Director's appointment. Executive
Directors' shareholdings are reviewed
annually by the Comimittee to ensure
progress 1s being made towards
achievement of the guideline level of
shareholding. If it becomes apparent to

the Committee that the guideling s
unlikely to be met within the timeframe,
the Committee will discuss with the
Director a plan to ensure that the guideline
is met over an acceptable timeframe.

From 2019, executive Directors have alse
been subject to a post-employment
shareholding requirement. Executive
Directors are required to hold shares at

a level equal to the lower of the share
ownership requirement or the actual
shareholding on departure for a pernod of
one year from departure date. Morgan’s
relatively short business cycle ensures the
Board has good visibility within a 12-month
period of the quality of decision-making
and, in addition, unvested awards for good
leavers subsist to the normal vesting date
(albeit pro-rated for time). ensuring
incentive outcomes remain linked to
Morgan's performance beyond the date
of cessation. The Comrmittee retains the
discretion to modify the post-employment
shareholding requirement in certain,
extraordinary circumstances; for example.
on a change of control during the period
or if a conflict of interest arises with an
executive Director's next appontment.

Current executive Director shareholdings
are set out in the Annual Report on
Remuneration on page [

External appointments

With the approvai of the Board in each
case. and subject to the overriding
reguirements of the Group, executive
Cirectors may accept external
appeintments as non-executive Drectors
of other companies and retain any fees
received. Details of external directorships
held by executive Directors along with fees
retained are provided in the Annual Report
on Remuneration on page |07



Pay-for-performance: scenario analysis

The graphs below provide detailed illustrations of the potential future reward opportunty for executive Directors, and the potential mix
between the different elements of remuneration under four different performance scenarios; 'Below threshold'. "Target’, 'Stretch’ and
‘Stretch with 509% share price appreciation’. These have been updated to illustrate the potential opportunity under the 2023 packages

approved for executive Directors.

Pete Raby (CEO)

Stretch with 50%

£3,473k
share price increase
Stretch £2,853k
Target
Below threshold £683k
a 1.000 2.000 3,000 4,000

@ Fixed total (base salary, pension and benefitsy @ Annual bonus

Richard Armitage (CFO}

Stretch with S0%

A 46% £2,148k
share price increase
Stretch 36.5% - £1,816k
Target © 7% £988k
Below threshold £490k
© 500 1,000 1,506 2,000 2,500

LTIP

The potential reward opportunities illustrated above are within the 2022 Policy applied to the annual base salary in effect at | January
2023, For the annual bonus, the amounts illustrated are those potentially receivable in respect of performance for 2023 (before mandatery
deferral into shares), The LTIP is based on the face value of awards to be granted in 2023 (2009 of salary for the CEO and 150% for

the CFO). It should be noted that any awards granted under the LTIP in a year do not normally vest until the third anniversary of the date
of grant. This illustration is intended 1o provide further information to shareholders on the relationship between executive pay and
performance. The value of the LTIP assumes no change in the underiying value of the shares once an award is made, apart from in the
“Stretch with 50% share price appredation’ scenario The following assumptions have been made in compiling the above charts:

Scenario Annual bonus
Stretch with 50% share
price appreciation

Maximum annual bonus.

Stretch Maximum annual bonus.

Target Oni-target annual bonus.

Below threshold No annual bonus payable.

LTIP

Performance warrants full
vesting {100% of the award).
LTIP award value has additionally
been uplifted by 50%.
Performance warrants full
vesting (100% of the award).

Fixed pay

Latest disclosed base salary,
pensicn and benefits.

Performance warrants threshold
vesting (25% of the award).

Nil vesting,

Details of executive Directors’ service contracts

The executive Directors are employed under contracts of employment with Morgan Advanced Materials plc. Contracts may be terminated
on 12 months' notice given by the Company or on six months’ notice given by the executive Director concerned, The following table
shows the date of the contract for each executive Director who served during the year:

Date of service Notice perod

Executive Director Posiien Date of appointment agreement From employer From employee
Pete Raby CEO I August 2015 30 January 2015 |12 months 6 months
Peter Turner Former CFO Il April 2016 30 March 2016 12 months 6 monrths
(stepped down from
the Beard 30.05.22)
Richard Armitage CFO 30 May 2022 16 September 2021 12 months 6 months

Exit Payments Policy

The Group's policy on exit payments is to limit severance payments on termination to pre-established contractual arrangements
comprising base salary and any other statutory payments only. In the event that the employment of an executive Director 1s terminated,
any compensation payable will be determined in accordance with the terms of the service contract between the Company and the

employee. as well as the rules of any incentive plans
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Remuneration report continued

The Group may terminate the employment of an executive Director by making a payment in lieu of notice equal to base salary, together
with the fair value of any other benefits to which the execulive 15 contractually entitled under his or her service agreement, for the duration
of the notice period.

The Remuneration Committee will exercise discretion in making approptiate payments in the context of cutplacement or the settling of
legal claims or potential legal claims by the departing executive Director, including any other amounts reascnably owing to the executive
Director, for example, to meet legal fees incurred by the executive Director in connection with the termination of employment. where the
Company wishes to enter inlo & seltlenment agreement and the individual must seek independent legal advice.

On termination of an executive Director's service contract, the Remuneration Committee will consider the departing Director's duty to
mitigate his or her toss when determining the timing of any payment in leu of notice. There is no automatic entitlement to bonus or the
vesting of long-term incentives on termination. However. the table that foliows summarises the Policy on how awards under the annual
bonus. LT1F and deferred bonus plan will nermally be treated in specific circumstances. with the final treatment remaining subject 1o
Committee discretion:

Treatment of awards on cessation of employment and a change of control
Reason for cessation Calculation of vesting/payment Time of vesting

Annual bonus

All reasons The Committee may determine that a bonus s payable on
cessation of employment, and the Committee retains
discretion to determine that the bonus should be paid
wholty In cash. The amount of bonus payable will be
determined in the context of the time served during the
performance year, the performance of the Group and
of the individual over the relevant period, and the
arcumstances of the Director’s loss of office. If Group or
individual performance has been poor, or if the individual's
employment has been terminated in circumstances
amounting to misconduct, no benus will be payable.

Mandatory deferred bonus share awards

Injury, disability, death, redundancy.  Awards will normaily vest in full {i.e. not pro-rated At the normal vesting date, unless the
retirement, or other such event as for time). Committee decides that awards should
the Committee determines vest earlier (e.g. in the event of death),
Change of control Awards will normaliy vest in full {i.e. not pro-rated for On change of control.

time). Awards may alternatively be exchanged for
equivalent replacement awards. where appropriate.

All other reasons Awards normally lapse. Not applicable.
LTIP awards

Injury, disability, death. redundancy. Awards will normally be pro-rated for time and will vest At the normal vesting date, unless the

retirement. or other such event as based on performance over the criginal performance Committee deaides that awards should

the Committee determines period (unless the Committee decides to measure vest earlier (e.g. In the event of death).
performance to the date of cessation).

Change of control LTIP awards will be pro-rated for time and wil! vest On change of control.
subject to performance over the performance period
to the change of control, LTIP awards may alternativety
be exchanged for equivalent replacement awards,
where appropriate.

All other reasons Awards normally lapse. Not applicable.

The Remuneration Committee retains discretion. where permitted by the plan rules, to alter these default provisions on a case-by case
basis, following a review of circumstances and to ensure fairness for both shareholders and participarits.
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Appruach Lo recruitment remuneration

External appointment

In cases of hiring or appointing a new executive Director from cutside the Group, the Committee may make use of all existing
components of remuneration, as follows:

Pay clement Policy an recrutmenit Maximum

Salary Based on: the size and nature of the responsibilities of the proposed role. current -
market pay levels for comparable roles, the candidate's experience, implications for
total remuneration, internal relativities, and the candidate’s current salary.

Pension Option to join the defined contribution scheme available to the wider workforce. In line with
If the executive Director is ineligible te jcin the standard defined contribution scheme. Policy limits.
the Company may grant a cash allowance of equivatent value.

Benefits As described in the Policy table and may include, but are not fimited to, car. medical -
insurance, and relocation expenses and/or allowances.

Sharesave New appointees will be eligible 1o participate on identical terms to all other Up to HMRC limits.
UK employees.

Annual bonus As described in the Policy table and typically pro-rated for the proportion of the year Up to 1509 of salary.
served; performance rmeasures may include strategic and operational objectives tallored
to the individual in the financial year of joining,

LTIP New appointees may be granted awards under the LTIP on similar terms to Up to 2009% of salary.
other executives.

Other The Remuneration Committee may make an award under a different structure under -
the relevant Listing Rule to replace incentive arrangements forfeited on leaving a previous
employer. Any such award would have a fair value no higher than that of the awards
forfeited. taking into account relevant factors including performance conditions, the
likelihood of those conditions being met and the proportion of the vesting period
remaining. Details of any such award will be disclosed in the first Annual Report on
Remuneration following its grant.

Internal promotion to the Board

In cases of appointing a new executive Directer via internal promotion. the Policy will be consistent with that for external appointees
detailed above, Where an individual has contractual commitments made prior to their promation to executive Director, the Company
will continue to honour these arrangements even if there are instances where they would not otherwise be consistent with the prevailing
executive Director Remuneration Policy at the time of promaotion.

Chairman and non-executive Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Purpose and link to strategy Operation Cpportunity Performance metrics
Annual fee Annual fees paid te the Chairman Annual fees are applied in None.
and non-executive Directors line with the outcome of

To attract and retain high-calibre

are reviewed periodically. An each periodic review,
non-executive Directors.

additional fee 15 payable to the
Senior Independent Director.
and also in respect of chairing
a Board Committee.

Currently paid 100% in cash.

I The maximum ager cgale anni fee ‘or al' non-exec. ive Drectorns pndud ng she Charmans as proviced inthe Company s Articles of Assocation s £750.000

None of the non-executive Directors has a service contract with the Company. They do have letters of appointment. The non-executve
Directors do not participate in any of the incentive, share or share option plans. The dates relating to the appointments of the Chairman
and non-executive Directors who served during the reporting period are as follows:

Date of letter of

Non-executive Drector  Posttion Date of appointment appointrrent Date of re-election
Douglas Castet Chairman |4 February 2014 I5 jJanuary 2014 5 May 2022
Helen Bunch Non-executive Director 24 February 2016 19 January 2016 5 May 2022
Laurence Mulhez Senior independent Director 6 May 2016 4 April 2016 5 May 2022
lane Aikman Non-executive Director 31 July 2017 27 April 2017 5 May 2022
Clement Woon Non-executive Director |G May 2019 7 May 2019 5 May 2022
I Donglas Canter recened a sabseauent lstier o appoantrme t on 18 December 20 1#
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Remuneration report continued

Consideration of stakeholder views

The Executve Management team seeks to promote and maintain good relations with employee representative bodies  including trade
dnions and works councils  as part of its broader employee engagement strategy and consults on matters affecting employees and
business performance as required in each case by law and regulation in the jurisdictions in which the Group cperates. When making
deqisions on executive remuneration, the Committee considers the pay and empioyment conditions across the Group. Engagement with
employees on remuneration is currently achieved through non executive Director employee listening sessions where employees have the
opportunity to raise issues. The non-executive Directors undertook several employee listening sessions in 2022, to ensure that the Board
understands the views of employees and the impact its decisions have on them, They engaged with the employees on a broad range of
topics, including reward and benefits. Detals of these employee listening sessions can be found on pages 72 to 73. In addition, we
undertake an annual engagement survey. "Your Voice' in order to better understand the views of a wider range of employees. The
engagement survey includes a range of specific questions on the Company's pay practices and presents an opportunity for the worklorce
to share feedback and ask its own guestions about employee or executive reward. Through the feedback from the engagement survey,
supplemented with the learnings from the employee listening sessions, the voice of Morgan employees is heard al Remuneration
Committee meetings. This enables the Rermuneration Committee to take into account the views of employees when considering
executive remuneration and the pay and employment conditions throughout the wigder workforce. Laurence Mulliez. our Senior
Independent Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee, attended a listening session in March 2023 with employees on
the Ignite and Catalyst leadership programmes specifically focused on reward and executive remuneration. It was a useful session: the
employees were reassured to hear about the Board's rigour around fairness for the consideration of reward for the Executive Directors
in line with that of the wider workforce. In the UK, engagement s further facilitated by the Sharesave programme, which enables UK
employees to become shareholders and provides them with the same voting rights as other shareholders in relation to resolutions for
approval at the AGM (and which include executive remuneration matters). Prior to the annual salary review, the Committee is provided
with pay increase data that individual business units consider when deciding local pay awards for their specific businesses and countries.
The Committee is also kept fully informed of remuneration policy and implementation decisicns affecting the wider workforce. This
important context forms part of the Committee's considerations for determining executive Director remuneration. See also the
Stakeholders section on pages 24 to 27.

The Committee considers shareholder views received during the year and at the AGM each year. as well as guidance from investor
representative bodies more broadly, in shaping and implementing Morgan's Remuneration Policy. The Committee keeps the
Remuneraticn Policy under regular review, 1o ensure it continues to reinforce the Group's long-term strategy and aligns executive
Directors' interests with those of sharenolders. It is the Committee's policy to consult with major shareholders prior to any major changes
to its executive Remuneration Policy.

2. Annual report on remuneration

The following section provides details of how the Remuneration Policy was implemented during the year and will be implemented
n 2023.

Single total figure of remuneration for executive Directors (audited)
The table below sets out a single figure for the totai remuneration received by each executive Director for the year ended 3| December
20227 and the prior year,

Pete Raby Richard Armitage Peter Turner’
2022 2021 o 2022 2021 2022 2021

I. Salary £596.00° £581 175 £249,551 n/a £176,421 £426.160
2. Pension £104,000 £104,000 £19,964 n/a £33,168 £80.120
3. Benefits £13,637 £13,644 £8,378 n/a £5,188 £12,242
Fixed pay subtotal £713,637 698,819 £277,893 n/a £214,777 £518,522
4. Bonus £246,708 £845.,610 £102,623 n/a £78,320 {620,063
5. LTIP £696,494 497.238 n/a n/a £427,683 £372,792
6. Other £1,800 - £444,800 n/a - -
Variable pay subtotal £945,002 £1,342,848 £547,423 n/a £506,003 £992.855
Total £1,658,639 £2,041.667 £825,316 n/a £720,780 £1.511,377

Richard Arnitage joined the Board or 30 May 2022 His renuner anon for 2022 reflects the penod 30 May to 31 December 2022
2 Peter Turrer stepoed down from tae Boatd on 30 May 2022 and tetired flam the 5 oup or 30 June 2022 His remn. ne-ation for 2022 10 the table above reflecs the peraod - Janccry to

My 2024, with the exce mon of LTIP which reflects he full value of the sro-rated 2020 UTIP sevard thal 1s expectec 1o vest 4 o ng 2003

The figures have been calculated as follows:

I. Base salary: amount earned for the year.

2. Pension: the figure is a cash allowance in lieu of pension.

3. Benefits: the texable value of benefits received in the year. Inciudes private medical insurance and a company ¢ar (or car allowance).
Pete Raby's 2022 private medical insurance has been trued up from the number indicated in the Remuneration at a glance section in
last year's annual report. based on October policy renewal.
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4. Bonus: the total bonus earned on performarce during the year {before any mandatory deferral into shares). Richard Armitage and
Peter Turner were eligible for a pro-rata bonus in relation to the 2022 financial year. Peter Turner’s payment will be made wholly in
cash as disclosed in 1ast year's annual report.

5. LTIP: the estimated value on 31 December 2022 of 2020 LTIP shares vesting in 2023, subject to performance over the three-year
period ended 3t December 2022. Richard Armitage. who joined Morgan in 2022, did not participate in this LTIP cycle. Figures are
based on the average share price for the three months to 31 Decernber 2022 of 282 90p. The value of Peter Turner’s award has been
pra-rated for time based on the proportion of the performance pertod worked. The figure for 2021 has been trued up from that
disclosed in last year's Remuneration Report to reflect the share price on the vesting date (21 March 2022) of 312.60p. The impact
of share price moverment on the vesting value of Pete Raby's and Peter Turner's 2020 LTIP award is as follows {Peter Turner's figures
have been pro-rated):

7 ) o Pele Raby Peter Turner

Value of awards vesting using share price at award (234.7p) £577,827 £354,815
(362,377 shares x 67.94% x 234.7p) (222,518 shares x 67,94% x 234.7p)

Value of awards vesting using three-month average £696 494 £427.683
share price at 31 December 2022 {282.50p) {362,377 shares x 6/.94% x 282.90p) {(222.518 shares x 6/.94% x 282.90p)
Impact of share price movements on vesting values £118,667 £72.868

6. Other: For Pete Raby and Richard Armitage comprises the value (£1,800) of Sharesave options granted in the year, based on the
embedded value at grant (20% of the grant-date share price multiplied by the number of options granted). For Richard Armitage,
in addition to Sharesave options, ‘'other’ includes a one-time award of restricted shares with a face value on grant of £443,000, granted
in 2022 following his appointment to offset forfeited bonus from his prior employer. The face value of the award is higher {by £33.000)
than that disclosed in the 2021 Annual Report due to Mr Armitage’s forfeited bonus being higher than originally expected. This award is
due to vest to Mr Armitage at the end of May 2023, on the first anniversary of grant,

Incentive outcomes for the year ended 31 December 2022

Annual bonus in respect of 2022 performance

Targets for the annual bonus are set by the Remuneration Committee, taking into account the short- and long-term requiremenits of the
Group. Challenging goals are set, which must be met before any bonus is paid. This approach is intended to align executive reward with
shareholder returns by rewarding the achieverment of 'stretch’ targets.

For 2022, the benus targets for the executive Directors were split between Group headline operating profit before restructuring
{weghted 40%). cash generation (weighted 409%) and individual strategic personal objectives (weighted 20%). The targets were set
to Incentivise the executive Directors to deliver stretching profit and cash performance for the Group. Performance in line with target
results in a payout of 50% of maximum.

In addition to the achievement of the targets set, in considering any awards 10 be made, the Committee also takes into account the quality
of the overalt performance of the Group.

The table that follows sets out retrospectively the assessment of performance relative to the 2022 bonus targets for the executive
Directors. Actual bonus payments are shown in the single total figure of remuneration table on page 102.

Performance range

Actual
% of maximum Threshold Maximum performance Yo payout
Performance measure bonus element {0% payout} {100% payout) outcome of element 9 salary earned
Group headlineg operating profit’ 40% [31.2m 152 4m [36.3m 24.0% 14.4%,
Cash generation 40% [53.2m 178, 1m [31.8m 0% 0%
Persanal objectives
Pete Raby 20% Please see narrative below for 90% 27%
Peter Turner’ 20%, further detalls on objectives and 1009% 309%
Richard Arrnitage’ 20% performance agamnst these 950% 27%
Masimum % of salary earned

bonus Group headline Cash Personal
Overall cutcorme (% salary) operating profit! generaton objectives  Total outcome Total payable
Pete Raby 150% [4.4% 0% 27% 41.4% £246.708
Peter Turner! 150% 14.4% 0% 30% 44.4% £78.320
Richard Armitage’ 150% |4.4% 0% 27% 41.4% £102,623
| For the 2ot t Mmoo tiere was o straight-lne payont between the threshald and max mum fpues All igaries we-e Caleulated vung 2022 bucgeted exchange ates
2 Peter Turner stepped down fron the Board on 20 Max 2027 and retree frem the Group on 30 June 7072 he was elgin ¢ for a pro rated bonas paymient sased on the proporton

of e year worked, Tae bonue payment valae ir -he table above reiwies to e penod | Janud y 1o 30 May 2022 rerrone atior for the oenoc 21 Mav to 20 June 2022 s covered in the
Exit paymisnts fMac 1N pez sect on on page 106

3 Rienard Artage iored the Group a1 30 May 2020 ard wds 2lgic £ 101 ¢ o tated bonus payrient ased or 18 praporion of the vearn wo ked
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Remuneration report continued

For 2022, personal objectives continucd to be sct for each executive Director inthe key arcas of: ESG (comprising Health, Safety &
Erwvironment. and People & Culture), Morgan's strategic delivery. and other identified pricrities for the year.

Collective goals for 2022 {(which applied to each executive Director} included:

I. Continue to develop and embed Morgan's culture of safety and environmental responsibility, driving the implementation of our
thinkSAFE” training programme to plan, reducing the Group's LTA rate below 0.2 and deliver progress against cur environmenial
commitments, and

2. Deliver progress against approved plans to create a diverse and inclusive workforce and encourage an open and positive culture.
and deploy a revised leadership training programme to plan and build a strong succession pipelfine.

In addition to the above, the following individuat objectives were set for Pete Raby:

|. Complete market and prospect identification and develop an M&A pipeline that reflects a good strategic fit either by adding to our
presence in our four faster growing markets or providing consolidation opportunities in our core

2. Lead the development of a common Veice of the Customer programme, to be rolled out and identified priority areas addressed
to plan

3. Refresh our investor proposition and communications (including the ESG strategy) and deliver to investors through the year and
through a specific capital markets event. and

4, Complete a scoping and sizing project to confirm the ERP platform choice, system scope and high level deployment plan.
In addition to the collective goals identified above. Peter Turner’s and Richard Armitage's individual objectives for 2022 were to;
t. Conclude the ongomng execution of plans to strengthen the control environment and prepare for UK 5Ox legislation, and

2. Establish metrics and review processes to track, manage and deliver pricing increases that compensate for inflationary increases such that
pricing plus continuous improvernent is greater than cost inflation plus reinvestment, to maintain or increase GBU and Group margins.

Peter Turner had an additional cbjective to support an efficient and effective handover of responsibilities to the incoming CFO

Performance of our leaders 1s assessed against all expectations of the role, specific personal objectives that are set and how outcomes are
delivered with reference tc our defined leadership behaviours.

Taking into account all of these considerations in the round, the personal performance element has been assessed at 20% of the
maximum to reflect Pete Raby's delivery against the agreed strategic objectives and the leadership behaviours demonstrated in doing so.
Despite a challenging operating environment, Mergan continued to deliver organic revenue growth and operating margin expansion.
Safety training was deployed within all plants to plan, and the robustness of plant-level safety practices was enhanced. Good progress
continues to be made towards our sustainability goals. with absolute CO. emissions reducing throughout the year, and further process
and infrastructure improvements being completed to drive water efficiency. The Company continues to prioritise its focus on diversity,
establishing further employee resource groups - Military@Morgan and Prism (supporting LGBTQ+ employees and their allies)  in
addition to Women@IMorgan. The completion of the Company’s employee engagement survey resulted in an improved engagement
score year on year and. lastly. the first capital market event in nearly ten years was held to lay cut an attractive investment proposition
for the Group.

In addition to the valued contributions by Richard Armitage and Peter Turner to the collective goals identified above, both individuals made
significant contributions during the year to driving operating margin expansion and led the substantial de-risking of the Company’s pension
position, In addition, Peter Turner fully delivered against the additional objective of supporting the CFC transition during the year. In light
of their excellent contribution and the extent to which the objectives were assessed to be met. the personal performance element of
Richard Armitage and Peter Turner’s bonuses has been assessed at 909 and 100% of the maximum respectively.

Performance against the objectives above is referred to further in the Chairman’s staterment and elsewhere within the Annual Report.

2019 Deferred Bonus Plan vesting

in 2019, 339 of the annual baonus earnad by Pete Raby and Peter Turner {for performance in the 2018 financial year) was deferred inte
shares under the Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP), in line with Morgan's Remuneration Policy. Dividends accrued over the deferral period on
the deferred shares that vested, and the dividends were paid in shares at the end of the vesting period. Detalls of the DBP awards which
vested in 2022 to the executive Directors are set out in the table below:

Number
Number of of dvidend  Total number Market value at  Market value at
DEF shares reinvestment  of DBP shares grant vesting
Director Date of grant granted shares vested £ £ Date of vesting
Pete Raby 19 March 2019 65,358 4,719 70,077 2.6812 3.126 18 March 2022
Peter Turner (retired from
the Group 30.06.22) 19 March 2019 50,351 3.634 53,985 26812 3.126 18 March 2022
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2020 LTIP award vesting

Awards granted to executive Directors in 2020 were subject to relative TSR performance, EPS growth and Group ROIC over

a three-year period ended 31 December 2022, The EPS target (applying to one-third of each award) required three-year EPS growth
of 4% per annum for 25% of that element to vest, rising to full vesting for EPS growth ot 119 per annum or higher. Gver the period
Morgan Advanced Materials plc's actual EPS growth was 6.65%, which results in a 17.79% vesting for this element.

The TSR element (applying to one-third of each award) required Morgan Advanced Materials plc’s three-year TSR pertormance to rank

at median against two comparator groups {equally sphity - the FTSE All-Share Industrials Index and a tailored comparator group comprising
I5 listed international carbon, ceramics and other matenals companies - for 25% of that element to vest, nsing to full vesting if Morgan
Advanced Materials plc's TSR ranked at or above the upper quartile against these two comparators.

Morgan Advanced Matenals plc's TSR was [1.3%, which was at the 64th percentile versus the F1SE All-Share Industrals Index and at the
54th percentile versus the tailored comparater group. Accordingly, this results in a 16.83% vesting for the TSR element of the award.

The Group ROIC target {applying to the remaining one-third of each award) required three-year Group ROIC of 17% for 25% of that
element to vest. rising to full vesting for Group ROIC of 20% or higher. Morgan Advanced Materials plc's Group ROIC was 20%, and
accordingly this results in a 33.32% vesting for the ROIC” element of the award.

This combined performance resulted in a partial vesting of the 2020 awards equivalent to 67.94% of maximum. The vesting outcome 1s
considered by the Committee to appropriately reflect business performance. Executive Directors” 2020 LTIP awards were granted later in
the year than usual (5 Octeber 2020) to allow the share price 1o recover from the general stock market downturn initially experienced at
the cnset of the pandemic, therefore reducing the risk of windfall gains resulting from a material bounce back in share price at vesting.

The Committee will review the actual gain at the time of vesting (5 October 2023) to ensure a significant windfall does not arise.

Details of the awards to executive Directors are set out in the table below:

Maxirmurn Maximum Estimated LTIP-CSOP

potential  potential LTIP-  Estimated LTIP LTIP-CSOP! award
Drrector LTI award  CSOF award  award vestng  award vesting exercsing Date of vesting
Pete Raby 362,377 - 246,198 - - 5 October 2023
Peter Turner’ 211,866 10,652 143,541 7,237 — 5 October 2023

1 CSOP refers to the Company Shase Ootion Plan further in‘ormation is inc uded in the Detads of plans section later orn this ~epart

2 nline with e provisions of the Policy, Peter Turen was treated as & good leave: 1 respect of outstancing LTIP awarcs Peter Turner's awa d wll therefore vest on 2 pro-rated basis

<a culated on the proportion of the 2o for mance perioc workec. Figures i the tzble reflect pro ration ta hs rew ement from the Groap or 20 June 3072
For the purpases of the 2020 LTIP award (and consistent with the approach taken in previous years). the financial results were adjusted
to neutralise the effects of closed businesses in 2020.

Pension (audited)

In 2022, Pete Raby and Peter Turner each received a cash allowance in lieu of pension of a fixed monetary value (unchanged since 2018).
Pete Raby's allowance was £104,000 and Peter Turner's was £33 168 (being the annualised allowance of £80.120. pro-rated for the period
| fanuary to 30 May 2022 when he stepped down from the Board). Peter Turner’s remuneration for the period 31 May to 30 June 2022 is
covered in the Exit payments made in year section on page 106. Richard Armitage received a cash allowance in lieu of pension of 8% of
base salary {pro-rated based on joining the Group on 30 May 2022). which is in Ine with the pension contribution available to the wider
UK workforce.

Non-executive Director fees (audited)
The table below sets out the fees received by each non-executive Director in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
prior year.

Douglas Caster Helen Bunch Laurcnce Mulhiez Jane Aikman Clerment Woon
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2071
£202,100 £197.166 £61,220 £59918 £61,220 £59.518 £61,220 £59918 £53,220 £51 918

Non-executive Directors do not receive any other fixed or variable pay. or benefits, in addition to their fee. Figures shown are inclusive
of additional fees of £8,000 payable to Laurence Mulliez as Senior independent Director and to Helen Bunch and Jane Atkman as
Committee Chairs.

Scheme interests awarded in 2022

2022 LTIP awards

In 2027, Pete Raby and Richard Armitage were granted awards under the | TIP as shown in the table below. The performance period for
the 2022 LTIP awards is | January 2022 to 31 December 2024. Vesting outcomes will continue to be assessed to ensure they reflect
business performance and will be adjusted as appropriate
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Value of awards at grart

Number of LTIP As 9% of 2022
bxecutve Drector - shares granted’ £ annualsed salary  Date of vesting
Pete Raby 414,320 [,192.000 200% 13 May 2025
Richard Armitage 207,587 637.500 150% 30 May 2025

Calculated asing Ui award prices of £2 577 and ¢ 3 574 boing Uw average shase price for the five dual ng oavs prior 1 the award dases (13 May 2022 ane 30 May 2042) for Puts Raby ard
[fghars foetape roopect o ly
The Committee discusses and reviews the performance criteria for new three-year LTIP awards before they are granted. For the awards
granted in 2022, the Commitlee considered the balance of measures in ight of the Group's business plan and shareholder feedback and
as part of the Remuneration Policy review decided to introduce an ESG metric (carbon reduction in terms of scope | and 2 emissions) 1o
further support Morgan's overall targets and purpose. The revised weightings across all performance measures are shown in the table
below. The TSR element continues to be split Into two parts. One- half of this element will vest based on Morgan's TSR performance
relative to the constituents of the FTSE All-Share Industrials Index and cne-half will vest based on Morgan's TSR performance relative
to a tallored comparator group of 15 industry comparators.

The table below sets out the targets attaching to the 2022 LTIP awards:

TSR vs FTSE All-Share % of award perform;sci % of award % of award Group 9% of award (Larii)cn % of award
Industrials Index that vests vs peel group  that vests  EPS growth that vests ROIC that vests  reduction) that vests
Uppe-r quartile 15% Upper quartile 15% 3% p;l 27.5% 20% 275%  15% 5%
Median 375% Median 3.75% 6% pa £.88% 1 7% 6.88% 5% 3.75%
Below median Nil Below median Nil < 6% pa Nil <17% MNit <5% Nl

For executive Directors. a two-year holding peried applies to any shares that vest 1n refation to the 2022 LTIF. Dividends accrue over this
holding period and will be paid on any shares that vest.

2022 Deferred Bonus Plan awards
In 20272, 33% of the annua! bonus results for Pete Raby and Peter Turner {for performance in the 2021 financial year) were deferred into
shares under the Deferred Bonus Plan {DBP), in line with Morgan's Remuneration Policy. The following DBP awards were granted:

Value of awards at gramt

Executive Director ) Number of DBP shares grantgd‘ Value of award £ Date of vesting
Pete Raby 89.853 281,870 21 March 2025
Peter Turner 65,887 206,688 21 March 2025

v Calculatec wning tne award orice of £3 137, bang the average share price for ~he five dealing cays prior to the award date (2t March 2022)

Recruitment award

As noted in {ast year's report and referenced in the footnote to the single figure table on page 102. Richard Armitage was granted a
one-time award of restricted shares with a face value of £443.000 to offset the bonus forfeited from his previous employer. This award will
vest after |2 months. conditional on Mr Armitage not having resigned or having been dismissed in specified circumstances. Details of the
award are set out below:

Value of awards at grant

Number of As % of 2022
Executive Dhrector shares granted £ annualised salary  Date of vesting
Richard Armitage 144,252 443,000 104% 30 May 2023

Ca culated using the award pice of £3.071 being the average snac price for the Tee dealing davs poorn 1o the award date (30 May 2022}

Exit payments made in year {audited)

Payments made to Peter Turner from | January to 30 May 2022 (when he stepped down from the Board) are captured in the single
figure table on page 102, and include the full estimated value of his pro-rated 2020 LTIP award which is due to vest in October 2023,

In relation to the period between 31 May 2022 and when he retired from the Group on 30 June 2022, Peter Turner received £60.903 i
remuneration, comprising salary, pension allowance, benefits and bonus pro-rated for this period. No other exit payments were made 1o
Peter Turner or other executive Directors during the 2022 financial year.

Payments to past Directors (audited)
No payments (other than those captured in the single figure table and above In relation to Peter Turner) were made to past Directors
curing the 2022 financial year.
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Fxternal appointments
Details of external appointments held by executive Directors and the fees retamed in 2022 are provided in the table below:

Executive Director Company Role Date of appointment  Fees paid & retained
Pete Raby Hill & Smith PLC Non-executive Director 2 December 2019 £53,840
Richard Armitage NWF Group PLC Senior Independent Director and 5 July 2020 £43,200

Chair of the Audit Committee

Implementation of Remuneration Policy for 2023

Base salary

in line with the Remuneration Policy, executive Directors' salaries were reviewed by the Commitiee and increased for 2023 at the rates
set out in the table below. As in previous years, the Group mamtained the formal link between performance and pay within the senior
leadership population n 2022; specifically, taking into account individual and Group performance, as well as salary relative to the relevant
market. The increases awarded to Pete Raby and Richard Armitage were calibrated in line with this. The Committee considered the strong
performance in their roles as well as the market positioning of their salanes, in determining to award increases. However, for 2023 the
increases awarded to our executive Directors were lower than the average increases awarded to the wider workforce (4.5% in the UK)
and other colleagues who received similar performance ratings {5.5% in the UK). reflecting the greater pressure from the cost-of-living
chisis on take-home pay for our lower-pzid colleagues. and the higher incentive leverage of executive Director remuneration. The table
below shows the base salaries in 2022, and those that took effect from | January 2023:

Base salary at

| January or on

appointment
Executive Director | January 2023 2022 Increase
Pete Raby £620,000 £ 596,000 4%
Richard Armitage' £442.000 £425.000 4%

I Rierard Armitage was appointed 16 t7 e Boare on 30 May 2022 The above figure for 202215 en annualised amicent,
The rationale for any future increases will continue to be disclosed in the relevant Annual Report on Remuneration.

Pension
Pete Raby and Richard Armitage will continue to receve a cash allowance in lieu of pension in 2023, These are ahgned to the pension
contribution levels available to the wider workforce (8% of salary, based on our UK population).

Annual bonus in respect of 2023 performance
The maximum bonus opportunity remains at |50% of salary {(with the payout for on-target performance continuing to be 50% of the
maximumy.

33% of any bonus result will ordinanily be deferred into shares for a further three-year period. The performance measures attached to
the annual bonus are as foliows, the only change being the cash generation metric being replaced with year-end working capital:

Headline operating profit - 40%
Year-end working capital — 40%
Strategic personal objectives — 20%

The actual performance targets set at the beginning of the pertormance period are not disclosed as they are considered commercially
sensitive at this time, given the close link between performance measures and the Group's longer-term strategy. This 15 particularly relevant
in the context of some of the Group's close and unlisted competitors who are not required to disclose such information. and for whom the
assumptions 1n cur targets would provide valuable information in the current trading year. These targets will be disclosed retrospectively,

at such time as they have become less commeraally sensitive. and within three years of the end of the performance year.

2023 LTIP awards

In May 2023. Pete Raby and Richard Armitage will be granted awards under the 2023 LTIP with face values of 200% and 150% of their
2023 base salaries respectively. Formulaic vesting outcomes will continue to be evaluated by the Committee to ensure they reflect
business performance and will be adjusted as appropriate. The three-year performance period over which performance will be measured
began on | January 2023 and will end on 31 December 2025. Further details of the awards will be disclosed in next year's Remuneration
Report.

The performance measures are detailed below

Each TSR element will operate independently, with vesting determined based on Morgan's TSR rank relative to constituents of each
TSR benchmark. The performance range for each element will remain median to upper quartile.
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© The £PS performance range has been set at 4% 1% per annum, m line with the EPS range set prior to the onset of the pandermic (and
having been temporarily increased during the pandemic to take into account the previousty reduced base level resulting from the impact
of the pangemic).

The ROIC range will rermain unchanged at |/%-20%.

© The ESG measure {carbon reduction) will have a performance range of 5% to 15% carbon reduction (scope | and 2 emissions} over the
three-year performance period, to support the Group's overall sustainability goals and its stated 2030 target to reduce scope | and 2
CO, emissions by 50%.

The Committee believes these ranges appropriately support the Group's strategy for sustainable long-term growth over the next three
years whilst continuing to represent suitably demanding targets,

A

For all four measures, awards will continue to vest on a straight-line basis between threshold and maximum, with 25% of each element
vesting at threshold.

NS

> Forthe 2023 LTIP cycle, executive Directors will be required to hold any vested 2023 LTIP awards for an additional twe-year period.
Vested awards that are subject to the holding peried will remain subject to clawback in line with our Palicy but will not be forfeitable
on cessation of employment.

Chairman and non-executive Director fees
The Chairman's and non-executive Directors' fees were reviewed in December 2022, The table below shows the fees in 2022, and those
that were agreed for 2023:

Role 2023 fee pa 2022 fee pa Increase
Chairman * £210,000 £202.100 3.9%
Non-executive Director: £54,820 £.53,220 3%
Committee Chair (additional fee) £8,000 £8,000 n/a
Senior Independent Director (additional fee) £8,000 £8.000 n/a
I Douglas Caster nas veluntanly waved theincrease v ~is tee for 2023

2 lan Marcnant well be pad the non-execomive Director fee fromn | Febtuary 2024 until ne succeres M Caster as Charm an, 2t wenet point his fee well comptise the Charman < zonual fee of

£210.00C plus an £ 15,000 contribution towards the cost o admi wstrat ve sapport

Percentage change in Directors’ remuneration

The table below shows the percentage change in the executive and non-executive Directors’ remuneration in 2022 compared to the
average percentage change in remuneration for other employees of Morgan Advanced Materials plc over the same pericd, in accordance
with the guidelines.

2022 % 2021 % 2020 %
2022 % 2021 % 2020 % change in change in change in 2022 % 2021 % 2020 %
change in change in change In benefits! benefits' benefits® change change change
salary or salary or salary or fexcluding {excluding {excluding in annual In annual in annual
f_ccs fees’ {ﬁcs _p_)e_nsw_ol) ) _pc_nsw_c_m) ) p_crmop) bc_)nus_ bomu_s' bonus
Executive Directors
323%
Pete Raby 2.6% {2.5%) -19.4% -0.19% -0.5% 1.9% -70.8%  1,029.3% -89.1%
Richard Armitage n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
31.6%
Peter Turner 0% (2.0%) -20.8% 2.4%' 0.6% [ 1% -69.5% 1,0238% -89.3%
Non-executive Directors®
31.6%
Douglas Caster 25% (2.0%) -20.9% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
26.3%
Helen Bunch 2.2% (1.79) -18.1% nfa n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
26.3%
Laurence Mulliez 2.2% (1.796) -18.1% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a nfa
26.3%
Jane Alkman 2.2% (1.79%) -18.1% n/a nfa n/fa nfa nfa nfa
31.6%
Clement Woon 2.5% {2.09%) -20.9% n/a n/a n/a n/a r/a nfa
Average per 3.6%
employee 34% (2.6%) 3.0% -1.2% 0.9% -5.8%" -44. 1% 53.6% -2.1%

Fetar Turror stepped dowen A om tie Boare on 30 May 20022 and retired honthe G oup on 30 rure 2022 The porcentages asove are tased on arnuahsed “gures
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Fugu es i brac-ets reflect percentage nicrease o orignal 200 salarfee prion toreductions implen ented i ressonse 1o e sanden ik,

Pe-centages reflect the temporary Board salars ffee recuctions implemente it - ssponse to the pancermic Al figures are based or fUl-Ume esguinclent compar sons

Benehits figures include private medical nssrance and car Jowsance The cecrease in Pete Raby's anc olhe” employees’ benefits reflects a recuction e 3 nate medical prermiem over -ime
Mt eracutive Directors do not seceine omy adomanal penefits or bor s pay mrents

[ecrease reflects change in Bype of medical cover requ red by irdividaal employees.

P R ]

Tt persona porfonmanes elerment of the 2020 bonus was caneelled for executiae Direcdons (as 4 1esalt of the pandemic), conmbating to the tugher porcentage s tease n 2020 bonay for
executive D rectors compared to other emiployees

CEO pay ratio

25th - Median (50th 75tn

percentile percentile) percentile

Year Method _pay ratio pay ratio pay ratio
2022 Option B 65:1 39:1 34:1
2022 {excluding variabie) Option B 32:1 22:1 l&:1
2021 Option B 21:1 59:1 48:1
2021 {excluding variable} Option B 32:1 24 17:1
2020 Option B 35:10 25:1 20:1
2020 (excluding varable) Option B 251 20:1 141
2019 Option B 74:1 62:1 41:1
2019 {excluding variable) Option B 34:1 27 [9:1

. Rauos triad up from those disclosea 1 st yea-'s Remuneration Report to reflect final value of LTIP vesting for CEO

Details of the salary and total pay and benefits figures for each of the individuals identified in the table is set out below:

Salary Total pay and benefits
Median Median
25th {5Gth 75th 25th {50th 75th
Tear ) ) CEO percentile  percentic) porcentie CEO poreentie percentile) percentile
2022 £596.000 £21,414 £23,225 £41.202  £1,658,639 £25 451 £42,005 £49371
2021 £581.175 £17.379 £29,129 £37989  £2.041667 £22.533 £34725 42,442
2020 £439425 £21.000 £23.960 £36.900 £791.238 £.22464 £31.550 £38,723
2019 £545.000 £17.599  £24.300 £30610 £1,618,605 £21.958 £25.927 £39.926

In line with the CEO pay rato regulations. the table above shows for 2022 the ratio of the CEO s single total figure of remuneration (STFR)
to that of UK employees at the 25th, 50th (median) and 75th percentiles. In addition to the mandatory calculation using total remuneration.
ratios have also been calcutated excluding variable pay elements such as bonus and share awards,

Of the three reporting options available to companies, Morgan has applied Option B, where the most recent gender pay gap reporting
data has been used to identily the 25th, 50th and 75th percentile employees. The 25th, 50th and 75th percentile pay ratios are based on
the remuneration of a representative employee who falls on each of these pay percentiles. Option B has been used to calculate the CEO
pay ratios, as Option A requires the ability to calculate a single total remuneration figure for each UK employee. and Morgan does not
currently have the systems in place to support this methodology. The ‘best equivalent’ employees identified using the gender pay gap
information are representative of the 25th, 50th and 75th percentiles of Company remuneration, since base pay constitutes a farge
oroportion of the remuneration package for the majority of employees, so it is likely that a similar set of employees would have been
identified using Option A. The calculation covers base pay, annual bonus, pension and where applicable share awards and benefits
including car allowance and private medical insurance. Total remuneration figures used in the calculation for 25th, 50th and 75th percentile
empioyees include annual bonus relating to 2022 performance, in order to be consistent with the methadelogy used for the CEO's total
remuneration figure.

2022 CFO pay ratios are significantly lower than those in 2021 as a consequence of the impact of the inflatiopary headwinds on 2022
business results {and therefore on levels of variable pay), especially with variable pay representing a greater proportion of the CEO's
package compared to the wider workforce. The 2022 ratios are not however as low as in 2020 where, as disclosed in the 2020
Remunreration Report, ratios were significantly lower as a consequence of the CEO's temporary salary reduction, cancellation of the
CEO's personal performance bonus element in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. and also due to the pandemic’s impact on
business results (and variable pay outcomes).

Notwithstanding the year-cn-year change in pay ratic. pay and benefits for the CEC and wider employee population are based on the
same philosophies, for example driving pay for performance and alignment to external benchmarks, in order to promote consistency.
fairness and equity across all levels in the organisation. As the same methodology underpins the remuneration used in the above
calculations, the resulting median pay ratio is consistent with the Company’s wider policies on employee pay, reward and progression.
Pay ratios are significantly reduced when variable pay elements are excluded. so the gap between CEQ and employee pay is largely
attributable to non-fixed pay elements. some of which (e.g. share awards) the majority of the wider workforce would not typically be
eligible for {reflecting competitive external market practice). The range of levels and types of roles found in a manufacturing environment
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such as at Morgan may also result n a higher CEO pay ratio than companies which have predorminantly professional and/or more senior
staff. 1t 1s therefore important to compare Morgan's data to companies in similar industries.

Relative importance of spend on pay
The graphs below show shareholder distnibutions (1.e. dividends and share buybacks) and total employee pay expenditure for the financial
years ended 3| December 2021 and 3| December 2022

Shareholder Total employee pay
distributions (£m) expenditure {(£m)
3.8 375.7
331.6
19.1
302 2022 2021 2022

Shareholder distributions increased back to pre-pandemic levels during 2022. Total employee pay across the Group has increased by
12.6% to £375.7 million (2021; £333.6 milion).

Comparison of Company performance

The graph below shows the value, at 31 December 2022, of £100 invested in Morgan Advanced Materials plc’s shares on 31 December
2012 compared with the current value of the same amount invested in the F15E 350 Index. The FTSE 350 Index  of which the Company
is 2 constituent — has been chosen because it is widely followed by the UK's investment community and easily tracked over time.

00
£186 — T b
— [T Seda oo T Cenis il
£163
2150
£100
£50
£0

2012 2013 2014 2015 2018 20107 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

The table below details the CEQ's 'single figure' of remuneratior over the [0-year pericd to 31 December 2022

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
CEO ™ Robertshaw P Raby
CEO single
figure £648 932 £1.001448  £78B.252 £787.492 £1.210.856 £1479.738 £1.618.605 £791,238 £2.041.667 £1.658.63°
Annual benus
(% of maximum) 0% 65% 50% 29.5% 71.3% 67.4% 84.3% 9% 97% 27.6%
BDSMP vesting
(% of maximum) 0% 0% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a r/a
LTIP vesting
(% of maximurmy} 0% 0% nfa r/a 15.4% 42.9% 61.3% 21.8% 52.17% £7.94%

F gure represents percerlage a0 eve ment of maarum opportu~ity Boaus maximuny as & percentage o' salary increasec to 15004 of sase salasy 1 7006 comdarec to 100950
Previo.s vears,
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Executive Directors’ interests in shares and shareholding guidelines (audited)
The table below shows the shareholding of each executive Director against their respective shareholding guideline as at 31 Decemnber
2022 or date of ieaving (In the case of Peter Turner).

Shares awned outrnight

As at 31 Opticns
Asat  December Performance- Shares granted but Current
Sharcholding | January 2022 o Shares tesled Lul subjecl Opuons subjeci o shaseholding
guideline (% 2022 or date date of subject to unvested to DBP  vested but contnued (% of 2022 Guidelne
2027 5§Iar)f) pf]ommgg leaving  performance shares’ dgfer'r'al' ur\t:xsrcwsed‘ employment? salary) met
Pete Raby 200% 318,637 446686 £50.806 246,198 113.529 4477 4,285 270.1% Yes
Richard
Armitage 200% - 40,000 207.587 (44,252 - - 4,285 29.5%  Building
Peter Turner 200% 308,815 400,346 202,740 51,178 84,277 - 4477 324.7% Yes

I, 2C21 and 2022 L1IF ad LTIP-CSOP awards

2 The expected number of shares due to vest uncer the 2020 LTIP Richare Arminage joince the Board on 30 May 2022 His periormance tested but unvested share awerd te ates to tre
recruitrnent sare mwarc rmade or 30 May 2022 (te which no serformence conditions we e attached)

[ stimated numoer of sha 25 net of tax (47%) deicrred under the DBP

E W]

Options grented usder the Sharesave schen'e
Based am an execuine Director's annuahised 2027 salary and tre average share price for the trree months ta 31 December 2022 o* 282.90 pence. compnising sha' es owned outnght anc

L

stares subjedt to defersal

As at 24 April 2023, the executive Directors’ interests in shares had not changed since the end of the period under review, Unless
otherwise stated. figures given in the tables on pages |11 to |13 are for shares or interests in shares.

Non-executive Directors’ interests in shares (audited)
The table betow shows the shareholding of each non-executive Director as at 31 December 2022,

Ag at As at

I january 31 December

7 2022 20_22

Douglas Caster 110.454 10,454
Laurence Mulliez 6,919 716l
Helen Bunch 2.028 2.028
Jane Aikman 1.000 1.000
Clement Woon 55,000 55,000

As at 24 April 2023, the non-executive Directors’ interests in shares had not changed since the end of the pericd under review,

Post-employment share ownership guidelines mechanics

Peter Turner stepped down from the Board on 30 May 2022, and retired from the Group on 30 June 2022, Under the Company’s
Remuneration Policy, he is required to hold shares equivalent to 2009% of his salary until 30 June 2023, calculated by reference to his
annualised salary and the three-month average share price to 3| December 2021, A written agreement was put in place between

Mr Turner and the Company setting out these requirements. This agreement. together with Mr Turner's unvested LTIP and DBP awards,
aliows the Company to confirm that he continues to comply with his post-cessation shareholding requirements.

All other executive Directors, including future Directors. are required to build their shareholding through vesting of executive share awards
in a Global Nominee over time to ensure policy compliance with share ownership guidelines. including post-employment guidelines.
Mechanisms are In place to restrict the sale or transfer of vested shares held in the Nominee that are subject to (i) post-vesting holding
periods and (i) shareholder ownership guidelines on cessation of employment.
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Exccutive Directors’ share plans (audited)

Pete Raby
LTIP
Asat  Allocations | apsed Asat 31 Market price Market price
1 Jarwary during the Vested during during the  December at date of at date of Performance
Plan 2022 year the year year 2022 allocation vesting period
No further performance 2019 293,71 153.225 140,482 268.12p 312.60p OLOI1LI9
conditions, vested 31.12.21
(subject to two-year 2019 11,189 - 5,007 6182 ~ 26812p  312.60p 010119 -
p p
post-vesting holding) funding 3117221
No further 2020 362,377 — - - 362,377 234.70p 01.04.20 -
performance conditions, 31.12.22
not yet vested
Subject to 2021 276 486 - - - 276 486 315.30p - 010121 -
performance conditions 31.12.23
2022 - 414,320 414,320 287.70p 01.01.22
31.12.24
Share options
Market price
s at Granted Exercised Lapsed As at 31 al date of Performance/
| January during the during the during the  December Opuon price vesting/ maturity
Plan 2022 year year year 2022 at grant exercise period
No further 2019 L TIP- 1,189 - 5,837 5352 - 268.12p 31260p  01.01.19 -
performance CsSGP 31.12,21
conditions, vested
{subject to two-year
post-vesting holding)
Continued service met  Sharesave 4477 - - - 4477 201.00p - 0LI2.19 -
30.11.22
Subject to Sharesave - 4 285 - - 4,285 210.00p - 011222 -
continued service 31.05.26
Total interests in share plans
As at | January 2022 As at 31 December 2022
[ 1379528+ |,276,152°"
trcludes afund ng award of | 189 shares used to pay the exercise price which arose or exercise of the CSOP a~d the efore not trarsferable 1o Pete Raby
7 ncluges 2019 deferred oonius award
3 incudes 2020 and 2021 deferrec bonus awards
4 Includes 2077 defened bonus award
Richard Armitage
LTIP
As at
| January  Allocations Lapsed As al 31 Market price Market price
072 ordate during the Vested during  duringthe  December at date of at date of Perlormance
Plan of joining year the year year ) 2022 alloﬁcﬁaggn vestng _pt_e_rl_od
Subject to 2022 - 207.587 - - 207,587 307.10p - 010122 -
performance conditions 31.12.24
Recruitment award
As at
| Jarwary  Allocations L apsed As at 31 Market price Market price
2022 or date during the Vested during during the  December at date of at date of Vesting
Plan of joining yeat the year year 2022 allocation vesting period
Subject to 2022 - 144.252 - - 144,252 307.10p - 300522
continuec service 30.05.23

112 Morgan Advanced Materials plc Annual Report 2022



Share uptlions

As at
| January Granted Exercised Lapsed As at 31 Market price
2027 ordate durngthe  duringthe  duringthe  December Option price at date of Maturity
Plan of joining year year year 2022 al grant vesting period
Subject to Sharesave - 47785 - - 4,285 210.00p - 011222 -
continued service 310526

Total interests in share plans

As at | January 2027
or date of joining  As at 31 December 2022

- 356,124
Peter Turner
LTIP
Allocations Lapsed Market price  Market price
s at | during the Vested during during the As at date at date of at date of Performance
) N Plan January 2022 year ‘the year year of leaving allocation vesting period
No further performance 2019 228,591 - 113,256 109,335 268.12p 312.60p 010119 -
conditions, vested 3112.21
No further 2020 254,239 - 254,239 234.70p 01.01.20 -
performance conditions, 3112.22
not yet vested 2020 12.782 - - . 12,782 23470p - 01.01.20-
funding 31.12.22
Subject to 2021 202,740 - - - 202,740 315.3Cp - 01.01.21 -
performance conditions 311223
Share options
Market/
Released/ option pricc . Market price
As at  Allocations/ exercised Lapsed at date of at date of Performance/
| january grants during during the during the As at date allocation/ exercise/ maturity
Plan 2022 the year year year of leaving grant vesting period
Subject ta 2020 12.782 - - - 12,782 234.70p - QL0120 -
performance conditions LTIP-CSOP 31.12.22
Continued service met  Shzaresave 4477 4,477 - 4,477 201.00p 305.50p [12.19 -

30.12.22

Total interests in share plans

As at 31 Decermnber
As at | January 2022 2027 or date of leaving

846,309 *° 633,254

I Includes 20 % deferred bonus award

2 Includes 2020 and 2021 deferrce bonus awarcs

3 Include: 2022 coferred bonus aware

1. Includes a fundirg award of 12 787 shares to be Lsed to the extont requr od to pay 1 exercise price arising o~ exerase of the CSOP and therelore not bar sferable to Peter Tuine
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Remuneration report continued

Details of plans
LTIP

Detals

ITIP The performance conditions attached to the 2020 awards are set out on page [05.

The performance conditions attached to the 2021 awards are on the same basis as the 2020 awards. except that
the EPS range was amended 10 15%-22%.

The performance conditions attached to the 2022 awards are set out on pages 105 1o 106.

LTIP-CSOP LTIP 2019: The award to the CFO was structured as LTIP awards in the form of a conditional award of free
shares. The CEC's award was structured as an Approved Performance Share Plan {APSP) and comprised three
elements: (Y HMRC-approved cptions {CSOP} over shares to the value of up to £30,000 with an exercise price
of 268,12 pence per share; {ii} an LTIP award in the form of a conditional award of free shares to the value of the
remainder of the award above this imit; and (in) a funding award. also in the form of a conditional award of free
shares, over such numbers of shares whose value at exercise at the approved option equals up to £30,000.

The award is also subject to malus and clawback provisions.

The provisions of these CSOP options. funding awards and LTIP awards were linked. so that the maximum
aggregate number of shares that could be acquired on exercise of LTIP and CSOP awards (the funding award
being used to pay the exercise price arising on exercise of the CSOP) was limited to that number of shares that
had a market value on the date of the awards equal to 150% of Pete Raby's 2019 annual salary. Vested funding
awards were not transferable to the participant.

LTIP 2020: The award to the CEC was structured as LTIP awards in the form of a conditional award of free
shares. The CFO's award was structured as an Approved Performance Share Plan (APSP) and comprised three
elements: (i) HMRC-approved options (CSOP) over shares to the value of up to £30,000 with an exercise price
of 23470 pence per share: (i) an LTIP award in the form of a conditional award of free shares to the value of the
remainder of the award above this limit; and {in} a funding award, alse in the form of a conditional award of free
shares. over such numbers of shares whose value at exercise at the approved option equals up to £30,000.

The award is also subject to malus and clawback provisions.

The pravisions of these CSOP options. funding awards and LTIP awards were tinked. so that the maximum
aggregate number of shares that could be acquired on exercise of LTIP and CSOP awards {the funding award
being used to pay the exercise price arising an exercise of the CSOP) was limited to that number of shares that
had a market value on the date of the awards equal to 150% of Peter Turner's 2020 annual salary. Vested funding
awards were not transferable to the particpant.

LTIP 2021 ang 2022: The awards to the CEQ, Peter Turner and Richard Armitage were structured as LTIF awards
in the form of a conditional award of free shares.

UK Sharesave

Details

HMRC-approved all-employee Sharesave scheme. Exercise price set at 20% discount to share price en

date of grant. Options mature after the three-year savings period and must be exercised within six months of
vesting. Detalls of options held by Directors under Sharesave are outlined in the individual Director shareholding
tables above.

Deferred Bonus Plan
Detatls

Mandatory deferral of one-third of gross bonus result relating to the previous year. which is provided as a
conditional award of shares of equivalent value. The award vests on the third anniversary of the award date and
is subject to forfeiture if the executive Director leaves before the vesting date. The award is also subject to malus
and clawback provisions.

Recruitment award
Detalls
A one-off conditional award of shares on Richard Armitage's recrutment. to replace the value of bonus forfeited

by him on leaving his former employer 1o join Morgan, These shares vest subject to Richard Armitage's continued
employment to the first anniversary of grant {in May 2023},

Other transactions involving Directors are set out in note 26 (Related parties) to the consolidated financal statements, This Report was
approved by the Board on 27 April 2023,
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Remuneration governance

Remuneration Committee role

The Remuneration Committee determines and agrees with the Board the framework and Policy tor the remuneration, including pension
rights and any compensation payments. of the Group's executive Directors and the Chairman. The Committee alsc reviews the
remuneration in relation to other senior executives and is kept fully informed of remuneration policy decisions impacting the wider
workforce. The Committee's terms of reference are available on the Group’s website.

The Remuneration Committee consults the Chief Executive Officer and invites him to attend meetings when appropriate. The Group
Human Resources Director, the Group Head of Reward and Ellason LI P. the Committee’s independent advisor, attend meetings of the
Committee by invitation.

The Committee also has access to advice from the Chief Financial Officer. The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Committee.
No executive Director or other attendee is present when his or her own remuneration is being discussed.

Remuneration Committee membership

The Remuneration Committee s currently composed of six non-executive Directors. Each of the non-executive Directors is regarded
hy the Roard as independent, except the Chairman of the Company whe was considered independent upon appointment. The
Remuneration Committee met four times during the year. Attendance at meetings by individual members 1s detailed in the Corporate
Governance Report on page 64.

Key activities during 2022
Curing 2022, the key areas of focus for the Committee were:

~

- engaging with shareholders on the proposed 2022 Remuneration Policy

s

determining whether targets for the 2021 bonus and 2019 LTIP were achieved, and. if so. to what extent

% having reviewed the remuneration of the wider waorkforce, determining remuneration for executive Directors and other senior
executives, applying consistent guiding principles

> reviewing whether the measures and structure for the bonus and share ncentive schemes remain appropriate, as well as reviewing
the overall effectiveness of such schemes

reviewing and agreeing executive Director personal objectives for 2073

R

v receiving reports on share awards to employees, and employee participation in the Sharesave scheme
reviewing feedback from institutional investors ahead of the Company's 2022 Annual General Meeting

> reviewing executive Director share ownership guidelines, and Directors’ holdings against the guidelines

Ay

receiving regulatory and governance updates, and receiving reports on external market remuneration practices
- reviewing and discussing the Company's annual Gender Pay Gap Report

> appraising the independent remuneration advisor's performance and reviewing the terms of engagement

" approving the Chair's 2023 fees

- determining performance targets for the 2022 share incentive schemes, and

reviewing the Committee's terms of reference.

Committee performance evaluation
The Committee's performance was reviewed as part of the Board evaluation {see page 74 for details). It was concluded that the
Committee had operated effectively during the pericd under review,
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Remuneration report continued

Committee advisor

Ellason LLP was appointed as the Committee’s executive remuneration advisor, following their principal advisor moving from Mercer
Kepler to Ellason LLP. from | January 2021, Ellason specialises in executive remuneration advice and during 2022 provided independent
advice on remuneration policy, performance measurement. the setting of incentive targets. TSR analysis and the structure of long-term
incentives, and provided market data in respect of senior executive remuneration and non-executive Director fees. Fllasen reperts directly
to the Chair of the Remuneration Committee. does not provide any non remuneration related services to the Group. has no other
connections either with Morgan of any of its individual Directors, and is considered to be independent.

Ellason is a signatory to the Remuneration Consultants Group's voluntary Code of Conduct

Fees paid dunng the year to advisers for advice to the Remuneration Committee, charged on a t'me and materials basis, were as follows:

Fees (inciuding expenses,
Advisor excluding VAT}

Ellason £23983

Summary of shareholder voting
The following table shows the results of the latest binding vote on the 2022 Remuneration Policy and advisory vote on the 2021 Annual
Report on Remuneration at the 2022 AGM:

Resolution ) o o For Against Withheld
Remuneration Policy 96.45% 3.55% 98,036
Annual Report on Remuneration 99.27% 0.73% 102,306

Compliance statement

During the year under review. the Company has complied with the provisions relating to Directors’ remuneration in the UK Corporate
Governance Code except for provision 38, Executive Directors' pension contributions were aligned with those available to the workforce.
for incumbent Directors effective 31 December 2022 and on appeintment for Directors appointed during 2022, as set out in more detall
on page 92. This Remuneration Report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 (as amended) and Schedule 8 of
the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (as amended}. In accordance with section
43% of the Companies Act 2006 an advisory resolution to approve the Annual Report on Remuneration will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting (AGM) on 29 June 2023,

Signed on behalf of the Board

Helen Bunch
Committee Chair
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Other disclosures

The Directors’ Report is
required to be produced by
law. The Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA)'s Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency
Rules (DTRs) and Listing
Rutes (LRs) also require

the Company to make
certain disclosures.

Pages 60 to 120 inclusive (together

with the sections of the Annual Report
incorporated by reference) constitute

a Directors’ Report that has been drawn

up and presented in accordance with
applicable law, and the liabilities of the
Directors in connection with that Report
are subject to the imitations and restrictions
provided by that law.

The Company

Legal form of the Company
Morgan Advanced Materials plcis a
company incorporated in England and
Wales with company number 286773,

Name change

The Company changed its name to Morgan
Advanced Materials plc (frem The Morgan
Crucible Company pic) on 27 March 2013

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The Compary's 72023 AGM will be held
on 29 June 2023, commencing at [3:30am
at the offices of Slaughter and May at

Cne Bunhill Row, London, ECIY 8YY.

A arcular incorporating the 2023 Notice
of AGM is available in the investor section
of morganadvancedmaterials.com

Statutory disclosurcs

Amendment of the Articles

of Association

The Company's constitution, known as
the Articles of Assocation (the Articles),
is essentially a contract between the
Company and its shareholders, governing
many aspects of the management of the
Company. It deals with matters such as
the rights of shareholders. the appointrment
and removal of Directors, the conduct
of the Board and general meetings and
communications by the Company.

The Articles may be amended by special
resolution of the Company's sharehalders.

Appointment and

replacement of Directors

The Articles provide that the Company
may by ordinary resolution at a general
meeting appoInt any person to act as a
Director, provided that notice is given of the
resolution identifying the proposed person
by name and that the Company receives
written confirmation of that person's
willingness to act as Director if he or she
has not been recommended by the Board.
The Articles alse empower the Board to
appoint as a Director any person who 1s
willing to act as such.

The maximum possible number of
Directors under the Arucles is 5. The
Articles provide that the Company may
by spedal resolution. or by ordinary
resolution of which special notice is given,
remove any Director before the expiration
of his ar her pericd of office. The Articles
also set oul the drcumstances in which a
Director shall vacate office. The Articles
require that at each AGM any Director
who was appointed after the previous
AGM must be proposed for election by
the shareholders. Additionally, any other
Director who has not been elected or

re elected at one of the previcus two
AGMs must be proposed for re-election by
the shareholders. The Articles also allow
the Board to select any other Director to
be proposed for re-election. In each case,
the rules apply to Directors who were
acting as Directors on a specific date
selected by the Board. This is a date not
more than 14 days before. and no later
than. the date of the Notice of AGM.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the
Articles, alt the Directors will stand for
election or re-election on an annual basis in
compliance with the provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the Code).
Details of the skills, experience and career
history of Directors in post as at the date of
this Report, and the Board Committees on
which they serve, can be found on pages 62
to 64.

Results and dividends

The total profit (attributable to owners of
the parent and non-controlling imterests)
for the year ended 31 December 2022
was £96.7 million (2021 £81.8 million).
The increase in profit for the period arises
principally as a result of improved volumes
and the impact of pricing and continuous
improvement activity more than offsetting
cost inflation. Profit before taxation for
the same period was £131.6 million
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(2021: £104.3 milkon) Revenue was
£1112.1 milhon (2021: £350.5 million)
and operating profit was £140.8 million
(2021: £113.1 million). Basic earnings per
share’ from continuing operations was
30.6 pence (2021: 23.9 pence). Capital
and reserves at the end of the year were
£429.6 million (2021: £349.6 million).

The total profit of £96.7 million (2021
£81.8 million) will be transferred to equity.

The Directors recommend the payment of
a final dividend of 6.7 pence per share on
the Ordinary share capital of the Company,
payable on 3 July 2023 to shareholders

on the register at the dose of business on
9 lune 2023, Together with the interim
dividend of 5.3 pence per share paid on

18 November 2022, this final dividend,

if approved by shareholders, brings the
total distribution for the year to 12.0 pence
per share (2021: 5.1 pence).

Directars

All those who served as Directors

at any time during the year under
review are set out on pages 62 to 63.
Peter Turner alsc served as a Director
up until 30 May 2022,

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Company's Articles,

UK legislation and any directions given
by special resolution. the business of
the Company s managed by the Board,
which may exercse all the powers of
the Company.

Directors’ interests

Details of Directors’ interests (and their
connected persons' beneficial interests)
in the share captal of the Company are
listed on page |11.

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has entered into separate
indermnity deeds with each Director
containing qualifying indemmty provisions.
as defined in section 236 of the Companies
Act 2006, under which the Company

has agreed to indemnify each Director

in respect of certain liabilties which may
attach to each of them as a Director or

as a former Director of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries. The indemnity deeds
were in force during the financial year to
wh:ch this Directors’ Report relates and
are in force as at the date of approval of
the Directors’ Report.




Other disclosures continued

Engagemoent with customers
and suppliers

Details of the Group's engagement with
customers and suppliers are set out on
pages 22 and 25 of the Strategic Report
and on pages 67 and 73 of the Corporate
Governance Report,

Infermation required by LR 9.8.4R
The information required to be disclosed
by Listing Rule 9.8.4 can be found in the
following locations:

Publication of On 4 November 2022,

unaudited the Company published its

financial trading update stating that

information adjusted operating profit
(AOP) for the full year 2022
to be marginally above the
top end of current analysts’
forecasts, Actual AOP for
the period was above/
below analyst forecasts.

Details of Remuneration Report,

any long-term page 97

Incentive

schemes

Shareholder  Financial Statements,

waiver of note 19, pages 16310 165
dividends

Shareholder  Financial Statements.
waiver of note |9, pages 163 to 165

future dividends

The remaining disclosures required by
LR 9.8.4 are not applicable to the Company.

Overseas branches

As at 31 December 2022, the Company
had branches as follows:

™ Morgan AM&T BV (Sweden and Belgiumy
» Carbo San Luis SA {Peru) (in liguidation}

» Morgan Advanced Materials Industries
Ltd (UAE}

» Morgan Advanced Materials plc (Belgiumy

Thermal Ceramics UK Limited {Sweden)

People

There are no agreements between the
Company and its Directors or employees
providing for compensation for loss of
office or employment (whether through
resignation, purported redundancy

or otherwise) that occurs because of

a takeover bid.

Employment of disabied people

Morgan has a range of employment policies
which set out the standards, processes.
expectations and responsibilities of its
people and the organisation. These policies
are designed to ensure that everycne,
including those wath oxisting or new
disabilities, are dealt with fairly and have
equzl cpportunity.

Morgan promotes equal opportunities for
all employees and job applicants and does
not unlawfully discriminate. The Group
makes reasonable adjustments to
accommodate any emptoyee who may
have a disability within the meaning of

all global equality legislation. and where
the Group is aware of such disability.

Research and development

The Group recognised £31.6 million

in expense in respect of research and
development (2021: £28.5 milhon).

The Group did not capitalise any
development costs in 2022 (2021: £nif).
Morgan has established four Centres of
Excellence (CoEs). which are dedicated
to driving materials development. to
exacting customer specifications. and
delivering performance through materials
and production process innovation.

The Coks consolidate the Group's R&D
efforts around its core technologies. to
increase the effectiveness of Morgan's
R&D spend, accelerate key projects and
increase technical differentiation. The Coks
focus on the execution priorities for the
global business units and the Group.

Greenhouse gas emissions,
energy consumption and
energy efficiency

Details of the Group's annual greenhouse
£as emissions, energy consumption and
energy efficiency are shown in the ESG
goals section on pages 32 and 33.

Political donations

No political donations have been made.
Morgan Advanced Materials plc has a policy
of not making donations to any political
party, representative or candidate in any
part of the world,
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Financial instruments

Detaills of the Group's use of fimancial
instruments, together with information

on policies and exposure to price, liquidity.
cash flow, credit, interest rate and currency
risks. can be found In note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages
166 to 176, All information detailed in this
note is incorporated into the Directors’
Report by reference and is deemed to form
part of the Directors' Report.

Share capital and related matters

Share capital

The Company's share capital as at

31 December 2022 is set out in note 40
to the consalidated financial statements
on page 199. The rights and obligations
attaching to the Company's Ordinary
shares, and restrictions on the transfer
of shares in the Company (which include
specific circumstances in which the Board
is entitled to refuse to register the transfer
of shares). are set out in the Articles.

Shareholders’ rights

The holders of Ordinary shares are entitled
to receive dividends, when dedared,

to receive the Company's reports and
accounts, to attend and speak at general
meetings of the Company, to appoint
proxies and to exercise voting rights.

No person holds securities in the Company
carrying special rights with regard to
control of the Company. The Company

is not aware of any agreements between
holders of securities that may result in
restrictions on the transfer of securities

or on voting rights.

Additionally the Company has
authorised. issued and fully paid 437,281
(2021: 437,281) cumulative Preference
shares classified as borrowings totaling
£0.4 million (20210 £G4 mithon). The
Preference shares comprise 125.327 of
5.5% Cumulative First Preference shares
of £1 each and 311,954 issued 5.0%
Cumulative Second Preference shares of
£l each.

Details of the structure of the Company’s
Preference share capital and the rights
attaching to the Company’s Preference
shares are set out in note 9 to the
consohdated financial staternents on

page 165.



Share allotment and

repurchase authorities

The Directors were granted authority

al the 2022 AGM to zliot shares in the
Company and to grant rights to subscribe
for or convert any securities into shares

in the Cempany up to an aggregate

nominal amount of £23,/80.832 in any
circurmstances, This amount represented
approximately one-third of the Company's
issued share capital prier to that meeting,
The Directors were zlso authorised to allot
shares and to grant rights up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £47 561.664 in
connection with a rights issue only {but such
amount to be reduced by any allotments
made under the first lmb of the authority),
This amount represented approximately
two-thirds of the Company’s 1ssued share
capital prior to the meeting.

The Directors were also empowered at
the 2022 AGM to allot shares for cash on a
non-pre-emptive basis, both In connection
with a rights issue or similar pre-emptive
issue and, otherwise than in connection
with any such issue, up to a maximum
aggregate nominal amount of £3,567.124,
Such amount represented approximately
5% of the Company’s issued share capita
as it stood prior to the meeting in ling with
the Pre-Emption Group's Statement of
Principles on disapplying pre-emption
rights, As permitted by those Principles,
the Directors were also empowered to
allot shares for cash on a nen-pre-emptive
basis up to the same amount for use only in
connection with an acquisition or a specified
capital investment.

The Directors were also authorised at

the 2022 AGM to repurchase shares in the
capital of the Company up to a maximum
aggregate number of 28,536 998 shares.
This represented approximately 109% of
the Company's issued share capital prior
o the meeting,

These share capital authorities and powers
are due to lapse at the 2023 AGM at which
time the Board will seek fresh authorities
and powers.

Employee share and share
option schemes

The Company operates a number of
employee share and share option schemes,
Detalls of outstanding share awards and
share options are given in note 23 to

the censolidated financial statements on
pages |81 to 183,

All the Company's share schemes contain
provisions relating to a change of control.
Outstanding options and awards would
nermally vest and become exercisable

on a change of control, subject to being
pro-rated for time and to the satisfaction of
any performance conditions at that time.

The trustees of the Morgan General
Employee Benefit Trust have absolute and
unfettered discretion in relation to voting
any shares held in the Trust at any generaf
meetng. Thew policy is not 1o vote the
shares. If any offer is made to shareholders
to acquire their shares, the Trustees will
have absolute and unfettered discretion

as to whether to accept or reject the offer
in respect of any shares held by thern.

Transactions, contractual
arrangements and post balance
sheet events

Significant agreements

- change of control

The Group has a number of borrowing
facilities provided by various financial
institutions. The facility agreements
generally include change of control
provisions which, in the event of a change
in ownership of the Company. could result
in their renegotiation or withdrawal.

The most significant of such agreements
are the UK £230 milion multi-currency
revolving credit facility agreement, which
was signed on 18 November 2022 and the
privately placed Note Purchase and

Major shareholdings

Guarantee Agreerments signed on

27 October 2016 and 20 March 2017,
for which the aggregate cutstanding
loan amounts are WS$137 million and
€85 million

There are a number of other agreements
that would take effect. alter or terminate
upon a change of control of the Company
following a takeover bid, such as
commercal contracts and joint venture
agreements. No such individual contract 1s
considered to be significant in terms of its
potential impact on the business of the
Group as a whole.

Post balance sheet events

Meorgan experienced a cyber security
incident in January 2023, having detected
unauthorised activity on the network.
Immediate steps were taken to contain the
incident, launch incident response plans,
engage specalist support services and
embark on restoring systems. All
manhufacturing sites are operational,
although some continue to use manual
processes as work continues to restore
their systems. There has been nc impact
on the financial results reported for the
year ended 31 December 2022,

We expect to incur around £15 million of
systermn recovery and specialist support
costs, including |T asset impairment charges
of £0.7 millicn. These will be presented
separately as specific adjusting items in the
consolidated income statement for the year
ending 31 December 2023

As at the date of this report, insofar as it is known to the Company by virtue of
notifications made in accordance with DTR 5. the table below sets out holders of
notifiable nterests representing 3% or more of the issued Ordinary share capital of
the Company (such holdings may have changed since notification to the Company).

Ameriprise Financial Inc.. and its group
FIL Limited

Janus Henderson Group plc

Aberforth Partners LLP

Black Creek Investment Management Inc.
BlackRock, Inc

M&G Plc

AXA Investment Managers SA

GLG Partners LP

As at 31 December 2022

Nurnber of  Percentage
Ordinary of issued
shares  sharc capital
24,186 489 8.48
15,414,047 5.40
14,540,443 5.10
[4,338.45% 5.03
4.269458 5.00
14,263,250 499
14255115 499
[4.039.985 492
1410477 399

No changes have been notified to the Company pursuant to Chapter 5 of the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules between the end of the period under review and

77 April 2023, the latest practicable date prior to the date of this report
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Other disclosures continued

Reporting, accauntahility
and audit

Statement of Directors’
responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for
preparing the Annual Report and the
Group and Parent company financial
statements In accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors

to prepare Group and Parent company
financial staterments for each financial year.
Unger that law they are required to prepare
the Group consolidated financal statements
in accordance with United Kingdom
adopted internaticnal accounting standards
and applicable law and have elected to
prepare the Parent company financial
statemenits in accordance with UK
Accounting Standards, including FRS [0
Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the Directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group anc
Parent company and of their profit or loss
for that period.

In prepaning each of the Group and Parent
company financial statements, the Directors
are required to:

N

Select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently.

Make judgements and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent.

- For the Group consolidated financial
statements, state whether they have
been prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom adopted international
accounting standards.

» Assess the Group and Parent company's
ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern.

For the Parent company financial
statements, state whether applicable

UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in
the Parent company financial statements.
They are responsible for such internal
control as they determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material
misstatement. whether due to fraud or
error, and have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open

fo them tn safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities,

Prepare the financal statements on

the going concern basis of accounting
unless they intend to liquidate the Group
or the Parent company or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient 1o show and explain the Parent
company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
positon of the Parent company and enable
them to ensure that its financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They have general responsibility for taking
such steps as are reasonably open to them
to safeguard the assets of the Group and
to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities. They are responsible for
such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error, and have general
responsibiiity for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the
assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities,

Under applicabie law and regulations. the
Directors are also responsible for preparing
a Strategic Report, Directors’ Repart,
Remunerabon Report and Corporate
Governance Staternent that comply with
that law and those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on

the Company’s website, Legislation in

the UK governing the preparation and
dissermination of financial statermnents may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

In s reporting to shareholders. the Board
s satisfied that the Arnnual Report and
Accounts, taken as a whole. is fair, balanced
and understandable and prowvides the
information necessary for shareholders

to assess the Group's position and
performance. business model and

strategy as required by the Code,

The Directors as at the date of this Report.
whose names and functions are set out on
pages 62 to 63, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge
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The Group's consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared
in accordance with United Kingdom
adopted international accounting
standards, give a true and fair view

of the assets, liabilities, financal posttion
and orofit of the Group.

The management report (comprising
the Directors’ Report and the Strategic
Report) includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the
business and the position of the Group.
together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that

it faces.

Scope of the reporting in

this Annual Report

The Board has prepared a Strategic
Report which provides an overview of
the development and performance of
the Group's business in the year ended
31 December 2022.

For the purposes of DTR 4.1.5R(2} and
DTR 4.1.8, the Directors’ Repaort on

pages 60 to 120 and the Strategic Report
on pages 2 1o 59 comprise the management
report, including the sections of the

Annual Report and consohdatec financial
statements incorporated by reference.

Each Drrector holding office at the date
of approval of this Directors’ Report
confirms that, so far as they are aware,
there is no relevant audit information of
which the Company’s auditor 15 unaware,
and that they have taken all steps that
they ought to have taken as a Director

to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that
the Company's auditor is aware of

that information.

The Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report
and the Remuneration Report were
approved by the Board on 27 April 2023.

For and on behalf of the Boara

Winifred Chime

Company Sccretary
27 April 2023
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No. 286773



Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the audit of the
financial statements

. Opinion

In our opinion:

* the financial statements of Morgan

A

Advanced Materials ple {the ‘Parent
company’} and its subsidiaries (the
‘Group') give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group's and of the Parent
company’s affairs as at 31 December
2022 and of the Group's profit for the
year then ended:

the Group financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom adopted international
accounting standards and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASBY:

the Parent company financial statements
have been properly prepared in
accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 101
"Reduced Disclosure Framework"; and

the financal statements have been
prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Comparies
Act 2006.

We have audited the financal statements
which comprise:

~

> the Consolidated income statement;

the Consolidated statement of
comprehensive ncome;

> the Consolidated and Parent company

balance sheets:

> the Consoclidated and Parent company

121

statements of changes in equity;

the Consolidated statement of
cash flows, and

the related notes | to 44,

The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the Group
financial statements is applicable law, United Kingdom adopted international accounting
standards and IFRSs as issued by the IASB. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements 1s applicable
law and United Kingdorm Accounting Standards. including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure
Framework” ({United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice),

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK}
{15As (UK) and apphcable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial staterments section
of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the Parent company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK. including
the Financial Reporting Counal's {the 'FRC's") Ethical Standard as applied to listed public
interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements, The non-audit services provided to the Group and Parent company
for the year are disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements. We confirm that we have
not provided any non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard to the Group
ar the parent company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for cur opinion.

3. Sumimary of our audit approach

Key audit The key audit matters that we identfied in the current year were:
matters .
» Inventory valuation:
> Impairment of non-financial assets; and
> Post year-end cyber security incident.
Materiality The materiality that we used for the Group financial statements
was £6.0m (FY21: £5.0m) which was determined based on
4.4% (FY21: 4.6%)} profit before tax and specific adjusting items
(see note &),
Scoping Full scope audit work was performed on |7 (FY21: 17) reporting

componerits, and specified audit procedures were undertakan
onafurther 12 (FY21: 13) reporting components. Our full scope
and specified audit procedures covered 729% of Group revenue
{FY21. 7296) and 73% of absolute Group profit before tax
(FY21: 749%).

Our audit approach is consistent with the previous year, with the
exception of identifying a new key audit matter this year relating to
a post year-end cyber security incident.

Significant
changes in
our approach
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued

4. Conclusions relating to
g0ing concern

In auditing the finanaal staterments.

we have concluded that the directors’

use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial
statemerds is Appropriate

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment
of the Group’s and Parent company's ability
to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting included:

> obtaining an understanding of the
financing faciliies including nature of
facilities. repayment terms and covenants;

obtaining an understanding of the
corntrols around the budgeting and
forecasting process used in the going
concern preparalion process:

N

-

~ evaluating the linkage to business model
and principal risks as identfied on pages
12 and 40;

N

challenging the assumptions used in the
Board approved forecasts by reference
to historical performance anc other
supporting evidence such as market data:

N

challenging management’s assessment of
the cash flow impact of the cyber security
incident response related activities and
impact on trading forecasts;

recalculation of the ameunt of headroom
in the forecasts (in hquidity terms and
against the relevant covenant limits);

. assessing the appropriateness of the
sensitivity analysis and reverse stress
tests performed by management;

© assessing the impact of macro-economic
conditions on the business; and

assessing the adeguacy of the disclosures
in the financial staternents.

Based on the work we have performed.

we have not identified any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the Group's and Parent
company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a penod of at least twelve
months from when the financial statements
are authorised for issue

in relation to the reporting on how the Group has applied the UK Corporate Governance
Code, we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation to the directors’
statement in the financial staterents about whether the directors considered it appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our respensibifities and the responsibiities of the directors with respect to going concern
are described in the relevant sections of this report.

5. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in cur audit of the financial statements of the current perod and include the
most significant assessed risks of matenal misstaternent (whether or not due to fraud} that
we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall
audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the
engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of cur audit of the financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

5.1. Inventory valuation

Key audit matter
description

The Group manufactures thermal. carbon and technical ceramic
products for a diverse range of end markets. The Group had
rraterial gross mventory balances of £174.2m as at 31 Decembe)
2022 (FY2l: £140.7m). There is a risk that inventory is not valued
appropriately because of local manufacturing sites not correctly
applying the Group previsioning accounting policy to write-down
the net realisable value of excess and obsolescent stock due to:

“

> System limitations, whereby significant manual intervention is
required to record and value inventory which requires regular
manual adjustments to inventory; and

The level of management judgement invelved in determining
whether a provision should be recognised and how it should
be measured, The provision is typically determined based on
ageing and expected future usage.

In the Consclidated Financial Statements, note | sets out the
Group's accounting policy for inventory valuation and Note {5
provides further analysis of the account bafance.

How the scope

of our audit

responded to

the key audit

matter > Obtained an understanding of the relevant controls over the
inventory provisioning process;

We have performed the following audit procedures in respect of
this key audit matter:

> Assessed any unusual manual adjustments to inventary;

> Assessed the inventory ageing and assessed whether the group
accounting policy of fully providing for inventory more than

12 months has been applied. For items less than |2 months
we evaluated the breakdown of the inventory by age;

» Challenged management's key assumptions in determining
inventory provisions by assessing the accuracy and completeness
of tems included in the provision by taking into account the
impact on future usage: and

Assessed the mathematical accuracy of the inventory provision
by obtaning management’s analysis and performing a
recalculation based on the key inputs.

Based on our procedures performed. we are satisfied that the
valuation of inventory at 31 December 2022 is appropriate.

Key observations
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5.2. Impairment of non-financial assets

Key audit matter
description

How the scope
of our audit
responded to
the key audit
matter

Key observations

IAS 36 requires that at the end of each reporting period. an entity should assess whether there are any indicators
of impairment or indicators that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods should be reversed H such
indication exists, the entity shall estimate the recoverable amount of that asset. Management's review for indicators
of impairment or reversal identfied sites and assets that required further consideration. Impairment indicators
were identified for certain assets in Seals and Bearings Asia, Thermal Ceramics Furope, and Technical Ceramics
Asia, Total impairment charges for the year were £6.5 million.

We focused the majority of our work on the carrying values of the cash generating units (CGUs) where the risk of
impairment or imparment reversal was material and the model was sensitive to changes to the input assumptions:

. Seals and Bearings Asia, where an impairment of £1.6m was recorded in the year.

. Technical Ceramics Cores North America  where impawment of £28 8m has been recorded in previous years,
and for which no reversal was made in the current year.

Management has determined the recoverable amount based on a value-in-use model calculated from cash flow
projections, which are based on management’s assurmptions and estimates of future trading performance.

Estimating a value-in-use is inherently judgemental, and a range of assumptions can reascnably be applied in
determining the estimates used therein. The key judgements in assessing non-financial assets for impairment are
the discount rate, long term growth rate, and the short-term projected cash flows, The value-in-use models are
sensitive to changes in these estimates, all of which must reflect a long-term view of underlying growth in the
respective economy within which these businesses operate and the reasonableness of projected cash flows,

We have focused this key audit matter to the discount rate and short-term future cash fiows and material
judgements contained therein. This is where the highest degree of sensitivity exists in determining the value-in-use.

The Audit Committee Report on page 82 refers o impairment of non-financial assets as an area considered
by the Audit Commiittee. Note | to the Consolidated Financial Statements sets out the Group's accounting
policy for testing of non-financial assets for impairment and contains further details on the key scurce of
estimation uncertainty.

We have performed the following procedures in respect of this key aud't matter:
"~ Obtained an understanding of the relevant key controls relating to the impairment process;

- Challenged management's indicator assessment for impairment or reversal by performing our own independent
consideration of possible indicators;

7 Assessed the integrity of management's impairment model through testing of the mechanical accuracy and the
applcation of the input assumptions;

> Evaluated the process management undertock to prepare the cash flow forecasts in their impairment models
including agreement with the latest Board-approved plans and management approved forecasts;

Challenged the cash flow projections through assessing the accuracy of historical budgeting by comparing
them with actual performance and independent evidence to suppoert any significant expected future changes
to the business;

S

© Assessed the impact of macro-economic conditions on the CGUs

Assessed a range of available market data and performing a peer benchmarking exercise to assess and challenge
the growth rates forecasted by management in revenue and margins;

™ Assessed reasonable passible changes in assumptions to challenge the appropriateness of management's
assessment of reasonable possible change scenarios: and

> Involved internal valuation specialists to assess the appropriateness of the discount rates used.

Based on our procedures performed, we consider the key assumptions taken by management to be within an
acceptable range. We have separately reported to the Audit Committee our control observations related to the
review controls over the process to identify impalrment indicators and the value in use models.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued

5.3. Pust year-end cyber security incident

Key audit matter
description

How the scope
of our audit
responded to
the key audit
matter

Key observations

The Group was the subject of a cyber security incident in january 2023. Following the detection of unauthorised
activity on its network, the Group took the decision to temporanly remove access and isolate various of its IT
systems, including the Group's core financial reporting systems, while the threat was assessed. Following a forensic
investigation. access to those systems was restored in an orderly manner.

The Group has determined the cyber security incident to have occurred after the year-end date. Consequently.
disclosure of the incident has been included as a Subsequent event in note Z/ to the tinancial statements, including
their estimate of the associated costs to be recorded in 2023,

The Audit Committee Report on page 82 refers to cyber security as an area discussed by the Audit Committee.

We have performed the following procedures in respect of this key audit matter:

With the assistance of our IT specialists, we have:

> Held discussions with Finance and IT management to understand whether any control deficencies existed that

allowed the unauthorised activity to occur.

> Held discussions with management's cyber experts and assessed their reports, to understand:

the cause and timing of the cyber incident. which formed the basis of our challenge of whether this was a post
year-end event.

the impact of the cuber incident and the assessment they have made regarding the availability and integrity of key
information and data used in the financial reporting.

"y

> Assessed the capability. objectivity and competence of the experts used by management.

> We considered whether the cyber breach would have an impact on the nature. timing and extent of our audit

procedures to test the completeness and accuracy of nformation an which we relied and as a result performed
further audit procedures where we considered it necessary,

We have assessed the Board's response to the incident, changes to the IT control envireonment since the incident,
and the wider suite of remediation that has taken place to reduce the likelihood of similar incidents recccurring.

Based on our understanding gained of the ¢yber incident, we have re-evaluated our financial statement risk
assessment. We performed incremental substantive testing relating to the nisk of management override, focusing
on journals recorded post year-end during periods of systems outages where a higher level of manual controls
was operating.

We have assessed the completeness and valuation of management’s estimates of costs incurred or anticipated
post year end, impairment of I T assets as well as liabilities or contingent liabilities relating to the risk of any future
investigation, litigation or fines.

We did not identify any significant accounting issues as a consequence of the post year-end cyber incident.
We concur with the conclusion that this 15 a non-adjusting post balance sheet event and that the disclosures
made in the financial statements, including the estimate of costs, are reasonable.

6. Our application of materiality

6.1. Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes 1t probable that the economic decisions
of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of cur audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Parent company financial statements
Materiality £6.0m (FY21: £5.0m) £3.6m {(FY21: £3.0m)
Basis for The materiality was determined based on 4.4% Materiality was determined based on the Parent
determining of profit before tax and specific adjusting iterns as company's net assets (3%). This was then capped
materiality described in note 6 (FY21: 4.6%). at 60% of Group materiality (FY21: 60%).
Rationale for Profit before tax and specfic adjusting items is The Parent company is non-trading and containis
the benchmark a key metric for users of the financial statements and investments in all the Group's trading components
applied reflects the way business performance s reported and  and as a result. we have determined net assets for

assessed by external users of the financial statements, the current year to be the appropriate basis.
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Profit before tax and Group rateriality £6 Omi

specific adjusting

ttems £137 Im

. Component matenalty range.
excluding the parent company:
£1.76émto £1.95m
Audt Corrmittee reporting
threshiold £0 30m

@& PET vefore specific adjusting tems
@ Group matenality

6.2. Performance materiality
We set performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that. in aggregate. uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceed the matenality for the financal statements as a whole.

Group financial statements Parent company financial statements

Performance 65% (FY2i: 65%) of Group materiality 6-5% (FY21: 65%;) of Parent company materiality
materiality
Basis and rationale [n determining performance materality, we considered the following factors:

for determining N . ‘ ‘ .
> our risk assessment, including our assessment of the Group’s overall control environment and cur past
performance

- e :
materiality xperience of the audit;

> the disaggregated nature of the Group and the degree of centrahsation in the Group's fimancial reporting
processes which reduces the likelihood of an individually materiat error; and

~ the level of corrected and uncorrected misstaterments identified in the prior year audit.

6.3 Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report 1o the Committee all audit differences in excess of £0.30m (FY2I: £0.25m).
as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view. warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also repoert to the Audit
Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

7.1, ldentification and scoping of components

The Greup cperates and manufactures in 70 sites in |18 countries spread across five continents with the largest footprint being in
North Amer:ca, Asia and Europe. Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment,
including Group-wide controls, and assessing the risks of material misstatement at the Group and component level.

Based on that assessment, we focused our Group audit scope across all five of the established business units: Thermat Cerancs.
Molten Metal systems, Seals and Bearings, Technical Ceramics and Electrical Carbon.

These five business units are composed of many individual reporting components, which are the lowest level at which management
prepares financial information that is included in the Financial Statements. The Parent company is located in the UK and is audited directly
by the Group audit tearmn.

We have considered reporting components based on their contribution to Group revenue, and profit, as well as those that require local
statutory audits in their junisdiction, Full scope audit work was completed on |7 (FY21: 17) components and specified audit procedures
were undertaken on a further 12 (FY21:13) components. Each reporting component in scope, excluding the parent company, was subject
to an audit materiality level between £1.76n and £195m (FY21: 1.46m and £1.63m). Our fult scope and specified audit procedures
covered 72% of Group revenue (FY21: 72%) and 73% of absolute Group profit before tax (FY21: 74%,).
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued

Al a Group level, we tested the
consolidation and performed analytical
review procedures over components
not in scope.

7.2. Qur consideration of

the control environment

e Group uses a number of diferent 1T
systerns across the reporting components.
and we worked with our | T specialists to
obtain an understanding of the General T
controls for relevant systems. The control
environment is decentralised and reliant
on manual processes with improvements
required to the IT environment in order
for us to adopt a contrels reliance approach
to cur audit. As management develops
and completes its controls improvement
programme of work in future years,

we expect our audit approach to evolve
alengside these developments in the
internal control envircnment.

In response to a post year-end Cyber
Security Incident, we performed
incremental procedures as described
in section 5.3.

7.3. Our considerations of
climate-related risks

in planning our audit, we have considered
the potential impact of chmate change

on the Group's business and its

financial statements.

The Group considers the risk and
opportunities relevant to be an emerging
issue for the Group. As a part of our

audit procedures, we have obtaned
management’s climate-related risk
assessment and held discussions with those
charged with governance to understand the
pracess of identifying chmate-related risks.
the determination of mitigating actions

and the impact on the Group's financial
statements, While the directors

Revenue

& Full audit scope 54%
@ Specfied audit procedures 18%
@ Revew at group level 28%

ackriowlcdged that the transition and
physical risks posed by chmate change have
the petential to impact the medium to leng
term success of the business, they have
assessed that there is no material impact
arising from climate change on the
judgements and estimates made in the
financial statemients as at 31 December
2022 as explained in note | on page |35,

We performed our own gualitative risk
assessment of the potential impact of
¢limate change on the Group's account
balances and classes of transaction and did
not identfy any additional risks of material
misstatement. Cur procedures include
reading disclosures inciuded in the Strategic
Report to consider whether they are
materially consistent with the financial
statements and our knowledge obtained
in the audit,

7.4. Working with other auditors
The audit work on all components was
performed by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Limited member firms with the exception
of one component business in France
which continued to be audited by KPMG.
The component work was performed
under the direction, supervision and
review of the Croup audit team.

Tne planned programme which we
designed as part of cur involvement

in the component auditors” work was
delivered over the course of the Group
audit. The extent of our iInvolvernent
which commenced from the planning
phase included:

> Setting the scape of the component
auditors and assessment of their
independence;

Absolute Profit before tax

@ Full audt scope 54%
@ Specfiec audit procedures 19%
@ Review al group revel 27%
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Desigring the audit procedures for zll
significant risks to be addressed by the
component auditors and issuing Group
audit instructions detailing the nature and
form of the reporting required;

Providing direction cn enguiries made by
the cormponent auditors through online
and telephone conversations: and

A review of the component auditors’
engagement file by a senior member
of the Group engagement team.

8. Other information

The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report,
other than the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon, The directors
are responsible for the other information
cortained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information ang,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

QOur responsibility 1s to read the other
information and, in daing so, consider
whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements.
or our knowledge obtained in the course
of the audit. or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies
or apparent material misstatements,

we are required to determine whether this
gives rise to a material misstaterment in the
financial statemenits themselves. If. based on
the work we have performed. we conclude
that there 1s a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

9. Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’

respensibilities statement, the directers
are responsible for the preparation of the

financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view, and for

such internal control as the directors
determine Is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that
are free from matenal misstatement.
whether due to fraud or error.



In preparing the finanaal statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the
group's and the parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as
applicable, matters related te going concern
and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the group or the parent
company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

10. Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial
statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reascnable
assurance about whether the financial
staterments as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. and to 1ssue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that

an audit conducted in accordance with
1945 (UK} witl always detect a matenal
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material #. individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably

be expected to Influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities
for the audit of the financial staternents

is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

1. Extent to which the audit was
considered capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities. inclucing fraud, are instances
of non-compliance with laws and
regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above,
to detect material misstatements in respect
of irregularties, including fraud. The extent
to which cur procedures are capable of
detecting irregularities. including fraud s
detalled below.

1.1, Identifying and

assessing potential risks

related to irregularities

In identifying and assessing risks of material
misstatement in respect of irregularities,
including fravd and non-comphance with
laws and regulations, we considered

the following:

tha rature of the imdustry and sactor.
control environment anc business
performance including the design

of the greup’s remuneration policies,
key drivers for directors’ rermuneration,
bonus levels and performance targets:

resulls ol our enguirigs ol direciors.,
management, Internal audit and the
audit committee about their own
identification and assessment of the
risks of irregularities:

-

. any matters we identified having obtained
and reviewed the group's documentation

of their policies and procedures relating to:

- identifying, evaluating and complying
with laws and regulations and whether
they were aware of any instances of
non-cormpliance;

detecting and responding to the
risks of fraud and whether they have
knowledge of any actual suspected
or alleged fraud;

- the internal controls established
to mitigate risks of fraud or
non-compliance with laws and
regulations; and

— the post year-end cyber
security incident.

» the matters discussed among the audit
engagement team including significant
component audit teams and relevant
internal specialists, including tax,
valuations, pensions, and |1 specalists
regarding how and where fraud might
cceur in the financial statements and
any potential indicators of fraud.

As a result of these procedures, we
considered the opportunities and incentives
that may exist within the organisation for
fraud and identified the greatest potential
for fraud in the following area: revenue
recogrition. In common with all audits
under [SAs (UK, we are also required to
perform specific procedures to respond

1o the risk of management override.

We also obtained an understanding of the
legal and regulatory framewoerks that the
group operates in, focusing on provisions of
those laws and regulations that had a direct
effect on the determinaton of material
amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, The key laws and regulanens
we considered in this context included the
UK Companies Act, Listing Rules, pensions
legislation and tax legislation in all relevant
jurisdictions where the Group operates.
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In addition, we considered provisions
of other laws and regulations that do
not have a direct effect on the financial
statements but compliance with which
rmay be fundamental to the group's
abllity to operate or te avord a material
penalty. These included the group’s
environmental regulations

11.2. Audit response to

risks identified

As a result of performing the above,

we did not identify any key audit matters
related to the potential risk of fraud or
non-complance with laws and regulations.

Qur procedures to respond to risks
identified included the following:

Y
P

NS

reviewing the financial statement
disclosures and testing to supporting
documentation to assess compliance
with prowvisions of relevant laws and
regulations described as having a direct
effect on the financial staterments;

enguiring of management, the audit
committee and in-house legal counsel
concerning actual and potential litigation
and claims, including in respect of the
cyber security incident as described in
section 5.3:

perforrung analytical procedures to
identify any unusual or unexpected
relationships that may indicate risks of
material misstatement due to fraud;

reading minutes of meetings of those
charged with governance. reviewing
internal audit reports and reviewing

correspondence with HMRC,

in addressing the risk of fraud in

relation to revenue recognition,

we tested a sample of sales recognised
during the pericd by agreeing to invaice,
dispatch note and cash collection
(where appropriate) to assess whether
the performance obligations have been
met; and

in addressing the risk of fraud through

management override of controls, testing
the appropriateness of journal entries and
other adiustments; assessing whether the
judgerments made in raking accounting
estimates are ncdicative of a potential
bias: and evaluating the business rationale
of any significant transactions that are
unusual or outside the normal course

of business.




Independent Auditor’s Report continued

We also cormmunicaled relevant ide qtified
laws and regulations and potential fraud
risks to all engagement team members
including significant component audit
teams and internal speciahsts and
remainec alert to any indications of

fraud aor non-compliance with laws

and regulations throughout the audit.

Report on other legal and
regufatory requirements

i2. Opinions on other matcers
prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opinion the part of the directors’
remuneration report to be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance
with the Comparues Act 2006.

In cur opinion, based on the work
undertaken in the course of the audit:

N

Z the information given in the strategic
report and the directors’ report for
the financial year for which the financial
staterments are prepared is consistent
with the financial statements; and

“

the strategic report and the directors’
report have been prepared In accordance
with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowleoge and
understanding of the group and the parent
company and their environrment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not
identified any matenal misstaterments in the
strategic report or the directors' repott.

3. Corporate Governance
Statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the
directors’ statement in relation to going
concern, longer-term viability and that part
of the Corporate Governance Statement
relating to the group’'s compliance with

the provisions of the UK Corperate
Governance Code specified for our review,

Based on the work undertaken as part of
our audit, we have concluded that each of
the following elements of the Corporate
Governarice Staterment 1s matersally
consistent with the financial statements and
our knowledge obtained during the audit:

the directors’ statement with regards
to the appropriateness of adopting the
going concern basis of accounting and
any material uncertainties identified set
cut on page 55:

the ditectul s” explanativn as to its
assessment of the group's prospects,
the period this assessment covers and
why the period is appropriate set out
on page 55;

" the directors’ statement on farr,
palanced and understandable set
out on page 120;

- the board's confirmation that it has
carried out a robust assessment of the
emerging and principal risks set out
on page 40:

> the section of the annual report that
describes the review of effectiveness of
risk management and internal control
systems set out on page 83 and

> the section describing the work of the

audit committee set out on page 79.

14. Matters on which we are
required to report by exception

14.1. Adequacy of explanations
received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are
required to report to you if. in our opimon:

> we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our

audit; or

NS

adequate accounting records have

not been kept by the parent company.
or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not
visited by us; or

the parent company financial statements
are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of
these matters.

14.2. Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we

are also required to report if in our
opinion certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration have not been made or the
part of the directors’ remuneration report
lo be audited is not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns,

We have nothing to report in respect of
these matters.
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15 Other matters which we are
required te address

15.1. Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the audit
committee, we were appointed in June
2019 to audit the financial staterments for
the year ending 31 Decermber 2020 and
subsequent financial periods. The Board's
decision was approved by the shareholders
at the AGM in May 2020. The period of
total uninterrupted engagement of the

firm is 3 years, covering the years ending
3t December 2020 to 31 December 2022.

15.2. Consistency of the audit
report with the additional report
to the audit committee

Our audit opinion is consistent with the
additional report to the audit committee
we are required 1o provide in accordance
with [SAs (UK).

16. Usc of our report

This report is made solely to the company's
members, as a body, In accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part |6 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor's repert and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or
assurme responsibility to anyone other than
the company and the company's members
as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

As required by the Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA) Bisclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rule (DTR) 4.1.14R, these
financial statements will form part of the
European Single Electronic Foermat (ESEF)
prepared Annual Financial Report filed

on the National Storage Mechanism of

the UK FCA In accordance with the ESEF
Regulatory Technical Standard ('ESEF RTS").
This auditor's report provides no assurance
over whether the annual financial report
has been prepared using the single
electronic format specified in the ESEF RTS.

Jane Makrakis, ACA

(Senior statutory auditor)

For and on behalf of Deloittc LLP
Statutory Auditor

Reading. United Kingdom
27 Apnil 2023
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to exploit our growth
opportunities.
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Consolidated income statement

FOR THE YFAR FNDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3| Decembeyr 2022 31 December 2021
Results Results
before betore
specific Specific specific Speafic
adjusting adjusting adjusting adjusting
items items' Total items lems Total
N £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 3 1,112.1 - L1121 950.5 - 950.5

Operating costs before amortisation
of intangible assets 4 (961.1) {5.5) (966.6) (8260} (5.4 831.4)

Profit from operations before
amortisation of intangible

assets s 1510 (5.5) 145.5 124.5 (5.4 9.1
Amortisation of intangible assets 4 4.7) - 4.7) (6.0} - (6.0)
Qperating profit 3 146.3 (5.5) 140.8 [18.5 (54 3.1
Finance income 1.6 - 1.6 0.8 0.8
Finance expense (10.8) - (10.8) (10.0) {10.0y
Net financing costs ’ (9.2) - (9.-2) (9.2) - (9.2}
Share of profit of associate
{net of income tax) - - - 04 - C4
Profit before taxation 137.1 (5.5) 131.6 109.7 5.4 1043
Income tax expense 2 @37.1) 1.1 (36.0) (29.7) 1.5 (28.2)
Profit from continuing
operations 100.0 (4.4) 95.6 80.0 (3.9 76.1
Profit from discontinued
operations? 5 - 1.1 1.1 57 5.7
Profit for the year 100.0 (3.3) 96.7 80.0 [.8 8l1.8
Profit for the year
attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company 9i.3 (3.3) 88.0 715 2.3 73.8
Non-controlling interests 8.7 - 8.7 8.5 (0.5} 8.0
160.0 (3.3) 96.7 80.0 [.8 81.8
Earnings per share 10
Continuing and
discontinued operations
Basic earnings per share 31.0p 259
Diluted earnings per share 30.7p 25.7p
Continuing operations
Basic earnings per share 30.6p 239
Diluted earnings per share 30.3p 23.7p
Dividends®
Interim dividend
- pence 5.30p 3.20p
- £m I5.1 9.1
Proposed final dividend
pence 6.70p 5.90p
£rm 19.1 16.8
Detall- of sper fo adjusting ite s om comtinuing opes ations are prer = note 4 to te consohdated finans & datemerts

2 Profits om discontriued operat oris are e~tirely sttripuiable 1o the sharenolders of tne Compars

3 The prooosed final ciadend is based upon the pumoer of Ordinary shares o steanding at the Salaw e sheeT cote
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Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

FORTHE YIAR ENDID 31 DECEMBER 2022

31 December

31 December

2022 202
INE £m £m
Profit for the year 96.7 81.8
Other comprehensive income/(expense):
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plans 5.5 555
Tax effect of components of other comprehensive income not reclassified (3.4) (0.6)
2.1 549
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign exchange translation differences 17.5 1.0
Tax effect of components of other comprehensive income that may be reclassified - (¢.8)
Cash flow hedges:
Change in fair value (0.2) 0.0
Transferred to profit or loss 0.1 0.4
17.4 {0.3)
Total other comprehensive income 19.5 54.6
Total comprehensive income 116.2 136 4
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company 106.7 128.5
Non-controlling interests 9.5 79
116.2 1364
Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders of the
Company arising from:
Conunuing operations 105.6 122.8
Discontinued operations [N ] 57
106.7 128.5
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Consolidated balance sheet

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

2022 2021

it Em £m
Assets
Property, plant and equipment I 283.2 248.1
Right-of use assets le 33.6 319
intangible assets: goodwill 13 i81.9 1729
Intangible assets: other 13 7.1 10.2
Cther recevables It 3.2 2.9
Deferred tax assets I 15.3 159
Total non-current assets 524.3 481.9
Inventories 15 174.2 140.7
Dervative financial assets 1.3 0.6
Trade and other recevables 1€ 202.5 1&1.4
Current tax receivable 0.3 0.6
Cash and <cash equivalents i 117.7 1273
Total current assets 496.0 430.6
Total assets 1,020.3 912.5
Liabilities
Borrowings 70 230.1 174.0
Lease liabilittes i 41.4 40.0
Employee benefits: pensions i 15.6 102.7
Provisions i 16.1 4.8
Non-trade payables ‘E 2.1 24
Deferred tax habilities 2.0 1.2
Total non-current liabilities 307.3 3351
Borrowings and bank overdrafts e 36.1 -
Lease liabilities iU 10.5 9.8
Trade and other payables & 195.0 177.2
Current tax payable 30.3 254
Provisions e 9.9 4.8
Derwvative financial liabilities 1.6 0.6
Total current liabilities 283.4 2278
Total liabilities 590.7 5629
Total net assets 429.6 349.6
Equity
Share capital I 71.3 71.3
Share premium L7 117
Reserves 35.1 18.5
Retained earnings 170.9 1091
Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Company 389.0 310.6
Non-controlling interests 40.6 3%9.0
Total equity 429.6 349.6

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 April 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:

Pete Raby Richard Armitage
Chief Executive Cfficer Chief Financial Ofhicer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Capital Tocal Non-
Share Share Translation Hedging Fair value redemption Other Retained parent controlling Total
capital premium resarve raserve reserve reserve reserves earnings equity interests equity
im £m Ln Em £m Em Zm Im £m im £m

At | January 2021 71.3 7 (17.0 0.4 (4R 357 06 0.6 202.3 377 240.0
Profit for the year - - - - - 738 738 80 81.8
Other comprehensive
Income/{expense):
Remeasurement gain on
defined benefit plans and
relatec taxes 54 2 549 54.9
Foreign exchange differences
and related taxes - - 03 03 0 02
Cash flow hedging fair value
changes and transfers - - - {0.5) - - - - (0.5) - (0.5)
Total other
comprehensive income/
{expense) - - 03 (0.5) - - - 549 54.7 ©.1) 54.6
Total comprehensive
income/(expense) - - 03 (0.5) - - - 1287 128.5 79 1364
Transactions with
ownhers:
Dividends - - - - - - {19.1) (19.13 (6.6) {25.7)
Equity-settled
share-based payments 45 4.5 45
Gwn shares acquired for
share incentive schermes (net) - - (5.6) (5.6) (5.6)
At 31 December 2021 713 .7 (167} Q.1 (1.0} 357 e 109.1 3106 39.0 349.6
At | January 2022 71.3 L7 (16.7) ©.1}) (1.09) 35.7 0.6 109.1 310.6 3%.0 349.6
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 88.0 88.0 8.7 96.7
Other comprehensive
income/(expense):
Remeasurement gain on
defined benefit plans and
1elated taxes - - - - - - - 2.1 2.1 - 2.1
Foareign exchange differences
and related taxes - - 16,7 - - - - - 16.7 0.8 17.5
Cash flow hedging fair value
changes and transfers - - - 0.1) - - - - (0.1 - {0.1)
Total other
comprehensive income/
(expense) - - 16.7 (0.1) - - - 2.4 18.7 0.8 19.5
Total comprehensive
income/{expense) - - 16,7 ©0.1) - - - 90.1 106.7 9.5 116.2
Transactions with
owners:
Dividends - - - - - - - {(31.6) (31.6) (7.9) (39.5)
Equity-settled
share-basec payrents - - - - - - - 57 57 - 5.7
Crwi shares acquired for
share incentive schemes {net) - - - - - - - 2.4 2.4) - 2.4
At 3| December 2022 71.3 1.7 - (0.2) (1.0 35.7 0.6 170.9 389.0 40.6 429.6

Detalls of the reserves are provided in note 9.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

FOR THE YEAR ENIDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1 Deeemaon

31 December 207
2022 restafes
- - o e e te ) gm im
Operating activities o -
Profit for the year from continuing operations 95.6 76.1
Profit for the year from discontnued operations 4 1.1 5.7
Adjustments tor:
Depreciation property, plant and equipment 30.3 30.1
Depreciation  right-of-use assets 7.8 79
Amartisation 4.7 6.0
Net financing costs 7 9.2 9.2
Profit on disposal of business P (0.4) 7 n
Non-cash specific adjusting iterns included in operating profit 6.6 10.4
Share of profit from associate {net of income tax) - (0.4
{Profit)ioss on sale of property. plant and equipment (0.3) 03
Income tax expense 8 36.0 28.2
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 4 5.1 4.5
Cash generated from operations before changes in working capital and provisions 195.7 1709
Increase in trade and other receivables (26.5) (17.2)
Increase in inventories (25.2) (20.1)
Increase in trade and other payables 7.0 283
Decrease in provisions 4.9) (5.8)
Paymerits 1o defined benefit pension plans (net of IAS |9 pension charges) 72 (85.9) (16.9)
Cash generated from operations 60.2 139.2
Interest paid  borrowings and overdrafts (7.0) ©.1
Interest pad - lease habilities (2.4) (2.3)
Income tax pad (31.8) (25.4)
Net cash from operating activities 19.0 105.4
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and software (58.0) (31.6)
Purchase of investments - {0.9)
Acguisition of business assets 2 - {1.9)
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment 0.6 55
Interest received i.6 0.8
Disposal of investmenls ? 0.4 14.2
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed : - 0.8
Net cash from investing activities (55.49) {13.1)
Financing activities
Purchase of own shares for share incentive schemes b (2.9) (59
Proceeds from exercise of share options 15 0.5 0.3
Increase in borrowings 7 113.3 273
Reduction and repayment of borrowings ; (39.0) {39 6}
Payrnent of lease liabilties 7 9.0) (8 6}
Dwadends paid to shareholders of the Company (31.6) {(19.1}
Dividends paid te non-controling interests 7.9) (6.6}
Purchase of shares from nen-contrelling interest - -
Net cash from financing activities 23.4 (112.2}
Net decrease In cash and cash equivalents {13.0) (19.9)
Cash and cash equivalenits at start of the year 127.3 147.8
Efect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 34 {0.6)
Cash and cash equivalents at year end / 117.7 127.3

[ W L I N e B (U AR LTI R T pease dnd LT er o b aargs sep enately
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

I. Significant accounting policies, estimates and judgements

Morgan Advanced Materials ple (the ‘Company’) is a public company imited by shares incorporated in the UK under the Companies
Act and is headquartered in the UK. The address of the registered office is given in Shareholder information on page 208.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries and the nature of the Group's operations are set out in the Strategic
Report on pages 2-59.

The Group's financial staterments consolidate those of the Company and s subsidiaries {together referred to as the 'Group’), and include
the Group's interest in asscciates. The Parent Company financial statements present information about the Company as a separate entity
and not about its Group. These consolidated financial statements have been drawn up to 31 December 2022, The Group maintains

a 12 month calendar financial year ending on 31 December.

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS’) as adopted by the UK. The Company has elected to
prepare its Parent Company financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard |01 Reduced Disclosure Framework;
these are presented on pages 186 204,

Except for the changes set out in the adoption of new and revised standards section, the accounting policies set cut below have been
applied consistently to all periods presented in these Group financial statements,

Significant accounting policies

Measurement convention
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value: derivative financial instruments and financial instruments designated as fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVOCI).

Functional and presentation currency
The Group's financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, which 15 the Company's functional currency.

Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has tne ability 1o affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements
of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which
control ceases.

(i) Acquisitions

Business combinalions are accounted for using the acquistiion method as at the acquisition date. which is the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. The Group measures goodwill as the acquisition-date fair value of the consideration transferred, including the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquirec, less the net of the acquisition-date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired
and habiities assurmed, including contingent liabilives as required by IFRS 3.

Consiceration transferred includes the fair values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred by the Group to the previous owners of the
acquiree, equity interests issued by the Group, contingent consideration, and share-based payment awards of the acquiree that are
replaced in the business combination, Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of contingent consideration that is not classified as equity is recognised In the income staterment.

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination, such as finder's fees, legal fees, due diligence fees
and other professional and consulting fees, are expensed as incurred.

(iii) Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not control. over the financial and operating palicies.
Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group helds between 20% and 50% of the voting power of another entity.
Associates are accounted for using the equity method and are initially recognised at cost.

(iv) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising from ntra-group transactions are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arsing from transactions with associates are eliminated against the
investrment to the extent of the Group's interest In the associate. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains.
vut only to the extent that there 1s no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

I. Significant accounting policies, estimates and judgements {(continued)

Foreign currency

(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
lizbilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to pounds sterling at the foreign exchange rate ruling
at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-maonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated to pounds sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair values are determined.

(i} Financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation, are translated to
pounds sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The revenues, expenses and cash fiows of foreign operations
are translated to pounds sterling at an average rate for the period where this approximates to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation since the adoption of IFRS are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accurmulated in the translation reserve,

Specific adjusting items

The Group uses specific adjusting items. which are not defined or specified under IFRS. These specific adjusting items, which are not
considered to be a substitute for IFRS measures, provide additional helpful information, in the consolidated income statement the Group
presents specific adjusting items separately. In the judgement of the Directors. due to the nature and value of these items they should be
disclosed separately from the underlying results of the Group to provide the reader with an alternative understanding of the financial
information and an indication of the underlying performance of the Group.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised when or as the Group satisfies a performance cobligation by transferring a promised good or service to a customer,
The Group's principal performance obligation is the provision of products and components, and is satisfied at a point in time and subject
to payment terms typical to the gecgraphy in which the business operates, Products and components are transferred when the customer
obtains control of the goods. For goods that are collected by the customer. revenue is recognised at the point the customer has taken
physical possession of the goods. For contracts that include delivery of goods. the delivery element of the contract constitutes a separate
performance obfigation because it 15 distinct. For these contracts, control of the goods does not transfer to the custemer until the goods
have been delivered and therefore both performance obligations are satisfied simultaneously. Revenue for these contracts 1s therefore
recognised on delivery.

Substantially all of the Group's revenue is derived from short-term contracts for the provision of products and components. A smaller
portion of the Group's revenue relates to project-based business, principally within the Thermal Ceramics global business unit. Revenue
for these contracts is recognised in ling with fulfilment of contractual performance obligations stated in the contract and is net significant;
consequently (except for trade receivables) the Group does not have significant assets or liabilities relating to its contracts with customers.

Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it 1s highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur. The transaction price is determined as the amount recevable for the provision of products and components excluding
rebates, discounts and similar items. Determining the transaction price does not require significant judgement. The costs incurred in
obtaining contracts are not material, The Group acts as a prinapal in its transactions with customers. In 2022, there were no material
adjustments to revenue which related to performance obligations satisfied in the previcus year,

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers requires revenue to be disaggregated into categories that depict how the nature,
armount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. The Group discloses revenue disaggregated
by geography. end-market and by global business unit. which are aligned by product type. in note 3 to the consolidated financial
staterments.

Research and development

The Group's research and development expenditure 1s widely dispersed with no individually materal projects. It 1s often some time into
a project before the Group is able to test technical or commercial feasibility and therefore whether the Group will continue to fund any
individual project, as such materially all of the Group's expenditure is recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred

Developrnent activities are capitalised when research findings are applied 10 a plan or design for the production of new or substantiafy
improved products and processes and relate to a product or process that is technically and commercially feasible, and when the Group
has sufficient rescurces to complete development, use and sale of products or processes. Capitalised development expenditure is stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
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[. Significant accounting policies, estimates and judgements (continucd)

Finance income and expense

Net financing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective interest rate method, interest recervable on
funds invested. gains and losses on hedging instruments that are recognised in the income statement, interest on IFRS 16 lease liabifities
and net interest on 1AS |9 pension assets and IAS |9 obligations. Interest income Is recognised in the income statement as 1t accrues.
using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs (interest and other costs) are capitalised when they are incurred on raising speatic funds to finance a major capital
project which will be a significant productive asset. or to the extent that funds borrowed generally are used for the purposes of obtaining
a qualifying asset

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax s recogmsed in the income statement except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income. in which case it is recognised in equity
or other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payabie on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the baance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet labilty method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and habilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are
not provided for: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future.
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets

and liabilities, using 1ax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Discontinued operations

Where the Group has disposed of or has classified as held-for-sale a business component which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, 1t classifies such operations as discontinued. The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operations is shawn as a single ine on the face of the consolidated income statement. separate from the results of the rest of the Group.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments in respect of foreign currency risk and interest rate risk in cash flow
hedges. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges. At the inception of the hedge
relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk management
objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions, Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis,
the Group documents whether the hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk, which is when the hedging relationships meet all of the following hedge effectiveness requirements:

> there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;
> the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic relztionship; and

the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group actually
hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that guantity of hedged item

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement relating to the hedge ratic but the risk management
objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same, the Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship

{i.e. rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the gualifying ¢nteria again. The Group designates the full change in the fair value of a forward
contract (i.e. including the forward elements) as the hedging instrument for all of its hedging relationships involving forward contracts,

Naote 21 sets out details of the fair values of tne dervative instruments used for hedging purposes.
Movements in the hedging reserve in equity are detaled in note 19,

Fair value hedges
The fair value change on qualifying hedging instruments is recognised :n profit or loss.

Where hedging gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. they are recogmnised in the same line a5 the hedged itemn
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

[. Significant accounting policies, estimates and judgements (continucd)

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other qualitying hedging instruments that are designated ana qualify
as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of hedging reserve, limited to
the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item from inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previcusly recognised in other comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity are reclassitied to protit or loss in the pencds
when the hedged item affects profit or loss, In the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast
transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated m equity are removed from equity and incuded in the initial measurement of the cost of the
non-financial asset or non-financial liability. This transfer does not affect other comprehensive income. Furthermore, if the Group expects
that some or all of the loss accumulated in the hedging reserve will not be recovered in the future, that amount is immediately reclassified
to profit or loss.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship {or a part thereof) ceases to meet the qualifying criteria
(after rebalancing, if apphcable}. This includes instances when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The
discontinuation is accounted for prospectively. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in cash flow
hedge reserve at that time remains in equity and is reclassified to profit or toss when the forecast transaction occurs, When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve (s reclassified immediately to
profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

(i} Owned assets

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprediation (see below} and impairment losses. The cost
of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour. and an appropriate proportion of production overheads.

Where parts of an tem of property, plant and equipment have different useful ives. they are accounted for as separate items of property,
plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on the disposal of property, olant and eguipment are deterruned by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the
carrying amount of the asset. Gains and losses on the disposal of preperty, plant and equipment are recognised in Operating costs
before amortisation of intangible assets’ in the income statement.

(iiy Depreciation of owned assets

Depreciation is charged to the income staterment on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property.
plant and equipment. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each balance sheet
date. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Plant. equipment and fixtures 3-20 years

Leasing

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset

and a corresponding lease lability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low vaiue assets (Gefined as leases of a value of less than USD5.000 at lease
commencement}. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

(i) Lease liabilities

The lease liability 15 inially measured at the present value of future lease paymenits, discaunted by using the rate implicit in the lease or,
where the rate cannot be readily determined, an incremental berrowing rate. The lease payments included in the lease liabilty comprise
fixed lease payments, variable payments that depend on an index or rate and any payments due under lease extension, termination or
purchase options to the extent they are assessed as reasonably certain.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by using the effective interest method and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the Jease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment 1o the related right-of-use asset) whenever there is

a lease modification, a change in lease term or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the assessment
or exercise of other lease varables, such as purchase options. A remeasurement will also occur when the lease payments change due to
changes in index rates.
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I. Significant accounting policies, estimates and judgements (continued)

(i) Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets cemprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the
commencement date. less any lease incentives received and initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accurnulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or
restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease. a provision 1s recognised and measured
under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset. the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset. unless
those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

(iiiy Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts
at the commencement date of the lease.

Goodwill
All business combinations are accourited for by applying the purchase method. Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of the
acquisition and the fair value of assets. liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.

Goodwilll 1s not amortised, Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units and is tested at least annually
for impairment. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units is less than the carrying amount
of the unit or group, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit or group and
then to reduce the carrying amcunt of the other intangibles and other assets of the unit or group on a pro-rate basis. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent pericd.

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (see below) and impairment losses.

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets unless such
lives are indefinite, Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are systematically tested for impairment at each balance sheet date.
Other intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Capitalised development costs 3 years
Computer software 3-10 years
Customer relationships 15-20 years
Technology and trademarks 15-20 years

When the Group incurs configuration and customisation costs as part of a cloud-based software-as-a-service agreement, and where
this does not result in the creation of an asset which the Group has control cver. then these costs are expensed.

Impairment of non-financial assets, excluding goodwill
The carrying amounts of the Group's assets and cash-generating units are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists. the asset or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount is estimated,

The recoverable amount of other assets and cash-generating units is the greater of their value in use and fair value less costs to sell.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately n profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if the subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be refated objectively to an evenrt occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss to the extent that the
asset's or cash-generating unit's carrying amo.dnt does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Investments in equity securities

Investments in equity securtties held by the Group are classified as fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI') and are
stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised directly in other comprehensive income (in the fair value reserve}
The gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income until the security is dispesed of,

at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognisec in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVOC] reserve
is transferred to retained earnings.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

!. Significant accounting policies, estimates and judgements (continued)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

The cost of Inventories 1s based on the first-in-first out prinaiple and includes expenditure incurred In acquiring the inventories and
bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventeries and work in progress. cost includes an
appropriate share of overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recorded inttially at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost less the loss allowance. The loss
allowance is recognised based on management's expectation of losses without regard to whether an impairment trigger happened or not
{an ‘expected credit loss (ECLY model), The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL,
estimated based on historical write-offs and adjusted for forward-looking information where appropriate. Trade receivables maore than
|80 days past due are generally considered not recoverable and a 100% toss allowance is recognised, except where historical experience
with certain customers or geographies indicates otherwise. The loss is recognised in the income statement. Trade recervables are
written off when recoverability is assessed as being remote. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited 1o

the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Short-term deposits include demand deposits and short-term
highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are included as a component of borrowings for the purpose of the Group statement of cash flows.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at transaction price. Subsequent to intial recognition they are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the income statement over the period of
the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Financial instruments issued by the Group
Financial instraments issued by the Group are treated as equity {i.e. forming part of shareholders’ funds) only to the extent that they meet
the fellowing two conditions:

{i} they include no contractual obligations upon the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or 10 exchange financial assets or
financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Group: and

(iiy where the instrurment will or may be settled in the Company's own equity instruments, 1t is either a non-derivative that incudes
no obligation to deliver a variable number of the Company's own equity instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the
Company exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

To the extent that this definition 1s not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the instrument so classified
takes the legal form of the Company's own shares. the amounts presented in these financial statements for called-up share capital and
share premium account exclude amounts in refation to those shares.

Finance payments associated with financial liabilities are dealt with as part of finance expenses. Finance payments associated with financial
instruments that are classified in equity are dividends and are recorded directly in equity.

Pensions and other long-term service benefits

(i} Defined contribution plans

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions ta either publicly or privately administered pension plans. and the Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension
plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred.
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I. Significant accounting policics, estimates and judgements (continued)

(il Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is any retirement plan which is not a defined contribution plan. Typically, defined benefit plans define an amount of
retirement benefit that an employee will receive, usually depending on one or more factors such as age. years of service and earrings

The Group's net obligation sn respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the armount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets 1s deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on
AA-credit-rated bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group's obligations. The calculation 1s performed by

a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method,

When the calculation results in 2 benefit to the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the total of the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. An economic benefit is available
to the Group if It is realisable during the life of the plan. or on settlement of the plan liabilities. Remeasurement gains and losses, differences
between the interest iIncome and actual returns on assets, and the effect of changes in actuarial assumptions, are recogrised in full in cther
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

(iii) Long-term service benefits

The Group's net obligation in respect of long-term service benefits. other than pension plans. is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The obligation s calculated using the projected unit
credit method, or similar approximation, and 1s discounted to its present value and the fair value of any related assets is deducted.

The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on AA-credit-rated bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of
the Group’s obligations.

Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised as an expense, with a corresponding increase
In equity. over the period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of awards for which the related service and non-market performance conditions are met, such that
the amount ultimately recognised as an expense 15 based on the number of awards that meet the related service and non-market
performance conditions at the vesting date.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised in the consolidated balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result

of a past event and there is probable outfllow of resources which can be reliably measured and will be required to settle the obhgation,
Provisions are recognised at an amount equal to the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group's liability. If the effect
is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflective of the current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate. the risks specific to the liability.

A contingent liability is disclosed, where significanit, if the existence of the obligation will only be confirmed by future events or where the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with reasonable reliability, A contingent liabllity 15 not disclosed if the likelihood of a material
outflow in excess of any amounts provided is considered remote. Obligations arising from restructuring plans are recognised when detailed
formal plans have been established and when there is a valid expectation that such a plan will be carried out. The Group's cantingent
liabilities are reviewed on a regular basis.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed. where significant, if an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Preference share capital
Preference share capital is classified as a financial liability within borrowings if the substance of the shares does not contain an equity
element. Dividends on Preference share capital are classified as finance charges within the consolidated income statement,

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly attributable costs,
is net of any tax effects, and is recognised as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares and the purchase of own shares by The Morgan
General Employee Benefit Trust ('the Trust’) are presented as a deduction from total equity.

Dividends

Equity dividends on Ordinary share captal are recognised as a liability in the Company's financial statemnents on the date that the
shateholder's right to receive payment is established. Dividends declared after the balance sheet date are not recognised as there 15
no present obligation at the balance sheet date,

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing these consolidated financal statements, management has made judgements. estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results rmay
differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

|. Significant accounting policies, estimates and judgements (continued)

Critical accounting judgements
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements is included in the following notes:

Note 6: Specific adjusting items

The Group separately presents specific adjusting items in the consolidated income statement which, in the Directors’ judgement. need
to be disciosed separately by virtue of their size and incidence in order for users of the conselidated financial statements to obtain an
alternative understanding of the finandal information and the underlying performance of the business. These are items which occur
infrequently and include {but are not limited to}:

s individual restructuring projects which are material or relate to the closure of a part of the business and are not expected to recur
;> imparment of non-financial assets which are material

> gans or losses on disposal or exit of businesses

. significant costs incurred as part of the integration of an acquired business

> gamns or losses arising on significant changes to or closures of defined benefit pensicn plans.

Determining whether an item 1s part of specific adjusting ttems requires judgement to determine the nature and the intention of
the transaction.

Note 24: Provisions and contingent liabilities

Due to the nature of its operations. the Group holds provisions for its environmental obligations. Judgement is needed in determining
whether a contingent liability has crystallised into a provision. Management assesses whether there is sufficient information to determine
that an environmental liability exists and whether it is possible to estimate with sufficient reliability what the cost of remediation is likely to
be. For environmental remediation matters, this tends to be at the point in time when a remediation feasibility study has been completed,
or suffivent information becomes available through the study to estimate the costs of remediaticn.

The Group will recognise a legal provision at the point when the outcome of a legal matter can be reliably estimated. Estimates are based
on past experience of similar issues. professional advice received and the Group's assessment of the mast likely outcome. The timing of the
utilisation of these prowisions is frequently uncertain, refiecting the complexity of issues and the outcome of various court proceedings and
associated negetiations.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are included
in the notes below.

The potential cimate change-related risks and opportunities to which the Group is exposed, as identified by management. are disclosed
in the Group's TCFD disclosures on pages 38 and 39, Management has assessed the potential financal impacts refating to the identified
risks. primarily considering the useful lives of property, plant and equipment, the possibility of impairment of goodwill and other long-lived
assets and the recoverability of the Group's deferred tax assets. Management has exercised judgement in concluding that there are no
further material financal impacts of the Group's climate-related risks and opportunities on the consolidated financial statements. These
judgements will be kept under review by management as the future impacts of chmate change depend on environmenta’, regulatory

and other factors outside of the Group's control which are not all currently known.

Note 22: Pensions and other post-retirement employee benefits: key actuarial assumptions

The principal actuarial assumptions applied to pensions are shown in note 22, induding a sensitivity analysis. The actuarial evaiuation of
pension assets and lizbilities 1s based on assumptions in respect of inflation, future salary increases. discount rates, returns on investments
and mortality rates. Relatively small changes in the assumptions underlying the actuarial valuations of pension schemes can have a significant
impact on the net pension liability included in the balance sheet.

The Group has recognised a lizbility in relation to Guaranteed Minmum Pensions (GMPs), an initative to remove inequalities in scheme
benefits that arise frorm GMPs being unequal between men and women. A project to equalise members’ benefits in the Morgan Pension
Scheme is currently being progressed by a Joint Trustee and Employer Werking Group.
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I. Significant accounting policies, estimates and judgements (continued)

Note 24: Environmental provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions for environmental costs are estimated based on current legal and constructive requirements. Actual costs and cash outflows
can differ frorm current estimates because of changes in underlying factors including laws and regulations, public expectations, prices,
more detailed analysis of site conditions and innovaticns in clean-up technology. The ulimate requirement for remediation and its costs
are inherentty difficult 1o estimate. Amounts provided are the Group's best estimate of exposure based on currently available infermaticn.
Although at present no additional costs of environmental issues have been identified beyond our best estimate. future possible costs that
are not provided for could be matenial to the Group's results in the period in which they are recognised. However, we do not expect
these costs to have a matenal impact on the Group's financial position or liquidity.

Note 6: Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding goodwill)
In add-tion to the impairment assessment of goodwill management alse monitors the performance of individuat assets and cash-gererating
units. Where indicators of impairment exist, an impairment review on those assets or cash-generating units is performed.

For assets or cash-generating units which the business continues to use. the review process relies on the use of estimates of the future
profitability and cash flows which may differ from the actual results delivered.

Where non-financial assets or cash-generating units are not utilised by the business and will not be utilised in the future they are written
down to their recoverable amount. There is a lower level of judgement associated with these impairments.

Other assumptions and estimates which have a lower risk of resulting in a material adjustment

to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 12 months include:

Notes 8 and 14: Taxation

The level of current tax and deferred tax recognised is dependent on the tax rates in effect at the balance sheet date, and on subjective
judgements as to the outcome of decisions to be made by the tax authorities in the various tax jurisdictions around the world in which
the Group operates.

The Group pericdically assesses its liabilities and contingencies for all tax years open to audit based on the latest information available,

The Group records its best estimate of these tax liabilities. including related interest charges. Whilst management believes it has adequately
provided for the probable ocutcome of these matters, fiture results may incdude adjustments to these estimated tax liabilities and the final
outcome of tax examinations may result in a materially different outcome than that assumed in the tax liabilities. Provisions are made
against indwidual exposures taking into account the specific crcumstances of each case. including the strengths of technical arguments,

past experience with tax authorities, recent case law or rulings on similar issues and external advice received,

Note 21: Credit risk
Note 2| contains information about the Group's exposure to credit risk, including a sensitivity analysis, The Group establishes a loss
allowance for its estimate of expected credit losses against receivables.

Going concern

The Group's business activities. together with the factors likely 1o affect its future develepment, performance and position are set out in
the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 5%, The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, liguidity position and borrowing facilities, are
described in the Financial Review on pages 50 1o 54. In addition, note 21 to the consolidated financial statements includes the Group's
poiicies and processes for managing financial risk, details of its financial instruments and hedging activities and details of its exposures to
credit risk and liguidity risk.

The Group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through local banking arrangements underpinned by the Group's

£230.0 million unsecured multi-currency revolving credit facility, which matures in November 2027, As at 31 December 2022, the Group
had both significant available liquidity and headroom on its covenants. Total committed borrowing facilities were £418.3 million. The
amount drawn under these facilities was £264.3 million, which together with net cash and cash equivalents of £116.2 million, gave a total
headroom of £270.3 million. The multi currency revolving credit facility was £76.0 million drawn, £24.5 milion of senior notes are due
to mature in Qctober 2023,

The principal borrowing facdities are subject to covenants that are measured semi-annuaily *n June and December, being net debt to
EBITDA of a maximurm of 3 times and interest cover of a minimum of 4 tmes. based on measures defined in the faciliies agreements
which are adjusted from the equivalent [FRS amounts,

The Group has carefully modelled 1ts cash flow outlock, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance, exchange
rates and plausible downside scenarios, including the impact of the cyber security incident on 2023 cashflows. This review indicated

that there was sufficient headroom and liquidity for the business to continue for the |8-menth peried based on the facilities available

as discussed In note 21 to the finanaal statements. The Group was also expected to be in compliance with the reauired covenants
discussed above.
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|. Significant accounting policics, estimates and judgements {(continucd)

The Board has also reviewed the Group's reverse stress testing performed to demonstrate how much headroom is avallable on covenant
levels in respect of changes in net debt. EBITDA. and underlying revenue. Based on this assessment, a combined reduction in EBITDA of
40% and an increase in net debt of 45% would stilt allow the Group to operate within its financial covenants. The Directors do not
consider either of these scenarios to be plausible given the diversity of the Group's end-markets and its broad manufacturing base.

The Board and Executive Committee have regular reporting and review processes in place in order to closely monitor the ongoing
operational and finandial performance of the Group. As part of the ongoing risk management process, principal and emerging risks are
identified and reviewed on a regular basis. In addition, the Directors have assessed the risk of climate change and do not consider that it
will impact the Group's ability 10 operate as a going concern for the period under consideration.

The Board fully recognises the challenges that lie ahead but, after making enquiries, and in the absence of any material uncertainties, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adeguate resources to continue in operational existence
for a period of |8 moenths from the date of signing this Annual Report and Accounts. Accordingly, they continue te adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the Annual Report and Accounts,

Non-GAAP measures

Where non-GAAF measures have been referenced these have been identified by an asterisk {') where they appear in text. and by
a footnote where they appear in tables in this Report. Further details can be found in the Defintions and reconciliations of non-GAAP
measures to GAAP measures section on pages 57 to 59.

Newly adopted standards

There were no new standards applicable to the Group in the year.

Accounting developments and changes

New accounting standards in issue but not yet effective
New standards and interpretations that are in issue but not yet effective are listed below:

> IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

> Amendments to IFRS |7 — Inial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — Comparative Information
> Amendments to IAS | - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

> Amendments to IAS | and IFRS Practice Staternemt 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

> Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

> Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The adopticn of the above standards and interpretations is not expected to lead to any matenal changes to the Group'’s accounting policies
or have any other material impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

There are no other upcoming accounting standards or amendments that are applicable 1o the Group.
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2. Acquisitions and disposals

2022

Disposal of Sukhoy Log

On 29 July 2022, the Group completed the sale of its investment in the joint venture Sukhoy Log, based in Russia. The investment had
a carrying value of £ml having been fully impaired in previous years. The Group received consideration of £0.6 millien and incurred
transaction costs of £0.2 million. resulting in a net consideration of £0.4 million. A profit on disposal of £0 4 million was recognised in
specific adjusting items within the consolidated income statement, see also note 6.

There was no income receved from Sukhoy Log in the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021 £nil). The disposal group was included in
the Thermal Ceramics operating segment.
2021

Disposal of Latrobe

On 15 January 2021, the Group completed the sale of assets associated with the Technical Cerarmics business, based in Latrobe. US.
The transaction was structured as a sale of the business ana related assets for total consideration of £0.6 million. The disposal resulted
in a loss of £0.1 million which was recognised in specific adjusting items within the consolidated income staternent, see also note 6.

The loss on disposal was as follows:

31 December

2021

S £m

:I'radlrrmgrr;gl assets of disposal greup - 0.6
Goodwill of disposal group o1
Cumulative foreign exchange gains and losses recycled on disposal 0.5
Total net assets 0.6
Consideration 0.6
Transaction costs associated with the disposal (0.1
Loss on disposal (C.1)

In 2021, Latrobe generated an operating profit of £nil on revenues of £0.1 milfion in the penod prior to the disposal

The disposal group was included in the Technical Ceramics operating segment.
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2. Acquisitions and disposals {continued)

Disposal of Jemmtec

On 28 April 2021, the Group completed the sale of its investment in associate, Jemmtec Limited (Jemmitec’). The Group's share of
the total consideration was £14.2 million. comprising £12.2 million of initial consideration. on a cash-free, debt free basis, a further
consideration of £0.2 million for working capital adjustments and £1.8 mullion of contingent consideration that had been received m full
in 2021. The disposal resulted in a gain of £7.2 million which was recognised in specific adjusting items within the consolidated income
ctatement see alem nete A

The gain on disposal was as foliows:

31 December

2024

£m

Investment carrying value 76
Total consideration 4.2
Gain on dispesal 7.2

In 2021, the Group's share of profit in associate (net of income tax) was £0.4 million in the period pricr to the disposal.

Acquisition of Delamag

On | March 2021. Morgan Technical Ceramics Limited whaolly purchased the business and assets of the ‘Delamag’ business of sourcing
raw materials for the processing and manufacture of magnesium oxide from Delamin Limited. The acquisition comprised primarily all rights
to the ‘Delamag’ business name. technical know-edge, intellectual property and business contracts.

The assets acquired and the consideration was as follows:

31 Decermnber

2021

S . S

Identifiable intangible assets acquired 1.8
Goodwill 0.1
Total consideration 1.9

The intangible assets recognised represent customer listings, trademarks and intellectual property rights.

The acquisition was a vertical integration and preserves existing income, as such the sncremental profit from acquisition was immaterial
in 2022 and 2021. The Delamag acquisition forms part of the Seals and Bearings operating segment.
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3. Segment reporting

The Group's results are reported as five separate global business units, which have been identified as the Group's reportable operating
segrments, as detailed on page 7. These have been identified on the basis of internal management reporting information that is regularly
reviewed by the Group's Board of Directors (the Chief Operating Decision Maker) in order to allocate resources and assess performance.

Segrnent resuits, assets and habilities include tems directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly investments and related income, borrowings and related expenses, corporate assets and head
office expenses, and income tax assels and habilities.

The information presented below represents the operating segments of the Group.

Thermal Molten Electrical Seals and
Ceramics Metal Systerns Carbon Bearings

2022 202 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Continuing operations im £m £im £m £im £m Em £m
Revenue from external customers 421.4 364.7 57.8 47.7 188.7 164.9 148.5 1359
Segment adjusted operating profit' 48.7 42.0 7.8 6.3 39.7 32.8 19.0 229
Corporate costs?
Group adjusted operating profit'
Amortisation of intangible assets (1.6) 2.1 (0.3) (0.6} 0.7) (0.9 (0.8) (0.5}
Operating profit before specific adjusting items 47.1 359 7.5 57 39.0 3.9 13.2 22.0
Specific adjusting items included in operating
profit/{loss)® {(2.8) 2.1y - 0.3 0.1 (6.3 (1.6) —
Operating profit/{loss) 44.3 37.8 7.5 6.0 39.1 256 16.6 220
Finance income
Finance expense
Share of profit of associate (net of income tax})
Profit before taxation
Segment assets 361.2 319.9 44.0 4].8 159.5 137.6 115.8 [07.5
Segment liabilities 93.2 889 8.9 84 32.6 306 26.5 23.6
Segmerit capital expenditure 16.8 80 3.5 22 8.7 59 9.7 7.6
Segment depreciation — property, plant and equipment 11.2 0.2 2.1 2.0 5.3 5.5 6.0 6.4
Segment depreciation — right-of-use assets 3.2 3.5 0.3 0.3 1.0 Il 0.6 0.6
Segment impairment of non-financial assets 312 0.7 - - - 57 1.6
I, Defiritions of these ron-GAAP micasares can be lound i the giossars of terms on page 206, recoralasons of the statutory resu 1s to the aapasted measures can be lound on

sages 57- 59,
2. Corporate casls consist of ce ol head office costs
3 Derals of specfic ad usting items from continuirg operatons ase given 1IN note 6 16 the corsohdated francial statenents
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3. Segment reporting {(continued)

Technical Segment Corpotate
Cerarmics totals cosls Group

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Continuing operations £m fm £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue from external customers 295.7 2373 L2 950.5 - - Li2.1 950.5
Segment adjusted operating profit’ 41.7 26.4 156.9 1304 - - 156.9 130.4
Corporate costs’ 5.9) (5.9 5.9 (5.9)
Group adjusted operating profit' 151.0 124.5
Amortisaton of intangible assets (1.3) (£.5) 4.7 (6.0) - 4.7 {6.0)
Operating profit before specific adjusting items  40.4 24.9 152.2 124.4 5.9 (5.9 146.3 118.5
Speafic adjusting items included in cperating profit? (1.2) (6.0) (5.5) (4.1} - 8.7 {5.5) 5.4
Operating profit/{loss) 3%.2 18.9 146.7 [10.3 (5.9) 2.8 140.8 [13.1
Finance income 1.6 0.8
Finance expense (10.8) (10.0)
Share of profit of associate (net of income tax) - 0.4
Profit before taxation 131.6 1043
Segment assets 199.8 1565 880.3 763.3 140.0 1492 1,020.3 312.5
Segment liabilities 86.3 739 247.5 2254  343.2 3375 5%0.7 562.9
Segment capital expenditure 19.3 79 58.0 316 - - 58.0 31.6
Segment depreciation  property, plant and equipment 5.7 6.0 30.3 3001 - 30.3 30.1
Segment depreciation  right-of-use assets 2.7 2.4 7.8 79 - 7.8 7.9
Segrment impairment of non-finanaal assets 1.7 6.0 6.5 124 - - 6.5 124

Detinmors of trgie non-GA &P measures can be found in the glossary of ter s on page 206 reconcihations of the statutory results to tne adusted meaiures can be found on

pages 57 to 5%
2 Corporate casts conust o contral heae office cosr.

2 Details of speehec adjastng itens fron. contnu g oper autes are pivern 11 note  to e consolicated hnang al statements
Revenue from external customers and non-current assets by geography

Revenue

from

external customers

Nan-current assets (excluding
tax and financial instruments)

2022 2021 2022 2021

Continuing operations £m _£fm £rp £
Us 405.6 336.4 212.6 181.3
China 121.4 [14.4 45.5 29.1
Gerrmany 85.1 68.7 38.0 34.4
UK (the Group's country of domicile) 53.2 385 10i.1 101.6
Other Asia, Australasia. Middle East and Africa 194.1 174.6 61.2 6.4
Other Europe 182.0 1574 37.5 363
Other North America 39.1 334 2.1 6.1
South America 3L.6 27.1 110 158
Lzl 950.5 509.0 466.0

Revenue from external customers is based on geographic location of the end-customer. Segment assets are based on geographical

location of the assets, No customer represents more than 5% of revenue.
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3. Segment reporting (continued)

Revenue from external customers by end-market

2022 2021
Continuing operations _£m £m
Serniconductors g1.3 62.1
Healthcare 74.7 68.2
Clean energy and clean transportation 51.7 53.0
Faster growing markets 217.7 1833
Industrial 3445 296 4
Conventional transportation 179.9 142.6
Metals 159.9 1374
Petrochemical and chemical 2.6 924
Security and defence 65.2 60,9
Conventional energy 32.3 30.5
Core markets 894.4 767.2
L1121 950.5
Intercompany sales to other segments
Thermal Molten Flectrical Seals and Technical Segment
Ceramics Metal Systerns Carbon Bearings Ceramics totals
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
N £m £m tm £m fm £m £m £m £m fm £m  fm
Intercompany sales to
other segments 0.4 0.8 0.1 0.1 0.5 0.2 0.7 I.0 1.0 0.5 2.7 2.6
4. Operating costs before specific adjusting items
2022 2021
Continuing operations I.ote £m £m
Change in stocks of finished goods and work in progress 4.5) (3.1)
Raw matenials and consumables 308.6 2559
Other operating costs 176.4 [41.5
480.5 3943
Employee costs:
Wages and salaries 292.3 259.6
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 23 5.1 4.5
Social security costs and other benefits 62.1 54.4
Pension costs v 16.2 I5.1
375.7 333.6
Depreciation  property, plant and equipment i 30.3 30.1
Depreciation — right-of-use assets e 7.8 79
38.1 38.0
Short-term leases and leasing of low value assets:
Plant and equipment 0.1
Other leases 0.4 0.3
0.5 0.3
Other cperating charges and income:
Net foreign exchange gains (2.0) 0.1
Net other operating charges 68.3 599
66.3 5%.8
Total operating costs before specific adjusting items and amortisation of intangible assets 961.1 826.0
Amortisation of intangible assets 13 4.7 6.0
Total operating costs before specific adjusting items 965.8 832.0
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

4. Operating costs before specific adjusting items (continued)

1he following costs are included in total operating costs before speciic adjusting items in the table above:

I. Research and development
The Group recognised £31.6 million in expense in respect of research and development {2021 £28.5 million). These costs are included in
employee costs and cther operating costs in the above table. There are no individually material project costs.

2. Audit and non audit fees

A summary of the audit and non-audit fees in respect of services provided by the auditer, which are included in net other operating costs.
for the year ended 3| December 2022 is set out below. Additional audit fees of approximately £1.2 million are expected to be incurred
for the audit of the Company's annual accounts and the audits of the subsidiaries of the Company in relation to the cyber incident which
occurred subsequent to the year end.

2022 2021
) o o £m m

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts:
in respect of the current year 0.8 0.7
in respect of the prior year - 0.1

Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for other services:

the auditing of accounts of any subsidiaries of the Company 2.1 1.9
audit-related assurance services 0.1 G.1
3.¢ 28

5. Staff numbers

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year, analysed by reporting segment,
was as follows:

Number of employees

B R T SRR 121}
Reportarbrle operating segments
Thermal Ceramics 2,430 2.410
Molten Metal Systems 430 420
Electrical Carbon 1,390 1,340
Seals and Bearings 1,370 1,270
Technical Ceramics 2,560 2,130
Segment total 8,180 7,570
Corporate (UK and North America} 50 50
Group 8,230 7,620
Average employee numbers have been rounded to the nearest 0.
6. Specific adjusting items

2022 2021
Continuing operations Moo _fn_1 £
!mpairmer;i é)?r%;n_—;:\;:aﬁda\ assets (6.5) (12.4)
Restructuring credit 0.6 0.1
Net profit on disposal of business 2 0.4 71
Business closure and exit costs - (0.2)
Total specific adjusting items before income tax (5.5) 549
Income tax credit from specific adjusting items I.1 )
Total specific adjusting items after income tax (4.4) (3.9)

Specific adjusting stems in relation to discontinued operations are disclosed in note 9.
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6. Specific adjusting items (continued)
2022

Impairment of nen-financial assets

Seals and Bearings, Asia

An impairment charge of £0.6 million has been recognised relating to assets purchased to support a customer contract which did
not materialise.

A further imparrment charge of £1.0 million has been recognised after reassessing the value in use of property, plant and equipment

in a business in Asia which is taking longer than anticipated to generate revenues. This represented a partial impairment of the assets:

the carrying value of the assets following this impairment was £5.2 million. The calculation of value in use was performed as at December
2022, Allong-term growth rate of 1.0% was used for years beyond the five-year forecast period and in calculating the terminal value.

A pre-tax discount rate of 12.9% was used to determine the value in use.

Thermal Ceramics, Europe
An impairment charge of £1.2 milllon has been recognsed following a fire in December which destroyed a warehouse and inventory.
The assets have subsequently been written off.

An impairment charge of £1.1 million has been recognised after reassessing the value in use of property, plant and equipment in a business
in France which 1s experienang limited growth and under-utilisation of key assets. This represented a partial impairment of the assets;

the carrying value of the assets following this impairment was £0.3 millon. The calculation of value in use was performed as at December
2022, Along-term growth rate of 1.0% was used for years beyond the five-year forecast period and in calculating the terminal value.

A pre-tax discount rate of 13.7% was used to determine the value in use.

Thermal Ceramics, South America
An impairment charge of £0.9 million has been recognised i relation to assets associated with a closed manufacturing line

Technical Ceramics, Asia

An impairment charge of £1.7 million was recognised after reassessing the value in use of property. plant and equipment in a business in
Asia which 1s taking longer than anticipated to generate revenues. This represented a partial impairment of the assets; the carrying vaive

of the assets following this impairment was £3.2 million. The calculation of value in use was performed as at December 2022, A long-term
growth rate of | 0% was used for years beyond the five-year forecast period and in calculaung the terminal value. A pre-tax discount rate
of 12,986 was used to determine the value n use.

Review of cumulative impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment charges of £52.6 million for non-financial assets which the business continues to use have been recorded during the

current and previous years (Technical Ceramics, Asa £7.7 million. Technical Ceramics, ceramic cores £28.8 millien. Thermal Ceramics
£15.) million and Seals and Bearings. Asia £1.0 million). These impaired amounts could be reversed if the related businesses were to
outperform significantly against their budget. A sensitivity analysis was carried out using reasonably possible changes to the key assumptions
in assessing the value in use of these non-financial assets This did not result in a material reversal of the impaired amounts.

Restructuring costs

A credit of £0.6 million has been recognised in the current year representing a release of restructuring provisions booked in previous years
in relation to the Group's restructuring programme. Whilst this programme was completed in 2021, we retain a restructuring provision

of £10.5 million for the Group's obligations at the balance sheet date (2021: £11.8 million). This provision includes remaining lease exit costs
and multi-employer pension cbligations for two sites which were dosed during the year ended 31 December 2021. The cash outflows
refating to the pension oblgations may continue for up to |9 years, subject to any settlement being reached in advance of that date.

Cash outflows in relation to the lease may continue for the next four years. Refer to note 24 for further information.

Net profit on disposal of business
The Group disposed of its investment in the joint venture Sukhoy Log, based in Russia, duning the year. This disposal generated a net profit
of £0.4 million. Refer 1o note 2 for further information.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

6. Specific adjusting items (continued)
2021

Impairment of non-financial assets

Technical Ceramics, Asia

Animparment charge of £6.0 million was recogrised after reassessing the value in use of property, plant and equipment in a business In
Asia which is taking longer than anticipated to generate revenues, This represented a partal impairment of the assets; the carrying value
of the assets following this impairment was £5.4 milhon. The calculation ot value In use was performed as at December 2021, A long-term
growth rate of 1.0% was used for years beyond the five-year forecast period and in calculating the terminal value. A pre-tax discount rate
of 11.5% was used to determine the value in use.

Electrical Carbon, Europe and North America

Impairment charges of £4.8 million and £1.0 million were recognised after assessing the viability of two development assets in Europe and
North America. respectively. The European asset was not deemed viable as we were unable to commission it safely and the Amenican
asset was not deemed to be commerdially viable.

Thermal Ceramics, North America
An impairment charge of £0.6 millon was recognised relating to assets associated with closed manufacturing lines within
Thermal Ceramics.

Restructuring costs

A net credit of £0.1 million was recognised in the year ended 31 December 2021 representing £2.1 million of further redundancy and
closure costs related to the Group's restructuring programme, offset by a £2.2 milllion release of restructuring provisions booked during
2020 in relation to this programme.

Net profit on disposal of business

The Group disposed of its 35% shareholding in Jemmtec Limited and the business assets associated with the Latrobe business during the
year ended 31 December 2021. These disposals generated a profit of £7.2 million and a loss of £0.1 million, respectively. Refer to note 2
for further information.

Business closure and exit costs
A £0.2 million charge was recognised relating to the Iquidation of businesses in Eurcpe and Asia,

7. Finance income and expense

2022 2021

Continuing operations - £m £m
Recognised in profit or loss

Interest on bank balances and cash deposits 1.6 0.8
Finance income 1.6 0.8
Interest expense on borrowings and overdrafts (7.0) 6.1
interest expense on lease habilities (2.4) (2.3)
Net interest en IAS 19 defined benefit pension obligations {1.4) {1.6)
Finance expense (10.8) {10.0)
Net financing costs recognised in profit or loss (9.2) (9.2)

No finance income or expense related to discontinued operations in either the current or preceding year.
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8. Taxation — income tax expense

2022 2021
Continuing operations £m m
Récognised in profit or loss
Current tax
Current year 36.5 307
Adjustments for prior years 0.5 04
37.0 311
Deferred tax )
Current year (0.4) (2.3}
Adjustments for prior years (0.6) 0.6)
{1.0) (2.9
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 36.0 28.2
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Tax effect on components of cther comprehensive income:
Deferred tax associated with defined benefit schemes 3.4 0.6
Deferred tax associated with foreign exchange differences - 0.8
Total tax recognised in other comprehensive income 3.4 l.4
There was no deferred tax associated with share schemes recognised in other comprehensive income (2C21: none).
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
2022 2022 2021 2021
Lm % im %
Profit before tax |3|.g - o 104.3
Income tax charge using the domestic corparation tax rate 25.0 19.0 19.8 19.0
Effect of different tax rates in other jurisdictions 7.5 5.7 58 55
Local taxes including withhalding tax suffered 34 2.6 2.6 2.5
Permanent differences 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.4
Movements related to unrecognised temporary differences 0.1} (0.1} 0.2 0.2
Adjustments in respect of prior years - - (0.2} {0.2)
Statutory effective rate of tax 36.0 27.4 28.2 27.0

The effective rate of tax before specific adjusting items is 27.09% (2021: 27.1%).

The Group operates in many jurisdictions around the world and 1s subject to factors that may impact future tax charges including the
recently enacted US tax reform, implementation of the OECD's BEPS actions. tax rate and legislation changes, expiry of the statute of
limitations and resolution of tax audits and disputes.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

9. Discontinued operations

The Group disposed of its Composites and Defence Systems business on 20 November 2018, The business represented a separate
reportable segment and therefore, in accordance with IFRS 5 Non current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, the disposal
group was classified as discontinued.

The results from discontinued operations, which have been disciosed in the consolidated icome slatement, are set out below:

31 December 2022 31 Decernber 2021
Results Results
before before
specific Specific specific Specific
adjusting adjusting adjusting adjusting
items iterns Total terns tems Total
) - New £m £m im Zm Zm im
Revenue - 0.7 0.7 - 3.3 33
Operating income - 0.4 0.4 - 24 24
Profit before taxation - kI 1.1 - 5.7 5.7
Income tax expense - - - - - -
Profit from
discontinued operations - k.l l.1 - 5.7 57
Basic earnings per share from
discontinued operations 10 0.4p 2.0p
Diluted earnings per share from
discontinued operations G 0.4p 2.0p

In 2022, a gain of £1.1 million was recognised following the receipt of cash from a long-term contract and disposal of an mvestment in
accordance with the terms of the disposal agreement.

In 2021, £3.3 million of the specific adjusting items balance related to the settlement of certain long-term contracts. A further £2.4 million
related to the reassessment of certain provisions associated with the disposal of the Composites and Defence Systems business,

There is no income tax expense in relation to the discontinued operations in either the current or preceding year.

Cash flows from discontinued cperations are set out below:

31 December 3| December

2022 2021

£m £m

Net cash generated from operating actwities - N 33
Net cash generated from investing activities - 2.0
Net cash used in finanang activities - -
1.1 53
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10. Earnings per share

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
earnings earnings earnings earnings
Earnings per share per share Earnings per share per share
Em ~ pence  pence £m penice pence

Prolit for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Company 88.0 31.0p 30.7p 73.8 255p 25.7p
Profit from discontinued operations (r.n (0.4)p (0.4)p (5.7 2.0p (2.0
Profit from continuing operations 86.9 30.6p 30.3p 681 23%p 23.7p
Specific adjusting iterns 5.5 1.8p i.9p 54 1.9p 1.%p
Amortisatior of imtangible assets 4.7 1.7p 1.6p 6.0 2.10p 2.1lp
Tax effect of the above (.n 0.4)p (0.4)p (1.5) {0.5p (0.5)p

Non-controlling interests’ share of the

above adjustments - - - (0.5} ©.2p (0 2)p

Adjusted profit for the year from
continuing operations as used in
adjusted earnings per share? 96.0 33.8p 33.5p 775 27.2p 27.0p

I The tax eftect of the amortisation of ntangible assets was £l (2021 Zmil].

2 Defintions of these non-GAAP measdres can be found in the giossars of lerrms or sage 206, tecorchiazions of tre statutory resu ts to the atgusted rigasares can be found on peges 57 5%

Number of shares (millions) o B 2022 2021
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share' 284.2 284.6
Effect of dilutive potential Ordinary shares:

Share options 2.6 2.4
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings
per share 286.8 287.0

I Trie caculation of the we ghted ave -age number o sheies excludes 1~ <hares held by The Morgan Gene: al brmotovee Bereit T ust, on whien the dividends a-¢ wanvea
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

Il. Property, plant and equipment

Plant
Land and cquipment
builldings and fixtures Tenal

et £m £m £mi
Cost
Balance at | January 2021 215.2 678.2 8934
Additions 2.6 279 30.5
Disposals (16.7) {(21.1) (37.8}
Sale of business i (0.8) (3.5) (4.3}
Transfers between categories |.2 (1.2) -
Effect of movement in foreign exchange (1.7) (3.1) (4.8)
Balance at 31 December 2021 1$9.8 6772 877.0
Balance at | January 2022 199.8 677.2 877.0
Additions 3.8 49.7 53.5
Disposals (1.3) .0 (10.4)
Transfers between categories 0.3 (0.3) -
Effect of movement in foreign exchange 16.6 52.7 69.3
Balance at 3| December 2022 219.2 770.2 989.4
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at | January 2021 109.7 5le.l 625.8
Depreciation charge for the year 5.3 24.8 301
Impairrment |osses . - 12.3 123
Disposals (1.6} (20.1) (31.7)
Sale of business : 0.6) (3.5) 4.0
Transfers between categories 0.3 {0.3)
Effect of movement in foreign exchange (0.1} 3.4) (3.5)
Balance at 31 December 2021 103.0 5255 6£28.9
Balance at | January 2022 103.0 525.9 628.9
Depreciation charge for the year 5.0 25.3 30.3
Impairment fosses ‘ 2.0 2.6 4.6
Disposals ©.7 (8.4) {9.1)
Transfers between calegories 0.4) 0.4 -
Effect of movemerit in foreign exchange 8.8 42.7 51.5
Balance at 31 December 2022 7.7 588.5 706.2
Carrying amounts
At | January 2021 105.5 162.1 267.6
At 31 December 2021 96.8 1513 248.1
At 31 December 2022 101.5 181.7 283.2

In 2022, no assets were pledged as security for liabilites (2021: none). Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment presented in the
cash flow includes £nil (2021: £nil) of insurance proceeds for replacement of assets,
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2. Leases
The reconciliation in the movement of the Group's right-of-use assets 15 set out in the table below:

Land and Plant and
buildings equipment Total
£m £m £m
Ralance at | ]a_nl-l_a_ry 2021 - e - 63 7 355
Additions 27 I.5 4.2
Remeasurements 0.6 0.1 0.7
Depreciation charge for the year 4.7y (3.2) (7.9}
Effect of movement in foreign exchange (0.3) 0.3 (C.6)
Balance at 31 December 2021 27.5 44 319
Balance at | January 2022 27.5 4.4 3.9
Additions 1.2 i.8 3.0
Remeasurements 3.1 0.6 3.7
Depreciation charge for the year (5.1 2.7) (7.8)
Effect of movement in foreign exchange 2.3 0.5 2.8
Balance at 31 December 2022 29.0 4.6 33.6

The weighted average lease term is 11,6 years for land and buildings and 3.3 vears for plant and equipment (2021: 12.2 years and 3.5 years

respectively). The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in note 20,

Amounts recognised in the conschdated income staternent in respect of leasing arrangernents are set out in the table below:

2022 2021
£m £m

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 7 (7.8) (7 9)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (2.4) 2.3
Expense relating to short-term leases and leasing of low value assets {0.5) (0.3}
Income from leasing owned assets - 0.2

(10.7) (10.3)
The total cash flows from leasing activities in the year ended 31 December 2022 was £11.9 million (2021 £11.0 million) as set out In the
table below:

2022 202
i : £m il
Payment of lease liabilities (9.0) (8.6}
Interest expense on lease liabilities (2.4) {2.3)
Expense relating to short-term leases and leasing of low value assets (0.5) (0.3)
Income from leasing owned assets - 0.2

(1.9) {11.0)

At 31 December 2022. the Group s committed to future payments of £0.6 million {(2021" £8.6 million) for short term leases and leasing

of low value assets.

At 3| December 2022 future cash flows in respect of leases which the Group had entered into but which had nct yet commenced was

£nil (2021: £0 2 miliony).

The total of future minimum lease income under non-cancellable leases. where the Group 1s a lessor is £nil (2021 £nil).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

13. Intangible assets

Capitalised
Customer  Technelogy and development Computer
Goodwill relationships trademarks cosls software Toral

e £m £m £ £m £m £m
Cost
Balance at | January 2021 173.2 56.2 3.6 0.7 345 268.4
Acquisition of businesses 0.1 [} 0.7 1.9
Additions {externally purchased) 2.0 2.0
Mhsposal of businesses 0.0 - - - ©.n
Disposals - - - {1.9) (1.%)
Effect of movement in
foreign exchange 0.3 0.3 0.2} 0.2 -
Balance at 3| December 2021 [72.9 57.6 4.1 0.7 34.8 2704
Balance at | January 2022 172.9 57.6 4.1 0.7 34.8 270.1
Additions {externally purchased) - - - - 1.2 1.2
Disposals - - - - {0.1) (0.1}
Effect of movement in
foreign exchange 9.0 6.3 0.2 0.1 1.9 12.5
Balance at 3| December 2022 181.9 63.9 4.3 0.8 37.8 288.7
Amortisation and
impairment losses
Balance at | January 2021 54.8 3.6 07 237 82.8
Amortisation charge for the year [.0 0.1 - 4.9 6.0
Disposals - - - (1.9) (1.
Effects of movement in
foreign exchange 0.3 (0.2} - 0.1
Balance at 31 December 2021 56.1 35 0.7 26.7 870
Balance at | January 2022 - 56.1 3.5 0.7 26.7 87.0
Amortisation charge for the year - 0.7 0.1 - 3.9 4.7
Disposals - - - - ©.1) {0.1)
Effects of movement in
foreign exchange - 6.3 0.2 0.1 1.5 8.1
Balance at 31 December 2022 - 63.1 3.8 0.8 32.0 99.7
Carrying amounts
At | january 2021 173.2 I.4 - - 10.8 1854
At 31 December 2021 172.9 [.5 0.6 - 8.1 183.1
At 3| December 2022 181.9 0.8 0.5 - 5.8 189.0
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I3. Intangible assets (continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units containing goodwill

In accordance with the requirements of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets, goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units or

groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination that gave rnise to the goodwall,
Goodwill impairment testing is performed at the operating segment level as defined by IFRS 8, as this is the lowest level at which goodwill
is mpnitored

Goodwill is attributed to each operating segment as follows:

2022 2021

£m £m

Thermal Ceramucs 88.8 84.5
Malten Metat Systems 9.4 9.0
Flectrical Carbon 30.7 293
Seals and Bearings 15.8 145
Technical Ceramics 37.1 352
181.8 1729

Each operating segment is assessed for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication of impairment.

The carrying value of goodwill has been assessed with reference to its value in use, reflecting the projected discounted cash flows of
each operating segment to which goodwill has been allocated. The key assumptions used in determining value in use relate to short- and
long-term growth rates and discount rates.

The cash flow projections in year one are based on the most recent Board approved budget. Cash flow projections for years two to five
are based on the most recent Board approved strategic plan. The key assumptions that underpin these cash flow projections relate to
sales and operating margins, which are based on past experience. taking into account the effect of known or likely changes in market or
operating conditions. External data sources have been considered as to the strength and recovery of the Group’s end-markets in building
an expectation of the future cash flows of each operating segment.

In 2022, a 1.09 growth rate (2021: 1.09%) has been used for years beyond 2027 and to calculate a terminal value. Management has
assessed these growth rates, including the terminal growth rate as reasonable for each operating segment.

In 2022, the Group has used the following pre-tax discount rates for calculating the value in use of each of the operating segments:
Thermal Ceramics: 13.89% (2021 13.29%). Molten Metal Systems: 15,69 (2021 12.9%), Electrical Carbon: 14.6% (2021: 12.3%),
Seals and Bearings: 14.0% (2021: 11.29%). Technical Ceramics 14.19% (2021: 11.196).

The Directors have considered the following individual sensitivities and are confident that no impairment would arise for each of the
Thermal Ceramics, Molten Metal Systems, Electrical Carbon. Seals and Bearings and Technical Ceramics eperating segments in any
one of the following three circumstances, which are considered reascnably possible changes:

~ |fthe pre-tax discount rate was increased to 18%.
> If no growth was assumed for years two to five and in the calculation of terminal value

> If the cash flow projections of all businesses were reduced by 25%.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

I4. Recognised deferred tax assels and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Assets Asscts Liabilities Liabilities Net Net
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
... SOOI O L. VU= LA N fm . m
Froporty, plant and equipment - (12.7) (123 {12.7}) {12.3)
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 3.6 39 - 3.6 39
Intangible assets - 0.4) {0.6) (0.4) (C.6)
Employee benefits 10.2 [3.) - - 10.2 [3.1
Provisions 1.4 10.8 - - 1.4 10.8
Tax value of loss carried
forward recognised 1.7 [.0 - 1.7 1.0
Other items - - (0.5) (1.2) (0.5) (.2
Offset (11.6) (12.9) 1.6 12.9 - -
15.3 15.9 (2.0) (1.2} 13.3 147

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to do so.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following tems:

2022 2021

; : - £m £m

UK pension deficit - 51.8
Tax losses 107.8 0.9
Capital losses 43.4 399
Other deductible temporary differences 129.7 751
280.9 2777

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in relation to these temporary differences due to uncertainty surrounding future utilisation,
Based on current tax legislation the tax losses will not expire. Although the Greup as a whole is profitable, the unrecognised losses relate
to entities where it is not probable that there will be future taxable profits against which these losses can be utilised.

Movements in temporary differences during the ycar

Recognised Recognised Recognised Recognised

in profit directly in 31 Decermnber in profit directly in 31 December

or loss equity 2071t or loss equity 2022

~ £ro £m fm o fm ) _f.m o £m

Property, plant and equipment 0.8 - (12.3) (0.4) - (12.7)

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities - - 39 (0.3) - 3.6

Intangible assets 0.6 - (0.6) 0.2 - (0.4)

Employee benefits 0.5 {0.6) 13 0.5 (3.4) 10.2

Provisions (0.6) - 10.8 0.6 - 1.4
Tax value of toss carried

torward recognised 0.6 - 1.0 0.7 - 1.7

Others 1.0 {L.5) {1.2) (0.3) 1.0 {0.5)

29 (2.1 4.7 1.0 (2.4) 3.3

Deferred income tax of £4.0 milion (2021: £3.8 million} is provided on the potential unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiary undertakings.
Where the remittance of dividends is not anticipated deferred tax is not currently recognised or disclosed as it is considered immatenal.
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I15. Inventories

2022 2021

ﬁm £m

Raw materials and consumables 55.5 3659
Work in progress 533 40.4
Frnshed goods 65.4 60.7
174.2 140.7

The Group holds consignment inventory amounting to £28.8 milion (2021: £25.2 million) which 1s not reflected in the balance sheet.
The majority of this balance is for precous metals. which are held on consignment by a subsidiary and are invoiced only when the material
is required.

In 2022, provisions of £5.0 million were made against inventories and recognised in cperating costs (2021: £3.7 million).

16. Trade and other receivables

2022 2021
£m m
Non-current
Prepayments 0.2 0.4
Other receivables 3.0 2.5
Non-trade receivables 3.2 29
Current
Gross trade receivables 179.7 1501
Expected credit losses 9.1 {10.9)
Net trade recaivables 170.6 139.2
Contract assets 1.0 0.6
Prepayments 14.8 9.2
Other non-trade receivables 16.1 2.4
202.5 l6t.4

The Group's exposure to credit and currency risks related to trade and other recewvables is disclosed in note 21

Contract assets relate to the Group's right to consrderation for project-based business which was completed but not biled at the end
of the year.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

I7. Cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021

£m £m

Rank balances 105.8 t01.2
Cash deposits 1.9 26.1
Cash and cash ecquivalents 117.7 1273

In 2022, the Group had restricted cash of £4.0 million (2021 £1.5 milhon) as a result of exchange controls in Argentina.

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to net debt!

2022 202] restated’
£m £m
Opening borrowings and lease liabilities (223:8) (303.4)
Increase in borrowings (113.3) (27.33
Reduction and repayment of borrowings 39.0 99.6
Payment of lease liabilities 9.0 8.6
Total changes from cash flows {65.3) 809
New leases and lease remeasurement {6.7) (4.4
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (22.3) 3.1
Closing borrowings and lease liabilities 318.1) (223.8)
Cash and cash equivalents 117.7 127.3
Closing net debt' (200.4) (96.5)

Defintiors of these non GAAP rreasures can be found i the glossars of “e-rrs on page 206 reconaliatons of the statotory resolts 1o the adusled measeres can be found on pages 57 5%

2. Comparatve information has bees restatec twe present the increase and Cedactios in borrowings separately,

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

lease  Totalfinancng  Cash and cash Movernent in
Borrowings liabilities labilities equivalents net debt
£m fm o £ ém

At | January 202] {248.8) (54.6) {303.4) 147.8 (155.6)
Cash outflow - - - {5.6) (5.6}
Borrowings and fease lability cash flow 72.3 8.6 80.9 - 80.9

Net interest paid - - — (8.4) (8.4
Net cash inflow/(outflow) 723 86 80.9 (14.0) 66.9

Share purchases (5.9) (59}
New leases and lease remeasurement - 4.4 4.4 - (4.4}
Exchange and other movements 2.5 0.6 3.1 (0.6) 25

At 31 December 2021 {174.0} (49.8) (223.8) 127.3 (96.5)
At | January 2022 (174.0) (49.8) (223.8) 127.3 (96.5)
Cash outflow - - - (0.7) 0.7)
Borrowings and lease liability cash flow {74.3) 9.0 (65.3) - {(65.3)
Net interest paid - - - 9.4) 9.4)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) (74.3) 9.0 (65.3) (10.1) (75.4)
Share purchases - - - (2.9) 2.9
New leases and lease remeasurement - (6.7) 6.7) - (6.7)
Exchange and other movements (17.9) 4.4) (22.3) 3.4 (18.9)
At 31 December 2022 {(266.2) (51.9) (318.1) 7.7 (200.4)

Definriors of these non-GAAP measures cam ue found 11 the glosary of teres on page 206 <econciiat ons of *he statocory resalts 1o tve adjustes measures ca= be found on pages &7 59,
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I8. Trade and other payables

2022 2021
£m £m
Non-current
Accruals 0.6 0.2
Oither tav and sarial speiirity - ol
Other payables L5 2.1
2.1 2.4
Current
Trade payables 78.6 51.8
Contract liabilities 8.9 2.2
Accruals 69.6 65.0
Other tax and sodial securily 19.9 14.0
Orther payables 18.0 20.2
195.0 177.2

The Directors caonsider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their far value.

Contract liabilities relate to payments received from customers for project- based business in advance of the performance obligation
being satisfied. All of the £8.9 million of contract liabilities as at 3| December 2022 are expected to be recognised as revenue in 2023.
Contract liabilities outstanding as at 31 December 2021 of £12.2 millicn were recognised as revenue in 2022,

Included in trade payables are amounts due where extended payment terms have been agreed with the suppher using a suppler financing
facility. The total amount outstanding on such extended payment terms at 3|1 December 2022 was £0.3 millien (2021: £0.2 million}.

I9. Capital and reserves

Translation reserve

The trarslation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations.

Hedging reserve

The cash flow hedge reserve represents the cumulative amount of gains and losses on hedging instruments deermed effective in cash
flow hedges. The cumulative deferred gain or toss on the hedging instrument is recognised in profit or loss only when the hedged
transaction impacts the profit or loss, or s included directly in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the hedged non financial items
{basis adjustment)

2022 2021

£m £m

Balance at | January {0.1) 04
Loss arising on changes in fair value of hedging instruments during the period 0.2) (G.1)
Gain/{loss) reclassified to profit or loss 0.1 (0.4}
Balance at 31 December 0.2) (0.1}

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve Includes the cumulative net change in the fair value of FVOCI investments until the investment is derecognised.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve arose when the Company redeemed Preference shares wholly out of distributable profits.

Retained earnings

The Company has acquired its own shares to satisfy the requirements of the various share option incentive schemes. At 31 December
2022, 1,173,686 shares (2021: |,360,098) were held by The Morgan General Employee Benefit Trust {'the Trust) and are treated as

a deduction from equity. No treasury shares were held by the Company (2021: none). All rights conferred by those shares are suspended
until they are reissued.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

19. Capital and reserves (continued)

A summiary of the movements in own shares held oy the Trust s set out In the table below:

2022 2021
Cost Cost
Shares £m Shares £m
Mo oal | Janual y 1,360,098 S.D 841,880 2.
New shares purchased 1,102,704 2.9 1,600.000 59
Exercise of share options {1,289,116) (4.8) (1,081,782} (3.0)
As at 3| December 1,173,686 3.1 1,360,098 50

Consideration received in respect of shares transferred to participants of employee share schemes was £0.5 million (2021: £0.3 million),
The market value of shares held by the Trust at 3| December 2022 was £3.7 million (2021 £4.8 milhon).

Dividends
The followming Ordinary dividends were declared and paid by the Company:

Per share Total

2022 2021 2022 2021
. . ... Ppence pence fm £m
2020 final - 35 - 10.0
2021 interim - 3.2 - 9.1
2021 final 59 - 16.5 -

2022 intenm 5.3 - 15.1
1.2 6.7 31.6 19.1

I The 2021 final divacend pad i shown net of £0 3 million retu-ned fiom untraced sharehalders i secordance with the Comipery's Articles of As=aciation
After 31 December 2022 the following dividends were proposed by the Directors for 2022, These dividends have not been provided for

and there are no income tax consequences. The proposed 2022 final dividend is based upon the number of shares outstanding at the
balance sheet date.

£m
6.7 pence per qualifying Ordinary share 19.1
19.1
Called-up share capital
2022 2021
fm £m
Equity share capital
Fulty paid: 285,369,588 (2021: 285,369 988) issued Ordinary shares of 25 pence each 71.3 713
71.3 71.3
Number of Ordinary shares in issue
2022 2021
Invissue at beginning and end of period 285,369,988 285369988

As at the date of this Report 285,369,988 Ordinary shares have been issued (2021: 285,365,988).
Details of options outstancing in respect of Ordinary shares are given in note 23.

Additionally the Company has authorised. 1ssued and fully paid 437,281 (2021: 437,281 cumulative Preference shares classified as
borrowings totalling £0.4 mullion (2021: £0.4 million). The Preference shares comprise 125,327 of 5.5% Cumulative First Preference shares
of £1 each and 311.954 1ssued 5.09% Cumulative Second Preference shares of £1 each. The voting nights of these shares are set out below.

Dividends an the cumulative Prefererice shares are presented within finance costs in the Group's consolidated mcome staternent.

Voting rights of shareholders

Ordinary shares
The holders of Orainary shares are entitled to recewve dividenas as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company.
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19. Capital and reserves (continued)

Preference shares

The 5.5% Cumulative First Preference shares of £1 each and the 5.0% Cumulative Second Preference shares of £1 each confer on the
holders thereof the right to receive a cumulative preferential dividend at the rate of 5.5% and 5.0% respectively. calculated up to 30 June
and 31 December in every year. The First and Second Cumulatwe Preference shares shall not entitle the holders thereof to attend or vote
at any general meeting unless either:

{I) the meeting is convened to consider any resolutions for reducing the capital. or authorising any issue of debentures or debenture stock,
or increasing the borrowing powers of the Board under the Articles of Association of the Company. or winding up, or sanctioning a sate
of the undertaking, or allering the Articles in any manner affecting their respective interests, or any other resolutions directly altering
their respective rights and privileges; or

{ii) at the date of the notice convening the general meeting the Preference dividend 1s upwards of one month in arrears from the payment
date of any half-yearly instalment.

On a return of capital on a winding-up, the assets of the Company available for distribution shall be applied:

First, in payment to the holders of the First Preference shares of the amounts paid up on such shares. together with interest at the rate
of 5.5% per annum,

Second, in payment to the holders of the Secend Preference shares of the amounts paid up on such shares. together with interest at the
rate of 5.0% per annum,

Third, in repaying the capital paid up or credited as paid up on the Crdinary shares.

Fourth, any surplus shall be distributed rateably amongst the holders of the Ordinary shares in proportion to the nerminal amount paid
up on their respective holdings of shares in the Company.

20. Borrowings and lease liabilities

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group's borrowings and lease labilities which are measured at
amortised cost

For more infoermation about the Group's exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk. see note 21

Borrowing facilities and liquidity

All of the Group's borrowing facilities are arranged by Group Treasury with Morgan Advanced Materials plc as the principal obiigor,

Where ancillary credit facilities are provided to operating subsidiaries, they are authorised and supervised by Group Treasury in accordance
with the Group's Treasury Policy. Group Treasury seeks to obtamn certainty of access to funding in the amounts, diversity of maturities and
diversity of counterpartes as required to support the Group's medium-term financing requirements and to minmise the impact of poor
credit market conditions.

2022 2021
£m £m

Non-current liabilities
Senior Notes 154.8 |73.6
Barik and other borrowings 74.9 -
Cumuiative Preference shares 0.4 04
Lease labilities 41.4 40.0
271.5 214.0

Current liabilities

Senior Notes 34.6 -
Bank and other borrowings 1.5 -
Lease liabilities 10.5 3.8
46.6 3.8

In 2022, bank and other borrowings did not include any borrowings secured on the assets of the Group (2021 £nil).

As at 31 December 2022 the Group had availab'e headroom under the bank syndication of £154.0 million (2021 £200.0 million),
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

21. Financial risk management

1 his note presents information about the Group's exposure to a vanety of financial risks: credit risk, Iquidity risk. market risk and
foreign currency risk, and the Group's managemenit of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated
financial staternents.

Financial risk management and Treasury Pelicy

Graup Treasury works within a frameswnrk of palicies and pracedures appraved hy the Boaard, It acts 3¢ 3 service centre for Morgan
Advanced Materials plc's businesses, not as a profit centre, and manages and controls risk in the treasury environment through the
establishment of such procedures. Group Treasury seeks to align treasury goals. objectives and philosophy 1o those of the Group. 1t s
responsible for all of the Group's funding, hquidity, cash management, interest + ate risk, foreign exchange risk and other treasury business.
As part of the policies and procedures, there is strict contrel over the use of financial instruments 1o hedge foreign currencies and interest
rates, Speculative trading in derivatives and other financial instruments 1s not permitted.

Credit risk
Credit risk 1s the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty 1o a financial Instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations.
The Group s exposed to credit risk on financial instruments such as liquid assets, derivative assets and trade receivables.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date was:

Carrying amount

2022 2021

) ) ) t’:m £m

Trade and other receivables 170.6 139.2
Cash and cash equivalenits 17.7 1273
Dervatives 1.3 0.6
289.6 267.1

Trade and other receivables

The Group's exposure to credit nisk s influenced mairly by the individual characteristics of each customer The demographics of the
Group's customer base, including the default risk of the industries and countries in which customers operate, have less influence on
credit risk,

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The Group does not require collateral in respect of financial assets.

The Group serves thousands of customers. Many of these have purchased the same product for several years and in some cases
decades. Others have modified and enhanced designs or adopted the same components into new products, extending the lifecycle of
the components that the Group supplies. The Group's level of customer retention is very high, particularly with its major accounts and.
although the top 20 ranking will alter from year to year, many of the names remain consistent over ime.

The Group establishes a provision that represents its estimate of expected credit losses in respect of trade and other receivables and
Investments. At the point the amount is considered irrecoverable 1t is written off against the financial asset directly.

Movements on the provision for expected credit losses were as follows:

2022 2021
£m_ £m
Balance at | ]a-nuary (10.9) {74
Net remeasurement of loss allowance {1L.4) 4.5)
Amounts wtitten off 3.9 1.0
Effect of movement in foreign exchange 0.7)
Balance at 3| December 5.1) {10.9)
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21. Financial risk management (continued)

There has been no change in the estimaton techriques or significant assumptions made during the current reporting period in assessing
the loss allowance for these financial assets. The loss allowance for trade receivables by ageing category is as follows.

2022 2021
Expected Expected
credit loss  Gross trade Expected Net trade credit loss Gross trade Expected MNet trade
rate receivables credit losses receivables rate receivables credit losses recewvables
% £m im £m % £n_1 £m £m
Not past due 0.1% 144.7 (0.2) 144.5 0.3% [15.1 €4 118.7
Past due 3-30
days 0.5% 21.5 ©.1) 21.4 - 14.8 - 14.8
Past due 31-60
days - 3.9 - 3.9 - 3.8 3.8
Past due 61-90
days 61.9% 2.1 (1.3) 0.8 7.1% 4 (.1 1.3
Past due more
than 90 days 100.0% 7.5 (71.5) - 94.5% 1.0 (10.4) 0.6
179.7 9.1} 170.6 150.1 (10.9) 139.2

Cash, cash equivalents and derivatives

Cash balances held by companies representing over 65% of the Group's revenue are managed centrally through a number of pooling
arrangements. Credit risk is managed by investing in iquid assets and acquiring derivatives in a diversified way from high-credit-quality
financial institutions. Counterparties are reviewed through the use of rating agencies, systemic risk considerations and through regular
review of the financal press.

Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

The following table shows the amaunts recognised for forward exchange contracts, which are subject to offsetting arrangements on
a gross basis. and the amounts offset in tne balance sheet.

The Group also has cash pooling agreements which cannot be offset under IFRS, but which couid be settled net under the terms of
master netting agreements, and are also presented in the table to show the total net exposure of the Group.

Grogs amaounts MNet amounts Financial
of recognised presented  nstruments not
financial assets/ Amounts on the offset in the Net
{labilities) offset balance sheet balance sheet amount
£m £m £m £m £m
2022
Derivative financial assets 97.4 {96.1) 1.3 - 1.3
Derivative financial liabilities 91.7) 96.1 (1.6) - (1.6)
Cash and cash equivalents 7.7 - nzr7 (1.5) 116.2
Bank and other borrowings {1.5) - (1.5) 1.5 -
2021
Derwative financial assets 84.0 (83 .4} 0.6 0.6
Derivative financial liabilities {84.0) 834 (0.6) - (C.6)
Cash and cash equivalents 1273 - 127.3 - 1273

Bank and other borrowings - - - - -

Liquidity and funding risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by cash.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure. as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due. under both normal and stressed conditions

The Group seeks a balance between certanty of funding ana a flexible, cost-effective borrowing structure. The pohicy is to ensure that the
Group has sufficent borrowings and committed facilities to meet its medium-term financing requirements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

21. Financial risk management (continucd)
The following are the undiscounted contracted maturities of financial habilities, including interest payments;

Cash flows associated with non-derivative financial liabilities

31 December 2022

Effective Carrying Contractual Less than More than
interest Year of amount cash flows | year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
rate maturity £m £m £Em Em £m £m
Non-derivative
financial liabilities
i.18% Euro
Senior Notes 2023 [.18% 2023 22.1 22.4 22.4 - - -
3.17% US Dollar
Senior Notes 2023 3.17% 2023 12.4 12.8 12.8 - - -
[.55% Euro
Senior Notes 2026 1.55% 2026 22.2 234 0.3 0.3 22.8 -
3.37% US Dollar
Senior Notes 2026 3.37% 2076 80.6 91.0 2.7 2.7 85.6 -
4.879% US Dollar
Senior Notes 2026 4.87% 2026 2.1 24.2 1.0 1.0 22.2 -
|.74% Euro
Senior Notes 2028 | 74% 2028 89 9.9 0.2 0.2 0.5 9.0
2.89% Euro
Senior Notes 2030 2.89% 2030 22.1 2741 0.6 0.6 1.9 24.0
Bank and other
borrowings Upto 2027 76.4 76.2 1.6 (0.3) 74.9 -
5.50% Cumulative
First Preference shares 5.50% 0.1 - - - - -
5.00% Cumulative
Second Preference
shares 5.00% 0.3 - - - - -
Lease liabilities 4.77%  Upto 2051 51.9 65.3 10.5 8.5 19.9 26.4
Trade and
other payables 78.6 78.6 78.6 - - -
396.7 430.9 130.7 13.0 227.8 59.4

Bank and other borrowings includes an unsecured multi-currency revelving credit facility set to mature in November 2027,
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21. Financiai risk management (continued)

31 Decermber 2021

Effective Carrying Contractual Less than More than
Interest Year of Aol cdshi lows I yedt | 2 years 2-5 years 5years
) rale matunty im £rn £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative
financial liabilities
|.18% Euro
Senior Notes 2023 [.18% 2023 21.0 2.6 0.2 214
3.17% US Dollar
Senicr Notes 2023 3.17% 2023 I 1.8 04 1.4 — —
[.55% Euro
Senicr Notes 2026 [.55% 2026 211 251 0.3 0.3 24.5
3.37% US Dollar
Senior Notes 202¢ 3.37% 2026 72.2 81.5 2.4 24 767 -
4.87% US Dollar
Senior Notes 2026 4.87% 2026 18.8 22.5 0.9 0.9 20.7
|.74% Euro
Senior Notes 2028 [.74% 2028 8.4 9.8 0.1 0.1 09 8.7
2.89% Furo
Senior Notes 2030 2.89% 2030 21.0 269 0.6 0.6 2.2 235
Bank and other
borrowings Up to 2024 - - - - - -

5.50% Cumulative First
Preference shares 5.50% 0.1

5.00% Cumulative
Second Preference

shares 5.00% 0.3 - - - - -

Lease liabilities 477%  Upte 205 49.8 63.5 9.8 7.9 18.2 276

Trade and

other payables 61.8 &61.8 61.8 - : -
285.6 3245 76.5 45.0 1432 59.8

169 Morgan Advanced Materials plc Annual Report 2022
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21. Financial risk management (continued)

Cash flows assocdiated with derivatives

The following table indicates the periods in which cash flows associated with cash flow hedges are expected to occur. This 1s matched with
the periods in which cash flows associated with cash flow hedges are expected to impact profit or loss. All derivatives are net settled.

Carrying Contractual Less than More than
Anonnt cash flrwe | yrzar I-2 vears 2 5 veare Syears
£m £m £m £ £m £m
2022 ' ’
Cash flow hedges
Forward exchange contracts — assets i1 79.7 79.2 0.5 - -
Forward exchange contracts — liabiities (1.3) (79.5) (79.0) {0.5) - -
(0.2) 0.2 0.2 - - -
Fair value flow hedges
Forward exchange contracts — assets 0.2 18.0 18.0 - - -
Forward exchange contracts - liabilities (0.3} (17.9) {17.9) - - -
(0.1» 0.1 0.1 - - -
{0.3) 0.3 0.3 - - -
2021
Cash flow hedges
Forward exchange contracts — assets 0.5 64.0 64.0 - -
Forward exchange contracts — liabilities (0.5) (64.0) (64.0) - -
Fair value flow hedges
Forward exchange contracts  assets 0.1 2001 20.1
Forward exchange contracis — liabilities ©.1 (20.1) (20.1) - - -

Market risk

Market risk 15 the risk that changes in market prices. such as interest rates. foreign exchange rates and equity prices, will affect the Group's
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk,

The Group enters into derivatives for hedging purposes, and also incurs financial liabilities. in order to manage market risks. All such
transactions are carried out in accordance with the Treasury Policy, which has been approved by the Board. Generally the Group seeks
to apply hedge accounting in order to manage volatility in profit or loss.

Interest rate risk

The Group seeks to reduce the volatility in its nterest charge caused by rate fluctuations. The proporticns of fixed and floating rate debt
are determined having regard to a number of factors, including prevailing market conditions, interest rate cycle, the Group's interest cover
and leverage position and any perceved correlation between business performance and rates.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financal instruments was:

Fixed rate mswruments Variable rate instruments
carrying amount carrying amount
2022 2021 2022 2021
£m £ ) t:.[n fm
Financial assets - - H7.7 1273
Financial habilities (241.7) (223.8) (76.4)
(241.7) (223.8) 41.3 1273
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21 Financial risk management (continued)

The fixed rate financial liabilities comprise the currency eguivalent of £189.4 million (2021: £173.6 million) of Senicr Notes, £6.4 million
(2021 £0.4 million) of cumulative Preference shares and lease liabilities of £51.9 million {(2021: £49.8 million). The average cost of the
Group's fixed rate instruments is 3.32% {202 1: 3.29%) including lease liabilities and 2.92% {2021: 2.90%) excluding lease liabilities.

The variabte rate financial assets include the bank balances and cash deposits detaled i note 17 and the vaniable rate financial habilities
nclude bank borrowings detailed in note 20. Where cash and overdrafts are included in Group cash pool arrangements interest is charged
o1 nel bank Lalances and berrowings. | he average rate of the Group's variable rate instruments is 2.5% (2021 2.5%).

Anincrease of 100 basis points in interest rates on the variable element of the Group's net floating rate liabilities and cash at the reporting
date would have increased profit by £0.5 million (2021: £1.3 million). A decrease of 100 basis points would have decreased profit by
£0.3 million (2021: £0 & million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Forecign currency risk

Due to the nternational reach of the Group, currency transaction exposures exist. The Group has a policy in place to hedge all material
firm commitments and a large proportion of highly probable forecast foreign currency exposures in respect of sales and purchases over
the following |2 months, and achieves this through the use of the forward foreign exchange markets. A significant proportion of the
forward exchange contracts have maturities of less than one year after the balance sheet date. The Group continues its practice of not
hedging income statement translation exposure.,

There are exchange control restrictions which affect the ability of a small number of the Group's subsidiaries to transfer funds to the
Group. The Group does not believe such restrictions have had or will have any material adverse impact on the Group as a whole or
the ability of the Group to meet its cash flow requirements.

The table below shows the Group's currency exposures, being exposures on currency transactions that give rise to net currency gains
and losses recognised in the income statement. Such exposures comprise the monetary assets and liabilities of the Group that are not
denominated in the functional currency of the operating company involved,

2022 2021
GBP UsD Euro GBP ust Euro

Functional currency of Group operations im im fmr £m £m £

Trade receivables 9.5 0.3 (0.1) .4 ©e.n (3.2)
Trade payzbles (3.8) 0.2 1.7 (1.3 0.3) 3.6

Net debt (8.0) 0.6 1.1 {10.2) [.3 04

Net balance sheet exposure {(2.3) 1.1 2.7 0.1 0.9 0.8

| Defirtions of these ron-GAAP messares can be found i the plossary of terms an page 206 reconclations of the stalutory resuts o the adjasted riessares can be taund an pages 57 59

The amounts shown in the table take into account the effect of the forward contracts entered into to manage these currency exposures

In respect of other monetary assets and liabil ties held in currencies other than the currency of the reporting unit. the Group ensures
tnat the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to address
short-term imbalances.

The Group classifies its forward exchange contracts which hedge forecasted transactions as cash flow hedges and states them at fair
value. The fair value of forward exchange contracts used as hedges of forecasted transactions at 31 December 2022 was a liability of
£0.2 million (2021: £nil}.

The contractual cash flows associated with the forward exchange contracts that are designated as cash flow hedges are shown in the
section on liquidity risk. The impact on profit or loss 15 expected to occur at the same time as the associated cash flows.

Currency translation risks are controlled centrally. To defend against the impact of a permanent reduction in the value of its overseas

net assets through currency depreciation. the Group seeks to match the currency of financal liabilities with the currency in which the net
assets are denominated. This 1s achieved by raising funds in different currencres and through the use of hedging instruments such as swaps,
and is implemented only to the extent that the Group's gearing covenant under the terms of its borrowing documents. as well as its facility
headroom. are likely to remain comfortably within limits. In this way, the currency of the Group's financial iabilities becomes mare aligned
to the currency of the tracing cash flows that service them.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

21. Financial risk management (continued)

The Group's currency split of total borrowings was as follows:

2022 2021

£m fm

GRBP 76.7 0.5

usD 114.2 021

Furo 75.3 714
Other -

266.2 174.0

The Group's sensitivity to changes in foreign exchange rates on financial assets and habiliues as at 31 December 2022 is as follows:

Based upon the currency profile of the Group's net financal assets and labilities, if GBP had strengthened by 0%, reported net financial
liabilities would have decreased by £11.2 million (2021 £9.9 million). Conversely, if GBP had weakened by 10%, reported net financial
liabilities would have increased by £13.9 million (2021: £12.2 million). Assuming the change occurred on the balance sheet date, there
would be no impact on reperted profit, as either the net financial liabilities are in the same currency as that of the respective Group entity,
or the change would be offset by an equal and opposite change in the foreign currency monetary items in the Group's holding company.

The amounts generated from the sensitvity analysis are forward-looking estimates of market risk assuming certain adverse market
conditions occur, Actual results in the future may differ materially from those projected results. The impact of a weakening in GBP on

the Group's financial assets and labilities would be more than offset in equity and income by its impact on the Group's overseas net assets
and earnings respectively.

Hedging instruments

Carrying ameunt

Change in fair value of the hedging
Notional value: lor recognising hedge  Instruments assets/
Maturity date Local currency ineffectiveness (habiiities)
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m im
Cash flow hedges
to Jun to Dec
Highly probable forecast sales 2024 2022 29.7 40.4 0.3 0.6 0.5 0.2
to Jun 1o BDec
Highly probable forecast purchases 2024 2022 9.7 7.4 0.1 o.n 0.1

Weighted average hedge rates for the year were as follows:

Weighted average excharge rates

2022 2021

£m ﬁrq

FUR/GRP ' 115 116
AUD/GBP 1.70 .84
SGD/GBP 162 .85
USD/GBP 1.20 137

Hedged items

Balanice 'n cash flow hedge
rescrve/foreign currency

Change in value used for translation reserve for
calculating hedge ineffectiveness continuing hedges
2022 2021 2022 2021
£Em £m £m £m
Cash flow hedges
Forecast sales (0.3) (0.6) (0.5) 0.1
Forecast purchases ©.H Q. (0.1) -
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21. Financial risk management (continued)
As at 31 Decermber 2022 the amount In the hedging reserve and translation reserve arising from hedging relationships for which hedge
accounting is no lenger applied was £nil (2021 £nil}.

The Group expects highly probable sales and purchases in UK, Europe, North America, Austraha and Asia. The Group has entered into
foreign exchange forward contracts {for terms not exceeding |8 months) to hedge the exchange rate risk arising from these anticipated
future transactions. Itis anticipated that the transactions will take place during the next financial year, at which time the amount deferred
in equity will be reclassified to profit or loss.

All hedging instruments are presented within derivative financial mstruments on the Group balance sheet

Exchange rates

The principal exchange rates used in the translation of the results of overseas subsidiaries were as follows:

2022 2021
) Closing rate  Average rate Closing rate Average rate
GBP to:
usbh 1.21 1.24 [.35 |.38
Eurc LI3 1.17 119 I.16

For illustrative purposes, the table below provides details of the impact on 2022 revenue, Group adjusted operating profit and profit
before 1ax If the actual reported results. calculated using 2022 average exchange rates, were restated for GBP weakening by 10 cents
against USD inisolatien and 10 cents against the Eure in isolation:

2022 2021
Group Group
adjusted adjusted
operating Profit operating Profit
Revenue profit' before tax Revernue profit’ before tax
£m im £m im £m £m
Increase in revenue/Group adpsted
operating profit fprofit before tax if:
GBP weakens by [0c against USD
in isolation 16.9 2.2 2.0 29.6 39 3.5
GBP weakens by |0c against the Euro
in isolation 21.8 3.5 3.2 188 33 EN
I, Defrmons of these ron- (GAAP mcasures ean be laund in the g'ossary of taims ar page 206, recorcl atio~s o° t e statutory tesu s to the acjustad 1measures can be found or cages 57 59

Other market price risie

Equity price nisk arises from FVYOCI equity instruments held for meeting partially the unfunded portion of the Group's defined benefit
pension obligations. The primary goal of the Group's investrment strategy is to maximise returns in order to meet partially the Group's
unfunded defined benefit obligations.

Capital management

The Board’s policy 1s to maintain a strong capital base {total equity) so as to maintain investor. creditor and market confidence and to
sustan future development of the business. The Board uses a number of measures, identified as key performance indicators (KPls).
to ensure the continued success of the Group,

The Board encourages employees of the Group to hold the Company's Ordinary shares. The Group operates a number of employee
share and share option schemes. From time to time the Company purchases its own shares on the market; the tining of these purchases
depends on market prices. Primarily the shares are intended to be used for 1ssuing shares under the Group's various share option
incentive schemes.

The Board seeks to mantain a balance between the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and the higher returns
that might be possible with highe- levels of borrowings.

The Group moenitors capital using the indicators set out in the table below. These indicators are also presented excluding the tmpact of
IFRS 16 Leases as these adjusted measures are more closely aligned to the Group's covenants,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

21. Financial risk management (continued)

Debt to adjusted capital

2022 2021
IFRS 16 Excluding IFRS 16 Excluding
As stated impact IFRS 16 As stated impact IFRS 16
£im £m £im £m £m £m
Borrowings and averdrafts 266.2 - 266.2 174.0 - 174.0
Lease liabilities 51.9 GLY - 49.8 (49.8) -
Less: cash and cash equivalents {117.7) - (117.7) (127.3) {127.3)
Net debt 200.4 (51.9) 148.5 96.5 (45.8) 46.7
Total equity 429.6 - 429.6 349.6 - 349.6
Less: amounts accumulated in equity
relating to cash flow hedges 0.2 - 0.2 0.1 - 0.1
Adjusted capital 429.8 - 429.8 3497 - 3497
Net debt’ to adjusted capital ratio 0.5 n/a 0.3 0.3 nfa 0.1

Delintiors of trese non-GAAP measures can be found in the glossary of wernes on page 206 reconciiat ons of the statutory results to the adusted rreasures can be found on pages 57- 5%

Net debt' to EBITDAS

2022 2021
IFRS 16 Excluding IFRS 16 Excluding
As stated impact IFRS 16 As stated impact IFRS 16
o £m £m _ _Em £m im ) £m
Net debt 2004 {(51.9) 148.5 96.5 (49.8) 46.7
Operating profit before specific
adjusting items 146.3 (3.6) 142.7 118.5 (3.0% [15.5
Depreciation and amortisation 42.8 {(7.8) 35.0 44.0 (7.9 36.1
EBITDA 189.1 (11.4) 177.7 162.5 (10.9) I51.6
Net debt’ 10 EBITDA' ratio l.1x n/a 0.8x 0.6x nfa 0.3x%
Definitions of trese non-GAAP measures can be found i the glossary of terms or page 206, recond iat ons of the statutory results 1o the adjusted reeasures can be found on pages 57 5%
Interest cover
2022 2021
IFRS 16 Excluding IFRS 16 Excluding
As stated impact IFRS 16 As stated mpact IFRS 16
) £m £m £m - Em £m £m
EBITDA 189.1 (11.4) 177.7 162.5 (10.9) [51.6
Net finance costs {excluding |AS (9
pension charge} 1.8 (2.9) 5.4 7.6 (2.3) 53
Interest cover 24.2x n/a 32.9x 21 4x n/a 28.6x

I Definivers of these non-GAAP ireasures ¢ be found n the glossary of teens on page 206 reconahalions of the starutory results to tee adjusiee imeastres can be found o pages 57 59

There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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21. Tinancial risk management (continued)

Fair values

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount Level | Level 2 Total amount Level | Level 2 Total
fm fm £m Lm fm im £m £

Financial assets and
liabilities held at
amortised cost
[.18% Euro
Senior Notes 2023 (22.1) - (21.6) (21.6) (21.0) (210 210
3.17%9% WS Dollar
Senior Notes 2023 (12.4) - (2.1 az.n (. (1.3) {11.3)
1.55% Eurc
Senior Notes 2026 (22.2) - (20.1) (20.1) (21.1 - (21.4) {(21.4)
3.37% US Dollar
Senior Notes 2026 (80.6) - (73.5) (73.5) (72.2) — (72.8) (72.8)
|.74% Euroc
Senior Notes 2028 (8.9) - (7.7) (7.7) 8.4 - (8.6) (8.6)
2.89% Euro
Senior Notes 2030 (22.1) - (19.0) (19.0) (21.0) - (22.1 (22.1)
4.879% US Dollar
Senior Notes 2026 (21.1) - (20.2) (20.2) {18.8) - (20.6) (20.6)
5.50% Cumulative
First Preference shares (0.1) - {0.1) ©0.1) 0.1y - o.n 0.n
5 00% Cumulative
Second Preference shares (0.3) - 0.3) (0.3) {0.3) - 0.3} (0.3)

(189.8) - (174.6) (174.6) {174.0) - (178.3) (178.3)
Dervative financial assets
held at fair value 1.3 - 1.3 1.3 0.6 G.é 0.6

1.3 - 1.3 1.3 0.6 - 0.6 0.6

Derivative financial liabilities
held at fair value (1.6) - (1.6) (1.6) (0.6) - {0.6) (0C.6)

The table above analyses the fair values of financial instruments held by the Group, by valuation method, together with the carrying

amounts shown in the balance sheet.

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, current trade and other receivables/payables and floating-rate bank and other borrowings are

excluded from the preceding table as their carrying amount approximates their fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

The different levels have been defined as follows:

> Level |: guoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabllities.

> Level 2: not traded in an active market but the fair values are based on quoted market prices or alternative pricing scutces with

reasonable levels of price transparency. Fair value is calculated using discounted cash flow methodaology. future cash flows are est mated
based on forward exchange rates.

~
-

The major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments reflected in the preceding table are

as follows;

Equity securities

Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

21. Financial risk management {continued)
Derivatives

Forward exchange contracts are marked to market either using listed market prices or by discounting the contractual ferward price and
deducting the current spot rate

Fixed-rate borrowings
Fair value 1s calculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest cash flows. | he interest rales used to determine the far
value of borrowings are 4.2%-6.4% (2021: 1.0%-3.1%).

There have been no transfers between Leve! | and Level 2 during 2022 anc 2021 and there were no Level 3 financial instruments in erther
2022 or 2021

22. Pensions and other post-retirement employee benefits

The Group operates a number of defined benefit arrangements as well as defined contribution plans. The defined benefit plans
are primarily in the UK, US and Europe and predorminantly provide pensions based on service and career-average pay. In addition
post-retirement medical plans are operated in the US.

Summary of net defined benefit obligations

2022 2021
£m £m
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligatidﬁs {36.5) (47.3)
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations (485.3) (687.2)
fair value of plan assets 506.2 631.8
(15.6) {102.7)
Amounts recognised in profit or loss
2022 2021
Mot fm £m
Current service cost 2.7 (3.2)
Administrative expenses recognised outside of the pension liability (L.5) {1.3)
Curtailments and settlements 0.2 0.t
Total expense within operating costs relating to defined benefit plans (4.0) (4.4}
Defired contribution plans (12.2) (10.7)
Total expense within operating costs 4 (16.2) (151}
Net interest on net defined benefit liability 7 (1.4) {1.6)
Total expense recoegnised in profit or loss (17.6) (16.7)
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
2022 2021
£m im
Expehencé loss on plan obligations (14.4) 4.9
Changes in financial assumptions underlying the present value of plan cbligations  gain 225.6 50.3
Changes in demographic assumptions underlying the present value of plan obligations  gan 0.8 6.7
Actuzl return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) (206.5) 24
Remeasurements recogrised in other comprehensive income 5.5 55.5
Deferred tax associated with the above (3.9 {0 &)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive inccme 2.1 54.9

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension plans. The total expense relating to these plans in the current
year was £12.2 million (2021 £10.7 million). The expense includes contnibutions to two US Multi-Employer Plans of £0.3 million
(2021: £0.3 million). The Group expects to contribute £13.0 millien to ongoing defined contribution arrangements in 2023,
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22. Pensions and other post-retirement employee benefits {(continued)

Defined benefit plans

UK Schemes

in the UK, the Group operates two defined benefit pension schemes, the Morgan Pension Scheme and the Morgan Group Senior 5taff
Pension and Lite Assurance Scherme ('the UK Schemes'). The two UK Schemes provide a benefit based upon an employee’s total service
and their career average earnings {including allowance for consumer price inflation), although historically benefits were based upon an
employee's final salary. Once in payment, pensions receive increases as set out in the rules. at erther a tixed level, or in I'ne with the
Retail Price index. The overall duration of the UK Schemes 1s around 12 years.

The UK Schemes' assets are held in trustee-administered funds which are governed by UK regulations, as is the nature of the relationship
between the Group and the Trustees, Responsibility for the governance of the UK Schemes — including investment decisions and
contribution schedules - lies with the Board of Trustees which must consult with the Group in such matters. The Board of Trustees

must be composed of representatives of the Company. plan partcpants and independent trustee directors, in accordance with the

UK Scheme’s governing documents,

Funding legislation in the UK requires that schemes are fully funded on a scheme-specific basis, and this must be assessed at least every
three years, To the extent that there is a defiat against this measure, a payment schedule must be agreed such that the deficit is removed
over a reasonable period of time.

The most recent full actuarial valuations of the UK Schemes were undertaken as at 31 March 2022 and resulted in combined assessed
deficits of £49.7 million on the Technical Provisions’ basis. The Company subsequently agreed with the Trustees to make a lump sum
contribution to the Schemes of £67.0 million on 29 December 2022 in fieu of the remaining comributions that would otherwise have been
due under the existing recovery plans from the 31 March 2019 valuations. The sum paid also represented the value of the deficit on the
more prudent 'Long Term Objective’ basis. As a result, no further contributions te the Schemes are expected to be required pending the
results of the next full valuations as at 31 March 2025.

The UK Schemes were closed to new entrants on | August 2011, with any new employees receiving benefits through the Morgan Group
Personal Pension Plan, a defined contribution arrangement. The Morgan Group Senior Staff Pension and Life Assurance Scheme was
dosed to the future accrual of benefits on and with effect from & Aprit 2016, The Morgan Pension Scheme was closed to the future
accrual of benefits with effect from 6 April 2018. Current employees, including those who were active in the Schemes at closure,

are auto-enrolled into the Morgan Group Personal Pension Plan for their future pension benefits,

The Group has considered third-party powers and does not believe the Trustees have any powers that would prevent the Group
obtaining a refund of any surplus on wind-up of the Scheme following gradual settlement of the plan obligations. As such the Group's
interpretation is that the current version of IFRIC 14 does not have an impact and, as a result. any IAS |9 surplus can be recognised as
an asset and 1t is not necessary to recognise additional liabilities in respect of contnbution agreements reached with the pension scheme
Trustees, managers or any third party.

US Schemes

The Group operales a tax qualified defined benefit pension scheme in the US {MUSE DB Scheme’), and a Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan {'SERP ") which is not tax approved (together 'the US Schemes’). The MUSE DB Scheme is frozen. and therefore
employees accrue benefits within a 401k arrangement.

The US Schemes provide a benefit based upon an employee’s service and earnings. The benefits are level both prior to. and whilst in,
payment. Overall. the US Schemes’ duration is around nine years.

The qualified MUSE DB Scheme's assets are held in a trust separately from the Group's assets. For the SERP the Group holds an asset
to meet the obligations; however, due to its nature this is accounted for as a Group asset, rather than an asset of the SERF. Responsibility
for the governance of the LS Schemes, inctuding investment decisions and contribution schedules, lies with a management committee,
all of whose members are appomted by the Group.

The funding requirements in the US, ERISA, require schemes to be fully funded at all times, and if not to target full furding within a period
of seven years.

The rmost recent full actuarial valuation of the MUSE DB Scheme was uncertaken as at | January 2022 and the Schemne was fully funded
on this basis.

On the more stringent DBO (Defined Benefit Obligation) basis used for AS 19 purposes, the defiat of the MUSE DB Scheme as at
31 December 2022 totalled £3.4 million (2021: £1.3 million).

No further significant contributions to the MUSE DB Scheme are anticipated in the medium term.

European schemes

In Europe {excluding UK). the Group operates a number of retirement schemes. with the bulk of the obligations relating to arrangements
for employees in Germany. Inline with lecal practice these arrangements are not funded in advance, with benefits being met by the Group
as they fall due.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

22. Pensions and other postl-retirement employee benefits (continued)

31| December 2022

Rest of
UK us Europe the World Total
£m £m £im £m Em
Summary of net obligations
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligations - (5.8) (26.7) {4.0) (36.5)
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations (359.5) (le.n (1.6) a.n (485.3)
Fair value of plan assets 384.7 112.7 0.4 8.4 506.2
25.2 9.2) (27.9) 3.7 (15.6)
Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation
At | January 2022 (544.0) (139.3) (39.4) (11.8) (734.5)
Current service cost - - .n (1.6} 2.7)
Interest cost (l10.3) 3.9) (0.3) (0.2) (14.7)
Actuarial pain/floss)
Experience gain/{loss) on plan obligations (14.7) o.n 0.4 - (14.4)
Changes in financial assumptions — gain 184.5 28.2 12.2 0.7 225.6
Changes in demographic assumptions — gain/{loss) 0.9 - .1} - 0.8
Renefits paid 24.1 9.2 1.6 1.2 36.1
Curtailments and settlements - - - 0.2 0.2
Exchange adjustments - {16.0) (1.6) (0.6) (18.2)
At 31 December 2022 (359.5) (121.9) (28.3) (2.1) {521.8)
Movements in fair value of plan assets
At | January 2022 492.3 131.6 0.4 7.5 631.8
Interest on plan assets 9.4 3.8 - 0.1 13.3
Remeasurement loss (177.2) (28.9) - {0.4) (206.5)
Coritributions by employer 84.3 0.7 1.6 2.0 88.6
Benefits paid (24.1) (9.2) (1.6) (1.2) (36.1)
Exchange adjustments - 14.7 - 0.4 15.1
At 31 December 2022 384.7 112.7 0.4 8.4 506.2
Actual return on assets (167.8) (25.1) - (0.3) (193.2)
Fair value of plan assets by category
Equities - 6.1 - - 6.1
Growth assets’ 40.3 - - - 40.3
Bonds 18.0 104.8 - - 122.8
Liability-drivery investments (LDIY 2109 - - - 2109
Matching insurance policies 106.1 1.4 0.4 6.4 114.3
Other 9.4 0.4 - 2.0 11.8
384.7 112.7 0.4 8.4 506.2

Growth assets ndode mvestment in Global D versied and Mult-Aseer Fands as well as UK Property

2 The L3 assets arc pooled funds in the UK that prowde a leve eped retura inkec to long du-ation fixec intcr st and ndex hnkec governmert bonds valoed at tre od price of the units
It s provdes interest wate and nfation hecg ng equivilent in size to crci 100% of “he nvected arsets of the UK Scheres measured on the Long Term Obiect ve’ Daze (Gits 4 5(00pss

[exc uding matching incurance pol ceg)
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22. Pensions and other post-retirement employee benefits (continued)

The Group expects to contribute £3.8 million to these arrangements in 2023.

Rest of
UK Us Europe the Waorld Total
: R T £m em LEmotm
Estimate of employer contributions to be paid into the plans
during the |2-month period beginning | January 2023 - 0.7 1.7 1.4 3.8

3| December 2021

Rest of
UK us Europe the World Total
) ) £m £rm £rm o £fm £m
Summary of net obligations
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligations - 6.4 (37.5) 34 (47.3)
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations (544.0} {132.9) (1.9} 8.4 (687.2)
Fair value of plan assets 492.3 131.6 0.4 7.5 631.8
{51.7) (7.7) (39.0) {4.3) {(102.7)
Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation
At | January 2021 (603.4) (147.5) (45.3) {0 {807.3)
Current service cost - - {r.n (2.0 (3.2}
Interest cost {(7.2) (3.3) (0.2 (0.1 (10.8)
Actuarial gain/(ioss)
Experience gain/(loss) on plan obligations (5.2} (G4} 0.9 (0.2) (4.9}
Changes in financial assumptions — gain 43.3 5.5 2.0 0.5 51.3
Changes in demographic assumptions — gain/(loss) 72 (G.5) - - 6.7
Benefits paid 21.3 8.5 [.5 0.3 3.6
Curtailments and settlements - - - 0.2 0.2
Exchange adjustments — (1.6} 2.8 0.7 |9
At 3| December 2021 (544.0) (139.3) (35.4) {11.8) (734.5)
Movements in fair value of plan assets
At | January 2021 4831 140.2 0.5 7.2 631.0
Interest on plan assets 5.9 3.2 - 0.1 9.2
Remeasurement gain/(loss) 78 (5.3 - ©.n 2.4
Contributions by employer 16.8 0.7 I.5 .1 20,1
Benefits paid (21.3) {8.5) {1.5) (0.3) (31.6)
Curtailments and settlements ©.N o.n
Exchange adjustrments - .3 (0. (0.4 0.8
At 3| December 2021 492 .3 131.6 0.4 7.5 631.8
Actual return on assets 13.6 2.1y 0.1 1.4
Fair value of plan assets by category
Equities’ 42.9 - - - 429
Growth assets’ 03.6 7.2 - - 0.8
Bonds 904 119.9 - - 210.3
Liabilty-driven mvestments (LDD¢ 108 4 108.4
Matching insurance policies [44.5 - G4 4.8 1497
Other 2.5 4.5 - 2.7 9.7
492.3 131.6 0.4 7.5 631.8
Lepaty vasluss include Lotr shyse al ecuties and the value of equity futures contacts used to gan teveraged sxposire to globll eqosy markets
i Growth asstls i uge mvestment in Glooa Diversit ed ang Mult Asset Funds as well &5 Uk Property
i The LDI assets sie paulen funds in the UK that provide o everaged retarn Inked 1o long dutation fired mterest and iedex-liced governnent bonds sa wee at the bod phce of the uiits

This prowdes nte estrate anc irflal on hedging equivaent in aze to arca 100% of the nvestec assets of the LK Schemes
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

22. Pensions and other post-retirement employee benefits (continued)

Actuarial assumptions

The actual liability in respect of global employee benefits will not be known untii the last payments have been made. In placing a current
estimate on the Group's past service benefit obligations, a number of assumptions about the future are required. For defined benefit
schemes, the Directors make annual estimates and assumptions in respect of discount rates, future changes in salaries, employee turnover,
inflation rates, hfe expectancy and several other assumptions. In making these estimates and assumptions, the Directors consider advice
provided by axfornal advisors, such as actuaries,

The assumptions used are best estimate assumptions chosen frorm a reasonable range and which may not be borne out in practice.
The principal assumptions are the discount rate and inflation assumptions which are long term and measured on external factors, based
Jpon each plan's duration. In addition to these. the mortality assumption in the UK and the US is rmaterial to the cost of the promised
benefits. In both the UK and Europe, where relevant, the assumed increases in salaries and pensions in payment are derived from

assumed future inflation.

The rates shown below are single equivalents for the obligations as a whole derved from discounting along the yield curve. In line
with IAS 19, in determining the value of the annuity contract held in the UK we have reflected the same methodology as used to value
the corresponding obligations, reflecting the actual cash flow profile and duration of the insured obligations, rather than those of the

Schemes as a whole.

Actuanal assumptions were:

Rest of
UK us Europe the World
k3 % % %
2022
Discount rate 4.81 4.99 3.70 5.30
Salary increase n/a n/a 2.20 5.00
Inflation {UK: RPI/CPI} 3.26/2.47 n/a 2.20 n/a
Pensions increase 3.00/3.11/3.70 n/a 2.20 n/a
Mortality - post-retirement:
Life expectancy of a male aged 60 1n accounting year (years) 25.7¢9 24.80 25.19 n/a
Life expectancy of a male aged 6010 accounting year — 20 (years) 27.24 24.90 27.98 n/a
2021
Discount rate 152 271 030 2.50
Safary increase n/a n/a 240 4.30
Inflation {LK: RPI/CPI} 3.40/2.61 n/a |.90 nfa
Pensions increase 3.00/3.22/3.75 n/a .90 n/a
Mortality post-retirement:
Life expectancy of a male aged 60 in accounting year (years) 26.0 247 25.0 n/a
Life expectancy of a male aged 60 in accounting year + 20 (years) 274 24.8 279 n/a
I, Pensian ircreascs i the UK reflect barh fixed rate and RPI-related inweases 1o aifferent clerments of members pensians,

The accounting assumptions noted above are used to calculate the year-end net pension liability in accordance with the relevant accounting
standard, 1AS 19 (revised) Employee Benefits. Changes in these assumptions have no impact on the Group's cash payments to their

arrangements. The payments due are calculated based on local funding requirements, or in the case of the Group's unfunded

arrangements on the incidence of benefit payments falling due.
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22. Pensions and other post-retirement employee benefits (continued)

The sensitivities of the Group's net balance sheet to the principal assumptions are:

2022 2071

Increase Increase on

on defined defined
benefit Increase benefit Increase
obligation on deficit obligation on deficlt
Change in assurmption £m £m £m £m
Discount rate Decrease by 0.1% 5.8 5.0 0.7 2.4
Chscount rate Decrease by 0.5% 30.0 25.9 559 494
Inflation Increase by 0.19% 1.8 1.7 3./ 3.5
Inflation increase by 0.5% 9.2 8.7 18.6 17,6
Mortalty - post-retirement Pensioners live | year longer 20.5 13.6 333 21,9
Exchange rates GBP weakens against USD by 10% 13.5 1.0 15.5 09
GBP weakens against EUR by 10% 3.3 3.2 4.4 43

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in the net balance sheet in 1solation, and assume no other changes in
market conditions at the accounting date. This is unlikely in practice - for example, a change in discount rate is unlikely to occur without
any movement in the value of the assets held by the Group's Schemes.

Risks

The balance sheet net pension liability is a snapshot view which can be significantly influenced by short-term market factors. The
calculation of the surplus or deficit depends, therefore. on factors which are beyond the control of the Group - principally the value at
the balance sheet date of equity shares in which the Scheme has invested and long-term interest rates which are used to discount future
liabilities, The funding of the Scheme is based on long-term trends and assumptions relating to market growth. as advised by qualified
actuaries and investment advisors.

The most significant risks to which the Group 15 exposed are:

> Investment returns: The Group's net balance sheet and contribution reqguiremerits are heavily dependent upon the return on the
assets invested in by the schemes.

L.ongevity: The cost to the Group of the pensions promised to members I1s dependent upor the expected term of these payments.
To the extent that members live longer than expected this will increase the cost of these arrangements.

N

 Inflation rate risk: In the UK. the pension promises are, in the main. linked to inflation. and higher inflation will lead 1o higher liabilities.

The above risks have been mitigated for the majority of the LUK Schemes' pensioner population through the purchase of an insurance
policy, the payments from which exactly match the promises made to employees. Remaining investment risks have also been mitigated

to some extent by diversification of the return-seeking assets and backing uninsured pensioner liabilities via bonds and various hedging
instruments. In the UK, the bonds and LI mandates target an interest rate hedge against movements in government bend yields
{including providing protection aganst changes to future inflation expectations) for an amount equal to approximately 100% of the habilities
valued on the 'Long Term Objective’. In the US, the bond mandates provide an interest rate hedge of approximately [00% of the liabilities
for funded plans.

In addition, the IAS 19 defined benefit obligation is linked to yields on AA-rated corporate bonds; however some of the Group's
arrangements invest in & number of other assets which will move in a different manner from these bonds. Therefore, changes in market
conditions may lead to volatility in the net pension liability on the Group's balance sheet and in other comprehensive income, and to

a lesser extent in the IAS |9 pension expense in the Group's income statement.

23. Share-based payments

The Group operates various share option programmes that zllow Group employees to acquire shares in the Company. During 2622,
awards were made to executives and senior employees under the Morgan Advanced Materials plc Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP).

the Morgan Advanced Materials plc (2eferred Bonus Plan {DBP) and the Morgan Advanced Materials plc Restricted Stock Urits (RSU).
The Company also maintains a UK all-employee Sharesave scheme (Sharesave). Further details can be found in the Remuneration Report
on pages 90- 6.

The grant date fair value of options granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity.
over the period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the opt:ons. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options for which the refated service and non market vesting conditions are met.

The charge expensed to the income statement in 2022 was £5.7 million (2024: £4.5 rmulhon).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

23. Share-based payments (continued)

| he following options and awards were outstanding at 31 December 2022 in respect of Ordinary shares:

Number Exercise dates ranging
Employees Exercise/faward of shares
 entitled _Vesting conditions price(s} outstanding ] from _ to
LTIP Senior Continued employment - 4,585,134 1 January 2023 30 May 2025
employees plus satisfaction of
performance metrics
Sharesave All UK Continued employment  181.00p-321.00p 1,053,084 | December 2022 | June 2026
employees
DBP Senior Continued employment - 513,137 18 March 2022 21 March 2025
employees
RSU Select Continued employment - 1,366,351 21 May 2023 30 May 2025
employees
The numbers and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows:
2022 2021
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average MNumber of
) o exercise price ) options exercise price options
Outstanding at the beginning of the period 26.44p 8,174,265 28.68p 8.532.753
Granted during the period 23.24p 2,985,494 I1.58p 2.654.176
Forfeited during the period 39.31p {158,602) 25.37p (659.714)
Exercised during the period 39.31p (1,280,013) 31.21p (1.081,782)
Lapsed during the period 0.71p (2,203,438) 6.92p (1.271.168)
Qutstanding at the end of the period 28.30p 1,517,706 26.44p B.174.265
Exercisable at the end of the period 182.49p 138,258 90.14p 115,153

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise during the period was 293.19 pence (2021: 328 64 pence}.

Measurement of fair values

The DBP is an award of deferred shares which include the accumulated value of any dividends which fall during the period from the date of
grant to the vesting date The RSU is an award of shares. which are released in tranches to the participant over a specified period of time
with no performance conditions except continued employment by the Group. As such, the grant-date fair value of the DBP and RSU are

equal to the share price at the date of grant.

Share price at award date

Exercise price

Fair value at measurement date

Fair value measurement method

Fair value model inputs:

Expected volatility (expressed as weighted average volatility
used in the model)

Option life {expressed as we'ghted average life used in
the model}

Expected dividends
Risk-free interest rate

Awards made in 2022

LTIP

294.50p-
317.50p

n/a

101.00p-
260.00p

Actuarial
binomial
model

30%
3.0 years

3.2%-3.5%
1.3%-1.5%

Sharesave

234.50p

210.00p
43.00p

Medified
binomial
model

35%
3.3 years

4.2%
4.0%

. .DBP
318.00p

nfa
318.00p

n/a

RSU

294.50p-
317.50p

n/a

294.50p-
317.50p

nfa
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23. Share-based payments (continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility {calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the share options)
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly avaitable information,

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by reference to the far value of share options granted.

The weighted average fair value of options issued during 2022 was 204.74 pence (2021: 271.44 pence).

24. Provisions and contingent liabilities

Closure and Legal and
restructuring other Environmental
provisions provisions provisions Total
_ _ fm . fm fm . £m
Balance at | January 2022 1.8 10.0 7.8 29.6
Provisions made during the year 1.3 0.2 1.1 2.6
Provisions used during the year (3.2) .n (1.3) (6.2)
Provisions reversed during the vear (0.6) (0.6) (0.5) .7
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 1.2 0.2 0.3 1.7
Balance at 31 December 2022 10.5 8.1 1.4 26.0
Current 2.5 3.5 3.9 2.9
Non-current 8.0 4.6 3.5 16.1
10.5 8.1 7.4 26.0

Closure and restructuring provisions

Closure and restructuring provisions are based on the Group's restructuring programmes and represent committed expenditure at the
balance sheet date. The amounts provided are based on the costs of terminating relevant contracts. under the contract terms. and
management's best estimate of other associated restructuring costs including professional fees.

Whitst the Group's restructuring programme was completed in 2021, we retain provisions for remaining lease exit costs and multi-
employer pension obligations from twao sites which were closed during 2021, The cash outflows relating to the pension cbligations
may continue for up to 19 years. subject to any settlement being reached in advance of that date. Cash outflows in relation to the lease
may continue for the next four years.

Legal and other provisions

Legal and other provisions mainly comprise amounts provided against open legal and contractual disputes arising in the normal course of
business and long-service costs. Provisions are made for the expected costs associated with such matters. based on past experience of
similar iterms and other known factors, taking into account professional advice received, and represent management's best estimate of
the most likely outcome. The timing of utilisation of these provisions is frequently uncertain, reflecting the complexity of issues and the
outcome of various court proceedings and associated negotiations.

Where obligations are not capable of being reliably estimated, or if a material cutflow of economic rescurces is considered remote, it is
classified as a contingent liability. The Group is of the opinion that any assecdated daims that might be brought can be defeated successfully
and, therefore, the possibility of any material outflow in settlement is assessed as remote.

Subsidiary undertakings within the Group have given unsecured guarantees of £10.2 million (2021: £10.5 mulion) in the ordinary course
of business

Environmontal provisions

Environmental provisions are made for quantifiable environmental liabilities arising from known environmental issues. The amounts
provided are based on the best estimate of the costs required to remedy these issues. At cne site. a remediation feasibility study is
currently being conducted in relation to a known envircnmental issue and in conjunction with the local envircnmental regulator.

A remediation plan has been prepared. The provision recorded reflects the estimated costs of remediation and awaits final regulatory
approval. The provision is expected to be utilised in the next five years.

183 Morgan Advanced Materials plc Annual Report 2022




Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

24. Provisions and contingent liabilities {continued)

Environmental contingent liabilities

The Group is subject to local health, safety and envircnmental laws and regulations concerning its manufacturing operations around the

world, These laws and regulations may require the Group to take future action 1o remediate the impact of historical manufacturing
processes on the environment or lead to other economic outflows. Such contingencies may exist for various sites which the Group
currently operates or has operated in the past. There is a contingent liability arising frem the as yet unknown environmental issues at
the sile refetted w above, pending the completion of the teasibility study.

Tax contingent liabilities
The Group 1s subject to periodic tax audits by various fiscal authorities covering corporate. employee and sales taxes in the various

Jurisdictions in which it operates. We have provided for estimates of the Group's likely exposures where these can be reliably estimated.

These are disclosed in notes 8 and 4.

25. Capital commitments

In 2022, commitments for property, plant and equipment and computer software expenditure for which no provision has been made in

these accounts amount to £5.9 mitlion (2021: £6.3 million) for the Group.

26. Related parties

Identification of related parties

The Group has related party relationships with its subsidiaries (a list of all related undertakings and associates is shown in note 43},
and with its Directors, executive officers and their close family members.

Transactions with key management personnel
The Company has written service contracts or letters of appointment with each of its Directors, under which the Directors receive
asalary or a fee and other emoiuments.

The key management of the Group and Parent Company consists of the Board of Directors (including non-executive Directors) and
members of the Executive Committee,

The compensation for the executive and non-executive Directors and members of the Executive Committee charged in the year was:

2022 2021

- i £m £m

Short-term employee benefits - 4.8 75

Employer national insurance contributions i.0 04

Pension and other post-empleyment costs 0.3 03

Share-based payment expense 1.9 1.7
Termination payments 0.1

Non-executive Directors’ fees and benefits 0.5 0.5

Total compensation of key management personnel 8.6 10.4

| Share-based payment expense epresents the net IFRS 2 share-basea payrent (cred ty'charge 1o the comsobdated ncomie statement in the year for the nenrbers of the Execative
Commuttee, In 2022, due Lo changes m assumptions 17 ron ma-ket based performance conaitions. a net ¢redit of £8.1 million was recognsed in Lhe consohdaled income statement
{2521, et credit of £0 1 million)

Other related party transactions
On 28 April 2021, the Group completed the sale of its investment in associate, as detailed in note 2. In 2022, there was £nil sales to

{2021: £nily and £nil purchases from {2021: £0.6 million) the associate. As at 31 Decermber 2027, trade receivables due from the associate

were £nil (2021: £nil) and trade payables due to the associate were £nil (2021: £nil}.
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27. Subsequent events
Morgan experienced a cyber security incident in January 2023, having detected unauthorised activity on the network. Immediate steps

were taken to contain the incident, launch inadent response plans, engage specialist support services and embark on restoring systems
All manufacturing sites are operational. although some continue to use manual processes as work continues to restore their systems

This has been treated as a non-adjusting post balance sheet event and there has been no impact on the financial results reported for the
year ended 3| December 2022

We expect to incur around £15 miliion of system recovery and specialist support costs, including IT asset impairment charges of

£0.7 million. These charges will be presented separately as specific adjusting iterns i the consolidated income statement for the year
ending 31 December 2023. At the date of signing. and following consultation with our advisors, we also have a non-adjusting post balance
sheet contingent liability relating to potential enforcement action or civil claims pending the completion of cur investigation inta what

data was accessed and regulatory engagement.

185 Morgan Advanced Materials plec Arnual Report 2022

Pl



Company balance sheet

AS AT 3| DECEMBER 2022

2022 2021
Fiots im £m
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 0 1.1 2.6
Property, plant and equipment “ 3.7 34
Right-of-use assets i 09 0.8
Investments in subsidary undertakings iz 757.8 718.2
Debtors — amounts due after more than one year - 139.0 218.0
Employee benefits: pensions e 6.4 -
908.9 943.0
Current assets
Debtors — amounts due within one year i 159.1 229
Cash and cash equivalents 7.2 194
166.3 42.3
Current liabilities
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year 55 122.4 68.4
Provisions 3% 2.2
124.6 68.6
Net current assets/(liabilities) 41.7 (26.3)
Total assets less current liabilities 950.6 Sl67
Non-current liabilities
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year st 270.6 2027
Employee benefits: pensions 1 - 15.0
Provisions iy 3.0 5.1
273.6 2228
Net assets 677.0 6939
Capital and reserves
Equity shareholders’ funds
Share capital <0 71.3 71.3
Share premium 1.7 1.7
Merger reserve 17.0 17.0
Capital redemption reserve 35.7 357
Retained earnings 441.3 458.2
Shareholders’ funds 677.0 £93.9

Under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company is exempt from the requirement to present its own income statement.

During 2022, the Company recognised a profit of £13.6 rmullion (20212 £122.6 million).

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 April 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:

Pete Raby Richard Armitage
Chief Exccutive Officer Chicf Financial Officer

186 Morgan Advanced Materials plc Annual Report 2022



Company statement of changes in equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Share Capirtal
Calted-up premium Meiget redemprtion Profit and Total
share capnal account reserve rescrve loss account equity
) £m £m £m £im £m £m
Balance at | January 2021 1.3 [.7 17.0 357 341.0 576.7
Total comprehensive income
for the year:
Profit for the year - 122.6 122.6
Other comprehensive income - - 14.8 14.8
Transactions with owners:
Dividends (.1 {19.1)
Equity-settled share-based
payment transactions - - - - 4.5 4.5
Own shares acquired for share
incentive schemes {net} - {5.6) (5.6)
Balance at 31 December 2021 713 17z 17.0 357 458.2 693.9
Balance at | January 2022 71.3 1.7 17.0 35.7 458.2 693.9
Total comprehensive income
for the year:
Profit for the year - - - - 13.6 13.6
Other comprehensive income - - - - 2.5) (2.5)
Transactions with owners:
Dividends - - - - (31.6) (31.6)
Equity-settled share-based
payment transactions - - - - 6.0 6.0
Owin shares acquired for share
incentive schemes (net) - - - - (2.4) (2.4)
Balance at 3|1 December 2022 7.3 111.7 17.0 35.7 441.3 677.0
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Notes to the Company balance sheet

28. Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (‘(FRS 1017}
and the Companies Act 2006.

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006, The Company meets the
definition of a qualifving entity under FRS 100 Application of Financial Reparting Requirements issied by the FROC Acenrdingly, thiso
financial staternents are prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

In these financial statements. the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of the following disclosures:
> acash flow statement and related notes

2 comparative period recondiliations for share capital, tangible fixed assets and intangible assets

> transactions with wholly-owned subsidiaries

> the effects of new hut not yet effective [FRS

> the compensation of key management personnel; and

> capital management,

As the consolidated financial statements of Morgan Advanced Matenals plc include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has aiso taken
the exemptions under FRS 101 avallable in respect of the following disclosures:

> IFRS 2 Share-Based Payments in respect of Group-settled share-based payments: and

> the disclosures reguired by IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures,

The Company proposes 1o continue to adopt the reduced disclosure framewcrk of FRS 101 in its next financial statements

Under Section 408(4) of the Companies Act 2006 the Company is exempt from the requirement ic present its own income statement
or statement of comprehensive income.

The Company's financial statements are presented inits functional currency. pounds sterling, generally rounded to the nearest milion.

The Company's financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis as set out in nete | the censelidated financiai statements of
the Group.

The accounting policies set out below have. unless otherwise stated. been applied consistently to the pericd presented in these
financial statements.

Measurement convention

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certamn financial instruments that are measured at fair value.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Company's functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of
transaction, Monetary assets and lizbilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are retranslated to the functicnal
currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the income
staterment Non-monetary assets and habilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a fereign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilites denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are retranslated to the functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation anc less accumulated imparment losses.

Amortisatian is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets unless such
fives are indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful tfe and goodwill are systematically tested for impairment at each balance
sheet date. Other intangible assets are amortised from the date they are avalable for use. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Software: 3-7 years
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28. Accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equiprment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Deprecation 1s charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of tangible
fixed assets. Land is not depreciated. The estimated usefut lives are as follows:

Plant, equipment and fixtures: 3-20 years
Buildings: 50 years
Depreciation methods. useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Leasing

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the contract. The Company recognises a right-of-use
asset and a correspending lease liability with respect 10 all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee.

The lease liability 1s initially measured at the present value of future lease payments including adjustments for any lease incentives
receivable. Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability,
Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case of leases in the company, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used. being the rate the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value on similar terms.

The right-of-use-assets comprise the initial measurement of the correspending lease liability. lease payments made at or before the
cormmencement date, less any lease incentives received and inttial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment lcsses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts
at the commencement date of the lease.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for impairment, The Company tests the investment balances for impairment
annually or when there are indicators of impairment. If any such indication of impairment exists, the Company makes an estimate of its
recoverable amount, Where the carrying amount of an investment exceeds its recoverable amount, the investrent is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amcunt. Where these circumstances have reversed. the impairment previously made is reversed to
the extent of the original cost of the Investment.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments and financial lizabrlities are recognised in the Company balance sheet when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Classification of financial instruments issued by the Company

Financial instruments issued by the Company are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the following two conditions:

a) they include no contractual obligations upon the Company to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange financial assets
or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Company: and

b) where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments, it is either a non-dervative that includes
no obligation to deliver a variable number of the Company's own equity instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the
Company's exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other finanaal assets for a fixed number of its cwn equily instruments.

To the extent that this defimtion is not met. the proceeds of issue are cJassified as a financial liability. Where the instrument so classified
takes the legal form of the Company's own shares, the amounts presented in these financial statements for called-up share capitaf and
share premium account exclude amounts in refation to those shares.

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other debtors. cash and cash
equivalents. loans and borrowings, and trade and other creditors

Trade and other debtors

Trade and other debtors are recorded initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost. This results in therr
recogrition at nominal value less an allowance for any doubtful debts. The allowance for doubtful debts 1s recogrised based on
management's expectation of losses without regard to whether an impairment trigger happened or not (an 'expected credit loss’
{ECLY model). The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
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Notes to the Company balance sheet continued

28. Accounting policies (continued)

Trade and other creditors
Trade and other creditors are recognised initally at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their far value,

interest-bearing borrowings

interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are inially recorded at far value of the consideration recewved, net of direct issue costs.

I hey are subsequently held at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Finance charges, including premiums payable on
settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for using an effective interest rate method and are added to or deducted
from the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises provisions for expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at amortised cost. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk with fifetime ECL recognised when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Life ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible
defaults over the expected life of the financial instrument.

To assess whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition the Company compares the risk of default occurring
at the reporting date with the risk of default at the date of initial recognition. The Company utilises both quantitative and qualitative
information to support this assessment, including historical experience and forward looking information,

The Company considered amounts due from Group undertakings to be in default when the borrower is unlikely 1o pay its credit
obligations to the Company in full. A financia: asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financal asset have occurred.

Derivative financial instruments

Dervative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate risks including
non-designated foreign exchange forward cantracts as detailed in note 45

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is recognised as a
finanaal lability, Derwvatives are not offset in the financial statements unless the Group has both a legally enforceable right and intention
to offset. The impact of the Master Netting Agreements on the Group's financal position 15 disclosed in note 22. A derivative is presented
as a non-current asset or a non-current lability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than |2 months and it 1s not due tc be
realised or settled within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabiliies.

Employee benefits

Defined centribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity
and will have no iegal or constructive obligation to pay further amcunts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pensicn plans
are recognised as an expense in the income staternent in the periods during which services are rendered by employees,

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit ptan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect
of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment benefits 1s calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount

of future berefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior pericds: that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. and the fair value of any plan assets (at bid price} and any unrecognised past service costs are deducted.

The liability discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on AA-credit-rated bonds denominated in the currency of, and having
maturity dates approximating to the terms of the Company's obligations. The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Company. the recognised asset is limited to the total of any
unrecognised past service costs and the present value of benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan, reductions in
future contributions to the plan or on settlement of the plan and takes imo account the adverse effect of any minimum funding requirements

Actuarial gains and losses that have arisen since the adoption of FRS 01 are recognised in the peried that they occur directly into equity
through the statement of comprehensive income.

The Company is the spansoring and principal employer of two UK defined benefit pension schemes, the Morgan Pension Scheme and the
Morgan Group Senior Staff Pension and Life Assurance Scheme (‘the UK Schemes’). The Company also guarantees certain obligations and
liabilities to the employees that currently participate in the two UK Schemes. During 2016, the Company adopted 2 new palicy to allocate
costs associated with the UK pension schemes between itself, as Principal Employer, and the various Participating Employers, based on an
evaluation of each entity's share of overall Scheme labilities. This ensures that the pension liability is reflected in the entity that employed
the partiapant. Previously all of the Scheme assets and liabilities were recognised on the balance sheet of the Company only. Further
aetails are provided in note 38.
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28. Accounting policies (continucd)

Share-based payment transactions
Share based payment arrangements in which the Company receives goods or services as consideration for its own equity instruments are
accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions, regardiess of how the equity instruments are obtained by the Company.

The grant date fair value of share-based payments awards granied to employees is recognised as an employee expense, with

a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in whick the employees become uncenditionally entitled 1o the awards. Share-based
payment charges and credits relating to awards granted to employees ot subsidiaries are recharged to those subsidiaries with a
corresponding entry in the Company's income statement. The fair value of the awards granted is measured using an option valuation
model, taking mte account the terms and conditions upon which the awards were granted. The amount recognised as an expense Is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met,
such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based an the number of awards that do not meet the related service and
non-market performance conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fai
value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and
actual outcomes.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company receives goods or services by incurring a liability to transfer cash or other assets
that is based on the price of the Company's equity instruments are accounted for as cash-settled share-based payments. The fair value of
the amount payable to employees is recognised as an expense, with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period in which the
employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is remeasured at each balance sheet date and at settlement date.
Any changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised as personnel expense in profit or loss,

Disclosure of the share-based payment transactions can be found in note 23 to the Group financial statements.

Own shares held by the Morgan General Employee Benefit Trust

Transactions of the Group-sponsored Moergan General Employee Benefit Trust are treated as being those of the Company and are
therefore reflected in the Company's financial statements. In particular, the Trust's purchases and sales of shares in the Company are
debited and credited to equity.

Provisions

A provision 1s recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event
that can be reliably measured, and it1s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects risks specific to the liabitity where the effect of
discounting is expected to be material.

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax 1s recogrised in the income statement except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is recogmsed directly in equity or
other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expecled tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax 15 provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: the initial recognition of goodwill:
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business combination; and
differences relating to nvestments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount
of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities.
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset Is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be avalable against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Dividends on shares presented within sharcholders’ funds

Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a liability at that date to the extent that they are appropriately approved
and are no longer at the discretion of the Company. Unpaid dividends that do not meet these criteria are disclosed in the notes to the
financial staterments.

Financial guarantee contracts

Where the Campany enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its Group, the
Company considers these to be insurarce arrangements, and accounts for them as such. In this respect, the Company treats the guaraniee
contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the
guarantee, at which point a hability would be recognised.
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Notes to the Company balance sheet continued

28. Accouriting policies (continued)

Use of judgements and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements. estimates. and assumptions that affect the application of the

Company's accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, habilities, income and expenses.

In addition to the areas of judgement and estimates outlined in note | to the consolidated Group financial statements. the Company
also igentifics the assumptions required in investments mparment assessmerts as a source of significant nsk of resulting in a material
adjustment to the asset carrying values of the Company, Assessment of impairment relies on the use of estimates of the future profitability
in a multiple-based valuation which may differ from the actual results achieved. Due to global econormic uncertainty. there is an increased

level of nisk and therefore a key source of estimate uncertainty in these assumptions. see note 33 for sensitivity analysis.

29. Staff numbers and costs

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Company (including Directers) during the year was as follows:

Number of employees 2022 202
Directors and corporate staff 69 58
Full details of the Directors’ remuneration for the period can be found in the Remuneration Report on pages 20 116,
Aggregate employee-related costs were as follows:
2022 2021
o HMewe £Em £m
Wages and salaries 9.0 1.3
Equity-settled share-based payments o3 5.1 4.5
Sodal security costs 1.6 1.5
Other pension costs 0.7 0.6
16.4 179

In 2022, £2.2 million (2021 £0.7 millon) of the equity-settled share-based payments amount was recharged to other Morgan Group companies.

30. Intangible assets

Software
£m

Co-st
Balance at | January 2022 10.3
Additions  externally purchased 0.2
Disposals -
Balance at 3| Decemnber 2022 10.5
Amortisation
Balance at | January 2022 1.7
Amaortisation for the year 1.7
Disposals -
Balance at 3| December 2022 9.4
Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2021 2.6

At 31 December 2022
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31. Property, plant and equipment

Plant,
equipment Land and
and fixtures buildings Total
£m £Em £im
Cost o
Balance at | January 2022 1.3 6.5 1.8
Additions 0.9 - 6.9
Disposals ©0.1) - (0.1)
Balance at 31 December 2022 2.1 6.5 8.6
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at | January 2022 0.6 1.8 4.4
Depreciation charge for the year 0.5 - 0.5
Disposals - - -
Balance at 31 December 2022 1.1 3.8 4.9
Carrying value
At 31 December 2021 0.7 2.7 34
At 31 December 2022 1.0 2.7 3.7
32. Leasing
The reconciliation in the movement of the carrying value of right-of-use assets is set out In the table below:
Plant and Land and
equipment buildings Total
Em fm £m
Balance at | January 2022 0.2 0.6 0.8
Additions 0.5 - 0.5
Depreciation charge for the year (0.3) {0.1) (0.4)
Balance at 31 December 2022 0.4 0.5 0.9

The Company leases several assets including buildings and IT equipment. The average lease term at 31 December 2022 is 1.9 years
(2021 2.1 years).

At 31 December 2022, the Company has not applied any exemptions for short-term leases or leases of low value assets.
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Notes to the Company balance sheet continued

33. Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Shares
in Group
undertakings Loans Total
im £m £m

Cost
Balance at | January 2022 449.4 353.8 803.2
Reclassification - 1.0 1.0
Loans advanced - 18.0 18.0
Loan repayments - - -
Effect of moverment in foreign exchange - 21.8 21.8
Balance at 31 December 2022 449.4 394.6 844.0
Provisions
Balance at | January 2022 20.8 64.2 85.0
Provided in the year 1.0 - 1.0
Reversal of impairment (0.2) (0.2) {0.4)
Disposals - - -
Effect of movement in foreign exchange - 0.6 0.6
Balance at 31 December 2022 21.6 64.6 86.2
Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2021 428.6 2896 7182
At 3| December 2022 427.8 330.0 757.8

tn December, management conducted a review of the Company's investment in subsidiary undertakings. Following this review

management identified impairment losses of £1.0 million (2021: £nil) and the reversal of impairment losses of £0.2 millien

(2021: £118.9 million} against a number of shares in Group undertakings. In addition, management identified no impairment losses
{2021 £nily and no reversal of impairment losses {20211 £0.7 million) agamst loans.

The impairment assessment of shares in Group undertakings uses the 2027 results in an ERBITDA multiple valuation, which is senstive
to changes in the principal assumptions. A 2% increase in either EBITDA or the multiple would increase the carrying value of the share

in Group undertakings by £3.7 million at 3| December 2022. A 2% decrease would decrease the carrying value by £4.3 million.
Management considers these changes in assumpticns to be reasonably possible.

Note 43 to the financial statements gives details of the Company's fixed asset investments.
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34, Debtors

2022 2021
NP Lm £m
Due within one year )
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 152.8 9.1
Other debtors 2.2 1.3
Derivative financial assets v 2.0 1.0
Prepayments 2.1 1.5
159.1 22.9
Due after more than one year
Derivative financial assets 24 - 8.2
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 139.0 209.8
139.0 218.0
35. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2022 2021
— . e o M T
Bank overdrafts - . 53 1.6 0.2
Borrowings 37 34.5
Lease liabilities 0.5 0.4
Trade creditors 2.6 2.9
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 69.1 53.3
Other creditors - Q.
Accruals 7.5 10.8
Dervative financial liabiiities i 6.4 0.5
122.4 68.6
36. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2022 2021
Neto £m £m
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 7 33.5 254
Borrowings 3/ 229.6 173.6
Lease liabilities 0.3 0.4
Derivative financial fiabilities <4 7.2 2.7
Other creditors - 0.6
270.6 202.7
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Notes to the Company balance sheet continued

37. Berrowings and lcasc liabilitics
Terms and debt repayment schedule

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair vaiue
amount Level | Level 2 Total amount Level | Level 2 Toal
Em @m £m N ET £m £m £m £m

Financial assets and
liabilities held at
amortised cost
[.18% Eurc
Semor Notes 2023 (22.1) - (21.6) {21.6) 210y - (2.0 (211}
3.17% US Dollar
Senior Notes 2023 (12.4) - (12.1) (12.1) (I (11.3) (1.3)
1.55% Euro
Senior Notes 2026 (22.2) - (20.1) (z0.1) (211 - (214 (214
3.379% US Dollar
Senior Notes 2026 (80.6) - (73.5) (73.5) (72.2) - (72.8) {72 8)
|1.74% Euro
Senior Notes 2028 (8.9) - (7.7) (1.7 (8.9) - {8.6) {8.6)
2.89% Euro
Senior Notes 2030 (22.1) - (19.0) (19.0) (21.0) - (22.1) (22.1)
4.87% US Dollar
Senior Notes 2026 (21.1) - (20.2) (20.2) {18.8) - (20.6} (20.6)
5.50% Cumulative
First Preference shares (0.1} - ©.0n ©.1) o.hH - (0.1 {0.1)
5.00% Cumulative
Second Preference shares {0.3) - (0.3) {0.3) (0.3) - (0.3} 0.3

(189.8) - (174.6) (174.6) {i74.0) - (178.3) (178.3)
Dervative financial assets
held at fair value 1.3 - 1.3 1.3 0.6 - 0.6 0.6

1.3 - 1.3 1.3 0.6 0.6 0.6

Derivative financial iabilities
held at farr value (1.6) — (1.6} (1.6) (0.6) - (0.6) (0.6)

In 2022, no borrowings were secured on the assets of the Cormpany (2021 £nil).
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38. Employee benefits: pensions

Defined benefit plans

The Company participales in two defined benefit pension schemes. the Morgan Pension Scheme and the Morgan Group Serior Staff
Pension and Life Assurance Scheme (‘the Schemes’). The Schemes were dosed to new entrants on | August 2011, with any new
employees receiving benefits through the Morgan Group Personal Pension Plan, a defined contribution arrangement. The Morgan
Group Senior Staff Pension and L ife Assurance Scheme was closed to the future accrual of benefits on and with effect from & April 2016.
The Morgan Pension Scheme was closed to the future accrual of benefits on and with effect from 6 April 2018, Current employees.
including those who were active in the Schermes at closure, were auto-enrclled into the Morgan Group Personal Pension Plan for their
future pension benefits.

2022 2021
o £m £m
Pension plans and employee benefits N o
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations (118.9) {1759
Fair value of plan assets 125.3 160.9
Net obligations 6.4 {15.0)
Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation
At | January (175.9) (195.5)
Interest cost 3.5) 2.4
Remeasurement {losses)/gains:
Changes in financial assumptions 57.0 14.3
Changes in demographic assumptions 0.9 1.9
Experience adjustments on benefit obligations 6.1 (1.6
Benefits paid 8.7 74
Net past service credit - -
At 31 December (118.9) {175.9)
Movements in fair value of plan assets
At | January 160.9 160.7
Interest on plan assets 3.1 2.0
Remeasurement {losses)/gains (54.3) 0.1
Contributions by employer 24.3 55
Benefits paid {8.7) (7.4
At 31 December 125.3 160.9
Actual return on assets (51.2) 2.1
Expense recognised in the income statement
2022 2021
£m £m
Net past service credit - _
Administrative expenses {including administration expenses incurred by the Company directly) (1.2) (09
Net interest on net defined benefit liabilty (0.4) (0.4}
Total expense recognised in the iIncome statement (1.6) (1.3)
The fair values of the plan assets were as follows:
2022 2021
£m £m
Equities and growth assets 59.8 43.6
Bonds 17.9 56.2
Matching insurance policies 44.9 60.1
Other 2.7 1.0
Total 125.3 160.9
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Notes to the Company balance sheet continued

38. Employee benefits: pensions (continued)

[ he assumptions used are best estimate assumptions chosen from a rarige of possible actuarial assumptions which may not be borne
cutin practice. The principal assumptions are the discount rate and inflation assumptions which are long term and measured on external
factors. based upon each plan's duration. In addition to these, the mortalty assumption inthe UK s material to the cost of the promised
benefits. The assumed increases in salaries and pensions in payment are derived from assumed future inflation.

Principal actuanial assumptions at the year end were as follows!

2022 2021
Assumptions: % %
Inflation (RPICPI) 3.26/2.47 3.40/2.6
Discount rate 4.81 .92
Pensions increase 3.00/3.11/3.70  3.00/3.22/3.75
Salary increase n/a n/a
Mortality — post-retirement:
Life expectancy of a male aged 60 in accounting year (years) 25.8 26.0
Life expectancy of a male aged 60 in accounting year + 20 (years) 27.2 274

Funding

The most recent full actuarial valuations of the UK Schemes were undertaken as at 31 March 2022 and resulted in combined assessed
deficits of £49.7 million on the 'Technical Prowvisions’ basis. The Company subsequently agreed with the Trustees to make a lump sum
contribution to the Schemes of £67.0 million on 29 December 2022 in lieu of the remaining contributions that would otherwise have
been due under the existing recovery plans from the 31 March 2019 valuations. The sum paid represented the value of the deficit on the
more prudent 'Long Term Objective’ basis on the date of that agreement. 25 Cctober 2022, As a resull, no further contributions to the
Schemes are expected to be required pending the results of the next full valuations as at 31 March 2025.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivities of the Company's net balance sheet to the prinapal assumptions are:

2022 Increase 2024 Increase

effect effect

Change in assumption £m £m

Discount rate Decrease by 0.1% 1.0 P
Inflation Increase by 0.1% 0.4 0.8
Mortality  post-retrement Pensioners hive | vear longer 2.5 5.1

These sensitivities have been calculated 1o show the movement in the net balance sheet inisolation, and assuming no other changes in
market conditions at the accounting date {except where a fully matching insurance policy is held where this asset is assumed 1o change In
value to match the change in obligations). This 15 unlikely in practice, for example, a change in discount rate is unlikely to occur without
any movement in the value of the assets held by the Company's schemes.

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution pension plan {'the Morgan Group Personal Pension Plan’). The total Company expense
relating to this plan in 2022 was £0.7 million (2021: £0.6 million).

39. Provisions and contingent liabilities

Dilapidation Other

provisions provisions Total

£m im im

Balance at | January 2022 0.1 5.0 5.1
Provisions made during the year - 1.5 1.5
Provisions used during the year - (1.4) {1.4)
Effects of movement on foreign exchange - - -
Balance at 3| December 2022 0.1 5.1 5.2
Current 0.1 2.1 2.2
Non-current - 3.0 3.0
0.1 5.1 5.2

Other provisions relate to legal claims and envirernmental provisions and are based on the Company's assessment of the probable cost of
these aclivities.
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39. Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Contingent liabilities and guarantees

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of cther companies within its Group, the
Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such. In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee
contract as a contingent hability untit such time as 1t becornes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the
guarantee, at which pont a liability would be recognised.

The Group has been subject to legal claims in a number of countries. In sorne cases it will not be possible to form a view, either because
the facts are unclear or because further time is needed to properly assess the merits of the case. and no provisions are held aganst such
cases. The Board, having taken legal advice, is of the opinton that the remainder of these actions will not have a matenial impact on the
Company's financial position.

The Company participates in a cash pooling arrangement provided by Lloyds Bank plc with other UK Group companies, As part of that
pooling arrangement, the Company has provided a guarantee for any liabilities of the other participating companies to the bank. limited
to the lower of:

a) an amount equal to the base currency amount of the total habilities in the cash pool: and
b}y an amount equal to the base currency amount of such guarantor’s own net credit balance in the cash pool.
At the balance sheet date, the guaranteed amount was £0.1 million (2021: £0.1 million).

There are no other contingent liabilities in the Company as at 31 December 2022,

40. Share capital

Qrdinary shares

Inissue at beginning and end of the period 285,369,988
2022 2021
fm £m

Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 25 pence each 71.3 71.3
7.3 71.3

Additionally the Company has authorised, issued and fully paid 437,281 (2021: 437,281) cumulative Preference shares dassified as
borrowings totalling £0.4 million {2021: £0.4 million). The Preference shares comprise 125,327 of 5.5% Cumulative First Preference
shares of £1 each and 311.954 issued 5.0% Cumulative Second Preference shares of £1 each.

Refer to note |9 for details of the rights to dividends, voting rights and return of capital refating to the Preference shares.

For proposed Ordinary dividends see the consolidated income statement on page 130,

4|. Share premium and reserves
The merger reserve comprises the balance associated with the premium of shares issued during previous acquisitions. Further details on
share premium and reserves are given in note 9.

Apex Financial Services (Trust Company) Limited administer the Morgan General Employee Benefit Trust ("the Trust’) in which shares are
held to satisfy awards granted under the Company's share plans. The shares are distributed via discretionary settlement governed by the
rules of the Trust deed dated | March 1996 {as amended).

The total number of own shares held by the Trust at 31 December 2022 was |,173.686 (2021: 1,360.098) and at that date had a market
value of £3.7 million (202 1: £4.6 milion}.

In 2022, the amount of reserves of Morgan Advanced Materials plc that may be distributed under Section 831(4) of the Comparies Act
2006 was £264.5 million (2021: £281.5 miflion). This comprises a portion of the profit and loss account.
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Notes to the Company balance sheet continued

42. Related parties

The Company has related party relatonships with 1ts subsidiaries, its associate, tts Directors and executive officers and their close family
members. The Company 15 exempt from providing informaticn relating to these parties with the exception of transactions with entities
where the Company does not directly or indirectly own 1009 of the shareholding, these are set cut in the table below:

Transactions with subsidiaries
Income from management services
Net interest income

Cividend income

Loans owed by related parties

Loans owed to related parties

Other amounts owed by related parties

Cther amounts owed to related parties

2

022
£Em

1.9
4.6
3.9
2.3

1.8

1.0

2021
£m

1.0
4.5
89

27
09

43. Fixed asset investments

in accordance with Section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a full list of related undertakings as at 31 December 2022 1s disclosed
below. Refated undertakings include subsidiary undertakings, all significant holdings {(being 20% or more interest), assccated undertakings,
joint ventures and qualifying partnerships. Unless otherwise stated the Group's shareholding represents Ordinary shares held indirectly by

the Company.

Narme of urdertaking
Carbo San Luis S.A"

Morgan Technical Ceramics
Australia Pty Ltd

Morganite Australia Pty Ltd'*

Morgan Mechanical Carbon
Australasia Pty Lid

Morganite Brasil Ltda'

Maorgan Advanced Materials
Canada Inc. *

Carbo Chile S.A.

Dalian Morgan Ceramics
Company Ltd'"

Morgan Guangzhou Trading
Company Limited

Morgan Haldenwanger Technical
Ceramics {Wux} Co. Ltd ®
Maorgan Molten Metal Systems
(Suzhou) Co. Ltd' ¢

Morgan Technical Ceramics
(Suzhou) Co. Ltd

Morgan Thermal Ceramics
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd ™

Morgan International Trading
(Shanghai) Co. Lid' *

Shanghai Maorgan Advanced Materia:
and Techrology Co. Ltd""

pangsu Morgan Ceramic Core
Technology Co. Ltd"# %
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Country of
incorporaton

Argentina

Awustralia

Australia

Australia
Brazil
Canada
Chile
China
China
China
China
China
China
China
China

China

Registered office address

Talcahuano 736, 4th Floor, Buenos Aires, CIOI3AAR Argentina

4 Redwood Drive. Clayton, VIC 3168, Australia

30-36 Birralee Road, Regency Park, SA 5010, Australia

Unit 4, 92-100 Belmore Road, Riverwood. NSW 2210, Australia

Avenida do Tabodo 3265, Tabodo, Sao Bernardo do Campo.
Sao Paulo, CEP 09656-000, Brazil

1185 Walkers Line. Buriington, ON L7M ILI, Canada

Avenida San Eugenic 12462, Sitio 3, Loteo Estrella del Sur,
Santiago. Chile

Zhenxing Road, Pulandian Economic Development Zone,
Dalan, Liacning Province, China

Room 204, Ng. 10, Dalang North Street, Huangpu District,
Guangzhou, China

Gongyuanxi Road, Ding Shu Zhen. Yixing, Jiangsu Province
214221, China

|08 Tengsheng Road, Suzhou Industrial Park. Suzbou,
Jiangsu Province, 215126, China

Room 09, 28th Floor (2809), 288 LongShan Road, Greenland
Kanhu Plaze, Suzhou New District, Suzhou, 215163, China

|8 Kang An Road, Kang Qiao Industrial Zone, Pudong,
Shanghai 201315, China

I8 Kang An Road, Kang Qiao Industrial Zone, Pudong.
Shanghai 201315, China

4250 Long Wu Road, Shanghai. 200241, China

2 Liye Road. Economic Development Zone, Wuxi, liangsu
Province, 214131, China

2% shareholding

owned by

the Group

100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%

[00.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

[00.00%

100.00%

100.00%

[00.00%

100.00%

[00.00%

100.00%



43. Fixed asset investments (continued)

% shareholding

Country of owncd by

Name of undertaking incorporation Registered office address the Group

Morgan AM&T (Shanghai) Co. Ltd™" China 4250 Long Wu Road, Shanghal, 200241, China 70.00%

Morgan Kailong (Jingmen) Thermal China 20-1 Quankou Road. Jingmen City. Hubei Province, 448032, China 70.00%

Ceramics Co. LI *

Dalian Morgan Refracteries Ltd China No. 66 Xi'nan Road. Shahekou District. Dalian. Liacning Province 70.00%
[16200, China

Yixing Morgan Thermal Ceramics China 2 Besdan Road. Taodu Industral Park, Ding Shu Zhen, Yixing, 51.00%

Co. Ltd=" liangsu, 214222, China

Thermal Ceramics de Colombia® Colombia Calle 18 No. 23-31. Bodega |, Guadalajara de Buga-Valle, [100.00%
AA 5086, Colombia

Morgan Carbon France S.AS France 6 rue du Réservoir, 68420 Eguisheim, France [100.00%

Thermal Cerarmics de France $.A.5.U. ¢ France Centre de Vie BP 75, 3 rue du 18 juin 1827, 100.00%
42162 Andrézieux-Bouthéon, France

Thermal Ceramics S A0 France Centre de Vie BP 75, 3 rue du 18 juin 1827, 100.00%
42162 Andrézieux-Bouthéon, France

Margan Advanced Materials Germany Teplitzerstralle 27, 84478 Waldkraiburg, Germarny 100.00%

Haldenwanger GmbH'

Morgan Electrical Carbon Germany Zeppelinstrafie 26. 53424 Remagen, Germany 100.00%

Deutschland GmbH

Morgan Thermal Ceramics Germany Weidenbaumsweg 103, 21035, Hamburg, Germany 100.00%

Deutschland GmbH

Morgan Molten Metal Systems GmbH  Germany NottinastraBe 29, 37297 Berkatal-Frankenhain, Germany 100.00%

Morgan Deutschland Helding GmbH  Germany Zeppelinstrale 26. 53424 Remagen. Germarny 100.00%

Porextherm Ddmmstoffe GmbH Germany Heisingerstrafe 8/10, 87437 Kempten (Allgau), Germany 100.00%

Morgan Holding GmbH Germany Zeppelinstrale 26, 53424 Remagen. Germany 100.00%

The Morgan Crucible Germany Zeppelinstrafle 26, 53424 Remagen. Germany 100.00%

Management GrmbH

Wesgo Ceramics GmbH Germany Willi-Grasser-Strafle 11, 91056 Erlangen, Germany 100.00%

Refractanios Nacionales 5.A. Guatemala Km. 34.5, Ruta al Pacifico. Palin, Escuintla. Guatemala 100.00%

Morgan AM&T Hong Kong Hong Kong Units 4-6, 1I/F. Siu Wai Industrial Centre, 29-33 Wing Hong Street, {00.00%

Company Ltd Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Morgan Materials Hungary Limited Hungary Csillagvirdg utca 7, 1106 Budapest, Hungary 100.00%

Liability Company'®

Morgan Advanced Materials Indig india P-11. Pandav Nagar, Mayur Vihar Phase |. Delhi, 113091, india 100.00%

Private Ltd

Morganite Crucible (india) Ltd India B-11. MIDC Industrial Area. Walu), Aurangabad, 431136. 75.00%
Maharashtra, India

Ciria India Limited" India P-11. Pandav Nagar, Mayur Vihar Phase |, Delhi, 110091 India 70.00%

Murugappa Morgan Thermal India PO Box 1570, Dare House Complex, Old No. 234/New No. 2, 51.00%

Ceramics Ltd* NSC Bose Road. Chennai. 600001 India

Thermal Ceramics ltaliana S Rt Italy Via Vittori Pisani 20, 20124, Milan, ltaly 100.00%

Margan Carbon Italia S.R.L Italy Via Vittori Pisani 20, 20124, Milan, Italy 100.00%

Morganite Carbon Kabushiki Kaisha Japan [-5, Isogamidori 7-chome, Chuo-ku, Kobe-shi, Hyogo, Japan 100.00%

Shin-Nippen Thermal Japan Portus Certer Building 12F 4-45-1 Ebisujimacho. Sakai-ku. 50.00%

Ceramics Corporation Sakai-shi, Osaka 590-0985, Japan

Morgan Korea Company Ltd* " Korea 27 Nongongjoongang-ro 46 gil, Nongong-eup, Dalseong-gun, 93.19%
Daegu-si, Republic of Karea

Morganite Luxembourg S.A. Luxembourg BP I5, Capellen, L-8301, Luxembourg 100.00%

Grafitos y Maquinados S A. de CV. " Mexico Cerrada de la Paz No. 101, Col. Industrial La Paz, 100.00%

Pachuca Hidalge, Mexico
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Notes to the Company balance sheet continued

43. Fixed asset investments (continued)

Name of undertaking

Grupe Industrial Morgan
S5.A de CV!"

Morgan Technical Ceramucs
S.A de CWV"

Morgan Holding Netherlands B.V.
Maorgan Terrassen BV

Morgan AM&ET B V.

Morgan Carbon Polska Sp.zoo
Thermal Ceramics Polska Sp.zoo
Morgan Ceramics Asia Pte Ltd'
Morganite Ujantshi (Pty) Ltd

Thermal Ceramics South Africa
(Pty) Ltd

Morganite South Africa {Pty) Ltd
Thermal Ceramics Espafia S.L.
Morganite Espafiola S.A,

Morgan Matroc 5.A. {in liquidation})

Morgan Advanced Materials
{Taiwan) Co. Ltd

Maorganite Thermal Ceramics
{Tarwany Lid

Morgan Holdings
{Thailand) Ltd*

Morgan Technical Ceramics
{Thailand) Ltd”

MKGS Morgan Karbon Grafit
Sanayi Ancnim Sirketi

Morgan Advanced Materials
Industries Ltd

Certech International Limited'
MCCo Limited’

MNA Finance Limited'

Morgan Electre Ceramics Limited
Morgan Europe Holding Limited
Morgan European Finance Limited
Maorgan Finance Management Limited
Morgan Holdings Limited'

Morgan Internaticnal

Hotding | irmited

Morgan North America
Hoding Limited
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Country of
incorporation

Mexico
Mexico

Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Poland
Poland
Singapore
Seouth Africa
South Africa

South Africa
Spain
Spain
Spain

Tatwan
Tarwan
Thailand
Thaland
Turkey

United Arab
Emirates

Urnited
Kingdom
United
Kingdom
United
Kingdom
United
Kingdom
United
Kingdom
United
Kingdom
United
Kingdom
United
Kingdom
United
Kingdem
United
Kingdom

Registered office address

Cerrada de la Paz No. 101, Fraccionamiento Industrial La Paz,
Mineral de la Reforma. 42181 Hidalgo, 42092, Mexico

Av. Fulton No. 20, Fraccionamiento Industrial Valle de Oro,
San juan del Rio, Queretaro C.P. 76802, Mexico

Oude Velling 3, 1689 AA Zwaag, The Netherlands

Cude Velling 3, 1689 AA Zwaag. The Netherlands

Cude Velling 3, 1689 AA Zwaag, The Netherlands

ul. Iskry 26, 01-472 Warszawa, Poland

Towarowa 9. 44-100 Gliwice, Poland

I50 Kampong Ampat, #05-06A, KA Centre, 368324, Singapore
149 South Rand Road, Tulisa Park, Johannesburg 2197, South Africa
149 South Rand Road, Tulisa Park, Johannesburg 2197, South Africa

149 South Rand Road, Tulisa Park. Johannesburg 2197, South Africa
Av. Eurcpa, 106, 12006, Castelldn, Spain

Av. Eurcpa, 106, 12006, Castellén, Spain

Roger de Lluria 104 57-2% 08037 Barcelona. Spain

25 Hsin-Yeh Street, Hsiao Kang, Kaohsiung 81208, Taiwan

c/o Baker & McKenzie, |5/ 168 Tun Hwa North Road,

Taipei 105, Taiwan

22nd-25th Floor. 990 Abdulrahim Place, Rama [V Road, Khwaeng
Silom Sub-district, Bangrak District, Bangkok, 10500, Thailand

No. 958 On-riuch Road, Khwaeng Suanluang, Khet Suanluang,
Bangkok. 10250, Thailand

Osmangazi Mahallesi 2647, Sokak No. 27/3. Kirag, Esenyurt,
Istanbul 34522, Turkey

KHIA4—07A, Khalifa Industnal Zone Abu Dhabi (KIZADY),
Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates

York House, Sheet Street. Windsor, Berkshire, S5L4 1DD. UK
York House, Sheet Street. Windsor. Berkshire, SL4 DD, UK
York House, Sheet Street. Windsor. Berkshire, 514 DD, UK
York House, Sheet Street. Windsor. Berkshire, 514 1DD. UK
York House. Sheet Street. Windsor, Berkshire, SL4 (DD, UK
York House, Sheet Street. Windsor. Berkshire, 514 DD, UK
York House. Sheet Street. Windsor, Berkshire, SL4 DD, UK
York House. Sheet Street, Windsor. Berkshire, SL4 DD, UK

York House, Sheet Street. Windsor. Berkshire, 514 IDD. UK

York House. Sheet Street, Windsor, Berkshire, SL4 DD, UK

% shareholding

owned by
the Group

100.00%

100.00%
100.060%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
10G.00%

7450%
100.00%

100.00%
100.G0%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

88.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
[00.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%



43. Fixed asset investments (continued)

% shareholding

Country of owned by

Name of undertaking incorporation Registered office address the Group

Morgan Technical Ceramics Limited United Morgan Advanced Materials — Technical Ceramics, Morgan Drive, 100.00%
Kingdom Stourport-on-Severn, Worcestershire DY'13 8DW, UK

Morgant [rdns Lrniled! Uniled Tork House, Sheel Sueet, Windsor, Berkshire, SL4 1DD, UK 100.60%
Kingdom

Morganite Carbon Limited' United York House, Sheet Street, Windsor, Berkshire, 514 1DD, UK 100.00%
Kingdom

Morganite Crucible { imited United York House. Sheet Street, Windsor, Berkshire. SL4 DD, UK [00.00%
Kingdom

Marganite Electrical Carbon Limited United Upper Florest Way. Morriston, Swansea, West Glamorgan, 100.00%
Kingdom SAG6 BPP, UK

Morganite Special Carbons Limited United York House, Sheet Street, Windsor, Berkshire, 514 DD, UK [00.00%
Kingdom

Petty France Investment United York House. Sheet Street, Windsor, Berkshire, SL4 1DD, UK [00.00%

Nominees | imited Kingdom

TCG Guardian | Limited United York House, Sheet Street, Windsor, Berkshire, SL4 1DD, UK 100.00%
Kingdem

TCG Guardan 2 timited United York House. Sheet Street, Windsor, Berkshire. SL4 1DD., UK 100.00%
Kingdom

Terrassen Holdings Limited® United York House, Sheet Street, Windsor, Berkshire, SL4 {DD, UK 100.00%
Kingdem

The Morgan Crucible United York House. Sheet Street, Windsor, Berkshire, SL4 1DD, UK [00.00%

Company Limited Kingdom

Thermal Ceramics Limited” United York Fouse, Sheet Street, Windsor, Berkshire. S14 1DD, UK 100.00%
Kingdem

Thermal Ceramics UK Limited United Tebay Road, Bromborough, Wirral, CHé62 3PH, UK 160.00%
Kingdom

Clearpower Ld™+? United York House, Sheet Street, Windsor, Berkshire, SL4 DD, UK 99.01%
Kingdom

Ceriech, Inc.~# United States | Park Place West, Wood-Ridge, New Jersey, 07075, USA 100.00%

Graphite Die Mold, Inc.** United States |8 Air Line Park, Durham, Connecticut 06422 1000, USA 100.00%

Morgan Advanced Ceramics, In¢.? United States 2425 Whipple Road. Hayward, California 94544, USA 100.00%

Morgan Advanced Materials and United States 441 Hall Avenue, 5t Marys, Pennsylvania |5857, USA 100.00%

Technology Inc.*

Morganite Crucible Ing.* United States 2102 Old Savannah Road, Augusta, Georgia 30906, USA 100.00%

Morganite Industries Inc.” Urnited States 4000 West Chase Blvd, Suite 170, Raleigh, 100.00%

North Carolina 27607, USA

National Electrical Carbon United States PO Box 1056, 251 Forrester Drive, Greenville, 100.00%

Products, Inc.!” South Carolina 29602, USA

Thermal Ceramics Inc.?* United States PO Box 923, 2102 Old Savannah Road. Augusta. 100.00%

Georgia 30906. USA

Thermal Ceramics de Venezuela Zona Ind. El Recreo, Av. 87 NT105-121, Flor Amarille, 100.00%

Venezuela C A7 Valencia Edo. Carabobo, Venezuela

oo Directy ownce by Morgar Advanced Matenials ple 14 Ownershiy held in Common Stock of ro pa value

b 99 98 owned by Maorgan Advarced Matenals oo 15 Ownershin hela i Registerec Cap tas

3. 99% ownea by Morgas Advanced Materials pl te Cravnershio held in Ord nary Shares of o el vel =

4 Y3 1¥% awned oy Morgar Advanced Mater als ptc |7 Ownershiz held in Part~ersto Sharey

3 /0% oanec by Morgan Advanced Mazenals plc 18, Ownershiz held in Common and 2reference Shirec

& 515 owned by Mo-gan Advanced Matenials cle 19 Owrnershiz held in Serigs A and Series B

7 50% cwvnec by Morgat Advarced Matenials ph 200 Dwenershus held o Ordinary AL B and © and Preference A d 3 Shares

§ 8 18% onnec by Morga~ fdvanced Matenae ple 21 Ownershy held m Ordinary A anc B Shares

9 A% owred by Morgan Advanced Materins ple 27 Owershuz held - Common Stock

16 88% owned by Morpan Advericed Materials o 23 Quwnershio held in 2referred Stock o=d no par Comme Stocr

I Owenershus ke d in Class A and Class B Common Stoct 4 Ownershio hele in Class A, Class B ¢~d Class C Commaon Stoc-

12 Owerershas he d i Grorsey and Noe-Corulatne Non-Part csateg Redeeniabee 4 De-registered bebruary 2023

Pretererce Shares
Owerprshis held in Gurolas
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Notes to the Company balance sheet continued

43. Fixed asset invesrments {continued)

UK incorporated subsidharies which have taken exemption from audit per Section 479A of the Comparues Act 2006 for the year ended
31 December 2022 are listed below.

Morgan Advanced Materials ple will guarantee the debts and liabilities of the companies claiming the statutary audit exemption at the
balance sheet date in accordance with Section 479C of the Companies Act 2006, The Company has assessed the probability of loss
under the guarantee as remote.

Registered
Name of undertaking n__ua_"nber
Clearpower Limited 06247523
MCCO Limited 03246886
MMNA Finance Limited 10423297
Morgan Europe Holding Limited 02540399
Morgan European Finance Limited 09910922
Morgan Finance Management Limited 10423619
Morgan Holdings Limited 01956134
Morgan International Holding Limited 10677668
Morgan North America Holding Limited 08789720
Morgan Trans Limted 02557161
Morganite Carbon Limited 00679647
Morganite Crucible Limited 02133533
TCG Guardian 2 Limited 05564065
Terrassen Holdings Limited 01352995
The Morgan Crucible Company Limited 07328730
44. Derivative financial assets and liabilities
2022 2021
£m &
Derivative financial assets
Forward foreign exchange contracts non- designated
— amounts falling due within one year 2.0 [.0
amounts falling due after more than one year - 82
2.0 9.2
Derivative financial liabilities
Forward foreign exchange contracts non-designated
- amounts falling due within one year (6.4) (0.9)
- amounts falling due after more than one year (7.2) (2.7}
(13.6) (3.6}

Fair values are measured using a hierarchy where the inputs are:
. Level | - quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabihities.

~ Level 2 — not traded in an active market but the fair values are based on quoted market prices or alternative pricing sources with
reasonable levels of price transparency. Fair value is calculated using discounted cash flow methodology, future cash flows are estimated
based on forward exchange rates.

. Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

The dervative financial assets and labilities are all measured using Level 2 inputs. The fair vaiue of forward foreign exchange contracts is
estimated by discounting the future cash flows using appropriate market-sourced data at the balance sheet date,
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Group statistical information

UNDER ADOPTED IFRSs

2018 2019
Results before Resdlts before 2020 2021 2022
specific adjusting  specific adjusting Results before Results before Results before
iterns items  specific adjusting  specifc adjusting specific
restated - 1estated: iterms tems  adjusting items
£m i £m m £im
Revenue 1.033.9 1.049.5 910.7 950.5 1L112.1
Protit from operations betore
amortisation of intangible assets 124.8 134.2 g7 124.5 151.0
Amortisation of intangible assets (8.0 (GHY &.1) (6.0} “4.7)
Operating profit 116.8 [26.1 85.6 18,5 146.3
Net financing costs (13.2) (16.9) (1.9} {9.2) (%.2)
Share of profit of associate (net of income tax) 08 0.5 0.6 04 -
Profit before taxation 104.4 1097 74.3 109.7 137.1
Income tax expense (29.0) (25.9) (20.2) (29.7) (7.1}
Profit after taxation before
discontinued operations 754 79.8 541 80.0 £00.0
Discontinued operations (1.4 0.7 - - -
Profit for the period 74.0 80.5 54.1 80.0 100.0
Assets employed
Property. plant and equipment 314.5 317.2 2676 248 283.2
Right-of-use assets - 49.1 355 31.9 33.6
Intangible assets 215.6 2048 1854 1831 189.0
Investments and cther receivables 2.2 12.2 1.2 29 3.2
Deferred tax assets 6.9 6.0 144 159 15.3
Net current assets 106.8 125.1 136.7 202 .8 212.6
Total assets less current liabilities 656.0 7144 650.8 684.7 736.9
Employee benefits: pensions 190 4 156.8 176.3 102.7 5.6
Non-current provisions and other items 1779 241.0 234.0 2312 289.7
Deferred tax labilities .0 4.9 0.5 [.2 2.0
276.7 37 240.0 3496 429.6
Equity
Total equity attributable to equily holders
of the Parent Company 232.3 270.2 2023 310.6 389.0
Non controlling interests 44.4 41.5 377 39.0 40.6
Total equity 276.7 317 240.0 349.6 429.6
Ordinary dividends per share® 11 Op 4.0p 5.5p 9lp 12.0p
Earnings per share
Continuing and discontinued operations
Basic earnings/{loss) per share |6.2p 25.7p (7%p 259p 31.0p
Diluted earnings/ioss) per share l6.1p 25.5p (79p 257p 30.7p
Adjusted earnings per share’ 26.7p 28.0p 159.0p 27.2p 33.8p
Diluted adjusted earnings per share’ 26 .6p 278p 18.9p 27.0p 33.5p

| The Group cisposec of the Composites and Defence Sysierns bus ness n 7018 the d sposal greup formed the Cornposites and Deferce Systerns operaung segment and has been
classif ed as a ciscontinued operat on under IFRS 5
Figures for 201# 2019 rave beer restated 1o < asafy toe Groun's cumolat ve Preference shares as borrowings

3 Or t March 2020 the Graup arnounced the Board - decsion to witrdraa the sroposed 2019 feal enaderd doe to the firanaal unzetants resylting froe tme COMD-19 pandesie

1 Defiriions of these non GAAP rcasures can be found 1 the g ossary of terms or page 206, reconal ziions of the statutory resul’s to *he agjusted measdres can be found or pages 57 5%
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Cautionary statement

ot

This document has been prepared for and only for the members of the Company as a body and no other persors. Its purpose 15 1o assist
members in assessing how the Directors have performed their duties, the Company's strategies and the potential for those strategies to
succeed and for no other purpose, Save as would otherwise arise under English law, the Company, its Directors, employees. agents or
advisors do not accept or assume respansibility or liability to any third parties to whom this document is shown or into whose hands it
may come and any such responsibility or lability is expressly disclaimed.

This docurment contains forward-looking statements that are subject to risk factors asscciated with. amongst other things. the economic
and business circumstances occurnng from time to time in the countries, sectors and markets in which the Group operates. These and
other factors could adversely affect the outcome and financial effects of the plans and events described Forward-looking statements by
their nature involve a number of risks, uncertainties and assumptions because they relate to events and/or depend on circumstances that

may or may not occur in the future and could cause actual results and ocutcomes to differ materially from those expressed in or implied

by the forward-looking staternents.

Itis believed that the expectations reflected in these statements are reasonable, but they may be affected by a wide range of such
variables, No assurances can be given that the forward-looking statements in this document will be realised. The forward-lcoking
statements reflect the knowledge and information available at the date this document was prepared and will not be updated during
the year but will be considered in the Annual Report for next year. Nothing in this document should be construed as a profit forecast,

Glossary of terms

Constant-currency'

Constant-currency revenue and Group adjusted operating profit are derived by translating
the prior year results at current year average exchange rates.

Corporate costs

Corporate costs consist of the costs of the central head office.

Free cash flow before acquisitions,
disposals and dividends'

Cash generated from continuing operations less net capital expenditure. net interest paid.
tax paid and lease payments.

Group earnings before interest,
tax, depreciation and
amortisation (EBITDA)'

EBITDA i1s defined as operating profit before specific adjusting items. amortisation of
intangible assets and depreciation.

Group adjusted operating profit'

Operating profit adjusted to exclude specific adjusting items and amortisation of
intangible assets,

Group organic'

The Group results excluding acquisition, disposal and business exit impacts at
constant-currency.

Adjusted earnings
per share (EPS)'

Adjusted earnings per share 's defined as operating profit adjusted to exclude specific
adjusting items and amortisation of intangible assets, plus share of profit of associate less
net financing costs, income tax expense and non-controlling interests, divided by the
weighted average number of Ordinary shares during the period.

Net debt'

Borrowings, bank overdrafts and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents,

Net cash and cash equivalents'

Net cash and cash equivalents is defined as cash and cash equivalents less bank overdrafts.

Return on invested
capital (ROIC)'

Group adjusted operating profit {operating profit excluding specific adjusting tems and
amortisation of intangible assets) divided by the 12-month average adjusted net assets
(excludes long-term employee benefits, deferred tax assets and liabilities, current tax payable,
provisions, cash and cash equivalents, borrowings. bank overdrafts and lease liabilities).

Specific adjusting items

See note 6 and note | to the conselidated financial statements for further details.

Underlying

Reference to underlying reflects the trading results of the Group without the impact of specific
adjusting items and amortisation of intangible assets that would otherwise impact the users’
understanding of the Groun’s performance. The Directors beheve that adjusted results provide
additional useful informaticn on the core operational performance of the Group, and review
the results of the Group on an adjusted basis internally.

Fecons hatons of these 1 om-GAAP mieziares to GASP nrcasures can b found on pages 57 29
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Shareholder information

Analy<is nf Ordinary sharcholdings as at 31 Decemboer 2022

Number of % of total Number of % of share
holdings holdings shares capital
Size of holding [-2.000 3,472 74.59 I,.862.128 065
2,001-5.00C 559 12.01 i, 790,817 .63
5,001-10,000 193 4.15 1,358,937 .48
10,001-50,000 202 4,34 4,381,254 I.54
50,001-100,000 57 1.22 4,107,516 I.44
100.001 and above 172 3.69 271,869,336 95.26
4,655 100.00 285,369,988 100.00
Holding cassification Individuals 4,158 §9.32 6,806,939 2.39
Nominee compartes 373 8.01 233445427 81.80
Trusts {pension funds etc) 4 0.09 30,519 0.0/
Others 120 2.58 45,087,106 15.80
4,655 100.00 285,369,988 100.00
Key dates
29 June 2023 2023 Annual General Meeting {AGM}, commencing at 10.30am.
28 July 2023 Half-year results announced via the Regulatory News Service and on the Company's website.
2022 and 2023 dividend payment dates
| April and | October 2022 Dwidend payment dates in respect of the 5.5% Cumulative First Preference shares of £1 each
and the 5.0% Cumulative Second Preference shares of £1 each.
18 November 2022 An interim cash dividend of 5.3 pence per Crdinary share of 25 pence each was paid to
shareholders registered at the close of business on 28 October 2022,
3 July 2023 Subject to shareholders’ approval at the 2023 AGM, a final cash dividend of 6.7 pence per

Ordinary share of 25 pence each will be paid to shareholders registered at the close of business
on 9 June 2023,

| October 2023 Dividend payment date in respect of the 5.5% Cumulative First Preference shares of £1 each
and the 5.09% Cumulative Second Prefererice shares of £ each.

Cther information

Capital gains tax The market values of quoted shares and stocks at 31 March 1982 were:
Crdinary shares of 25 pence each: 122.5 pence
5.5% Cumulative First Preference shares of £1 each: 30.5 pence
5.0% Cumulative Second Preference shares of £1 each: 28.5 pence

For capital gains tax purposes, the cost of Ordinary shares is adjusted to take account of rights
issues, Any capital gains arising on disposal will also be adjusted to take account of indexation
allowances. Since the adjustments will depend on individual circumstances. shareholders are
recommended to consult their professional advisors.

Share price The price can be obtained on the Company's website: morganadvancedmaterials.com
ISIN Code GBO0D6027295

LEI [4KI4LL5N2PHDL/EGSES

Ticker symbol MGAM
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Shareholder information continued

Ctrlilpén\y details

Company
name
change

Registered
office

Website

Company
registrars

Shareview
portfolio
Dividend
payments

Multiple
accounts

on the
shareholder
register
Buying

and selling
shares

Donate your
shares to
charity

Unsolicited
telephone
calls

and mail

Asset
Reunification
Programme

The Company changed 1ts name to Morgan Advanced Matenials plc {from The Morgan Crucible Company plc) on
27 March 2013. Following this change, share certificates issued in the name "The Morgan Crucible Company plc’ remain
valid (replacement share certficates in the name "Morgan Advanced Materials plc” were not issued to existing shareholders).

York House, Sheet Street. Windsor, 5L4 |1DD
Registered in England and Wales No. 286773 Telephone: +44 (0)1753 837000
morganadvancedmarcerlals.com

The Company's website provides information about the Group including the markets in which it operates. its strategy and
recent news from the Group. The Investors section is a key source of information for shareholders. contaning details of
financial results. shareholder meetings and dividends. and providing access to frequently asked questions. Current and
past annual half-year and sustainability and responsibility/EHS reports are also available to view and download.

Equinit) Limited, Aspect House. Spencer Road., Lancing, West Sussex, BIN99 6DA

Telephone: +44 (0)371 384 2412

Website: www.shareview.co.uk

Lines are open between 8.30am and 5.30pm, Monday to Friday (excluding UK public holidays). Shareholders with queries
relating to their shareholding should contact Equiniti directly. Alternatively. shareholders may find the investors section of
our website useful for general enguiries.

The most efficient way to communicate with Equiniti is by registering for a portfclio at www.shareview.co.uk. This is
a service which enables shareholders to manage their shareholdings online.

You can choose to recetve your dividend in a number of ways, Dividends will automatically be paid to you by cheque
in UK pounds sterling and sent 1o your registered address unless you have chosen one of the options below:

Direct payment to your bank

Cash dividends can be paid directly to a UK bank or building society account. This means that your dividend reaches
your bank account on the payment date, it is more secure {cheques can sometimes get lost in the post). you avoid the
inconvenience of depositing a cheque and cheque fraud 1s reduced. If you are a shareholder who has a UK bank or
bullding society account you can arrange to have dividends paid directly via a bank/building society mandate. You can
add or change your mandate online at www.shareview.co.uk, or by contacting Equiniti.

Overseas payments

If you live overseas and would like dividends paid to an overseas account, please contact Equiniti by post to set up or
amend a mandate. They offer an overseas payment service for 90 countries worldwide. Please see further information
at www.shareview.co.uk.

If a shareholder receives two or more sets of AGM decuments. or multiple dividend payments, this means that there

is more than one account in their name on the shareholder register, perhaps because the name or the address appears
on each account in a slightly different way. If you have muttiple accounts and would like themn to be combined. please
comact Equiniti.

Equinit offer a service to buy and sell shares in UK listed companies. For more information, visit www.shareview.co.uk
or call 03456 037 037. Providing this information is not a recormmendation 1o buy or sell shares and this service may not
be suitable for all shareholders. The price and value of any investments and income from them can fluctuate and may fall.
Therefore, you may get back less than the amount you invested. Past performance 1s not a guide to future performance.

Neither the Company nor Equiniti provides advice or makes recormmendaticns about investments. if you have any doubts
about the suitability of an investment, you should seek advice from a suitably qualified professional advisar,

If you have only a small number of shares which are uneconomical to sell. you may wish to consider donating them to
charity, free of charge, through ShareGift (registered charity 1052686), a chanty that specialises in the donation of small,
unwanted shareholdings to good causes, You can find out more by visiting www.sharegift.org or by telephoning
+44 (0320 7930 3737

Shareholders in companies may receive unsclicted phone calls or correspondence concerning investment matters.

If you are offered unsolicited investment advice, discounted shares, a premium price for shares you own, or free company
or research reports. please check the company or person contacting you is properly authorised by the Fimancial Conduct
Authority before getting invelved. Further information about what you should do is available on our website in the
‘Sharehoider Centre' within the Investors section.

Morgan has launched a tracing programme with the aim of reuniting ‘lost’ shareholders or their estates with unclaimed
cash entitlerments in respect of Morgan dividend payments. Cash entitlements may not have been claimed due to an
address change, or where a shareholder is deceased and the beneficiaries or executors of an estate are not aware of

the holding. If you would hke to clarify whether you or a deceased person for whase estate you act holds shares in
Morgan please comtact Equiniti for further assistance,
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